


BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
OF OREGON 

Docket No. UP- 

Pursuant to ORS 757.480, OAR 860-13-010 and OAR 860-27-025, PacifiCorp (or 

In the Matter of the Application of PACIFICORP for 
an Order Approving the Sale of the Upper Beaver 
Hydroelectric Project. 

the "Company") files this Application for an Order approving the proposed sale and 

transfer of PacifiCorp's 2.5 MW Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project ("Project") from 

PacifiCorp to the City of Beaver, Utah ("City"). The provisions of ORS 757.480 require 

the approval of the Public Utility Commission of Oregon (the "Commission") for any 

transaction to sell or otherwise dispose of public utility property necessary or useful in 

APPLICATION 

the performance of the public utility's duties to the public. 

I. BACKGROUND 

A. The Parties 

1. The Applicant 

PacifiCorp was incorporated in the State of Oregon on August 11, 1987. The 

Company is a public utility within the meaning of ORS 757.005 and serves 

approximately 1.6 million retail customers in six western states: California, Idaho, 

Oregon, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming. In Oregon, the Company provides retail 

electric service to approximately 539,000 customers. PacifiCorp also engages in 

wholesale electricity sales throughout the western United States. The exact name and 

address of the utility's principal business office are as follows: 



PacifiCorp 
825 NE Multnomah Street 
Portland, OR 97232 

Data requests to the Company regarding this matter should be addressed in the 

following manner with copies to the representatives listed below: 

By e-mail (preferred): datarequest@,pacificorp.com. 

By fax: (503) 8 13-6060 

By regular mail: Data Request Response Center 
PacifiCorp 
825 NE Multnomah, Suite 2000 
Portland, OR 97232 

PacifiCorp requests that all notices, correspondence and pleadings with respect 

to this Application be sent to: 

For PacifiCorp: 

Laura Beane 
Oregon State Manager 
PacifiCorp 
825 NE Multnomah St., Suite 2000 
Portland, OR 97232 
Telephone: (503) 8 13-5542 
Facsimile: (503) 8 13-6060 
laura. beane@pacificorp. corn 

With a copy to: 

Natalie Hocken 
Assistant General Counsel 
PacifiCorp 
825 NE Multnomah St., Suite 1800 
Portland, OR 97232 
Telephone: (503) 8 13-7205 
Facsimile: (503) 8 13-7252 
natalie . hocken@pacificorp . com 

A list of PacifiCorp's officers are contained in Application Exhibit 2. 

2. The Purchaser 

The City of Beaver is a municipal corporation of the state of Utah. It owns and 

operates the downstream Lower Beaver Hydroelectric Project (previously owned by 

PacifiCorp). The City desires to purchase the nearby Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 

to serve its local municipal retail electric loads. 



B. The Project 

The Project is 90 years old, is located on the Beaver River and generates an 

average of 8,964 MWh per year. It is comprised of the twenty-five foot high Merchant 

Valley dam, a powerhouse containing one 1.2 MW and one 1.3 MW horizontal Pelton 

runner generating units, approximately two miles of main flow line (30 to 36 inches in 

diameter), three connecting diversions, a surge tank, a penstock approximately one mile 

in length, and other personal property, inventory, water rights, contracts, authorizations, 

and easements as described in the Project Purchase Agreement and its exhibits. The 

Project resides entirely upon United States Forest Service land in the Fish Lake National 

Forest under authority of a Special Use Permit ("SUP"). The Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission ("FERC") granted an exemption from licensing as a hydropower facility 

pursuant to 16 U.S.C. 5 2705(d), which allows exemptions for facilities less than 5 MW. 

See 29 FERC P 62,054 (1984)(0rder granting exemption from licensing). The Project is, 

however, subject to dam safety regulation by FERC and the State of Utah. 

Throughout its life, the Project has been used to produce electric power for sale to 

its owner's customers. After completion of the transaction, the City proposes to use the 

Project to generate power to meet its customers' electric service requirements. When the 

sale is completed, the City of Beaver will wheel Project energy output across the 

Company's existing transmission system to the City of Beaver's existing municipal 

service territory to serve its retail load. The Company is not aware of any other effect the 

proposed transaction may have other utility systems. 

11. PROPOSED TRANSACTION 

PacifiCorp proposes to sell the Upper Beaver Project, including the assets listed in 
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the Project Purchase Agreement, to the City of Beaver for $2,000,000. The City of 

Beaver will pay the Company the full purchase price (less any prior deposits) in cash at 

closing. A copy of the Project Purchase Agreement is attached as Application Exhibit 1. 

The closing shall take place within 60 days after the separation facilities have been put 

into place and all necessary regulatory approvals have been obtained. Additionally, the 

proposed sale is contingent upon the City of Beaver's receipt and acceptance of a new 

Special Use Permit from the United States Forest Service. The details of the transaction 

are provided in the testimony of Mr. James M. 07Connell. 

111. JURSDICTION AND AUTHORITY 

A public utility must receive Commission approval for any transaction to sell 

property that is necessary or useful in the company's performance of its duties to the 

public. Specifically, ORS 757.480(1)(a) provides: 

A public utility doing business in Oregon shall not, without 
first obtaining the Public Utility Commission's approval of 
such transaction: (a) . . . sell, lease, assign or otherwise 
dispose of the whole of the property of such public utility 
necessary or useful in the performance of its duties to the 
public or any part thereof of a value in excess of $100,000 . 
. . 

The standard for approval of a sale is whether the proposed transaction is 

consistent with the public interest. See OAR 860-27-025(1)(1). The Commission has 

previously held that this standard requires only a "no harm" showing.' As explained in 

Section IV of this Application, the facts and circumstances of the proposed transaction 

1 
See. e.g., In the Matter of a Legal Standard for Approval of Mergers, Docket UM-I 01 1, Order No. 0 1-778 

(Sept. 4,2001) ("The remainder of the statutory scheme, those statutes governing transfer, sale, affiliated interests 
transactions, and contracts, either expresses no standard (for instance, ORS 757.480, ,485) and has been read to require 
a no harm standard, or contains a 'not contrary to the public interest' standard (ORS 757.490, .495.)") (emphasis 
added); 61 the Matter of the Application ofPacijiCorp, Docket UP 168, Order No. 00-1 12, at 6 (Feb. 29,2000) 
(regarding the sale of its interest in the Centralia generating plant); In the Matter ofPortland General Electric, Docket 
UP 158, Order No. 00-1 1 I,  at 2 (Feb. 29,2000) (regarding the sale of the Colstrip generating units); In the Matter of 
the Application ofPortland General Electric, Docket UP 16.51 UP 170, Order No. 99-730, at 7 (Nov. 29, 1999) 
(regarding the sale of its interest in the Centralia generating plant). 
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demonstrate that customers will not be harmed by the proposed transaction. Based on 

this analysis, the Company urges the Commission to find that the proposed transfer will 

not harm PacifiCorpYs customers and is consistent with the public interest. 

IV. BENEFITS OF THE TRANSACTION 

A. Compliance with State Law 

The requirements of Oregon law regarding the transfer of the Upper Beaver 

Hydroelectric Project are set forth in Section I11 above. If the Commission approves this 

Application, the transfer to the City of Beaver will not violate Oregon state law. 

B. Benefit to Customers 

The City of Beaver offered to purchase the Project for $2,000,000, which offer the 

Company accepted after determining it was in the best interest of its customers to do so. 

The Company's decision was based on a 30-year present value economic analysis 

comparing three basic options for the Project: 1) continued ownership and operation of 

the Project, 2) decommissioning the Project, and 3) selling the Project to the City of 

Beaver for $2 million. In each of these three options, the present value of the revenue 

requirement (PVRR) is computed over an assumed 30-year life of the Project. This 

analysis is shown in Exhibit PPL/201 included in the attached testimony of Mr. Stan P. 

Satter. The analysis illustrates the following: 

The PVRR of the continued ownership and operation option is approximately 

$10.73 million, 

The PVRR of the decommission option is approximately $10.59 million, and 

The PVRR of the sale of the project option is approximately $8.34 million. 

The revenue requirement cost to customers of the sale of plant option is over $2 million 

lower than either of the other two options ($2.39 million lower than continued ownership 
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and $2.25 million lower than decommissioning). This $2.25 million or $2.39 million 

difference represents the benefit to customers of proceeding with the sale relative to the 

other two options. 

C. Proposed Ratemaking Treatment 

Regulatory treatment of the sale of the Project will follow traditional accounting 

practices. PacifiCorpYs current investment at the Upper Beaver Project in electric plant- 

in-service (FERC account 101) is $3,314,145. The sale is expected to close in the first or 

second quarter of 2007 and therefore, for purposes of estimating the accounting 

transactions related to this sale, the company has assumed a closing date of March 3 1, 

2007. The accumulated depreciation reserve (FERC account 108) on that date will be 

$1,693,257 for a net book value of $1,620,888. 

The gain is shown to be approximately $24,000, which is computed as the $2 

million gross revenue from the sale minus $355,000 estimated costs to get the Project 

ready to sell minus approximately $1.62 million of remaining net book value of the 

Project on the Company's books. The testimony of Mr. J. Ted Weston details the 

accounting treatment proposed for the sale and also computes the gain on sale expected 

from the transaction (PPLl301). 

The Company believes that no special rate making provisions are necessary. The 

total Company gain on sale of approximately $24,000 and Oregon's-allocated share of 

$6,500 are immaterial. PacifiCorp will track this gain in the property balancing account 

pursuant to Order No. 01-787. 



D. Public Interest Standard 

PacifiCorp submits that this transaction is in the public interest because it will 

reduce PacifiCorp's costs of providing service, for the reasons stated in Section IV.B., 

above, and it will cause no harm to the Company's customers. 

The City of Beaver already owns and operates the Lower Beaver Hydroelectric 

Project, located immediately downstream from the Project. The sale of the Project to the 

City of Beaver serves the public interest because the City intends to use the Project 

output to serve its growing retail load and is uniquely situated to optimize the benefits of 

the Project for the public. 

V. OTHER MATTERS 

A. Gain or Loss on Transfer 

As shown in Section 1V.C. and in the testimony of Mr. J. Ted Weston (Exhibit 

PPL/301), the gain on sale is approximately $24,000 and Oregon's allocated share is 

approximately $6,500. PacifiCorp will track any Oregon-allocated share of the gain in 

the property balancing account pursuant to Order No. 0 1-787. 

B. Additional regulatory approvals. 

This proposed transaction also requires the approval of the California Public 

Utilities Commission and the Wyoming Public Service Commission. A copy of the 

regulatory filings required by these agencies will be provided to the Commission upon 

request. 



C. Timing of Approval 

PacifiCorp proposes to transfer the Project by March 3 1,2007. Accordingly, 

PacifiCorp respectfully requests that the Commission conduct its proceedings and issue 

its Order by December 3 1,2006. 

D. Parties Affiliate Relationships 

Neither of the parties to the Project Purchase Agreement owns, holds or controls 

any of the stock, bonds, or other securities of the other. 

E. Prefiled Testimony and Exhibits to Application 

The witnesses sponsoring prefiled testimony in support of this Application are: 

1. Mr. James M. O'Connell -- Description of Project and Transaction 

2. Mr. Stan P. Satter -- Economic Analysis 

3. Mr. J. Ted Weston -- Proposed Regulatory Treatment and Gain on 
Sale Analysis 

The exhibits that accompany this Application are: 

1. Application Exhibit 1 : Project Purchase Agreement 

2. Application Exhibit 2: PacifiCorp's most recent forms 10-K and 10-Q 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

F. Administrative Rules Provisions 

OAR 860-027-0025(1) and (2) require that certain information and exhibits 

accompany an application for authority to transfer utility property. Pursuant to OAR 

860-027-0025(3), the Company requests that the filing requirements of OAR 860-027- 

0025(1) and (2) be waived and PacifiCorp be authorized to submit this Application 

pursuant to the filing requirements set forth in OAR 860-027-0025(3). The Company 

submits that the information required in OAR 860-027-0025(3) is provided in this 



Application, supra, except to the extent submission of certain financial information 

regarding The City of Beaver, Utah, as purchaser, is required. PacifiCorp respectfully 

requests waiver of this requirement on the following grounds: First, the financial 

obligations of The City of Beaver, Utah to PacifiCorp with respect to the subject 

transaction are to be satisfied at Closing. Thus, there will be no ongoing financial 

commitment to PacifiCorp after the closing date. The Upper Beaver Hydroelectric 

Project will not be used for purposes of providing jurisdictional electric services after the 

proposed transfer. In light of these facts, the requirement to provide certain financial 

information regarding The City of Beaver, Utah is not applicable to the subject 

transaction. 

In addition, to the extent information required by OAR 860-027-0025(3) is not 

provided in the form prescribed by the Commission's regulations, PacifiCorp respectfully 

requests waiver of this formal requirement. Waiver of the requirement will not impede 

the Commission's analysis of the issues presented in this matter. 

VI. REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

PacifiCorp respectfully requests a Commission order: 

(a) Approving the proposed sale of the Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 
consistent with the Agreement; 

(b) Granting such other relief as the Commission deems necessary and proper. 

DATED: September 6 
9-2006. Respectfully submitted, 

A' 

Vice President, Regulation 



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

PACIFICORP 

PROJECT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 



PROJECT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

Bey? and between 

THE CITY OF BEAVER, UTAH 

And 

PACIFICORP 

Relating to the Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 

Dated as off  anuary 1 1, 2006 

L!ppcr BeLl\ er- PI-olcct furchnsc Agreement \ , I  - S.ilnc 



1 . RECITALS 1 

2 . DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................ 1 

........................... 3 . SALE AND PURCIIXS E OF PROJECT AND RELATED ASSETS 3 

........................................................................... 3.1 Assets to Be Sold o r  Assigned 3 
....................................................... 3.2 Instruments of Conveyance and Transfer 3 

.................................................................................................... 3.3 Purchase Price 4 
........................................................................................................... 3.4 Payxnent 4 

...................................................................................................... 3.5 Escrow Agent 4 
..................................................................... 3.6 Assr~rnptiorl of Certain 1, iabilities 4 

3.7 Allocation of Property Taxes ..................................................................... 3 
..................................................................... 3.5 Sales, Transfer, and Other 'rases 4 

.......................... . 4 CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PACIFICORP'S OBLIGATIONS 4 

.................................... 4.1 Representations. Warranties. and Covenants of City 5 
5 4.2 Opinion of Counsel for City .............................................................................. 

4.3 Necessary Kcgulatory Approvals ...................................................................... 5 
5 ........................................................................................ 4.4 Third Party Consents I 

............................................................................................................. 4.5 Litigation 6 - . .  ........................................................................................... 4.6 Separation E aclhties 6 

......................................... . 5 CONDITIO'NS PRECEDEST TO CITY'S OBLIGATIOXS 6 
......................... 5.1 Representations, '67S'arranties . and Covenants of PacifiCorp 6 

................................................................................... 5.2 Valid Special Use Permit 6 
7 ......................................................................................... 5.3 Third Party Consents 

5.4 Litigation ............................................................................................................ 7 

6 . REPRESENTATTO5S AVD W.ARR4 NTTES OF PAClFfCORP ................................ 7 
.......................................................... 6.1 Organkation and Po~?~ers of PacifiCol-p 7 

................. 6.2 Author@ Relative to Agreement; Goverunirntal Authorization 7 
........................................................................ 6.3 Son-Contl-n~ention; Approvals 7 

7 
6.4 Title to the Assets .................................. .. .......................................................... I 

........................................................................... 6.5 Contracts land Comrzlitl~~cnts 7 
................................................................... 6.6 I'ermits, Licenses, and Certificates S 

6.7 Tax h.latters ................................................................ ...................................... 8 
...................................................................................... 6.8 Compliallcc nritIl Laws B 

.......................................................... 6.9 Legal Proceedings ................................... 8 
6 . 10 y o  Brokers .......................................................................................................... 8 

................................................................................................... 6.1 1 K n o t ~ n  Defccts S 
........................................................................................... 6 2 Condition of Atssets Y 

7.1 Organization :~nd Powers of City .................................................................. 9 
................. 7.2 Authority Relative to  .A greenlent. G o ~ e r n ~ ~ l e n t a l  Authorization 9 - ., ........................................................................ Yon-Contraventio~1; .-\ pprovals 9 ... 

," - 1  NoBrokrrs .......................................................................................................... 9 
7 - .......................................................................... , .. Su fficisnt Fi~zancial Iicsources 9 



8 . COVENASTS OF PAC'IFICOIIP ................................................................................. 9 
................................................................................................... 8.1 Nlodifieations. 10 

...................................................................................................... 8.7 Cooperation 10 
....................................................................................................... 8.3 SurgeTank 10 

............................................................................... 8.4 Installation of Slide Gates 10 
........................................................................................ 8.5 Conduet of Business 10 

............................................................................ 8.6 Conditions and Best Efforts 10 
..................................................................................... 8.7 Preserve Relationships 10 

......................................................................................... 8.8 Maintain Properties 11 
........................................................................................ Y . I-) Operations Training 11 

8 . I0 Notification ....................................................................................................... 11 
........................................................................... 3.1 1 Delivery of Physical Records 11 

.............................................................................................. 9 . COVENANTS OF CITY 11 

........................................................ 9.1 Genera tion Intcrconuection Agt-cement I I 
....................................................................... 9.2 Network Resource Designation 11 

...................................................................................................... 9.3 Cooperation 11 . . ............................................................................................... 9.4 Non-competlt~on I 1  
............................................ 9.5 ResponsibiliQ- for Operation and Maintenance 12 

........................................................................................ 9.6 Operations Training 12 
............................................................................ 9.7 Conditions and Rest Efforts 12 

....................................................................................... 9.8 Response to Requests 12 

10 . CLOSWG 12 
................................................................................................. 10.1 Time and Place 12 

.......................................................................................... 1 0.2 Further Assurances 12 

11 . SURVWAL OF WARRAWTIES, REPRESENTATIONS, AND INDEMNITIES .. 12 

1 I . 1 Representations, \Varranties, and Covenants of the Parties to Be 
........................................................................................................ Continuing 12 

................................................................................... 1 1.2 lndexnnification by City 13 
............................................................................................ 1 1.3 Exclusive Ren~edy 13 

.......................................................................... ............................. 1 1.3 Exception .- 13 

...................................................................................................... 12.1 Teynlination 13 
...................................................................................... 12.3 Effect of T e r n ~ a t i o n  15 

12.3 Assignment ........................................................................................................ 25 
..................................................................................................... 13.4 No Discharge 15 

................................................................................................... 13 . MISCELLANEOUS 15 
.......................................................................................................... 13.1 Allocation 15 

.......................................................................................... 1 3.2 T;ls-lirec Escharlgc 15 

.......................................................................................... 1 3.3 Post-Closing Access 16 
.......................................................... 13.3 Termination of Use of Name aud Logo 16 

...................................................................................................... 1 3 . j amendment 16 
......................... 1.3.0 Section Headings ................................................................... 16 - ............................................................................................................... 1 3 . 1 \+'ai.rtey 16 



13 . S Choice of Law ................................................................................................... 16 
............................................................................................................... 13.9 Notices 16 

.................................................................................................... 13.10 Couliterparts 17 
............................................................................. 13.1 1 Cotistruction of hgrecmcxit 17 

13.12 Entire tigreemcnt ............................................................................................. 17 

.............................................................. EXI-IIBIT A: Prnjcct Property Included in Sale 20 

................................................. EXI-lfHl'T l3 - Project Inhentory and Project Equipment 37 

EXIIBlT C:  Project Water Rights, Contracts, Authorizations, Easements, 
..................................................... ........ and Kighrs of U7ay .........-..-.... 22 

..................................................................... EXHIBlT E . 13roperty Esclucled fiom Sale 24 

................................................ EIYEIIBIT F -- Specification for Painting the Surge Tank 26 

EXHIBIT G - Escro\sr Agreement .................................................................................... 30 

........................................................................ EXHIBIT H - Project Purchase Schedule 37 

.................................................................. E/WIBIT I - Projcct Contractual Obligations 38 

................................................................................ E,W 1RIT J - Non-Compliance Item 39 

.......... EXHIBIT K - Claims Against the Project JVhich Shall Remain With PacifiCorp 40 

EXHIBIT L-Know11 Defects to Project Property ........................................................... 41 



UPPER BEAVER HYDKOE1,ECTRIC PROJECT PURCHASE AGREEhIENT 

'1'11 IS PROJECT PURCIIASE .AGREE?l'IENT ("Agreement"), dated as of 
, is by and betwccn the City of Beaver, Utah, a 

municipal coyoration of the State of Utah ("City"), a i~d  PacifiCorp, an Orcgun 
corporation ("PncifiCorp"). City and PacifiCorp are sometimes referred to herein 
collectively as "Parties" and each individually as a "Party." 

1. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Pzc~fiCorp owns and operates thc Merchant Valley Dml, several 
intakcs, ilon lines, penstock, powerllouse, turbine-generators, substation, cwtbuildings, 
water rights. and other related property, together co~nprising the Uppcr Beaver 
I-Iydroel ectric Project (''P1-oj ect"); 

WHEREAS: City desires to purchase the Project, and to wheel power generated 
&om the Project to serve its retail loads; 

I&HEREr?\S, the parties have engaged in discussions regarding the sale of the 
Project by PaciiiCorp and the purchase of the Project by City: 

W-IEWAS.  PaclfiCorp Transmission hm ddeteni~incd how to separate the Beaver 
Project from the remainder of PacifiCorp's generation, transmission, and distribution 
system: 

'Ct'IIEREAS, the United States Forest Se~vice has indicated to both PacifiCorp and 
the City of Beaver that it will not require dredging of the Merchant Valley Dam; 

\TUXEREAS, PacifiCorp has informed thc City ofBeavcr of the terms, scope, and 
conditions of the Project's existing excniption fi-om the Federal Power Act; 

M'IIEEAS. both PaciiiCorp and City of Beaver wish to enter into a Contract for 
the Sale o f t h e  Beajrer Prqect, each party's perfosmancc under that contract corltirlgent 
upon the future e ~ ~ e n l s  described herein. 

XOLV THEREFORE. both parties hereby ap-ee as fi,llows. 

7'he followirlg terms used l?ur not otherwise detincd in this Agrce~ncnt sha11 have the 
following ineamngs !ihen used xs~th initial capitalization: whether sin&alar or plural: 

2.1 "tisscts" shall 1lax.e. the me:lr~ing set ib~th  ln Section 3. 1 . 

2.2 ".Assumed Liabilities" shall have the meaning set forth in Scction 3.6. 

7 ''Cit? Sotice to Proceed" shall have the rnealirng set forth 111 Section 4.6 - .- 
2 i .'Closing" n-icans tl?c cnmplctlon of the transfer of Project ownership 

coi~tctllplated In this rlgreer~lent. n 111~11 shall not ciccur. until the Esc1.o~~ -Agent lias 



deemed the trmsaction complete, in accordance with the instn~ctions given the Escrow 
Agent by thc Parties, and has closed the Project Escrow Account. 

3.5 "Closing Date" means the date when Closing occurs. 

2.6 "Destruction Notice" shall have tlie meaning set forth in Section 5.11. 

2.7 "Easements" nleans the easements set forth on attached Exhibit C 

2.8 "Escrow Agent" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.5. 

2.9 "Ercluded Propcrh" means the project equipment and project inventory 
set f01-h on Exhibit E. plus any other PacifiCorp property not sct forth in Exhibit A, 
Exhibit R. or Exhibit C. 

3.10 "Generation I~lterconrlcctiori Agreement" rueans the generation 
irlterccttinection ageerncnt to he entered into separately b c t ~  een City and Transnlission 
Provider. 

1.1 1 "'Tnvcntory" tneans the T'roject Iilventory described in attached Exhibit B. 

2.12 "Lirtest Date to Close" means the last date under which Closing may 
occu~r under this Agreement. unless extended pursuant r o  tlie terrns of this Ag-eement. 
-I he Latest Date to Close shall be the date specified in thc Proiect Purchase Schedule 
(Exhibit H). 

2.13 "Necessary Regulatory Approvals" means: 

2.13.1 Approval hy the Federal Energy Rebmlatory Commission 
("FERC") purs~iant to the Federal Power Act of the sale of the 
Project under this Agccnie~~t. ifdeemed to be required in the sole, 
reasonable discretion of PacitiCorp; and 

'7.1 3.2 AII): required or pn~dent appr0~31 by. esenlptlon from or notice to, 
tfie public utility or service com~i~issions, or state legislatures, of 
 he States 01'California~ Idaho. Oregon, Utah, Washington, and 
Wyoming, of the transact~ons co~~tc~npltl ted by this Agreement. 

3.14 "PacifiCo~-p ASLG Expenses'' means any General and Administrative 
o\.er-liead costs assigned to  the Project per PacifiColp's s~andnsd bookkeeping practices. 

2.15 "P;tcifiCorp Labor Costs" meals any loaded interrial labor costs 
assigned to rhe Projcct pcr Pr~cifiCorp's standard bookkeeping practices. 

2.16 "PacifiCorp Trarisrnission Services" mcans PacifiCorp. an  Oregon 
coq7oration. acting in its transmisston functioil capacity. 

3.17 "Pcrnlitteci Encumbrances" means s i~ch esisting liabtlities or obligations 
running nrirh the Project and set fbrth in Exhibit D. 

2.18 "Prevailiag J l o u n t s i ~ i  Tinre" me:ins or "PhIT" means hfountain 
Standard T ~ m e  or J luun t~ i~n  Daylight Time, as ~ipp1lc:lbie on tlie day in quest~on. 

2.19 .'Projectn I X C ~ ~ S  the i_.pptlr U C ~ X C I -  1-I~~droelecmc Projcct. owned anci 
operated by PantjC'orp. 



2.20 "Project Property" means the property con~prisirlg the Project set forth 
on the attached Exhibit A. 

2 "Prudent Electricai Practices" means any of the practices, methods and 
acts engaged in or approved by a significant portion of thc electrical utility ind~~s t ry  or 
any of the practices. methocis or acts. which: in the exercise of reasonable judgment in the 
light of the facts known at the tirnc a decision is made, could have been cspected to 
accontplish the dcsired result at the l o ~ ~ e s t  reaso~~able cost consistent with reliability. 
safety and expedition. Pr~ident Electrical Practices is not intended to be limited to the 
optimum practice. method or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather to be a spectrum 
of possible practices, methods or acts. 

2 "Related Property" nlcans inventory and equiprncnt useful to the Project 
and set forth on Exhibit B. 

2.23 "ScheduIed Closing Date" shall be the planned dare of Closing, as set 
forth in the attached Exhibit H. 

2.24 "Scheduled City Xotice to Proceed7' means the planned date of 
P,tcifiCorp receipt of the City Notice to Proceed, as set forth in the attached Exhibit 14. 

2.25 "Separation Facilities" means all facilities. equipment, controls, and 
related nrork identified m the System Impact & Facilities Study Report as necessaly to 

t the transfer of the Projcct. 

2.26 "System" means the electric transmission substation and transmission 
andlor distribution facilities owned. operated or maintamed by Transmiss~on Provider, 

-h shall include. after construction and installat~on of the Fac~lity. the elrcu~t 
jrcements, extensions. and associated terminal facility reinforcements or additions 

~ q .  red to ~nterconnect the Facility vla the Facility Transmission Line (hut not including 
rlie F ~ c ~ l i t y  Trans~nlsslon L ~ n e  ~tselfl. all as set forth in the Generation Interconnection 

cement. 

2.27 "System Impact Sr Facilities Study Report" means the study by that 
:1::117e published Au-gust 8, 2005 by PaclfiCorp Transmission Scniices. 

2.23 "TI-ansfer Taxes" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.8. 

2.29 "Transmission Provider" means PacifiCorp Transn~ission or a successor, 
~ncluding any RTO. Seller acknowledges tliat PaciliCo~p. acting in its ~nerchant capacity 
iiinction as Sellcr under t h ~ s  Agreement. has no responsibility fill- or control over 
PacifiCorp Irans~nisslou 01- any successor 1 ransmissio~l Provider. 

3.30 "UAMPS" nlearrrs the Utah Associaled Municrpal Power Systenls. 

3 31  -.- "Water Iiights" rnc:tiis water rights as described on attached Exhibit C. 

3 .  S A L E  AND Pt-RCH-&SF, OF PROJFC'I' ,IN13 lIEL,ATED ASSETS 

3.1 Assets to Be Sold or *2ssigned. SuLycct to 'lil term\ and conditions of 
this Xgc~. rncn t .  Paz~iiCor-p 'tgues to sell and a s s ip .  and Cit? agrees to buy and 
assume. all of  PacifiC'L~rp'.: r~ght. t~ t le .  and lntercst 111 thc T'roject Property, Relilttcd 
Prt3pcrty. Esseme:lts. and IVar cr 1iight.i (col lecti\ cly, the Prqcct "hscts").  



3.2 Instruments of Conveyance and Transfer. In accordance with the 
terms hereof, and at all times described herein, PacifiCorp shall deliver to City such 
deeds. bills of sale, certificates of title, endorscmcnts, assignments, consents, and other 
good and sufficient instrunlents of conveyance and assignment as shall be effective to 
vest in City good and marketable title in and to the Assets. subject only to the Permitted 
Encumbrances, and shall assign to City PacifiCorp7s interest in all water rights, 
contracts, permits, authorizations, easements, and rights of way listed on Exhibit C .  

3.3 Purchase Pricc The Purchase Price for the Assets shall be two million 
dollars (S2,000,000.00) ("Purchasc Price"). 

3.4 Payment City shall deposit with the Escrow Agent one hundred 
thousanci dollars (S 100,000) ("Earnest Money Payment") contemporaneous with 
delivery of the City Yotice to Proceed. City shall pay the balance of the Purchase Price 
3t closing. 

3.5 Escrow Agent. The Parties have mutually des~gnated Wells F a g o  Bank, 
N.A., ("Escrow Agent") as the Escrow Account holder under this Agreement and agree 
to execute and deliver to the Escrow Agent the Escrow Agreement attached as Exhibit 
G. City shall pay the Escrow Agent's fee, and shall be entitled to any interest earned 
on money deposited thereto by either Party. 

3.6 Assumption of Certain Liabilities. Upon closing, City shall assume all 
Project obligations. including the obligations set forth In Exhibit D (penliitted 
encunlbrances) and Exhibit 1 (Project contractual obligations). Except for PaclfiCorp's 
continuing obligations set forth in Exhibit K, City further shall assume all debts, 
liabilities, and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever (whether arising &om 
contract or otherwise) esistlng as of or arising after the Closing Datc that primarily 
relate to the Project or the Assets, including, but not limlted to, obligations under any 
contract. permit, authorization, easement. a11d right of lvay assigned to City pursuant 
hereto (the "Assumed Liabilities"). 

3.7 Alilocatioln of Property Taxes. Annual property taxes shall be 131-orated. 
on a dally basis as of the Closing Date based upon best available inf'orrnat~on or 
estimates. TVhcn final property tax anlounts are determined, an adjusrment shall be 
lnadc In the refund. based upon such actual tax arnouilts. If property taxes are prepald. 
and my refund is available for the pcriod after Closlnp, the reknd shall belong to 
PacitiCorp. 

5.8 Sales. TI-ansfer. and Other Taxes. A i y  sales. transfer. purchase. use. 
or sirtlilar tax or fees (other than capital g i n s  tax) that may be payable by reason of the 
sale of all or a ponion of the Assets ("Transfer Taxes") shall not be born by 
PaclfiCalp. 

1. COIUDITIOKS PRECEDENT TO PAC'IFICORP'S OBLYGArT'IONS 



All of  the obligations of PacifiCorp to be discharged prior to or at Closing are s~rbject to 
the f?uli~llment. prior to or at Closing. of each of the hllowing conditions unless waived. 
in writing, by Paci.fiCo1-p on or prior to the Closing. 

4.1 Representations, Warranties, and Covenants of City. All 
representations and warsrtllties made in this Ageernent by City shall be t n ~ e  and correct 
in all nlatcrial respects as of the Closing Date as Sully as though such representations 
and warranties had been made on and as of tl-ie Closing Date, except fix representations 
and warranties specifically referring to another date, and exccpt as modified by revised 
Schedules hereto, dated the Closing Date; ancl as of the Closing Date, City shall have 
conlpiied In all rnatcrial respects with all covenants rnade by it UI this Agreement. 

4,2 Opinion of Counsel for City. City shall have furnished PaciiiCnrp with 
an opinion of counsel for City, dated as o t'the City Notice to Proceed date, in fbmi and 
substance satisfactory to PacifiCorp, to the ei'fect that: 

4.3.1 City has all requisite power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and perfonn its obligations under this Agreement 
pursuant to applicable law; 

4.2.2 The execution. delivery, and perfo~lnance ofthis Agreement hare 
been duly autl~orjzed by City and the person executing this 
Agreement on behalf of City has all authority necessary to legally 
bind City to the terms of this Agreement; and 

4.7.3 City has taken all steps and executed all agreements necessw, 
inclucling any required public referenda, to procure thc total 
Purchase Pice  on or before the Scheduled Closing  ate:' and 

3.2.3 Thls Agreement constit-utes a valid and legally binding agreement 
enfosceable against City in accordr-mce with its terns. except as the 
foregoing may bc ljxnited by (i) general pnnciples of equity: and 
(ii) bankruptcy. insolvency, reorganization, at-rangement. 
morato~ium or la\vs or equitr~ble principles affecting the 
enforcement of creditors' rights generally. 

4.3 hTecessary Regulatory Approvals. All Ncccssa~-y Regulatoiy Appro\ als 
sl~all have been obtaincci anti be in effect at the Closing Date, 311 on terms acceptable to 
PacitiC'orp, in its sole discretion. 

4.3 'J'hird Party Consents. PaclliCorp shall have obtained (a) the release of 
the Assets from the PncifiCorp >tortgage and any other ~~pplicable cxisting mortgngcs 
or- deeds of trust. anti (h)  the written consent of thlrd parties. tncluding government 
'rgencles. in fon-il and substat~ce iat tshcto~y to PaciiiCorp. necessaly for consurnmarion 
oi'the trans:~ctions conte~npl~itctl by this Agrecmcnt. Any cor~ditions of a114 third party 

I I f  this section is 1101 true 9 s  wi-llten. C:it!:- will nrovide alternative proposal t$,ilicll. a1 a ?I1Lni1riuin. shoulii 
ii.i>cumerit 311 ijr:;incil;g rrlllzsroiies i~~cluding underwrjtir~g, rctcrenda. (,(or c?tller third-pasty a p p ~ v ; i i s )  2:s 
n.\;.ll as any rerllaining politiczi app-ovais required prwr lo Closing. 



consent agreed to by PacifiCorp that reasonably could af'fect City shall be disclosed in 
Exhibit D prior to closing. 

4.5 Litigation. .4t the Closi~lg Date, there shall not be in effect any order, 
decree. or injunction of a court of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining, or 
prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this ,Agreement 
(each Party agecing to use its best efforts, including appeals to higher courts, to have 
any such order. decrce, or injunction set aside or lifted), and no action shall have been 
taken. and no statute, rule, or regulations shall have been enacted or be in effect, by any 
state or federal government or governmental agency in the United States that would 
prevent. prohibit, restnct or limit the consunlmation of such transactions. 

4.6 Separation Facilities. I'acifiCorp shall construct at its cost the 
Separatlon Facilities. 1-iowever. PacifiCorp's obligation to construct Separation 
Facilities does not anst: until City has notlfied Paci-fiCorp in writing that City has 
deemed satisfied Condition Precedent 5.2 (Valid Special Use Pernlit), below, and that 
PaciiiCorp may therefore proceed with the procurement and construction of the 
Separation Fac~lities. ("CiQ Notice to Proceed"). For each day City Notice to Proceed 
is delaycd beyond the Scheduled City Notice to Proceed. the Scheduled Closlng Date 
shall be postponed one day. 

5. COSDITTONS PRECEDEKT TO CITY'S OBLIGATTONS 

All of the obligations of City to be discharged prior to or at Closing are subject to the 
hlLI1fillrnent, prior to or at Closing, of each of the following co~lditions unless waived, in 
writlng. by City at or prior to the Closing. 

5.1 Representations. \lTarranties, and Covenants of PacifiCorp. All 
representations and warranties made in this Agreement by PacifiCorp shall be true and 
correct in all matenal respects as of the Closlng Date as fully as though such 
representations and warranties had been made on and as of the Closing Date. except for 
representatiocs and x~ar~anties specifically refemng to another date. and except as 
modiiied by revised Schedules hereto, dated the Closing Date; and as of tile Closing 
Date, PaclfiCorp shall have complied in all ~llatenal respects with all covenants made 
by it in this Agreement. 

5.2 \'did Special Use Permit Clty shall have been offered and accepted a 
tlcw Specla1 t se Perm~t. whlch shall be contlngcnt upon and eifectlx e upon Closing, 
entitling City to operate the Project within the Fishlake Nat~vnal Forest. C~ty  shall use 
its best efforts to satlsfii thls conditlon. However, 111 no event will City be requ1rt.d to 
contlnuc the Specla1 I_-se Pznnlt apphcat~on process after ~t reasonably detom~ines that 
the application process \vi11 delay the C2loslng Date at least SIX months beyond the 
Latest Date to Close. Furthermore. in no c.irent ~ i r ~ l l  City be obhgated to contil-me the 
Specla1 Use Pclmlt 'tppl~cation process (or dccept a Specla1 Use Perinlt offered by the 
Unlted Statcs Forest S e r ~  ~ c e )  after ~t reasonably detcrrnlnes that the Spuclal Use Pem~it  
woulci d i ~ n ~ n t s h  the net aiue of thc Project tn the City by at least $5O.OOO. 



5.3 Third Party Consents. City shall have obtained the written co~lsent of 
third parties. including goi.ernment agencies, in foim and substance satisfactory to City, 
necessary for constlmnlation ofthc transactions contemplated by thls Agreement. 

5.4 Litigation. At the Closing Date. there shall not be in effect any order, 
decree, or injunction of a co~il-t of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining, or 
prohibit~ng the cons~rnmat~on of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
(each Party ageelng to use ~ t s  best efforts. including appeals to higher coui-ts, to have 
any such order, decree, or injunct~on set aside or liiicd), 'and no action shall have been 
taken, and no statute, rule. or regulations shall have been enacted or be in effect, by any 
state or federal go\ernnlent or governnlental agency in the United States that would 
prevent, prohibit. restnct or l i ~ i i t  the consummat~on of such trarisactions. 

6. REPRESENTATIOKS ANT) WARKANTTES OF PACIFfCORP 

6.1 Organization and Powers of PacifiCorp. PacifiCorp is an Oregon 
corporation, duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Oregon, 
and is duly qualified ro do business in the State of Utah. PacifiCorp has all requisite 
power and authority to own the Assets and to own, operate. and lease its properties, and 
to carry on its business as now conducted. 

6.7 Authority Relative to Agreement; Governmental Authorization. 
PacifiCorp Iias the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Ageenlent 
and to consumnate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and this 
Agreement has been duly and validly authorized and constitutes the valid and binding 
obligation of PacifiCorp. enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such 
enforcement rnay be limited by applicable bankruptcy. ~nsolvency, reorganization. 
moratorium, or similar laws affecting the enforcenlent of creditors' rights generally and 
except that the availability of the equitable retnedics ol'spccific perfonance and 
injunctive relief are subject to the ciiscrction of the court before which any proceeding 
rnay he brought. 

6.3 Non-Conmavention; Approvsls. Except lor the Necessary Reggilatory 
,Approvals anci the consent5 and approvals required under thc tei-ins of Contracts. 
permrts, authorizations, easements. and rights of way induded in the Assets, the 
execution a ~ i d  delivery of this Agreement and the consu~nnlatlon of the transact~ons 
contemplated by thls Agreement ~ ~ 1 1 1  not violate. coilflict with, or result in a breach of 
any provision of the ci~arrcr dociunents of PacifiCorp. 

6.4 Title to the .4ssets. Except as set forth i l l  Exhibit D, and other than 
approvals or cor~scrlts descnbcd in Section 4.3 aboc-c, Pac~t-rCorp has good and 
marketable titlc to the --Issets. 

b.5 Contracts arrd Colmmitments. Except f i~r  the contracts. ageernents, 
and obligitt1~x1s ~ d ~ n i i f i ~ ~ i  on Exhibit 1 2u1d cxccpt for lllose not pnrn;~iily related to thc 
Project, PacifiCorp is nor a part! to or bou~nd by  any oral or \\sitten (a) express contract 
f i ~ r  personal s c ~ ~ . i c c s  (11- emplo~ine~l t  that 1s not tcnl~~tiable. 1,i~lthout liab~lity or expense, 



by PacitiC01.p on notice of ninety days or less; (b) contract or comrnitlnent for Project 
capital expenditures in excess ofS20.000 total cost; or f c) contract, ageenlent, or 
obligation that IS rnarerial to the business or operatton of the Project. 

0.6 Permits. Licenses, and Certificates. PacifiCorp has ail material permits, 
licenses, certliieates. and other governmental authorizations cur~ently required to own 
the Assets a~ ld  to opcratc the Project as prese~ltly operared: and, r~ssunling ongoing 
proper ac t~on by the orher party thereto or the issuer thereof, all such permits, licenses, 
t a ~ ~  ffs, franchises. certificates. and po\fenlmental authorizations are valid and in effect 
on the date hereof. 

6.7 Tau hlatters. PacifiCorp has tluly filed with the appropriate 
governmental agencies all material tax returns ancf tax reports due and required to bc 
filed by PacifiCorp with respect to the /Issets and the Project, and will have paid or 
providcd for the payiient of a 1  such taxes through the date of Closing. 

6.8 Compliance with Laws. To PacifiCorp's knowledge, except as set forth 
In Exhibit J, PacitiCorp's ownersh~p of the Assets and the Project has been and is in 
material coniplisnce with all applicable laws. niles, orders, regulations, or restrictions. 
except (a) my past noncompliance that has been cured and @) noncompIimce that does 
not materially interfere with the ownership and use of the Assets and the Project. 
Except as set forth in Exhibit J, P~tcifiCorp has received no notice of violation or 
notice of noncornpllancc relatlng to the Project with respect to any law, rcbwlation, or 
yovernnlental restrict~on applicable to the Assets or the Project. 

6.9 Legal Proceedings. To the best of PaciiiCorp's knowledge. except as 
set forth in Exhibit K. there are no material claims, actions, suits. inquiries, 
mvestigations, or proceedings. pending or threatened. relating to the Assets or to the 
operation of the Project. before any federal, state, or local court or other governmental 
or regulatory body. or any arbitr~tor, LTnited States or foreign. 

6.10 No Hrokcrs. Pac~fiCorp has 11ut einploycd any brokcr or finder in 
connection wlth ;he tsansactio~ls conteillplated b!. this Agreement. and ~t has taken no 
action that would g v e  rise to a valid claim against any party for a brokerage 
coniiniss~on. finder's fee. or other llkc payment by City. 

6.11 Known Defects. E ~ c e p t  tbr those listed in Exhibit I,. PacifiCorp knows 
of no deli-ct in PI-ojcct Property or cmfirorlmental concli tion. latent or otherwise. 

6.12 Condition of Assets. The Assets will be sold to City "AS IS. WHERE 
IS" and with 110 I-epresentatlons or warranties of any klnd or character, including any 
~v~trrttnty of quality, mercharltabrlity. fitness for a pxticlllnr purpose, or condition, 
including emilronmental conditron. except as specifically sez I'orth III thls Agreement or 
i11 the con\~!:ince clozument to be del i~~ered to City at Closinr. CITY 
XC'KKOITiLCD(;kS ?'HAT P,AClF IC(JKP I-IAS PROVIDED IT TFTE 
OPPORTi%ITY TO IKSPFCT PROJECT PIIOPER'I'Y AND RFL;\ITED 
PR0PERTl7 AND ?'I i:!'1', ESCklJT i$S EXPRESS1.Y ST 'ITFD IN THIS 



AGREEMENT. PACIFICORP HAS NOT MADE, AND PACIFlCORP EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIhIS a4ND NEGATES, ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS ! 4 ' , . 4 N T Y  OF 
iMERCHAic'TABItITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. OR ANY 
OTHER FV-4RRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS OR IhIPLIED, 
RELATING TO THE ASSETS OR THE. PROJECT. 

7 .  REPRESEN'TATIONS AND Wi4RRANTIES OF CITY OF BEAVER 

City represents and warrants as follows: 

7.1 Organization and Powers of City. City is a municipal corporation of 
tllc State of Utah, and has all requisite power and authority to purchase, o\vn and 
operate the Assets, and to pay the Purchase Price at Closing, 

7.2 Authority Relative to Agreement; Government;~l Authorization. City 
has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to consu~llmate 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. This Ageenlent has been duly and 
validly authorized and constitutes the valid and b~nding obligation of City enlbrceable 
in accordancc with its terms. except as enforcement may be limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors' rights generally and except that the availab~lity of the 
eclu~table remedies of specific perfomlance and injunctive relief are subject to the 
discretion of the court before which any proceeding may be brought. No declaration. 
filing, or registration 'tvith, or notice to, or authorization. consent. or approval of. any 
governmental or regulatory body or authority is necessary for the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement by City or the consun~mation by City of the transactions 

[~eement .  con ternplated by this A, 

7.3 Non-Contravention; Appl-ovals. The execution and dellverq. ot'this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
will not violate. conflict with. or result in a breach of any provision of. or constitute a 
defa~ilt umder. or rc~ul t  In the tcnriination of any note. bond, mortgage. indenture, deed 
of trust, contract. lcasc. or other mstn~ment, obligation, or agseement of  any kind to 
which City is now a party or by which any of its assets may be bourld or affected. 

7.4 No Brokers. City has not einploycd any broker or finder in connect~on 
\vlth the transactions contc~nplatcd by this Ageenlent, and it has taken no action that 
would glve rise to a valid claim agli~nst any party for a brokerage commission. finder's 
k e ,  or orher like payIllent by PacifiCoq?. 

'1 

, .5 Sufficient Financial Resources. City has, and shall lnaintaln tlulrough 
Closing, sufficient financial resources to close tlie transactions contcmplareil by thls 
Xgcen~cnt .  As of the date hereof. C:ty has or has access to tinn. comm:tted fi~nds 
required to cover tile Purchase Pricc. Y o  filrthcr a t t~ons  need be taken by City in order 
to procurc such sppropnated hinds. 

8.  COVENANTS OF PACIFICORP 



8.1 Modifications. PacitiCorp will cause to be made a11 of the modiijcations 
to the Project subs~ation and to the PacifiCorp System as required by the System Impact 
and Facilities Study Rcport . 

8.2 Cooperation. PacifiCox-p will cooperate with City to help City docunlcnt 
tllc primacy of the Project's right of way in relat~on to the rights of way of the Utah 
Department of Transportation. 

8.3 Surge Tank. PacifiCorp will paint the Project Surge Tank in accordance 
with the specification attached as Exhibit F. 

8.4 I~~stallation of Slide Gates. PacifiCorp will replace the existing stop 
logs at hllerchant Valley Dam with one or more slide gates in accordance with a fiilal 
design approscd by the United States Forest Service. 

8.5 Conduct of Business. Between execution of this Agreement and 
Closing, PacifiCorp shall continue to operate the Project in accordance with Prudent 
Electrical Practices and, in accordance with its past practice, shall plan to spend 
S50.000 per amurn i excluding PacifiCorp Labor Costs and PacifiCorp A&G Expenses) 
to perform any and all maintenance and repairs on the Project. including any work 
dcscribed in Sections 5.3 and 8.4. but excluding all work described in Section 8.1. In 
the event Prudent Electrical Practices require PacitiCorp to spend more than $50,000 in 
any calendar year prior to closing. PacifiCorp shall bear all such costs (unless othenvlse 
allocated to either party by terms elsewhere in this Agreement), up to $100,000 per 
calendar year. In the event Prudent Utility Practices require Paci1jCoi-p to spend more 
than S 100.000 in any calendar year. City shall reimburse PaclfiCorp all such additional 
costs: pro-rided, hatever. that City may refuse to bear such costs. m which case 
PacifiCorp may. at ~ t s  option. terminate this Agreement. Notwithstanding any 
provis~on In this Agreement apparently to the contxaxy, PaciiiCorp may: (i) solicit and 
accept back-up offers fi-om other potential purchasers of the Assets. in case of City's 
default under this Xgseetnent: (ii) perform other work contemplated by this Agreement: 
and (iii) draft and submit materials and transact business concenng a11 Xecessary 
Regulatory Approvals. cis requircd. 

8.6 Cond i t io~~s  and Best Efforts. Until Closing. and subject to the tenns of 
this Agcement and fiduciary obligat~ons under applicable law, PaciijCorp shall use its 
reasonable best efforts to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
and to hlfill  all of the conditions of the Part~es' obllgations under this Agreement, and 
shall perfon71 such acts reasonably required to ca1-1~ out PacifiCorp's obllgations under 
this Agreement and to consurnmate and conlplete this Ageement. including. without 
limltatiori of the forego~ng, promptly rnak~ng application for Necessary Regulatory 
Approcals. 

S .7 Pl-csen e Relationstlips. Pac~iiCoi-p ~irill use its reasonnble effor-ts to 
lnamtain bus~nesq  ciat ti on ships \{,it11 ~ t s  suppliers and customers lint11 Closing. except 
h r  changes rnadc In thc ordinar! course of business. 



8.8 hlaintain Properties. PacitiCorp will tnaintain the Assets substantially 
111 the same corldition as the property is in on the date of this Agreement until Closing, 
except for obsolesccllce. ordinary wear L~id tear, and damage due to casualty. 

8.9 Operations Training. PacifiColp will provide, within a reasonable time, 
training as the City Inay request. for up to six ~noilths after the Transter Date, at the 
sane cost to City as PacifiCorp would pay the same employee to perfom1 the scin~c 
sel-sices to PacifiCorp (inclusive of all indirect and overhead charges). 

1 Notification. PacifiCoxp will givc City prompt notice of any event or 
condition of any kind learned by PacifiCorp between the date ot ' th~s Agreement and the 
Closing Date pertaining to and atfversely affecting the Assets, excepting events or 
conditions affecting the hydroelectllc business generally. 

8.1 1 Delivery of Physical Records. Upon request by City at or after the 
Closing Date, PacifiCorp will tender to City copies of all property records and contracts 
files pertaining to the Assets or the Project. Such records and files shall be delivered at 
the locations where such records and files are stored by PacifiCorp. PacifiCo1-p will 
retain such property records and co~ltracts files not so requested by City for a period of 
one year after Closing; provided, llo\vever: that PacifiCo1-p may. at any ti~nc. notify City 
of its intent to destroy or dispose of real property records and contsacts files that 
Pac~fiCorp has retained (a "Destruction Notice"). If City has not requested delivery of: 
and taken delivery of. records and files spccified in the Destruction Notice within sixty 
(60) days after the effective date of such Destruction Notice, PacifiCorp shall thereafter 
have no obligation to retain such records and files and may destroy them. 

9. COVENANTS OF CITY 

9.1 Generation Interconnection Agreement. City will enter into a 
Generation lnterconnecrion Agreement with the Tmlsrnission Provider, providing for 
the intcrconnection of the Project with the PacifiCo1-p System. 

9.2 Nehvork liesource Designation. C'ity shall cause UPIMPS ro desi~pate 
tlie Project as a network resource. under thc UilMPS Agcement for Joint and 
Cooperative Action (the "Joint Action Agreement'.). 

9.3 Cooperation. City will coopcratc ~vith Pacif Corp and PacifiCorp 
'Transmission Senlces to carsy out the separation nf'tlle 1;pper Realer Project fi-0x1 the 
Svstern. befbrc and afier the transfcr of o-c~nership. City's cooperation includes rnnking 
available so long as the Project opcrntes, a 125 volt, 3-amp rated DC powcr supply in 
the Lipper Heater Powerhouse for the purpose of powering Upper Beaver Powerhouse 
telemetry 2nd related scnsors necessary to wheel power acr-c~ss P;1~1iiCoiy's system. 

9.4 Yon-competition. City l ~ i l l  not, far :i perrod of at least thirty pears. 
seek to reqmre i-'ric~fiCorp to purchase Projcct gcner:~tcd poiver. under the auspices c ~ i '  
t l~c PIJRI'A. In the el  erlt Pa~i1iTo1-1, is rccjuiretl hy lc1\v to enter Into a long-tcrm 
ageernent to pinchase Pr~!ject generated power. ihe Pmtles agee  t11:it the rate 



PacitiCorp will pay for Project generated power shall cqual PacifiCol-p's cost of 
production at the Project at the time of Closing, adjusted for in'rlation. PacifiCorp will 
provide City docunlentntion of the cost of production at Closing. This covenant shdl  
sunive  Closing, sl?all run with the Projcct, and shall be binding upon City's successors 
and assigns. 

9.5 Responsibility for Operation and YIaintennnce. 011 the Closing Date, 
City will assume responsibility fix operation and maintenance of the ilowlines, 
facilities and Merchant Valley D m ,  and shall assume 311 legally binding PacitiCorp 
obligations to the TTnited States Forest Sesvicc associated with the operation of the 
Project. 

9.6 Operations Training. P ~ i o r  to the Closrng Date. City's personnel who 
bvill operate the Project will undergo operations trairi~ng provided by PacifiCorp. 

9.7 Conditions and Best Efforts. Subject to the tenns of this Agreement 
and fiduc~asy obligations under rtpplicable law, City shall use its reasonable best efforts 
to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, to secure transaction 
funding. arid to fulfill all of the conditions of the Parties' obligations under this 
Agseement. and shall perform such acts reasonably required to carry out City's 
obligations under t h ~ s  Agreement and to consumlnatc and complete this Agreement. 

1 . 8  Response to Requests. City shall not unreasonably witl~hold its consent 
to actions by PacifiCorp \vhich require City's consent, and shall in any event respond to 
PacifiCq7's requests for consents within five ( 5 )  days of receipt of such requests. 

10. CLOSING 

10.1 Time and Place. The Closing shall take place within 60 days after the 
Separation Facilities ha\.e been placed in sertice and all Necessav Reglatory 
Approvals haye been obtained (unless extended pursuant to Section 4.6, or unless the 
Parties otherwise a g e e  In writing). The transikr of the Assets shall be et'fective as of' 
1 1 :59:59 p.m. hllountain Prevailing Time on the Closing Date. The Closing shall bc 
held at the City of Beavcs of'fices, or at such orller place as the Parties may mutually 
agsee. 

10.2 Further Assurances. From tilllc to time after Closing, each Party, upon 
the request oftlie other Party. shall without further consideration cxecute, deliver, and 
acknowledge all sucTl fi~izrther insrrunlents of transfer and conlqancc  and perform all 
such other acts as eltller Party ma]; reasonably require to more effectively can-); out the 
intent ofthis hgeement .  

I I .  SCRTiT'\'.2T, OF '1V ZRRAE'J'IES. REPRESESTSTIONS. AND 

i 1 1 Repn-esen tations, \!'wranties, and Coven;ints of' the Parties to 13e 
C'o~itinuing. .A11 representations. kvrtrrantles and 1ndcmn1ficar:on of the Part~es, and all 



liability therefor, shall stuvive Closing for a period of one (1 )  year. All covenants and 
agreements of the parries set forth in this Agreement shall stimive Closing indefmitely 
until fuliilled. except for those that, by their tenlls. contemplate a shorter survival 
period. 

1 1.2 Indcrnnificatior~ by City. City ~Eiall indemnify and hold harmless 
PacifiCo~p. its officers, ciircetors, employees, affiliritecl corporations, representatives, 
and agents. and their respective successors and assiLms from and against any claim, 
demand, obligation. liability. loss, cost. damage, or expense (including interest and 
pcnaltles. but specifically excluding conseq~1ential or indirect damages or iost profits) 
caused by or arlsiilg out o f  

11.2.1 The liabilities assurncd by City under Section 3.6, and any 
liabilities arising after the Closing Date with respect to its 
ownership and operation of the Assets or the Project, including 
claims rclating to flooding, river flows, personal injury or the levy 
of any real or personal property taxes or Transfer Taxes on 
PacifiCorp after the Closing Date; 

11 2 .2  Any breach or default in the perfol-tnance by City of any covenant 
or agreement of City contamed in thls Agreement; 

1 1 2 . 3  ;\ny breach of warranty or rcpresentation made by City in this 
Xgreelncnt or in any schedule to this Agreement, or in any 
certificate or other instrument delivered by or on behal F of City 
pursuant to thls Agreement: 

1 1.2.4 Any liability arising out of any and all actions, suits. proceedings, 
clams, demands, judgments. costs. and expenses illcident to any of 
the foregoing; or 

i 1.2.5 Ally liability or obligation ansing as a result of the Project 
beconling listed on any state or federal historic register. 

PacifiCo1-p rind its successors and assigns shall prornptly noti6 City in writing when it or 
they become aware of an! matter msmg under the foregoing indemnification provision. 
including dctalls relat~ng to their claim, cost and involved partlcs. City may contest and 
defend in good faith any claim of th~rd parties covered by this Scction, provided such 
contest 1s made without cost or prejudice to PacifiCosp. and provlded that wlthin ten (1 0) 
days of City's receipt of notice of such claim. City notlfies PacitiCorp of its desire to 
delknd and contest such claim. PacifiCorp shall seasonably cooperate with City in its 
invcstigatlon and response to any tlurd party claim. 

If City does not not~fy PaciiYCo117 of its desire to contest the claim, City shall reimbtirse 
PacifiCol-p upon subn~ission of an invoice or other appropnate demand for any payment 
actually made b\r PacifiCorp i ~ t  any tlnle alier the Closing Date with respect to any claim, 
ciemand. obligation. I~ab~li ty .  loss. cost, damage. or expense to which the fhrego~ng 
~ndesnrxsty relates. 

1 I .3 E\clusi\e Remedy. City walves ,111 other rights and rcmcdles asainst 
F'aclliC'osp to mh~ch City might othenvisc be entitleci under an), statute. regulation, or 



orclinance? or other theory of law or equity, including those pertaining to environmental 
matters or breaches of any Environmental 1-aw, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

11.3 Exception. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1 I ,  
City shall not indemnifj, or hold hannless PacifiCorp (and/or PacifiCorpfs related 
entities) for any third party claim not discloscd by PacifiCorp in Exhibit D or Exhibit I 
prior to Closing, which is brought aga~nst the owner of the Project wthin 10 years of 
Closing, and in which the alleged actionable eve~lts occurred prior to Closing. 

12.1 Termination. This Agreement niay be terminated and abandoned at any 
time prior to the Closing Date if: 

12.1.1 Both Parties Agree. The Parties agree in wt-iting to terminate this 
Agreement by mutual consent; or 

13.1.2 A Condition Precedent to PacifiCorpYs Performance Cannot 
Occur. PacifiCorp delivcrs a written notice to City to the effect 
that one or more of the conditioils (which shall be specified in 
detail in such notice) to the obligations of PaciiiCorp set forth in 
Section 4 cannot be satisfied in time for Closing to take place prior 
to or on the Latest Date to Close (or such later date to which the 
tern1 of this Agreement may be extended by mutual agreement); 

i2.1.3 A Condition Precedent to City's Performance Cannot Occur. 
City delivers a written notice to PacifiCorp to the effect that one or 
more ofthe conditions (which shall be specified in detail in such 
notice) to the obligations of City set forth in Section 5 cannot be 
satisfied in time for Closing to take place prior to or on the Latest 
Date to Close (or such later date to which the term of this 
Xgreeincnt may be extended by mutual agreement); 

12.1.3 PacifiCorp Breaches a \J7arranty or Materially Breaches a 
Covenant. PncifCorp Ins breachcd any warranty in Section 6 or 
has defaulted in a material respect under one or rtiore of its 
co\.enants contained in Sectlon 8 (~vhlch shall be specified in detail 
In such not~ce). and silch breach of warranty or such default has 
not been remeciicd (or wiiivcci by City) within thirty (30) days after 
the date such notice 1s dolivcsed by City to PacitiCorp; or 

12.1.5 City Breacl~es a jyarranty o r  hlaterially Breaches a Covenant. 
City has breached a \varra~~ty in Section 7 or has def'aulted in a 
matcnal respect under one or more of its covenants contained in 
Section 9 (ivhich sl2all be speciticci in detail in sucli notice). and 
such breach of ~ n r r a n t y  or sucti default has not been remedied (or 
\~ralved b l ~  P~cifiC:orp) within thirtq (30) d:iys ahtier the date such 
~lotict: is iielivered by PacifiCorp to CJty: or 

12.1.6 A Court Order Rlaterialll Impairy the .igreemcnt. ~ I n y  court 
o i  cclmpctent junsdictlon In tile I!n~ted States 01- any state shall 



have issued an order, jud,ment. or decree (other than. a tetnporar-y 
restraining order) restraining, enjoining, or otherwise prohibiting 
the purchase of the Assets fiom PacifiCorp by City and such order, 
jud-ment, or clecree shall have become final and nonappealable; or 

12.1.7 Closing delayed beyond the Latest Date to Close. Closing shall 
not have occurred within seventy-five (75) days after the 
satisfaction of a11 Conditions Precedent. or by such later date to 
tvhich the term of this Agreement may be esterlded pursuant to 
mutual ageenlent of the Parties, afid provided that one of the 
Parties gives notice to the other so tenninnting this Agreement. 

12.2 Effect of Ternkation. Any teminatio~l pursuant to this Section 12 
shall: relieve both the Parties of all of their obligations set forth in this Agreement; 
constitute a failure of the conditions to the obligations of the Parties to implement this 
Agreement. and relieve any Party from liability for any breach of this Agreement; 
provided, ho~l.ever. that the party asserting termination under Section 12.1.4 or 12.1.5 
shall be entitled to recovery of all out-of-pocket costs incurred after the date of delivery 
of the City Kotice to Proceed. including legal fees, consulting fees, contractor fees, and 
fees paid by one PacifiCorp business line to another: and 111 the event of PacifiCorp 
tennitlation under Sectionl2.1.5, PacifiCorp shall be entitled to recoTer such costs fiom 
m y  funds deposited with the Escrow Agent: 

12.3 -Assignment. Neither Parry may assign its rights under this Agreement to 
any third party without the written consent of the other Party: provided, however, that 
PacifiCorp shall have the right to assign this Agrcemenr to an exchange acconlmodator 
as required to enable PacifiCorp to acquire replacement property pursuant to a tax- 
deferred exchange under Section 103 1 of the Intcmal Revenue Code of 1956, as 
amended. Any assignment in breach of this provision shall be void. 

12.4 No Discharge. No assignment of this Agreement shall operate to 
discharge the assignor of any duty or obligation under this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other Party. 

13.1 Allocation. The Purchase Pnce shall be allocated atnong tlie Assets in 
such manner as may be agreed upoil by PacifiCorp and City in accordance with Section 
1060 of the Internal Revc:lue Code of 1986. as amended, and the rebwlations 
proinulgated thcreu~lder: provided. however. that if PacifiCorp and City cannot agree 
upon such allocation. such allocation shall be as recisonably established by PacifiCorp. 
Neither PacifiCorp nor City will take any act1011 that would be inconsistent with the 
allocation as so established. 

13.2 Tax-Free Exchange. Cztt M 111 cooperato with PacifiCot-p if PaclfiCorp 
elects to sell the Assets as pal? ot'n like-klr~d exchange in nccorda~~cc with Section 103 1 
of the Inte~nal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. and the regulations prornuigated 



thereunder; provided. however, that PacifiCorp shall hold City hannless from any cost 
or liability arising out of any such exchange. 

13.3 Post-Closing Access. City shall allow PacifiCorp reasonable access after 
Closing to the Assets and facilities transferred to City to enable PacifiCorp to rctrieve 
the Excluded Assets. 

13.4 Termination of Use of Name and Logo. Imrnediatcly aficr Closing, 
City shall cease using Paci-fiCorpfs name or logo or any of PacifiCorp's trade names or 
trademarks, on stationary. literature. or the like. As soon as practicable after Closing, 
but: in any event within ninety (90) days of thc Closing Date, City shall removc 
T-'acifiCorpts logo and name froni the Assets purchasecl by City. 

13.5 Amendment. 'This Agreement may be amended only by an instnlment in 
writing executed by the Parties that expressly refers to this Agreement and states that i t  
is an amendment of this Ageetnent. 

13.6 Section Headings. The section headings contained in this Apcement are 
for reference only and shall not in any \yay affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

13.7 IYaiver. Any of the terms or conditions of this Xgreenlent may be 
~vaivect at any time and kom time to time, in writing, by the Party entitled to the bencfit 
of such terms or conditions. 

13.8 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be subject to and be constn~ed 
under the laws of the State of Utah applicable to contracts made and entered into In the 
State of Utah. 

13.9 Notices. All notices, requests, demands. and other communications given 
by City or PacifiCorp shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given 
when telecopied. when deii~ered personally in writing, or when deposited into the 
Cnitecl States mail. to the fnllowil~g addresses: 

If to City to: 

With a copy to: 

Beaver City Cor^poration 
Steve ..itkln, Beaver City Ma11agt.r 
P.O. Box 271 
Beaver. UT 547 13 
(435) 438-245 1 

Matthew I:. McNulty. I11 
V:m Cott, Baglcy. Comtvall S: hlcCastl-i> 
5 0  South &la111 Street, S u ~ t e  1600 
Salt Lakc City. UT 84 144 
(SO1 \ 532-3333 



If to PacifiCorp. to: PacifiCorp 

Jim 0' Connell 
525 N.E. blultnomah, 1500 LCT 
Portland, OR 97232 
Telephone (503) 8 13-6674 

With a copy to: 

PacifiCorp 
Legal Department 
ATTENTION: John Sample, Esq., 
Senior Counsel 
825 ;"SE Multnomah, Suite 1500 
Portland, OR 97232 
Telecopy Ntlmber: (503)  8 13-6685, 

or to such other address as City or PacifiCorp may desigxate in writing. 

13.10 Counterparts. This Xgree~nent may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of kvhich shall for all purposes be deemed to be an orignal and both 
of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

13.1 1 Construction of Agreement. This Agreement is the result of arms- 
length negotiations between two sophisticated parties and any ambiguities or 
uncertainties will not be construed for or against either Party, but will be construed in a 
manner that most accurately reflects the intent of the Parties when this Agreement was 
executed. 

13.12 Elltire Agreement. This Agreement, when executed. constitutes the 
entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings. oral and written. ~ncluding any letter of intent. betxi een the parties with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

[Signature Page Follows] 



I3 txli7XESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Ageement to be 
executcd in their respective names as of the date first above written. 

CITY OF BE,$VER 

Title: h b k F @ k  

By: 





EAWIBIT ,A: Project Property lncluded in Sale 
E,XCLUDTNG INVENTORY, REAL ESTATE, AND EASEMENTS 

I .  Merchant Valley Dam 
2. Blainey (La Raon) Dam 
3. East Fork Diversion Dain 
3. Dry Hollow D~version Dam 
5. South Fork Diversion Dan? 
6. hfain Flow Line -Conduit No. 1 (1 5,777.5 ft) 
7 .  East Fork Flow Line-Conchiit No. 2 (1,147.5 ft) 
8, Dry Hollitw Flow Line- -Conduit No 3 ( 1,759 ft) 
9. South Fork Flow I-ine--Conduit No. 4 (9.353 f't) 
10. Spring Line-Conduit No. 5 (656 ft) 
11. Culinary Water Line-Conduit No. 6 (3,575.5 ft) 
1 3. Surge Tank 
13. Penstock (4,933 ft) 
14. poles 
1 5.  wires 
16. Upper Heaver Power House i~lcluding 2 generating units and all associated controls. Both have 

double horizontal ixnpulso turbines, rated at 1,000 H.P.: under a net nead of 1,000 ft. Unlt ?il is 
rated at 1.2 5WA. and Unit $2 is rated 1.32 MVA. 

17. Class D Roads nrm~bcred 630, 800, 805, 806, 807, 808, S09. 810. 81 1. 82. 813. 811, 815, 816. 
817 and 818 

18. Superintendent's Quarters 39 A x 3 1 ft x 16 ft  
19. Boarding House and quarters 26 ft x 5 8 fi x 17 ft 
20. Blacksmith Shop and Storeroom 19 ft  x 40 ft x 8 ft  
21. Garage16f fx '5 f fx8  ft 
22 .HorseBml32f tx5Si - tx lOf t  
23. WoodShed20 f i x 4 1  f t x  10 fi 
24. B z n  
25. Material Shed 



EXHIBIT B - Project Inventory and Project Equipment 
Quantity Asset Description 

1 2003 Ford F-350 Supcrcab Pickilp 4x4: Vehicle $74425 
1 1995 Dodge Ram 350 Flatbed 4x4 Diesel, Vehicle $1692 
2 Skidoo Safari Snowmobiles (2)  and Tilt Trailer (1) 
1 Honc'ta 300 Fourtras ATV 
1 Miller Portable AEAD-300 Engine Driven JVeldcr 
1 Solberga SE 1630 Floor Drill Press 
1 Morris Taper Drill Bit Set li2-1 1/2 inch 
2 Pedestai Grinders 
1 Cement Mixer 113 k-ard External Combustion Engine 
1 h4cvers 9 Foot S110wp1ow Blade 

Office Equipment (see 3 itcnls below) 
1 Konica 1 1 12 Copier 
1 HP 6P 1,aserJet P~inter 
1 Brodier 770 Fax Machine 
9 Ansul Fire Extin~mishers IOG to 30# 
2 Halon Fire Extinguishers 
500 Feet Fire Nose 
3 Flammable Liquid Storage Cabinets 
7 - 6 foot Fiberglass Ladders 
1 10 foot Fiberglass Ladder 
1 25 foot Fibergiass Ladder 
5 Large sheaves 
6 Cham Binders 
1 30 lnch Fan 
1 Cable Grips - Pulleys 'md Blocks 
1 36 Inch Expansion Joint 
I 16- 1 5 hch Bell Reducer 
1 14- 16 Lnch Bell Reducer 
500 Feet 16 Inch x 3i16 Il;ch (30 Foot. Lengths) 
2 0 Feet 3 6 Inch x 1 i4 Pipe 
I lot 3 ;4 - 4 lnch ABS,TVC Pipe 
1 lot blisc Equipt. and Valve Parts: nngs, val\.e disks, brush holders, r~eedles, nozzles 
i lot hiisc Bolts. Studs. & Nuts to 1 1/2 
1 Spasc 1-lydraulic Isolation Gate Disk 
1 lot Misc lj tah kiydro Pipe Stored 111 Vcyc) Storage Yard (see below) 

3900 Feet of 20 Inch Pipe 
1500 Feet of 30-32 11lch Pipe (total 7000' in storage) 



EXHIBET C: Project Water Rights, Contracts, Authorizations, Easements, and 
Rights of Way 

Project Easements 

Project Water Rights 

1. 77-1; Certificate of Appropriation of tVater No. 182 ~ssued to the Beaver Ritper Power 
Compa~xy. July 14. 19 1 5 by the State Engineer of Utah for I 0 second feet of the flow of the 
South Fork of Beaver River with priority of May 16, 1907. and recorded in Book \Trater 
Ccrtjlicate, page 28 in the records of the County Recordcr of Beaver County. 

2. 77-1; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 38 B issued to L.L. Nunn July 37.1 910 by 
the State Engineer of Utah for 40 second feet of the flow of Heaver Ri~rcr with priority of April 
21, 1908 and recorded tn Book U of Deeds, page 46 in the records of the County Recorder of 
Bcaver County. 

3.  77-11; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 167 issued to the Beaver River Power 
Conlpany June 23, 1915 by the State Engineer of Vtalz fur 0.2 of a second foot of the flow of a 
spring for cooling 211d culinary purposes with a priority of March 9, 1 91 0 and recordect in Book 
Water Ccrtificate, page 27 in the records of the County Recordcr of Beaver County. 

4. 77-23; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 1075 issued to the Telluride Power 
Companj., Assignee, March 3, 1921 by the State Engineer of Utah for t 0 second feet of the 
flow of Dry Hollow Creek of Beaver l i v e r  with priority of July 14. 19 17 a11d recorcied in Book 
Water Certificate. page 87 In the records of the County Recorder of Beaver County. 

5 .  77-24; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 1076. 

6 .  77-25; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 1077 issued to the Telluride Power 
Compat~y, Assipee. A,farch 3. 192 1 by the State Engineer of Utah for I0 second feet of  the 
flow of the East Fork of Beaver River with prrority of July 14. 19 17 and recorded i11 Book 
Water Certificate, page 89 in the records of the County Rccorder of Beaver County. 

7 .  77-199,: Decreed with 1903 prionty date, for diversion of up to 3.22 cfs and storage of up to 
257.26 acre feet behillcl I-aBaron (Blaincy) dam. 

8 .  77-15; Certificate of Appropriation of Water No. 2092, for clivers~on of up to 8.0 ci's from 
Soutll Fork of Beaver Rix~er and for storage of up to 39.73 acre-feet behi11c-l Little Reservo~r. 



ESHIUI1- D-Permitted Encumbrances 

1) LeBnron Kcscrvoir Agreenlent with Utah State Department of Fish and Ga~tnle dated October 4: 
1962 

2) Order Exempting Lipper Beaver Project from Federal Powcr Act License Requirexllent, Utah Power 
& Light Co., October 22, 1954, 29 FERC P62.054. 

3) Little Reservoir Supply Agreement (by letter dated Octobcr 2 1, 1952) 

4)  Big Cove Spring Water Supply ,A,vrcement (water right 77-1 1)  with the U~lited States Forest 
Service (by letter dated November 12, 1 '357). 



EXHIBIrT Ti, - Property Excluded from Sale 
Item # Quantity Description 
I 1 580 Super K 3x4 Bitckhoe 
2 1 74 foot Gooseneck Trailer 
1 
-> 1 Portablc Cable Compressor SO Gallon 
4 I Llncoln idealarc TIC7 3001300 ACIDC Welder 
5 1 Fluke Multilncter 
6 1 Coleman 5K Portable Gcne1-ator 
7 I Portable Air Cornpressor 
8 1 Jolm Deer 185 L~U:II Mower With S~lowblowcr 
9 I Ross 9 Foot Snowplow Rapid-Tach II 
10 1 Meyer 8 Foot Sno~vplow Blade 
11 1 Plioenix SX Radio (office) 
12 i GE M-P-4 Radio (portable) 
13 1 HP Pentium Computer 
14 1 Industrial Scic~~tific LTX 3 12 Air Momtor 
15 2 LimiTorque Neecile Valvc Actuator/Co~~trollers 
16 S Propane Tanks 1 1,2 to 20 Gallon and Storage Cabinet 
17 1 SPCC SplIl a t  - four 55  Gallon drums, pads, booms, posts, tools, etc. 
18 I Snapper SX 5200 Snotsblower 
19 1 Craftsman Tool Chest Upper & Lower with Tools 
20 1 B&D I 1 i2 hcfi Grinder 
21 I Huskvarna 272 14 Lnch Englne Driver Cut Off Saw 
22 1 Stihl Chain Saw 
23 2 OxviXcetylene Sets 
24 2 ~ o ~ - a - ~ o w e r ' s  With Jack Cylinders 
25 1 Bosch Electric Halnmer Drill 
26 1 Sioux Electric 1:2 Inch Impact TVlth zuger Drills and Bits 
27 1 W a n  MS000 Electric Winch 
28 1 12 VDC Capstan 
29 1 13itachi Skill Saw 
3 0 1 Jig Sak. - Reclpr~catlng Saw - Sal-iders 
3 1 I 3;8-3> 4 Inch Pipe 'l'hreader 
32 1 1;' Inch Pipe Threader 
? 1 
-3 2 2 3 'Ton Comc-along 
34 2 1 1 '2 Ton C'~)mc-dlong 
3 1 -314 Ton Come-along 
36 1 High Voltage Rubber Glo\;cs 
37 1 Arc Flash Protect~on S u ~ t  
33 1 Hut St~cks and Skotgt l  Stich 
39 I Craftsman Tool Set 
40 1 1 ~ ) ~  1 2-4 Inch Steel J3pc 
11 [ l o t  1 12-4 Inch Scjuarc and Rectangular Tuhlrlg 
42 I l o t  Ljllsc Sicel - Rantis, channels. I-beam. strap, ctc 
13 i Eleclrlc Conci~nt 
44 1 lot 1 X.2k Lumber n ; i t l ~ e  ,incl milled 
45 300-t Feet 416 Lu~l lbcr  



46 1 lot Larger Blocking Timbers, various sizes 
47 I io t  lMisc Utah Hydro Pipe Stored in Veyo Storage Yard (<see below) 

200 Feet of 32-24 inch Pipe (I'romised to the City of Veyo)- 
500 Feet of 30-32 Inch Pipe (total 2OOO' in storage) 



EXX-ITBIT F -- Specification for Painting the Surge Tank 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

For 

PAINTING OF SURGE TANK EXTERIOII 

Upper Beaver Hydro Project 

PART 1 - GENEMI- 

1-1. SCOPE. This section covers the modif?cation of the surge tank ladder and the application of 
protect~ve coatings, including surface preparation and other appurtenant work as required for the 
painting of the exterior of the Cpper Beaver Hydro project surge tank and tank sccessories (Itldder etc). 

The exterior of the tank is coated with Lead-based paint. Therefore, the waste generated from surijce 
preparation will be considered hazardous waste. Surface preparation and cleaning operations shall be 
contained and the waste material shall be properly handled in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

1-2. PROJECT LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION. The project is located approximately 9 miles east 
of'-he town of Beaver (Utah) in the Fish Lake National Forest. The surge tank can be reached via a 
sing' : lane dirt road branching off Highway 153. The tank is a riveted, cylindrical steel stnlcture with 
no roof. The surge tank is 30 feet in diameter wit11 a sidewall height of 50 feet. 

1 -? CIENEK4L. Surface preparation, coating application and coating thickness shall be as specified 
:. If the coating manufacturer's tn~nirnurn recommendations exceed the specified requirements, 

.. .. ,,intractor shall comply with the manufacturer's reco~n~~~endations.  

I -_; ,' . . Governing Standards. Surface preparation. coating application, and coating thickness testing 
' '?e in accordance with rhe referenced standards of the foilotving: Xrne~ican National Standard 

te (ANSI), NACE International (XACE). SSPC: The Society for Protective Coating (SSPC). and 
A s  I International requirements. 

1-4. SUBh4ITTALS. Contractor shall submit a plan fbr surface preparation of :he surge tank 
it:c!uiiing metl~ods for containment of wash water and paint debris. and handflz~g and disposal of the 
hazardous waste material. Contractor shall certify that the plan conforins to the applicable latvs anci 
regulations of the State of Utah. Contractor shall certift that the projeer Superintendent and all workers 
perfolming the surface preparation h a w  received lead training. 

Contractor shall submll sonlplete coating spccificahons. hlaterial Salkty Data Sheets (MSDS). color 
chart, and coating manufacturer's paint application lnstructlons to Co~llpany for re~iew. Color of top 
coat will be selected by the Company. Requcsts for review sublnltted directly to Company by coating 
suppliers will not be considered. Coat1119 application instnlctions shall tnclude :ippIication ternperatuse 
requlremerlts and lilnitativns including recoat window requirements. 

1-5.01. Review of Product 2nd .4~nlici?tlon Data Sheets. The coating applicator and coating 
mmufjcturer.'s ~CpresentntILe shall revlew dnd approve 111 i ~ ~ ~ t i n g  thc co;lt~ng mmanilfactmer's \ ~ r - i t t en  

reci~mtnendations h r  thc  proposed cocltln? s: stem and tile intendcd service. An! 7 ~ I - J ~ L ~ O I I S  iron1 the 
spec1 ficatlons or the contlng manuf~~cturer's published reco~nn~e~lduuons shall be subrrlltteil to the 
Company md shrill be appro\ ed by rhe coatlnz manufacturer's reprcsentatib e. 



EXHIBIT F-ctd. 

PART 2 - PRODTJeTS 

2-1. ACCEPTABLE COATIKG hJANUFACTLrRERS. Moisture-cure polyurethanes produced by :he 
following mantlfacturer's are approved for use on this project: 

\V:ISS~I- High-Tech C:oatings (specified hereafier) 

Arneron International 

2-1.01. Equivalent Coatings. TiVhcnever a coating is specified by the name used by a particular 
manufacturer, the spec~l-ied coating shall be understood as establishing the type and quality of coating 
desired. Eqrtivalcnt coatings of the above-listed manufacturers will be accepted, provrded that 
sufficient infonnation is submitted to enable Company to detennine that thc proposed coatmgs are 
equivalent to thosc 11anicd. Requcsts for review of equivalency will be accepted only tiom the 
Contractor. 

2-2. -MATERIALS. All coatings applied for this project shall be manufactured by tlle same 
manuhcturer and shali be compatible with one another. The coating manufacturer must certify that 
tl~ere is no restrictioll on the clew point tenlperatrire differential if the surface is visibly dry and fiee 
fi-om condensate. 

All paint shall be prepared at the factor\. rcady for application. ?*he addition of thinner or other 
material to the palnt after the pant  has been shipped shall not bc permitted. exccpt as recommended by 
the manufacturer. All tinting materials required shall be added to the paint at the time of paint 
manufacture. Field tinting will not be allowed. 

Paint containers shall be labeled showing the exact title of the paint, the manufacturer's name, date of 
manufacture. and the manufacturer's batch number. Precautions concenling the harldling and storage 
of palrlt shall I x  shown on the label of paint containers. 

All coatings shall con'tbrm lo the air quality regulations applicable at tlie locatlon of use. Coating 
materials that callnot be gu:u.antecd by the manufacturer to conform? even if specified by praduct 
riesignation, shall not be used. It shall be thc Contractor's responsibility to use only coating tnata-ials 
that are in co~npliance with the requirements of all regulaiory agencies. Local regulations tzay require 
some coatings to have a specific VllC content h i t .  2-2.01 S ~ o t  Prime Coat 

Generic Type : >licaceous Iron Oxide (Tc.ZIO). z~nc-rich, single-componei~t. moisture-cure polyurethane 

Dry Film Thickness: 3-4 rnils DF1' 

Manufactiiser (yr. Product: iJiasser 1LlC-Miozjnc 

3-2.02. Full Pnme Coat 

Gene~ic Type : Micaceus Iron Oxide (MJO) filled, single-component. moisture-cure polyurethane 

Dry Film Thickness. -3-5 rllils DFT 

blanufacturer & Product: tl'asser blC-Minmastic 

2-2.03. Full TOD Coat 

Gellcr~c Type . Single-cornponcnt. motsture-cure. dlipi~at~c poiyure:h3nt: 

Dry Film Thickness: 7-3 n ~ ~ i s  DF7" 

h 1 anufactur-er cSr Product: Ii/iasser SIC-1-lister 



Note : All blicaceous Iron Oxide prociucts shall cotlfotxl to ASTM D5532-94: -1 yyc 1 .  

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3-1. SUIIFACE PREPARATION. Surface preparation shall consist of low-pressure water cleaning of 
all surfaces and clean~ng of areas of corrosion and peeling paint to bare ~lietal with hand and pourcr 
tools. 1411 surfaces to be coated shall be clean and iiry and shall meet the recommendations of the 
coating manufacturer for surface preparation. Glossy surfaces shall be dullcd if necessary for proper 
adhesion of topcoats. Surfaces shall be free of'cracks, pits, projections, or other imperfections that 
would interfere with the fortnation of a smooth, unbroken coating film. If necessary: surface shall be 
toweled dry immediately befurc application of paint. 

3-1.1. Low Pressure Water clean in,^. Low-pressure water cleaning shall be in accordance with SSPC- 
SPl2/NACE 5 Water Jetting LP WC. Tke Contractor shall utilizc equip~l~cnt capable of 2,500 - 3.C)OO 
psi at the nozzle and methods of low-pressure water cleaning that will remove ali din. loose paint and 
other loose deleterious materials from metal surfaccs to he painted. 

3-1.2. Hand/Power Tool Cleaning. Areas of rust and failing paint which remain ailer low-pressure 
water cleaning, shall be cleaned to bare metal in accordance wjth SSPC-SP2. Hand Tool Cleaning. and 
SSPC-SP3, Power Tool Cleaning. The edges of existing sound paint surrounding the spot-cleaned 
areas shall be feathered and no loose or abrupt edges shall remain. 

2-2. CON'TAINMENT. Surface preparation shall be performed in compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations of the State of Utah. Contractor shall ensure that no debris or u~lfiltered wash water 
escapes to the environment. Contractor shall be responsible for all equipment and materials used to 
contain the debris and filter the wash water to remove all particles prior to discharge to the 
environment. A detailed Jrawmg or written description of the contain~nent plan shall be submitted by 
the Contractor prior to starting the work. Company reserves the right to stop work or to require 
additional or different conta~nment methods if the Contractor's operations create a nuisance beyond the 
site in the sole opinion of the Company or any regulatory agency. 

3-2.01. Storage and Disposal of Residue. The coating debris shall be collected and stored in leak- 
proof 55 gallon dnims. Dnlms shall be sealed and an adhesive label shall be applied to each drum. 
Residue containers shall be stored in a secure location. AAer the surface preparation operations are 
completed. Contractor shall remove the dru~ns from the project site and arrange for disposal of the 
waste at a hazardous waste disposal site. 

7-2.02. Com~lia~lce  with Reet~lations. The Contractor shall cotnply wittl all local. state. and federal 
regulations concenling emissions or disposal of solid, particulate. or liquid matter as a result of the 
deaning, painting; or other operations. Any fines imposed o11 the Company by m y  regulatory agency 
3s a result of the Contractor's iloncompiiance w ~ t h  environmental regulations shall be paid or 
reimbursed by the Contractor. 

3-3. MIX-i\iG AND THIhVTNG. Coating shall be thoroughly mixed each time any is withdrawn 
fr-on1 the container. Coahng containers shall be kept t~ghtly closed except tvhile coating is belng 
withdrawn. Coating shall be factor? mjxed to proper corisistency anti viscosity fhr the ambient 
temperatures pre\.ailing at the time of appl~cation. Th~nning in thc field wlli be penn~tted only as 
neczssar), to obtain recommended coiccrtige at lower appiicatio~r temperatures. In no case shall the xe t  
fi1311 thickness of applied coat~ng be r-edi~ccd. by '~ddition of cuatlx19 th~nner or othcnvisc. bclow rhe 
t}lichless reco11mlencied hy thc corit~ng manuf~ictur-er. Thrxlnlng shall be done In cornpiinr~ce w ~ t h  a11 
:ippl~cal)le alr qualily regulat1c711s. 
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3-3, PROTEC?'ION OF SU RFXCES. '~lu-o~ighout the work Contractor shall use drop cloths, masklng 
tape, and other suitable measures to protect adjacent steel and concrete surfkces not to be painted. 
Contractor sl~all be I-esponsible for correcting and repairing any damage resulting fiom its operations. 
Coatings spilled or spattered on aclj went surfaces '~vhich arc not being coated shall be itn~nediately 
removed. 

3-5. APPLfCllTIOK. All bare rneral surfaces and existing sound paint on the surge tank exterior, 
including roof, shall be coated wit11 ii single-component, moisture-cure urethane system. Coatings 
shall be applied In a neat manner that will, produce an even film of uniform and proper thickness. Each 
coat shall be thoroughly cisy and hard before the next coat is applicd. In no case shall coating be 
applied at a rate of coverage greater than the nlaximuin rate reco~nmended by the coating 
manufacturer, Coatings shall not be applied outside the application tcmpertlture range specified by the 
coating manuljcturer. 

Bare metal surfaces shall be primed on the sane day they are cleatlcd. Any cleancd surface that rusts 
before the application of the plime coat shall be re-clertned. Coating failures will not be accepted and 
shall be entirely removed down to the substrate. 'Ll~e substrate shall then be recoated. Failures include 
but are not limited to checking, cracking, fisheyes, or delamination. 

Edges. comers. crevices, welds. bolts axd rivets shall be gvcn a brush coat (stripe coat) before 
application of the final coat. The stripe coat shall be applied by 3 brush and worked in both directions. 
Special attention shall be given to sealing all crevices with coating. 

3-5.01. Drv Film Thickness (DF'I'). After the application of each coat, paint film thickness 
measurernents shall be madc during paint application utilizing an approved wet film thickness gage in 
corljunctiotl with an approved mag~etic  or digital d ~ y  film gage, such as an Elcometer 21 1 or Positest 
digital gage. One hundred percent of all thickness measurements shall be within the specified 
minimum dry film thickness. Where thuAmess measurements fall below the specified minimu~n, 
additional applications of paint shall be madc as necessaq to meet the thickness required. Dry film 
thickness for the primer, inten~iediare coat and finish coat shall be not less than the minimum specified 
value unless a greater mimrnum dry film thickness is stated on the manufacturer product data sheets. 

Sufficient time shall elapse between successive coats to permit them to dry properly for recoating. 
Consult spccific product data sheets for proper cure times. Apply coatings via spray. brush and/or roll 
methods. utilizing approved ecjuipment that is standard lo the industry. 

3-5.02. Weather Conditions. Coatings shall not be applied at tcnqxratures higher than the maximutn 
arnb~cnt temperature or the n~aximum substrate temperature rccommcnded by the coating 
manufacturer. J%i?~re coat~ngs are applied d~inng periods of elevated amblctlt temperatures, Contractor 
shall be responsible to ensure that proper applicatioil is performed illcluding adherence to all re-coat 
winciow requirements. 

3-6. QLTALITY CONTROL. The surfice of the coatings shall be visually inspected for coating 
railures ~ncluding but are not li-rnitcd to checking. crack~ng, tislteyes, or delarnmation. Coating film 
tlxicktness shall be verified by rncasuring the film thickness of each coat as it 1s applied and the dry f3rn 
tknckness of the entire sytem. 1i;ct film thickness shall be measured with a gauge that will measure the 
wct film thickness wlthln an accurllc? of 3 0.5 ~ n l l  [1-1.5 pml. Dry tilm thickness shall be nieasured In  

accorclance w.itti SSPC-PA 3. ,411 ~nspectlon :1nd testi11g will be witnessed by a Company 
representative. 



EXHIBIT G - Form of Escrow Agreement 
(To be executed commensurate with the City Notice to Proceed). 

THIS ESCROW .\GREEMENT ("Escrow Agreement") is cntered into as of 
, by and anlong PacifiCorp, an Oregon corporation 

("PaeifiCorp"), thk City of Beaver, a Utah klunicipal Corporation (;'City1'), and 
Title & Escrow (the "Escrow Agent"). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Project Purchase Xgteement dated 
ciiiCorp and City, City will purchase from PacifiCo~p the water 

rights and related ass only referred to as the TJpper Beaver Hydroelectric Project; 

e terms of the Project 1)urchase Agreement, City will deposit 
e Purchase Price consisting of cash in an amount not less than 
in an escrow account (the "Escrow Account"); 

E, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
dged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

used herein which are not othemise defined 
ch terms in the Project Purchase Agreement. 

PacifiCov and City hereby constitute and appoint 
ent hereby agrees to assume and perfonn the duties 
o this Escrow Agreement. 

3. Establishment of Escro~v Fund. 
&' 

(a) Immediately upon the execution of this Escrow i\grcement, the Escrow Agent 
shall establish or shall have established, the Escrow Account, into and from such Escrow 
Account certain deposits and/or ciisbursenients shall be macie pursuant to the terrns of this 
Escrow Agreement. 

(b)  In accorda~~ce wlth the tenlis of Section 3.4 of the Project Purchase Apeenlent, 
these will be deposited (the "Earnest Money Payment") into the Escrow Account cash 
representing the Escrow Amount. From 31ld after the date hereof, the term "Escrow Fund" 
means the Earnest Money Paytilent less any distribut~ons tl~ercfrom made in accordance with 
the provisions of this Escrow Agreement. 

4. Disposition of Escrow Fund. PncifiCorp and City hereby instruct the Escrow 
Agent, and the Escrow Agent hereby agrees. to hold, ~nvest and dispose of the Escrow Frind 
and any interest and othcr incorne received fi-OKII the ~nvestment or reinvestment of the Escrow 
Fund (col1ectiveiy. the "Interest"), in accordance with and sub.jcct to the terms, conditions. 
lilnitatlons and restricrions contained in this Escrow Ageement. 

5 .  Investment. The Escrow Agcnt shall lnvest and reinvest any cash funds from 
time to time comprising part of the Escrow Fund dnd a11 Interest. to the extent possible, in 
the Banner Bank llonc?. klnrket Account ("lloney Jlarkct Account"), or at the direction 
nf PacifiCorp and City. in ( i j  notes. bonds or other obligations of the Unlted States o i  
.+blenca or any rigellcy tilereof that 3s to pr~nc~pill and interest const~trlte direct obligatiorls 
of' clr are paranreed b~ thc {Jmt~ri  Stares of America. (il) ccl-trficates of deposit of any 
coln:ncrclal balk ;ncorporatcd under the laws of the Urntetf States. 3s any state. territory or 
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commonwealth thereof. of recogized standing having capital and su~plus in excess of 
S100,000,000 and whose short term commnercial paper rating is at least A-2 or the 
equivalent by Standard & Poors Corporation or at least P-2 or the equivalent by Moody's 
Investor Services, Inc. or (iii) investments in money market funds that are registered under 
the Investment Company Act of 1940, which have net assets of at least $100,000,000 and at 
least 8524 of whose assets consist of imrestlnents and other obligatio~ls of the type described 
in clauses (i) or (ii). 

6. Charges -4zainst Earnest Money Pavment: Release of Escrow Fund. The 
fiscrow iZccount has been established for the purpose of holdtng a poltion of the Purchase 
Prsce for the benefit orp untll the occun-cnce of the Closing Date as set fofih in the 

fined In the Project Purchase Agreement), PaeifiCorp and 
confirming the Closing (the "Closing Certificates"). Both 

la facsi~nile to Escrow Agent on the Closing Date. No later 
st business day following receipt of the Closing 

t sllall disburse the Escrow Fund ro PacifiCorp In accordance with 
ctions. Any Jntercst that llas accrued under the Escrow 

PacliiCorp jointly a g c e  in writing that thc conditsons for Closing as set 
Purchase Agreesnent cannot be met, City and PacifiCorp will provide joint 

Escro~v Agent and, itiith~n three (3) Business Days of such receipt, the 
d~sperse to City the entlt-e Escrow Fund with Interest. 

Performance bv tile Fscrow i2~ent. The Escrow Agent may seek advice from 
counsel of sts cholce (including any in-house counsel ernployed by the Escrow Agent) and may 
rely upon sucIi adv~ce as ~t thcreupan receites 111 writrng, or it may act or refram from acting in 
accordance w ~ t h  ~ t s  best jtld&mcnt and shall not. as a result thereof. be liable to any party to tlxs 

b 

Escrow Agreement except for \?iillf'~~l misconduct, gross ne~ligence. willful violation of this 
Esmow Agrectnent or willful violation of applicable law. 'The Escrow Agent (i) shall not be 
responsible h r  any of the other agreements referred to here111 and shall be obligated only for 
the verfomiance of such dutics 3s are sp~cificdly set forth in this Escrow Xgeernent; and jii) 
shall not be obligated to take any lcgal or other action hereunder \vhich might in its judgment 
involve any expense or liability unless it shall have been hrnished with acceptable 

8. Resgonsibilitv ofthe Escrow Agent. 

(a) The Escrow Agent, as such, shall not be resporlsiblc or liable to any person, whether 
or not n party to this Escrow Agreement. for any act or omiss~on of any kind so long as it has 
acted in good hith upon the ~nstructions hereln contained or upon the instsuctions hereafter 
delivered to ~t as corltemplated by t h ~ s  Escrow Agreetncnt or upon adv~ce of counsel as provided 
in Section 7. To the extenr illat the Escrow Agent incurs an) loss or  lialxlity {incIuding 
reasonable aito~neys' Fces 'xid ~ ' Y P ~ ~ S C S  resulting from any suci~ :~ct or nr~llssion or arising out of 
or in corulectio~l wltli t h s  Escrn~v Agseemcnt or ndmlnlstration of its duties hereunder). 
PaclfiCorp and City shall ~tointly and severally indemtiify thc Escrow Agent thereibr, unless the 
loss os liability resulted from the Escrow Agent's wlllfill misconciuct. ~ o s s  negligence, willfi~l 
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violation of this Escrow ~lgreenient or willful violation of applicablc law. 

(b) With respect to their respective obligations to indeil~nifq. the Escrow Agent 
hereunder, PaciiiCorp and City expressly rescrve all of their rights 3s against each other to seek 
contribution, reimburserncnt or any other appropriate relief 

(c) 'Yhe Escrow Agent may rely and act upon any certificate or other document 
confonning to thc applicable provisiorls hereof and reasonably l>eIieved by it to be genuine 
and to have been signed by rhe proper party. All persons shall be conclusively bound as 
against the Escrow Agent by any payment or release of the Escrow Fund pursuant to, and in 

is Escro-vv Agreement. 

this Section 8 and the obligations set forth in 
1 of the Escrow Agent and the termination of 

w Agent shall have no Inore or less responsibility or liability 
lsslon of any book-entry depository or sub escrow agent 

gent than any such book-entry depository or sub escrow agent has to 
to the extent that such action or omisslon of any book-entry depository 

ent's own gross negligence, bad faith or 

. The Escrow Agent may at any time resign by 
n to each of the partles hereto. such event 

shall appoint a successor escrow agent to bc effective on the effective date of 
agent 1s named by PacifiCorp and City. the 
jurisdiction for appoint111ent of a successor 
row Fund and any Interest, and any proceeds 

agent and this Escrow Agreement shall be 
assigned to such successor escrow agent. and the resigning Escrow Agent shall thereupon be 
rcleased fro111 further obligations liereuncies. 

10. Dischar~e of the Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent agrees that PacifiCorp and City 
may, by mutual written ageement at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice: remove the 
Escrow Agent as escrow agent hereunder. and substitute a bank or trust company therefor, in 
which event. upon receipt of wrltten notlce thereof a~lci paynent of any accrued but unpaid fees 
or expenses due the Escrow Agent. the Escrow Xgent shall account for and deliver to such 
substituted cscrosv agent the Escro-c+ Fund held by it, and the Escrow Xgent shall thereafter be 
ctischargcd from ail liability hereunder. 

11. Ex~enses. Thc Escrow Agent shall be entitled to fees for ~ t s  services hereunder and 
expenses payable m accordancc with Schcdule I attached hereto. including legal fees incurred in 
corulection with the preparation of any arnendnlent to this Escrow Agreement in an amount not 
to exceed the limit set forth on Schedule 1. Such expenses shall not include any expenses 
lncunzd by the Escrou Agent with respect to its retention of any book-entry depository or sub- 
escrow agent. Except as pro\/~ded belon., all charges and expenses of the Escro~v Xgent under 
this Eccro~v Xgeetntnt silall he bomc by City. In the ekent that the Escrow Agent IS authol-~zcd 
to make a cash disbursement to any j3iirt4. pc~l-suant to and in accordancc with the terms ofthis 
Escrow Agreement, and fees and expenses are thcn due fro111 and payable by such party to the 
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Escrow Agent pursuant to the teims of this Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent is hereby 
authorized to offset such amounts due and payable to it against the disburselncnt to such party. 

12. Kotices. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall 
be in wnting and shall be deemed given on the day actually delivered when deiivercd personally. 
by commercial courier or by a telephonic filcsimile transmission with printed confirmation, or 
three (3) business days after being deposited in the United States mail. certified or registered 
mail, postage prepaid. return receipt requested, and in each case addressed as follows, uniess and 
until any of such parties notifies the others in ac~ord~mce with this Section of a change of 

PacifiCorp 

201 South Main, Suite 
2200 Salt Lake City, CT 
54140 Fax KO.: 801 220 
4648 

With 3 copy to: PacifiCorp 
Attn: Jolm Sa~nple: 
General Counsel 
835 NE Multnomah. Suite 150(3 
Portland, OR 97232 
Fax No.: 503 8 13 7352 



If to Escrow Agent: 

13. Governing Ameement; Amendments. The Escrow Agent hereby ackno~~ledges receipt of a 
copy of the Project Purchase Agreement, but except for a duty to keep such doc~tment confidential 
from any Third Party excluding its tau and iegai counsel and accountants and except for reference 
thereto for definitions of certain words and tenns not defined herein, the Escrow Agent is not charged 
with any duty or obligation arisi 
duties of the Escrow Agent sil 
Agent, on the one hand, and the other parties hereto, on the 
constitutes the entire agreement 
hereto, this Escrow Agreement 
Purchase Agreement or any other 
in, addition to, or waiver of the t 

hereto unless approved in writing by the otfier parties hereto. 

14. Binding Effect. This 
the parties hereto and their respec tives. No party hereto 
may assign any of its rights, interests or obligations he 
hereto. 

1 5. Applicable Law. Thi 
validity, enforcement. interpretation, constni 
the internal laws (as opposed to t of tile State of iTTashington applicable 
to contracts made in that State. 

16. Counterparts. This Esc y be executed in two or more counterparts, 
each of which is an original b er shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
Delivery of  this Escrow -4.g;e omplished by facsimile. 

ings to Sectlons hercin are inserted for convenience of 
part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
nt~fied as 3 reference to another document. any reference to 
eference to such Section of this Escrow Agreement. 
ce, payment or other action on a day whlch is not a 
e taken, or such notice glven, 3s the case may be, on the 
n, "business day" shall mean any day other than a 

ny other day on tvhich the Escrow Agent is closed for buslness. 

f 8. Dispute Resolut~on. It IS understood and agreed that sfiould any dispute arlse with respect 
to the detivery, ownersh.lp, rlght of possesslon. andlor disposition o f  the Escrow Fund, or should any 
ciaim be made upon such Escrow Fu11d by a third pasty, the Escrow Agent. upoil receipt of cvr~tten 
r-iotlce ofsrlch illspilte or clam by the parties hereto or by n rllird part). is nuthor~zed and directed to 
retain In its possesslon without llablllty ro anyone. all or any of s a d  bscrokk Fund until such dlspute 
shall h a  e been settled e~ther  b?, the mutual wr~tten asreernznr oi'the part~es involved or by a final 
judgrncnt in a count\ of competent jurisd~ct~on. The Escrow Agent may. but shnll be andcr no dut! 
whatsoc\.er to. ~nstltute or defcnci any 1eg:tl proceed~ngs urhlch relate to the Esc;-o\< Fuild. 
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IN WITNESS FYNEREOF. the parties I~avs caused this Escrow Agreenie~~t to be duly 
executed on the day and year first above wntten. 

By: 

Name: 

Title: - "" --." 

City of Beav f A  

II) Title & Escrow 

BY: - 
Name: - 

l'itle: 

Schedule I 



SCHEDU1,E OF ESCROW FEES 

Flat fee of which sum includes a; fees and costs associated with thls escrow. 



EXI-TIIBIT H - Project Purchase Schedule 

-- 
Execute Project Purchase Agreement 
SUP Transfer Resolved 
Scheduled Cit)' Notice to Proceecl 
Separation Fr~clllties Completed 
Necessary Regulatory Approvals Obtait~ed 
Scheduled Closing Date 
Transfer of Possession 

- Latest Date to Close - 

l i l  Si'O6 
1/3 1/06 
1/3 11'06 
1/3 1/07 
1/3 1/07 
2/25/07 
3/3 1/07 
1213 1/07 



EXHTBIT I - Project Contractual Obligation 



EXHIBIT J - Yon-Compliance Item 



EXHIBIT I( - Claims Against the Project Which Shall Remain FVith 
PacifiCorg 

(1) PacifiC:orp income taxes and any PacifiCorp errlployee claim, severance, o r  
relocation costs. 



EXHTBIT 1,-Known Defects to Project Property 

(1 )  East Fork Pipe-currently Inoperable and needs repair; 

(2 )  East Fork Diversion-needs cleaning out of grizzly protecting tile 11ltake 

(3)  South Fork Pipe-portions in nced of repair; 

(4) Flo\+lme b ~ ~ r l e d  in State Road 153; Hlghway Dept. wlll relocate prior to 
obsolescence. 

( 5 )  Flowline at cable crossing-chronic settle~nent of f lowl~~le  grade 

(6)  Powerhouse roof-nearing end of its useful life; 

( 7 )  Big honsetloffice roof----nearing end of its usetill iifc: 



Case No. UP- 
Application Exhibit 2 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

PACIFICORP 

FORM 10-K 
For the fiscal year ended March 3 1,2006 

FORM 10-Q 
For the quarterly period ended December 3 1, 2005 

September 2006 



FORM 1OK 

For the fiscal year ended 
March 3 1,2006 



UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 
(Mark One) 

/X/ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended March 31,2006 

/ / TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number 1-5152 

PACIF'ICORP 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

State of Oregon 
(State or other jurisdiction 

of incorporation or organization) 

825 N.E. Multnomah Street, Portland, Oregon 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

93-0246090 
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

97232 
(Zip Code) 

(503) 813-5000 
(Registrant's telephone number) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 

Title of each Class 

5% Preferred Stock (Cumulative; $100 Stated Value) 
Serial Preferred Stock (Cumulative; $100 Stated Value) 

No Par Serial Preferred Stock (Cumulative; $100 Stated Value) 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant js a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. 
Yes [ I No [XI 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the 
Exchange Act. Yes [ 1 No [XI 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 

Yes [XI N o [  1 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, 
and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated 
by reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [XI 



Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer 
See definition of "accelerated filer and large accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 
Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated filer [ 1 Non-accelerated filer [XI 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 
Yes [ I No [ XI 

Class Outstanding at May 19, 2006 
Common Stock, no par value 357,060,915 shares 

All shares of outstanding common stock are indirectly owned by MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company, 666 Grand 
Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 
None. 
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DEFINITIONS 

When the following terms are used in the text, they will have the meanings indicated: 

Meaning 

CPUC ..................... 
FERC.. ................... 
IPUC ...................... 
kwh.. ...................... 
MEHC. .................. 

MW ........................ 
MWh ....................... 
OPUC.. .................... 
PacifiCorp.. ............. 
PHI.. ....................... 

PPW Holdings LLC 
........ ScottishPower.. 

SEC ........................ 
SFAS ....................... 
UPSC.. .................... 

.................. WPSC.. 
WUTC.. .................. 

California Public Utilities Commission 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
Idaho Public Utilities Commission 
Kilowatt-hour(s), one kilowatt continuously for one hour 
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company, an Iowa corporation and indirect parent company of 
PacifiCorp 
Megawatt 
Megawatt-hour(s), one megawatt continuously for one hour 
Oregon Public Utility Commission 
PacifiCorp, an Oregon corporation and direct, wholly owned subsidiary of PPW Holdings LLC 
PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation and non-operating United States holding 
company and the former direct parent company of PacifiCorp 
PPW Holdings LLC, the direct parent company of PacifiCorp 
Scottish Power plc, the former ultimate, indirect parent company of PHI and PacifiCorp 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
Utah Public Service Commission 
Wyoming Public Service Commission 
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission 



PART l 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

OVERVIEW 

Ownership by MEHC; Sale of PacifiCorp 
On March 2 1,2006, MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company ("MEHC") completed its purchase of all of PacifiCorp's 
outstanding common stock from PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. ("PHI"), a subsidiary of Scottish Power plc ("ScottishPower"), 
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement among MEHC, ScottishPower and PHI dated May 23,2005, as amended on 
March 21, 2006 (the "Stock Purchase Agreement"). The cash purchase price was $5.1 billion. PacifiCorp's common stock 
was directly acquired by a subsidiary of MEHC, PPW Holdings LLC. As a result of this transaction, MEHC controls the 
significant majority of PacifiCorp's voting securities, which include both common and preferred stock. MEHC, a global 
energy company based in Des Moines, Iowa, is a majority-owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. ("Berkshire 
Hathaway"). All descriptions of the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement contained in this Annual Report are modified in 
their entirety by reference to the terms of such agreement, which is included as an exhibit hereto. 

Operations 
PacifiCorp is a regulated electricity company serving retail customers in portions of the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, 
Washington, Idaho and California. As a vertically integrated electric utility, PacifiCorp owns or has contracts for fuel 
sources such as coal and natural gas and uses these fuel sources, as well as wind, geothermal and water resources, to 
generate electricity at its power plants. This electricity, together with electricity purchased on the wholesale market, is then 
transmitted via a grid of transmission lines throughout PacifiCorp's six-state region. The electricity is then transformed to 
lower voltages and delivered to customers through PacifiCorp's distribution system. PacifiCorp sells electricity primarily in 
the retail market, with sales to residential, commercial and industrial customers. PacifiCorp also sells electricity in the 
wholesale market in connection with excess electricity generation or balancing activities. Subsidiaries of PacifiCorp support 
its electric utility operations by providing coal mining and other fuel-related services, as well as environmental remediation. 
PacifiCorp's goal is to provide safe, reliable, low-cost electricity to its customers, with fair and increasing earnings to its 
common shareholder. PacifiCorp expects that costs prudently incurred to provide service to its customers will be included 
as allowable costs for state rate-making purposes. 

Following the closing of PacifiCorp's sale, MEHC announced a new organizational structure under the direction of a newly 
appointed chairman and chief executive officer, who oversees the company's entire operations. The PacifiCorp Energy 
operational unit is responsible for PacifiCorp's electric generation, commercial and energy trading, and coal-mining hnctions. 
The Pacific Power operational unit is responsible for delivering electricity to customers in Oregon, Washington and California. 
The Rocky Mountain Power operational unit is responsible for delivering electricity to customers in Utah, Wyoming and Idaho. 

Regulation 
PacifiCorp is subject to comprehensive regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the "FERC"), the Utah 
Public Service Colnmission (the "UPSC"), the Oregon Public Utility Commission (the "OPUC"), the Wyoming Public 
Service Commission (the "WPSC"), the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (the "WUTC"), Idaho Public 
Utility Commission (the "IPUC"), the California Public Utilities Commission (the "CPUC"), and other federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies. These agencies regulate many aspects of PacifiCorp's business, including customer rates, service 
territories, sales of securities, asset acquisitions and sales, accounting policies and practices, wholesale sales and purchases 
of electricity, and the operation of its electric generation and transmission facilities. 

Employees 
On March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp had 6,750 employees, 58.4% of which were covered by union contracts, principally with 
the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, the Utility Workers Union of America, International Brotherhood of 
Boilermakers and the United Mine Workers of America. 



Location and Information Requests 
The location of PacifiCorp's principal offices is 825 N.E. Multnomah Street, Portland, Oregon 97232. PacifiCorp's website 
address is www.~acificorp.com. PacifiCorp makes available free of charge, on or through its website, its annual, quarterly 
and current reports, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such 
reports with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Information contained on PacifiCorp's 
website is not part of this report. Reports and other information regarding PacifiCorp that are required to be filed with the 
SEC may also be obtained from the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. 

POWER AND FUEL SUPPLY 

Generating Plants 

PacifiCorp owns, or has interests in, the following types of electricity generating plants: 

Nameplate Net Plant 
Rating Capability 

Plants (MW) (MW) 

Coal 11 6,585.9 6,104.4 
Natural gas and other 6 1,348.7 1,174.0 
Hydroelectric 5 1 1,083.6 1,159.4 
Wind 1 32.6 32.6 

Total 69 9,050.8 8,470.4 

The natural gas and other plants include the Currant Creek Power Plant, which commenced full combined-cycle operation 
in March 2006, adding 523.0 megawatts ("MW") of capability to PacifiCorp's generation portfolio. 

The following table shows the estimated percentage of PacifiCorp's total energy requirements supplied by its generation 
plants and through short- and long-term contracts or spot market purchases during the years ended March 3 1, 2006, 2005 
and 2004. See "Wholesale Sales and Purchased Electricity" below for more information. 

Years Ended March 3 1, 
2006 2005 2004 

Coal 67.5 % 67.3 % 67.8 0/6 
Natural gas and other 4.3 4.8 4.7 
Hydroelectric 6.2 4.6 5.4 
Wind 0.2 0.2 0.2 

Total energy generated 78.2 76.9 78.1 - ~ 

Purchase and exchange contracts 21.8 23.1 21.9 
Total 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 

The share of PacifiCorp's energy requirements generated by its plants will vary from year to year and is determined by 
factors such as planned and unplanned outages, availability and price of coal and natural gas, precipitation and snowpack 
levels, environmental considerations and the market price of electricity. 

Coal 

As of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp had an estimated 248.3 million tons of recoverable coal reserves in mines owned or 
leased by it. During the year ended March 31, 2006, these mines supplied 32.3% of PacifiCorp's total coal requirements, 
compared to 28.6% during the year ended March 3 1, 2005 and 30.4% during the year ended March 31, 2004. The 
remaining coal requirements are acquired through other long-tenn and short-term contracts. PacifiCorp-owned mines are 
located adjacent to many of its coal-fired generating plants, which significantly reduces overall transportation costs included 
in fuel expense. For further information, see "Item 2. Properties." 



In an effort to lower costs and obtain better quality coal, the Jim Bridger Mine is in the process of developing an 
underground mine to access 57.0 million tons of PacifiCorp's coal reserves. Underground mine development and limited 
coal production began during the year ended March 3 1, 2005 and sustained operations are expected to begin by March 3 1, 
2007. The life of the underground mine is expected to be approximately 15 years. 

Natural Gas 

PacifiCorp currently utilizes natural gas to fuel four owned and one leased generating plants (composed of 16 generating 
units) that, at full capacity, require a maximum of 324,000 MMBtu (million British thermal units) of natural gas per day. 

Additional electric generation resources required by PacifiCorp's Integrated Resource Plans discussed below, including the 
Lake Side Power Plant, could increase the natural gas requirement to 415,000 MMBtu per day or more. PacifiCorp has 
entered into transportation contracts to facilitate movement of natural gas to the Lake Side Power Plant. These contracts 
reflect PacifiCorp's fuel strategy that focuses on the management and mitigation of risks associated with supplying natural 
gas. 

The growth of PacifiCorp's natural gas requirements requires a prudent, disciplined and well-documented approach to 
natural gas procurement and hedging. PacifiCorp has developed a natural gas strategy that addresses the need to 
economically hedge the commodity risk (physical availability and price), the transportation risk and the storage risk 
associated with its forecasted and potentially growing natural gas requirements. This natural gas strategy, combined with the 
prospect for increasing natural gas requirements, is expected to increase the volume and types of PacifiCorp's procurement 
and economic hedging activity. 

PacifiCorp manages its natural gas supply requirements by entering into forward commitments for physical delivery of 
natural gas. PacifiCorp also manages its exposure to increases in natural gas supply costs through forward commitments for 
the purchase of physical natural gas at fixed prices and financial swap contracts that settle in cash based on the difference 
between a fixed price that PacifiCorp pays and a floating market-based price that PacifiCorp receives. As of March 3 1, 
2006, PacifiCorp had economically hedged 100.0% of its forecasted physical and financial exposure for the remainder of 
calendar 2006 and had economically hedged 100.0% of its forecasted physical and financial exposure for calendar 2007. 
For calendar 2008, PacifiCorp currently has hedged 88.0% of its physical exposure and 96.0% of its financial exposure. 
This economic hedging includes the additional supply requirements arising from the Lake Side Power Plant and the recently 
constructed Currant Creek Power Plant. 

Hydroelectric 

PacifiCorp's hydroelectric portfolio consists of 5 1 plants with a net plant capability of 1,159.4 MW. These plants account 
for approximately 14.0% of PacifiCorp's total generating capacity, helping satisfy a significant portion of PacifiCorp's 
reserve requirements and providing operational benefits such as flexible generation and voltage control. Hydroelectric 
plants are located in the following states: Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho, California and Montana. 

The amount of electricity PacifiCorp is able to generate from its hydroelectric plants depends on a number of factors, 
including snowpack in the mountains upstream of its hydroelectric facilities, reservoir storage, precipitation in its 
watersheds, plant availability and restrictions imposed by oversight bodies due to competing water management objectives. 
When these factors are favorable, PacifiCorp can generate more electricity using its hydroelectric plants. When these factors 
are unfavorable, PacifiCorp must increase its reliance on more expensive thermal plants and purchased electricity. 

PacifiCorp operates the majority of its hydroelectric generating portfolio under long-term licenses from the FERC. These 
licenses are granted by the FERC for periods of 30 to 50 years. Several of PacifiCorp's long-term operating licenses have 
expired or will expire in the next few years. Hydroelectric facilities operating under expired licenses may operate under 
annual licenses granted by the FERC until new operating licenses are issued. Hydroelectric relicensing and the related 
environmental co~npliance requirements are subject to a degree of uncertainty. PacifiCorp expects that future costs relating 
to these matters may be significant and consist primarily of additional relicensing costs and capital expenditures. Electricity 
generation reductions may also result from additional environmental requirements. At March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had 
incurred $70.3 million in costs for ongoing hydroelectric relicensing, which are included in Construction work-in-progress 
on PacifiCorp's Consolidated Balance Sheet. See "Hydroelectric Relicensing" and "Hydroelectric Decommissioning" both 
discussed below. 



Wind and Other Renewable Resources 

PacifiCorp is pursuing renewable power as a viable, economic and environmentally prudent means of generating electricity. 
The benefits of renewable energy include low to no emissions and no fossil fuel requirements. Resources such as wind and 
solar are intermittent, so complementary thermal or hydroelectric resources are important to integrating intermittent 
renewable resources into the electric system. 

PacifiCorp acquires wind and other renewable power through one PacifiCorp-owned wind farm in Wyoming and various 
purchased electricity agreements with wind farms in Oregon and Wyoming, as well as with renewable facilities classified as 
"qualifying facilities" under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act. PacifiCorp also owns a geothermal plant in Utah. 
For the year ended March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp received 256,371 MWh from its owned wind farm and geothermal plant. In 
this same period, 303,158 MWh were purchased from other wind sources, not including qualifying facilities. 

To encourage the use of wind energy, PacifiCorp has generation, storage and delivery agreements with various other 
utilities. For the year ended March 31, 2006, electricity generated for delivery to customers under these agreements totaled 
532,103 MWh in addition to the wind energy generated or purchased for PacifiCorp's own use. 

In connection with its sale to MEHC, PacifiCorp has committed to state regulatory commissions that it will bring at least 
100.0 MW of cost-effective wind resources in service by March 21, 2007 and, to the extent available, add 400.0 MW, 
inclusive of the 100.0 MW commitment, of cost-effective renewable resources in PacifiCorp's generation portfolio by 
December 3 1,2007. 

Future Generation and Conservation 

Integrated Resource Plans 

As required by state regulators, PacifiCorp uses Integrated Resource Plans to develop a long-term view of prudent future 
actions required to help ensure that PacifiCorp continues to provide reliable and cost-effective electric service to its 
customers. The Integrated Resource Plan process identifies the amount and timing of PacifiCorp's expected future resource 
needs and an associated optimal hture  resource mix that accounts for planning uncertainty, risks, reliability impacts and 
other factors. The Integrated Resource Plan is a coordinated effort with stakeholders in each of the six states where 
PacifiCorp operates. Each state commission that has Integrated Resource Plan adequacy rules judges whether the Integrated 
Resource Plan reasonably meets its standards and guidelines at the time the Integrated Resource Plan is filed. If the 
Integrated Resource Plan is found to be adequate, then it is formally "acknowledged." The Integrated Resource Plan can 
then be used as evidence by parties in rate-making or other regulatory proceedings. 

In November 2005, PacifiCorp released an update to its 2004 Integrated Resource Plan. The updated 2004 Integrated 
Resource Plan identified a need for approximately 2,113.0 MW of additional resources by summer 2014, to be met with a 
combination of thermal generation (1,936.0 MW) and load control programs (177.0 MW). PacifiCorp also planned to 
implement energy conservation programs of 450.0 average MW, to continue to seek procurement of 1,400.0 MW of 
economic renewable resources and to use wholesale electricity transactions to make up for the remaining difference 
between retail load obligations and available resources. 

In addition to new generation resources, substantial transmission investments could be required to deliver power to 
customers and provide system reliability. The actual investment requirement will depend on the location and other 
characteristics of the new generation resources. See "Transmission and Distribution" discussion below. 

WHOLESALE SALES AND PURCHASED ELECTRICITY 

In addition to its portfolio of generating plants, PacifiCorp purchases electricity in the wholesale markets to meet its retail 
load obligations, long-term wholesale obligations, and energy and capacity balancing requirements. For the year ended 
March 31, 2006, 21.8% of PacifiCorp's energy requirements were supplied by purchased electricity under short- and long- 
term purchase arrangements, both as defined by the FERC. PacifiCorp's energy requirements supplied by purchased 
electricity under short- and long-term purchase arrangements were 23.1% for the year ended March 3 1, 2005 and 2 1.9% for 
the year ended March 3 1,2004. 



Many of PacifiCorp's purchased electricity contracts have fixed-price components, which provide some protection against 
price volatility. PacifiCorp enters into wholesale purchase and sale transactions to balance its supply when generation and 
retail loads are higher or lower than expected. Generation varies with the levels of outages, hydroelectric generation 
conditions and transmission constraints. Retail load varies with the weather, distribution system outages, consumer trends 
and the level of economic activity. In addition, PacifiCorp purchases electricity in the wholesale markets when it is more 
economical than generating it at its own plants. PacifiCorp may also sell into the wholesale market excess electricity arising 
from imbalances between generation and retail load obligations, subject to pricing and transmission constraints. 

PacifiCorp's wholesale transactions are integral to its retail business, providing for a balanced and economically hedged 
position and enhancing the efficient use of its generating capacity over the long term. Historically, PacifiCorp has been able 
to purchase electricity from utilities in the western United States for its own requirements. These purchases are conducted 
through PacifiCorp and third party transmission systems, which connect with market hubs in the Pacific Northwest to 
provide access to normally low-cost hydroelectric generation and in the southwestern United States to provide access to 
normally higher-cost fossil-fuel generation. The transmission system is available for common use consistent with open- 
access regulatory requirements. 

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION 

Electric transmission systems deliver energy from electric generators to distribution systems for final delivery to customers. 
PacifiCorp plans, builds and operates a transmission system. During the year ended March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp delivered 
67,810,861 MWh of electricity to customers in its two control areas through 15,580 miles of transmission lines and its 
59,5 10 mile system of distribution lines. For further detail, see "Item 2. Properties - Transmission and Distribution." 

PacifiCorp's transmission system is part of the Western Interconnection, the regional grid in the west. The Western 
Interconnection includes the interconnected transmission systems of 14 western states, two Canadian provinces and parts of 
Mexico that make up the Western Electric Coordinating Council. The map under "Service Territories" below shows 
PacifiCorp's transmission grid. PacifiCorp's transmission system, together with contractual rights on other transmission 
systems, enables PacifiCorp to integrate and access generation resources to meet its customer load requirements. Due to 
PacifiCorp's continuing commitment to improve customer service and network safety and to enhance system reliability and 
performance, PacifiCorp has focused on infrastructure improvement projects in targeted areas. PacifiCorp and MEHC have 
committed to a number of transmission and distribution system investments in connection with regulatory approval of 
PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC. For discussion of specific planned spending see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation - Liquidity and Capital Resources -Future Uses of Cash - 
Capital Expenditure Program." 

PacifiCorp operates one control area on the western portion of its service territory and one control area on the eastern 
portion of its service territory. A control area is a geographic area with electric systems that control generation to maintain 
schedules with other control areas and ensure reliable operations. In operating the control areas, PacifiCorp is responsible 
for continuously balancing electric supply and demand by dispatching generating resources and interchange transactions so 
that generation internal to the control area, plus net import power, matches customer loads. PacifiCorp also schedules power 
deliveries over its transmission system and maintains reliability in part by verifying that customers are properly using the 
system within established bounds. 

PacifiCorp's wholesale transmission services are regulated by the FERC under cost-based regulation subject to PacifiCorp's 
Open Access Transmission Tariff. In accordance with the Open Access Transmission Tariff, PacifiCorp offers several 
transmission services to wholesale customers: 

Network transmission service (guaranteed service that integrates generating resources to serve retail loads); 

Long-term and short-term firm point-to-point transmission service (guaranteed service with fixed delivery and receipt 
points); and 

Non-firm point-to-point service ("as available" service with fixed delivery and receipt points). 

These services are offered on a non-discriminatory basis, meaning that all potential customers are provided an equal 
opportunity to access the transmission system. PacifiCorp's transmission business is managed and operated independently 
from the generating and marketing business in accordance with the FERC Standards of Conduct. Transmission costs are not 
separated from, but rather are "bundled" with, generation and distribution costs in retail rates approved by state regulatory 



commissions. See "Regulation - Federal Regulatory Matters" below for further information related to the Energy Policy Act 
of 2005, which requires that the FERC establish and enforce standards for electric reliability. 

Regional Transmission Coordination 

In December 1999, the FERC encouraged all companies with transmission assets to form regional transmission 
organizations that would manage certain operational functions of the transmission grid and plan for necessary expansion. In 
response, several northwest utilities, including PacifiCorp, formed a regional transmission entity, known as Grid West, that 
was intended to coordinate transmission functions in all or portions of eight western states and western Canada. 

In April 2006, the Grid West board voted to dissolve the Grid West entity. This decision resulted primarily from the 
decision of key participants, including the Bonneville Power Administration to discontinue support and fbnding of Grid 
West efforts. To address the continuing need for some degree of regional transmission coordination, PacifiCorp and the 
other parties are considering smaller-scale initiatives that could provide value for customers. 

SERVICE TERRITORIES 

PacifiCorp serves approximately 1.6 million retail customers in service territories aggregating approximately 136,000 
square miles in portions of six western states: Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California. The combined 
service territory's diverse regional economy ranges from rural, agricultural and mining areas to urbanized manufacturing 
and government service centers. No single segment of the economy dominates the service territory, which mitigates 
PacifiCorp's exposure to economic fluctuations. In the eastern portion of the service territory, mainly consisting of Utah, 
Wyoming and southeast Idaho, the principal industries are manufacturing, health services, recreation and mining or 
extraction of natural resources. In the western portion of the service territory, mainly consisting of Oregon, southeastern 
Washington and northern California, the principal industries are agriculture and manufacturing, with forest products, food 
processing, high technology and primary metals being the largest industrial sectors. The following map highlights 
PacifiCorp's retail service territory, plant locations and PacifiCorp's primary transmission lines. PacifiCorp's generating 
facilities are interconnected through PacifiCorp's own transmission lines or by contract through the transmission lines 
owned by others. See "Item 2. Properties" for additional information on PacifiCorp's plants. 
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The geographic distribution of PacifiCorp's retail electric operating revenues for the years ended March 3 1, 2006, 2005 and 
2004 was as follows: 

Years Ended March 3 1, 
2006 2005 2004 

Utah 40.9 % 40.6 % 38.5 % 

Oregon 29.3 29.3 31.5 
Wyoming 13.3 13.6 12.8 
Washington 8.4 8.0 8.4 
Idaho 5.7 6.1 6.3 
California 2.4 2.4 2.5 

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 

PacifiCorp receives authorization from state public utility commissions to serve areas within each state. This authorization 
is perpetual until withdrawn by the state public utility commissions. In addition, PacifiCorp has received franchises to 
provide electric service to customers inside incorporated areas within the states. Most franchises have terns of five years or 
more, but some have indefinite terms. PacitiCorp must renew franchises that expire. Governmental agencies have the right 



to challenge PacifiCorp's right to serve in a specific area and can condemn PacifiCorp's property under certain 
circumstances in accordance with the laws in each state. However, PacifiCorp vigorously challenges any attempts from 
individuals and governmental entities to undertake forced takeover of any portions of its service territory. PacifiCorp is 
subject to energy regulation, legislation and political risks. Any changes in regulations and rates or legislative developments 
may adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" for 
further information. 

CUSTOMERS 

Electricity sold to retail customers and the number of retail customers, by class of customer, for the years ended March 3 1, 
2006, 2005 and 2004, were as follows: 

Years Ended March 3 1. 
2006 2005 2004 

(Thousands of MWh) 

MWh sold 
Residential 14,880 29.7 % 

Commercial 14,887 29.7 
Industrial 19,746 39.4 
Other 599 1.2 

Total MWh sold 50,112 100.0 % 

Number of retail customers (in thousands) 
Residential 1,404 85.6 % 
Commercial 198 12.1 
Industrial 34 2.1 
Other 4 0.2 

Total 1,640 100.0 % 

Retail customers 
Average annual usage per 

customer (kwh) 30,895 
Average annual revenue per customer S 1,732 
Revenue per kwh 5 . 6 ~  

During the year ended March 31, 2006, no single retail customer accounted for more than 2.0% of PacifiCorp's retail 
electric revenues, and the 20 largest retail customers accounted for 13.0% of PacifiCorp's retail electric revenues. 

PacifiCorp is estimating average growth in retail megawatt-hour ("MWh") sales in PacifiCorp's franchise service territories 
to average between 2.0% and 3.0% annually over the five years to December 2010, depending on factors such as economic 
conditions, number of customers, weather, consumer trends, conservation efforts and changes in prices. 

Seasonality 

As a result of the geographically diverse area of operations, PacifiCorp's service territory has historically experienced 
complementary seasonal load patterns. In the western portion, customer demand peaks in the winter months due to heating 
requirements. In the eastern portion, customer demand peaks in the summer when irrigation and air-conditioning systems 
are heavily used. 

For residential customers, within a given year, weather conditions are the dominant cause of usage variations from normal 
seasonal patterns. Strong Utah residential growth over the last several years and increasing installations of central air 
conditioning systems are contributing to faster summer peak growth. 



RETAIL COMPETITION 

During the year ended March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp continued to operate its retail business under state regulation, which 
generally prohibits retail competition. However, certain of PacifiCorp's commercial and industrial customers in Oregon 
have the right to choose alternative electricity suppliers. As a result of Direct Access mandated by Oregon's Senate Bill 
1149, a group of customers having a total average load of approximately 11.4 average MW have chosen service from 
suppliers other than PacifiCorp. A group of customers having a total average load of approximately 1.6 average MW have 
taken service from PacifiCorp at the Daily Market Pricing Option. This senlice provides a market-based pricing option by 
linking the energy charge on a customer's bill to a representative market price index. PacifiCorp does not expect the Direct 
Access program and the Daily Market Pricing Option to have a material effect on earnings for the 12 months ending March 
3 1,2007. 

In addition to Oregon's Direct Access program, others in PacifiCorp's service territories are seeking to have a choice of 
suppliers, exploring options to build their own generation or co-generation plants, or considering the use of alternative 
energy sources such as natural gas. If these customers gain the right to receive electricity from alternative suppliers, they 
will make their energy purchasing decisions based upon many factors, including price, service and system reliability. The 
use of alternative energy sources is typically based on availability, price and the general demand for electricity. 

Any adoption of retail competition by the legislatures in the states served by PacifiCorp, in addition to the Direct Access 
program, and/or the unbundling of transmission, distribution and generation costs in regulated electricity services could 
have a significant adverse financial impact on PacifiCorp due to an impairment of assets, a loss of retail customers, lower 
profit margins or increased costs of capital and could result in increased pressure to lower the price of electricity. Although 
PacifiCorp believes it will continue as a regulated entity and does not expect significant retail competition in the near future, 
it cannot predict if or to what extent it will be subject to changes in legislation or regulation allowing retail competitors, nor 
can PacifiCorp predict the impact of these changes. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors - PacifiCorp is subject to energy regulation, 
legislation and political risks, and changes in regulations and rates or legislative developments may adversely affect its 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows." 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

PacifiCorp is subject to a number of federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations affecting many aspects of 
its present and future operations. These requirements relate to air emissions, water quality, waste management, hazardous 
chemical use, noise abatement, land use aesthetics and endangered species. 

Environmental laws and regulations currently have, and future modifications may have, the effect of (i) increasing the lead 
time for the construction of new facilities, (ii) significantly increasing the total cost of new facilities, (iii) requiring 
modification of PacifiCorp's existing facilities, (iv) increasing the risk of delay on construction projects, (v) increasing 
PacifiCorp's cost of waste disposal, and (vi) reducing the amount of energy available from PacifiCorp's facilities. Any of 
these items could have a substantial impact on amounts required to be expended by PacifiCorp in the future. 

In the year ended March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp spent approximately S62.3 million on environmental capital projects. 
PacifjCorp currently estimates expenditures for environmental-related capital projects will total approximately $129.2 
million in the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007. 

Air Quality 

PacifiCorp's fossil fuel-fired electricity generation plants are subject to applicable provisions of the Clean Air Act and 
related air quality standards promulgated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and state air 
quality laws. The Clean Air Act provides the framework for regulation of certain air emissions and permitting and 
monitoring associated with those emissions. PacifiCorp owns or has interests in 11 coal-fired generating plants, which 
represent 72.1% of PacifiCorp's generating capability. PacifiCorp believes it has all required permits and other approvals to 
operate its plants and that the plants are in material compliance with applicable requirements. 

The acquisition of PacifiCorp by MEHC includes a regulatory com~nitn~ent to spend approximately $812.0 million over 
several years to reduce emissions at PacifiCorp's generating facilities to address existing and future air quality 
requirements. These costs and any additional expenditures necessitated by air quality regulations are expected to be 
included in rates and, as such, would not have a material adverse impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated results of operations. 



The EPA has in recent years implemented more stringent national ambient air quality standards for ozone and new 
standards for fine particulate matter. These standards set the minimum level of air quality that must be met throughout the 
United States. Areas that achieve the standards, as determined by ambient air quality monitoring, are characterized as being 
in attainment of the standard. Areas that fail to meet the standard are designated as being non-attainment areas. Generally, 
once an area has been designated as a non-attainment area, sources of emissions that contribute to the failure to achieve the 
ambient air quality standards are required to make emissions reductions. The EPA has concluded that Utah and Wyoming, 
where PacifiCorp's major emission sources are located, are in attainment of the ozone standards and the fine particulate 
matter standards. 

In December 2005, the EPA proposed a revision of the ambient air quality standards for fine particles that would maintain 
the current annual standard and set a new, more stringent 24-hour standard for concentration of fine particulate. The EPA is 
scheduled to issue final rules in September 2006. Until the EPA takes final action on the proposal, the impact of the 
proposed rules on PacifiCorp cannot be determined. 

In March 2005, the EPA released the final Clean Air Mercury Rule. The Clean Air Mercury Rule utilizes a market-based 
cap and trade mechanism to reduce mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants from the current nationwide level of 
48 tons to 15 tons at full implementation. The Clean Air Mercury Rule's two-phase reduction program requires initial 
reductions of mercury emissions in 2010 and an overall reduction in mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants of 
70.0% by 2018. Individual states are required to implement the Clean Air Mercury Rule through their state implementation 
plans. Depending on the outcome of the respective states' implementation rules, the Clean Air Mercury Rule may require 
PacifiCorp to reduce emissions of mercury from some or all of its coal-fired facilities through the installation of emission 
controls, the purchase of emission allowances, or some combination thereof. 

The Clean Air Mercury Rule could, in whole or in part, be superseded or made more stringent by one of a number of multi- 
pollutant emission reduction proposals currently under consideration at the federal level, including pending legislative 
proposals that contemplate 70.0% to 90.0% reductions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and mercury, as well as possible 
new federal regulation of carbon dioxide and other gases that may affect global climate change. In addition to any federal 
legislation that could be enacted by the United States Congress to supersede the Clean Air Mercury Rule, the rules could be 
changed or overturned as a result of litigation. The sufficiency of the standards established by the Clean Air Mercury Rule 
has been legally challenged in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia. Until final resolution of 
litigation challenging the Clean Air Mercury Rule, the full impact of the rules on PacifiCorp cannot be determined. 

The EPA has initiated a regional haze program intended to improve visibility at specific federally protected areas. 
PacifiCorp and other stakeholders are participating in the Western Regional Air Partnership to help develop the technical 
and policy tools needed to comply with this program. 

Under existing New Source Review provisions of the Clean Air Act, any facility that emits regulated pollutants is required 
to obtain a pennit from the EPA or a state regulatory agency prior to (i) beginning construction of a new stationary source 
of a New Source Review -regulated pollutant, or (ii) making a physical or operational change to an existing stationary 
source of such pollutants. Pending or proposed air regulations will require PacifiCorp to reduce its electricity plant 
emissions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and other pollutants below current levels. These reductions will be required to 
address regional haze programs, mercury emissions regulations and possible re-interpretations and changes to the federal 
Clean Air Act. In the future, PacifiCorp expects to incur significant costs to comply with various stricter air emissions 
requjrements. These potential costs are expected to consist primarily of capital expenditures. PacifiCorp expects these costs 
would be included in rates and, as such, would not have a material adverse impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated results of 
operations. See also "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and 
Accrued Environmental Costs." 

The EPA has requested from several utilities information and supporting documentation regarding their capital projects for 
various generating plants. The requests were issued as part of an industry-wide investigation to assess compliance with the 
New Source Review and the New Source Performance Standards of the Clean Air Act. In 2001 and 2003, PacifiCorp 
received requests for information from the EPA relating to PacifiCorp's capital projects at seven of its generating plants. 
PacifiCorp submitted information responsive to the requests and there are currently no outstanding data requests pending 
from the EPA. PacifiCorp cannot predict the outcome of these requests at this time. 



In 2002 and 2003, the EPA proposed various changes to its New Source Review rules that clarify what constitutes routine 
repair, maintenance and replacement for purposes of triggering New Source Review requirements. These changes have been 
subject to legal challenge and, until such time as the legal challenges are resolved and the rules are effective, PacifiCorp will 
continue to manage projects at its generating plants in accordance with the rules in effect prior to 2002. In October 2005, 
the EPA proposed a rule that would change or clarify how emission increases are to be calculated for purposes of 
determining the applicability of the New Source Review permitting program for existing power plants. The impact of these 
proposed changes on PacifiCorp cannot be determined until after the rule is finalized and implemented. 

In February 2005, the Kyoto Protocol became effective, requiring 35 developed countries to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions by approximately 5.0% between 2008 and 2012. While the United States did not ratify the protocol, the 
ratification and implementation of its requirements in other countries has resulted in increased attention to climate change in 
the United States. In 2005, the United States Senate adopted a "sense of the Senate" resolution that puts the United States 
Senate on record that the United States Congress should enact a comprehensive and effective national program of 
mandatory, market-based limits and incentives on emissions of greenhouse gases that slow, stop, and reverse the growth of 
such emissions at a rate and in a manner that will not significantly harm the United States economy; and will encourage 
comparable action by other nations that are major trading partners and key contributors to global emissions. While debate 
continues at the national level over the direction of domestic climate policy, several states are developing state-specific or 
regional legislative initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. In December 2005, the states of Connecticut, Delaware, 
Maine, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York and Vermont signed a mandatory regional pact to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions that would become effective in 2009 and ultimately would require a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions of 
10.0% from 1990 levels. An executive order signed by California's governor in June 2005 would reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions in that state to 2000 levels by 2010, to 1990 levels by 2020 and 80.0% below 1990 levels by 2050. In addition, 
California is seeking to apply a greenhouse gas emission performance standard to all electricity generated within the state or 
delivered from outside the state that is no higher than the greenhouse gas emission levels of a state-of-the-art 
combined-cycle natural gas generation facility. 

Litigation was filed in the federal district court for the southern district of New York seeking to require reductions of carbon 
dioxide emissions from generating facilities of five large electric utilities. The court dismissed the public nuisance suit, 
holding that such critical issues affecting the United States such as greenhouse gas emissions reductions are not the donlain 
of the court and should be resolved by the Executive Branch and the United States Congress. This ruling has been appealed 
to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. The outcome of climate change litigation and federal and state initiatives cannot be 
determined at this time; however, adoption of stringent limits on greenhouse gas emissions could significantly impact 
PacifiCorp's fossil-fueled facilities and, therefore, its results of operations and cash flows. PacifiCorp includes a projected 
additional cost for carbon dioxide emissions in its Integrated Resource Plans when evaluating proposed new resources. 

The EPA's regulation of certain pollutants under the Clean Air Act, and its failure to regulate other pollutants, is being 
challenged by various lawsuits brought by both individual state attorney generals and environmental groups. To the extent 
that these actions may be successful in imposing additional andlor more stringent regulation of emissions on fossil-fueled 
facilities in general and PacifiCorp's facilities in particular, such actions could significantly impact PacifiCorp's fossil- 
fueled facilities and, therefore, its results of operations and cash flows. 

Water Quality 

The federal Clean Water Act and individual state clean-water regulations require a permit for the discharge of wastewater, 
including storm water runoff from electricity plants and coal storage areas, into surface water and groundwater. 
Additionally, PacifiCorp believes that it currently has, or has initiated the process to receive, all required water quality 
permits. 



Endangered Species 

The federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 and similar state statutes protect species threatened with possible extinction. 
Protection of the habitat of endangered and threatened species makes it difficult and more costly to perform some of 
PacifiCorp's core activities, including the siting, construction and operation of new and existing transmission and 
distribution facilities, as well as thermal, hydroelectric and wind generation plants. In addition, issues affecting endangered 
species can impact the relicensing of existing hydroelectric generating projects. This can generally reduce the generating 
output and operational flexibility, and potentially increase the costs of operation, of PacifiCorp's own hydroelectric 
resources, as well as raise the price PacifiCorp pays to purchase wholesale electricity from hydroelectric facilities owned by 
others. 

Environmental Cleanups 

Under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act and similar state statutes, entities that dispose of, or arrange for the disposal of, hazardous materials may be 
liable for cleanup of the contaminated property. In addition, the current or former owners or operators of affected sites may 
be liable. PacifiCorp has been identified as a potentially responsible party in connection with a number of cleanup sites 
because of its current or past ownership or operation of certain properties or because PacifiCorp sent materials deemed to be 
hazardous to the property in the past. PacifiCorp has completed several cleanup actions and is actively participating in 
investigations and remediation actions at other sites. See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -Note 6 - 
Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs" for further discussion. 

Mine Reclamation 

The federal Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 and similar state statutes establish operational, 
reclamation and closure standards that must be met during and upon completion of mining activities. These obligations 
mandate that mine property be restored consistent with specific standards and the approved reclamation plan. PacifiCorp's 
mining operations are subject to these reclamation and closure requirements. Significant expenditures are being incurred for 
both ongoing and final reclamation. For further discussion, see "Item 2. Properties" and "Item 8. Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data - Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs." 

REGULATION 

PacifiCorp conducts its business in conformance with a multitude of federal and state laws. PacifiCorp is also subject to the 
jurisdiction of public utility regulatory authorities in each of the states in which it conducts retail electric operations. These 
authorities regulate various matters, including customer rates, services, accounting policies and practices, allocation of costs 
by state, issuances of securities and other matters. In addition, PacifiCorp is a "licensee" and a "public utility" as those 
terms are used in the Federal Power Act and is therefore subject to regulation by the FERC as to accounting policies and 
practices, certain prices and other matters, including the terms and conditions of transmission service. Most of PacifiCorp's 
hydroelectric plants are licensed by the FERC as major projects under the Federal Power Act, and certain of these projects 
are licensed under the Oregon Hydroelectric Act. 

Federal Regulatory Matters 

After several years of active consideration, in July 2005 the United States Congress approved legislation making significant 
changes in federal energy policy. The Energy Policy Act of 2005, enacted in August 2005, repealed the Public Utility 
Holding Company Act of 1935 and transferred regulatory oversight of public utility holding companies from the SEC to the 
FERC. The Energy Policy Act of 2005 also contains provisions to encourage investment in renewable and lower-emission 
coal generation, provides financial incentives and removes regulatory barriers for developers of new electric transmission 
facilities, establishes a process for the creation and enforcement of mandatory electric reliability standards, and authorizes 
license applicants and other parties to seek less costly and more efficient conditions imposed on federal hydroelectric power 
licenses. 

See "Item 8. Financial Statements -Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies" which is incorporated by reference into 
this Item 1. 



Several of PacifiCorp's hydroelectric plants are in some stage of the relicensing process with the FERC. PacifiCorp also has 
requested the FERC to allow decommissioning of four hydroelectric plants. The following summarizes the status of certain 
of these projects. 

Hvdroelectric Relicensing 
Klamath hvdroelectric project - (Klamath River, Oregon and California) 
In February 2004, PacifiCorp filed with the FERC a final application for a new license to operate the 161.4-MW Klamath 
hydroelectric project. The FERC is scheduled to complete its required analysis by January 2007. The United States 
Departments of Interior and Commerce filed proposed licensing terms and conditions with the FERC in March 2006; 
PacifiCorp filed alternatives to the federal agencies' proposal and challenges to its factual assumptions in April 2006. 
PacifiCorp continues to participate in the mediated settlement discussions with state and federal agencies, Native American 
tribes and other stakeholders in an effort to reach a comprehensive agreement on project relicensing. 

Lewis River hvdroelectric projects - (Lewis River, Washington) 
PacifiCorp filed new license applications for the 136.0-MW Merwin and 240.0-MW Swift No. 1 hydroelectric projects in 
April 2004. An application for a new license for the 134.0-MW Yale hydroelectric project was filed with the FERC in April 
1999. However, consideration of the Yale application was delayed pending filing of the Menvin and Swift No. 1 
applications so that the FERC could complete a comprehensive environmental analysis. 

In November 2004, PacifiCorp executed a comprehensive settlement agreement with 25 other parties including state and 
federal agencies, Native American tribes, conservation groups, and local government and citizen groups to resolve, among 
the parties, issues related to the pending applications for new licenses for PacifiCorp's Merwin, Swift No. 1 and Yale 
hydroelectric projects. As part of this settlement agreement, PacifiCorp has agreed to implement certain protection, 
mitigation and enhancement measures prior to and during a proposed 50-year license period. However, these commitments 
are contingent on ultimately receiving a license from the FERC that is consistent with the settlement agreement and other 
required pennits. Other required pennits include biological opinions and a water quality certification. At the earliest, the 
FERC is expected to make a final decision in August 2006. 

North Untpqua hvdroelectric project - (North Umpqua River, Oregon) 
In October 2005, the new FERC license for the 136.5-MW North Umpqua hydroelectric project became final under the 
terms of the North Umpqua Settlement Agreement. Prior to this date, the license had been effective, but not final, because 
environmental groups had challenged its legality before the FERC and in federal court. In September 2005, the Ninth 
Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order upholding the new license. Since the Ninth Circuit Court's order was not appealed 
within the allowed time, all legal challenges of the FERC license order have been exhausted and the license is final for 
purposes of recording liabilities. PacifiCorp is committed, over the 35-year life of the license, to fund approximately $48.4 
million for environmental mitigation and enhancement projects. As a result of the license becoming final, PacifiCorp 
recorded additional liabilities and intangible assets in October 2005 amounting to a present value of $1 1.2 million. At 
March 31, 2006, the liability recorded for all North Umpqua obligations amounted to a present value of $21.8 million. 

Prospect hvdroelectric project - (Rogue River, Oregon) 
In June 2003, PacifiCorp submitted a final license application to the FERC for the Prospect Nos. 1 , 2  and 4 hydroelectric 
projects, which total 36.8 MW. The FERC is expected to complete its required analysis and issue a new license before the 
end of October 2006. 

Hydroelectric Decommissioninp 
Condit hvdroelectric project - (White Salmon River, Washington) 

In September 1999, a settlement agreement to remove the 9.6-MW Condit hydroelectric project was signed by PacifiCorp, 
state and federal agencies and non-governmental agencies. Under the original settlement agreement, removal was expected 
to begin in October 2006, for a total cost to decommission not to exceed $17.2 million, excluding inflation. In early 
February 2005, the parties agreed to modi@ the settlement agreement so that removal will not begin until October 2008 for 
a total cost to decommission not to exceed $20.5 million, excluding inflation. The settlement agreement is contingent upon 
receiving an amended FERC license and removal order that is not materially inconsistent with the amended settlement 
agreement and other regulatory approvals. PacifiCorp is in the process of acquiring all necessary permits, within the terms 
and conditions of the amended settlement agreement. 



State Regulatory Actions 

PacifiCorp is currently pursuing a regulatory program in all states, with the objective of keeping rates closely aligned to 
ongoing costs. A component of the regulatory program is the filing of Power Cost Adjustment Mechanisms ("PCAM"). 
PCAMs deal with changes in power costs occurring between rate cases. Power costs above or below the amounts built into 
rates are recovered from or returned to customers according to the provisions in the specific PCAM. The following 
discussion provides a state-by-state update. 

Utah 

In March 2006, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case with the UPSC related to increased investments in Utah due to growing 
demand for electricity. PacifiCorp is seeking an increase of $197.2 million annually, or 17.1%. If approved by the UPSC, 
the increase would take effect in December 2006. In April 2006, PacifiCorp filed a revised case reflecting the effects of 
PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC. The revised case reduced the original increase requested from $197.2 million to $194.1 million. 
The active parties in the case have stipulated to a new schedule in the rate case which allows completion of preliminary 
audits and an opportunity for settlement discussions prior to the hearings set in July 2006 to determine the proper test year. 
In November 2005, PacifiCorp filed a PCAM application. The Utah Industrial Energy Consumer Group has filed a motion 
to dismiss the PCAM application based on lack of delegated legislative authority. PacifiCorp does not believe the motion 
has merit and will oppose the motion in its reply due June 9,2006. The PCAM proceeding is running concurrently with the 
March 2006 general rate case. 

Oregon 

In April 2006, long-term special contracts for PacifiCorp's Klamath basin irrigation customers expired. Under the contracts, 
customers received power at rates less than PacifiCorp's average retail rates charged to other customers on general 
irrigation tariffs. Following expiration of these contracts, the OPUC issued an order authorizing the transition of Klamath 
basin irrigators to generally applicable cost-based rates. 

In February 2006, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case request with the OPUC for approximately $1 12.0 million, which 
represents a 13.2% overall increase. The request is related to investments in generation, transmission and distribution 
infrastructure and increases in fuel and general operating expenses, including the maintenance of low-cost but aging power 
plants. A procedural schedule has been established with a decision from the OPUC expected by December 2006. 

In September 2005, Oregon's governor signed into law Senate Bill 408. This legislation is intended to address differences 
between income taxes collected by Oregon public utilities in retail rates and actual taxes paid by the utilities or consolidated 
groups in which utilities are included for income tax reporting purposes. This legislation authorizes an automatic adjustment 
to rates based on the taxes paid to governmental entities on or after January 1, 2006. The OPUC adopted a temporary rule in 
September 2005 to establish filing requirements for an annual tax report mandated by Senate Bill 408. The definitions 
adopted in the temporary rule would allocate a share of individual taxable losses of affiliate companies to the utility even 
when the consolidated tax group pays more taxes than the utility collects in retail rates. The temporary rule expired in 
March 2006. PacifiCorp is actively participating in the rulemaking process for adopting permanent rules required by Senate 
Bill 408. 

In September 2005, the OPUC issued an order granting a general rate increase of S25.9 million, or an average increase of 
3.2%, effective October 2005. PacifiCorp filed its general rate case in November 2004, and following four partial 
stipulations with participating parties, PacifiCorp's requested revenue requirement increase was $52.5 million. The OPUC's 
order reduced PacifiCorp's revenue requirement by $26.6 million based on the OPUC's interpretation of Senate Bill 408. In 
October 2005, PacifiCorp filed with the OPUC a motion for reconsideration and rehearing of the rate order generally on the 
basis that the tax adjustment was not made in colnpliance with applicable law. With the motion, PacifiCorp also filed a 
deferred accounting application with the OPUC to track revenues related to the disallowed tax expenses. The OPUC granted 
PacifiCorp's motion for reconsideration and rehearing in December 2005 and is reconsidering whether Oregon Senate 
Bill 408 applies to the general rate case and, if it does, whether the tax adjustment ordered by the OPUC results in rates that 
are unconstitutional. A hearing and submissions of written briefs are scheduled to occur through May 2006. A decision is 
expected by summer 2006. 

PacifiCorp filed an application in February 2005 for deferral of higher power costs incurred in calendar 2005 due to 
continuing poor hydroelectric conditions. PacifiCorp sought deferral of these costs to track for future recovery in rates. In 



May 2005, this deferral application was suspended to allow parties to focus on a PCAM application filed by PacifiCorp in 
April 2005. Briefing in the PCAM proceeding was completed in January 2006 and a comlnission order is pending. In May 
2006, the PCAM proceeding was stayed for 60 days at PacifiCorp's request. 

Wyoming 

In March 2006, the WPSC approved an agreement that settled the general rate case filed by PacifiCorp in October 2005 and 
a separate request filed by PacifiCorp in December 2005 to recover increased costs of net wholesale purchased power used 
to serve Wyoming customers. The agreement provides for an annual rate increase of $15.0 million effective March 1, 2006, 
an additional annual rate increase of $10.0 million effective July 1, 2006, a PCAM and an agreement by the parties to 
support a forecast test year in the next general rate case application. 

Washington 

In May 2005, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case request with the WUTC for approximately $39.2 million annually. 
Hearings took place in January and February 2006 and this amount was reduced to approximately $30.0 million. As part of 
the general rate case, PacifiCorp was also seeking to recover $8.3 million in hydroelectric costs and was proposing that 
future hydroelectric and power cost volatility be recovered through a PCAM that was proposed as part of the general rate 
case. In April 2006, the WUTC issued an order denying PacifiCorp's request to increase retail rates. The WUTC 
determined that application of PacifiCorp's cost allocation methodology failed to satisfy the statutory requirements that 
resources must benefit Washington ratepayers. 

In April 2006, PacifiCorp filed a petition for reconsideration of the order and requested an increase of not less than $1 1.0 
million. PacifiCorp also filed a limited rate request seeking a rate increase of approximately $7.0 million, which represents a 
2.99% increase in rates. PacifiCorp has requested that these dockets be consolidated so that the requested increase of not 
less than $1 1.0 million can be achieved. 

Idaho 

In February 2006, PacifiCorp filed a notice of intent to file a general rate case with the IPUC. A general rate case may be 
filed between 60 and 120 days after filing such a notice. Negotiations with certain Idaho customers are ongoing and the 
successful conclusion of such negotiations may preclude the need for a rate case filing. If filed, the rate case will seek a rate 
increase in Idaho to be effective beginning January 2007. 

In July 2005, the IPUC issued an order approving a settlement of PacifiCorp's general rate case filed in January 2005 and 
granting a stipulated rate increase of $5.8 million, or an average increase of 4.8%, effective September 16, 2005. On that 
date, unrelated pre-existing surcharges expired, so the net effect to customers of the $5.8 million base increase was an 
increase in rates of $2.1 million annually, or an average increase of 1.7%. 

California 

In April 2006, long-term special contracts for PacifiCorp's Klamath basin irrigation customers expired. Under the contracts, 
customers received power at rates less than PacifiCorp's average retail rates charged to other customers on general 
irrigation tariffs. Following expiration of these contracts, the CPUC approved a joint proposal for a transition to 
standard tariff pricing. 

In November 2005, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case with the CPUC for an increase of S1l.O million annually, or an 
average increase of 15.6% related to increasing costs, including power costs and operating expenses, as well as significant 
needed capital investments. PacifiCorp's application also requests the implementation of an Energy Cost Adjustment Clause 
("ECAC"), which like a PCAM allows for annual rate adjustments for changes in the level of net power costs, and a Post 
Test-Year Adjustment Mechanism ("PTAM"), which would allow annual rate adjustments for changes in operating costs 
and plant additions. These proposed adjustment mechanisms would operate outside the context of traditional general rate 
cases. In May 2006, PacifiCorp filed an update to this general rate case to account for the Klamath basin irrigation 
customers' transition plan and to update the filing for the expected cost savings as a result of the acquisition of PacifiCorp 
by MEHC. This updated filing resulted in a net requested average increase of $12.8 million annually, or 18.9% for 
California customers. 



ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 

The following are certain risks and other factors to be considered when evaluating PacifiCorp. See "Item 7A. Quantitative 
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a discussion of additional important risks and other factors. 

PaczjiCorp is engaged in several large construction or expansion projects, the completion and expected cost of which is 
subject to significant risk, and PacifiCorp has significant funding needs related to its planned capital expenditures. 

PacifiCorp is engaged in several large constmction or expansion projects, including construction of a new generating 
facility, the Lake Side Power Plant, in Utah and various capital projects related to transmission and distribution. In addition, 
in connection with PacifiCorp's acquisition by MEHC, MEHC and PacifiCorp have committed to undertake several other 
capital expenditure projects, principally relating to environmental controls, transmission and distribution, renewable 
generating and other facilities. PacifiCorp expects to incur substantial construction, expansion and other capital expenditure 
costs over the next several years, including the recent regulatory commitments previously discussed. PacifiCorp depends 
upon both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund capital requirements. If these 
funds are not available and/or if MEHC does not elect to provide any needed funding to PacifiCorp, PacifiCorp may need to 
postpone or cancel planned capital expenditures. 

The completion of any or all of PacifiCorp's pending, proposed or future construction or expansion projects is subject to 
substantial risk and may expose PacifiCorp to significant costs. PacifiCorp's development or construction efforts on any 
particular project, or its capital expenditure program generally, may not be successful. If PacifiCorp is unable to complete 
the development or construction of any capital project, or if it decides to delay or cancel a project, it may not be able to 
recover its investment in that project. 

Also, a proposed expansion or new project may cost more than planned to complete, and any excess costs, if related to a 
regulated asset and found to be imprudent, may not be recoverable in rates. The inability to successfUlly and timely 
complete a project or avoid unexpected costs may require PacifiCorp to perform under guarantees, and the inability to avoid 
unsuccessful projects or to recover any excess costs may materially affect PacifiCorp's cash flows and results of operations. 

PaczjiCorp is subject to certain operating uncertainties which may adversely affect itsfinancialposition, results of 
operations and cash flows. 

The operation of complex electric utility systems (including transmission and distribution) and power generating facilities 
that are spread over a large geographic area involves many risks associated with operating uncertainties and events beyond 
PacifiCorp's control. These risks include the breakdown or failure of power generation equipment, transmission and 
distribution lines or other equipment or processes, unscheduled plant outages, work stoppages, transmission and distribution 
system constraints or outages, fuel shortages or interruptions, performance below expected levels of output, capacity or 
efficiency, the effects of changing government regulation, operator error and catastrophic events such as severe storms, 
fires, earthquakes, explosions or mining accidents. A casualty occurrence might result in injury or loss of life, extensive 
property damage or environmental damage. The realization of any of these risks could significantly reduce PacifiCorp's 
revenues or significantly increase its expenses, thereby adversely affecting results of operations. For example, if PacifiCorp 
cannot operate generation facilities at full capacity due to restrictions imposed by environmental regulations, its revenues 
could decrease due to decreased wholesale sales and its expenses could increase due to the need to obtain energy from 
higher-cost sources. Any reduction of revenues or increase in expenses resulting from the risks described above could 
decrease PacifiCorp's cash flows and weaken its financial position. 

Furthermore, PacifiCorp's current and future insurance coverage may not be sufficient to replace lost revenues or cover 
repair and replacement costs, especially in light of recent catastrophic events affecting the insurance markets that make it 
more difficult or costly to obtain certain types of insurance. 

Acts of sabotage and terrorism aimed at PacifiCorp's facilities, the facilities of its fuel suppliers or customers, or at 
regional transmission facilities could adversely affect PacifiCorp's business. 

Since the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks, the United States government has issued warnings that energy assets, 
specifically the nation's pipeline and electric utility infrastructure, may be the future targets of terrorist organizations. These 
developments have subjected PacifiCorp's operations to increased risks. Damage to PacifiCorp's assets, the assets of 
PacifiCorp's fuel suppliers or customers, or to regional transmission facilities inflicted by terrorist groups or saboteurs could 



result in a significant decrease in revenues and significant repair costs, force PacifiCorp to increase security measures, cause 
changes in the insurance markets and cause disruptions of fuel supplies, energy consumption and markets, particularly with 
respect to natural gas and electric energy. Any of these consequences of acts of terrorism could materially affect 
PacifiCorp's results of operations and cash flows. Instability in the financial markets as a result of terrorism or war could 
also materially adversely affect PacifiCorp's ability to raise capital. 

Recovery of costs by PacifiCorp is subject to regulatory review and approval, and the inability to recover costs may 
adversely affect PacifiCorp 's revenues and cash flows. 

PacifiCorp is subject to the jurisdiction of federal and state regulatory authorities. The FERC establishes tariffs under which 
PacifiCorp provides transmission service to the wholesale market and the retail market (in states allowing retail 
competition). The FERC also establishes both cost-based and market-based tariffs under which PacifiCorp sells electricity 
at wholesale and has licensing authority over most of PacifiCorp's hydroelectric generation facilities. In addition, the utility 
regulatory commissions in each state served by PacifiCorp independently determine the rates that PacifiCorp may charge its 
retail customers in those states. 

Each state's rate-setting process is based upon the state utility commission's acceptance of an allocated share of 
PacifiCorp's total utility costs for its entire retail service territory. When different states adopt different methods to address 
this cost allocation issue, some costs may not be incorporated into rates in any state. Rate-making is also generally done on 
the basis of estimates of normalized costs, so if in a specific year realized costs are higher than normal, rates will not be 
sufficient to cover those costs. Each state utility commission generally sets rates based on a test year established according 
to that commission's policies. Certain states use a future test year or allow for escalation of historical costs. In the states in 
which PacifiCorp operates that use a historical test year, rate adjustments could lag cost increases, or decreases, by up to 
two years. This regulatory lag causes PacifiCorp to incur costs, including significant new investments, for which recovery 
through rates is delayed. In addition, each state commission decides what percentage return a utility will be permitted to 
earn on its equity. Each commission also decides what level of expense and investment is necessary, reasonable and prudent 
in providing service and may disallow and deny recovery in rates for any costs that do not meet this standard. For these 
reasons, as well as others (such as recently enacted legislation and the outcome of the recent rate order in Oregon limiting or 
denying the ability of a utility to recover tax expenses in rates), the rates authorized by the state regulators may not be 
sufficient to cover costs incurred to provide electrical services in any given period. 

PacifiCorp is subject to energy regulation, legislation andpolitical risks, and changes in regulations and rates or 
legislative developinents may adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

PacifiCorp is subject to comprehensive governmental regulation, including regulation by various federal, state and local 
regulatory agencies, which significantly influences PacifiCorp's operating environment, the prices it is allowed to charge 
customers, its capital structure, its costs and its ability to recover costs from customers. These regulatory agencies include 
the FERC, the EPA, and the public utility commissions in Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California. 

PacifiCorp also conducts its businesses in conformance with a multitude of federal, state and local laws, which are subject 
to significant changes at any time. Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations by any of these 
regulatory entities, as well as new legislation, could have a material adverse impact on PacifiCorp's results of operations. 
For example, such changes could result in increased retail competition in PacifiCorp's service territory, changes to the 
hydroelectric relicensing process under the Federal Power Act, encouragement of investments in renewable or lower- 
emission generation, the acquisition by a municipality or other quasi-governmental body of PacifiCorp's distribution 
facilities (by negotiation, legislation or condemnation or by a vote in favor of a Public Utility District under Oregon law), or 
a negative impact on PacifiCorp's current cost recovery arrangements. As another example, PacifiCorp could be adversely 
affected by Senate Bill 408, which was recently enacted in Oregon. That legislation, and the outcome of a recent rate case, 
which is currently under formal reconsideration, resulted in a reduction by the OPUC in the rates that PacifiCorp is 
currently permitted to charge to its Oregon customers, and in the future may limit the ability of PacifiCorp and other public 
utilities to recover future federal and state income tax expenses in Oregon retail rates. Unless Senate Bill 408 is amended, 
modified or repealed, or the pending rehearing of the rate case is resolved, in a manner satisfactory to PacifiCorp, such 
legislation and rules could have a material adverse effect upon PacifiCorp's results of operations and cash flows. 



Several of PacifiCorp's hydroelectric projects are in some stage of the FERC relicensing process under the Federal Power 
Act, as several of PacifiCorp's long-term operating licenses have expired or will expire in the next few years. The 
relicensing process is a political and public regulatory process that involves sensitive resource issues and uncertainties. 
PacifiCorp cannot predict with certainty the requirements that may be imposed during the relicensing process, the economic 
impact of those requirements, whether new licenses will ultimately be issued or whether PacifiCorp will be willing to meet 
the relicensing requirements to continue operating its hydroelectric projects. Loss of hydroelectric resources or additional 
commitments arising from the relicensing process could increase PacifiCorp's operating costs or result in large capital 
expenditures that reduce earnings and cash flows. 

In August 2005, the Energy Policy Act of 2005 was signed into law. That law potentially impacts many segments of the 
energy industry. The law directed the FERC to issue new regulations and regulatory decisions in areas such as electric 
system reliability, electric transmission expansion and pricing, regulation of utility holding companies, and enforcement 
authority. While the FERC has now issued rules and decisions on multiple aspects of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, the full 
impact of those decisions remains uncertain. As a result of past events affecting electric reliability, the Energy Policy Act of 
2005 requires federal agencies, working together with non-governmental organizations charged with electric reliability 
responsibilities, to adopt and implement measures designed to ensure the reliability of electric transmission and distribution 
systems. The implementation of such measures could result in the imposition of more comprehensive or stringent 
requirements on PacifiCorp or other industry participants, which would result in increased compliance costs and could have 
a material adverse effect on PacifiCorp's business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Paci>Corp is subject to market risk, counterparty perforilrance risk and other risks associated with wholesale energy 
markets. 

In general, market risk is the risk of adverse fluctuations in the market price of wholesale electricity and fuel, including 
natural gas and coal, which is compounded by energy volume changes affecting the availability of and/or demand for 
electricity and fuel. PacifiCorp purchases electricity and fuel in the open market or pursuant to short-term or variable-priced 
contracts as part of its normal operating business. If market prices rise, especially in a time when PacifiCorp requires larger 
than expected volumes that must be purchased at market or short-term prices, PacifiCorp may have significantly greater 
costs than anticipated. In addition, it may not be able to timely recover all, if any, of those increased costs through 
rate-making, due to retroactive rate-making prohibitions, unless deferred accounting or power cost recovery mechanisms 
have been previously authorized. Likewise, if electricity market prices drop in a period when PacifiCorp is a net seller of 
electricity in the wholesale market, PacifiCorp will earn less revenue, possibly to the extent of not recovering the cost of 
generating the electricity. Wholesale electricity prices are influenced primarily by factors throughout the western United 
States relating to supply and demand. Those factors include the adequacy of generating capacity, scheduled and 
unscheduled outages of generating facilities, hydroelectric generation levels, prices and availability of fuel sources for 
generation, disruptions or constraints to transmission facilities, weather conditions, economic growth, and changes in 
technology. Energy volume changes are caused by unanticipated changes in generation availability and/or changes in 
customer demand for power due to the weather, the economy and customer behavior. Although PacifiCorp plans for 
resources to meet its current and expected power delivery obligations, its power costs may be adversely impacted by market 
risk. 

PacifiCorp is also exposed to risk related to performance of contractual obligations by its wholesale suppliers and 
customers. PacifiCorp relies on suppliers to deliver natural gas, coal and electricity in accordance with short- and long-term 
contracts. Failure or delay by suppliers to provide natural gas, coal or electricity pursuant to existing contracts could disrupt 
PacifiCorp's ability to deliver electricity and require it to incur additional expenses to meet the needs of its customers. In 
addition, as these contractual agreements end, PacifiCorp may not be able to continue to purchase natural gas, coal or 
electricity on terms equivalent to the terms of current contractual agreements. PacifiCorp relies on wholesale customers to 
take delivery of the energy they have committed to purchase and to pay for the energy on a timely basis. Failure of 
customers to take delivery may require PacifiCorp to find other customers to take the energy at lower prices than the 
original customers committed to pay. At certain times of year, prices paid by PacifiCorp for energy needed to satisfy its 
customers' demand for power may exceed the amounts PacifiCorp receives through retail rates from these customers. If the 
strategy PacifiCorp uses to economically hedge the exposure to these risks is ineffective, it could incur significant losses. 



Weather corzditions can adversely affect PacifiCorp's operating results. 

Although PacifiCorp's service territory has historically experienced complementary seasonal customer power demand 
patterns as a result of the geographically diverse area of its operations, weather conditions can significantly affect operating 
results. For residential customers, within a given year, weather conditions are the dominant cause of usage variations from 
normal seasonal patterns. For example, in periods of unusually hot summer weather, residential customers tend to use 
significantly greater amounts of electricity to run air conditioners, which may substantially increase summer peak power 
demand. Changes in weather conditions and other natural events also impact customer behavior and power demand. 
Additionally, a portion of PacifiCorp's supply of electricity comes from hydroelectric projects that are dependent upon 
rainfall and snowpack. During or following periods of low rainfall or snowpack, PacifiCorp may obtain substantially less 
electricity from hydroelectric projects and must purchase greater amounts of electricity from the wholesale market or from 
other sources at market prices. Accordingly, variations in weather conditions can adversely affect PacifiCorp's results of 
operations through lower revenues and/or increased energy costs. 

PacijCorp is subject to environmental, health, safety and other laws and regulations that may adversely impact its 
business. 

PacifiCorp is subject to a number of environmental, health, safety and other laws and regulations affecting many aspects of 
its present and future operations, including air emissions, water quality, endangered species, wastewater discharges, solid 
wastes, hazardous substances and safety matters. PacifiCorp may incur substantial costs and liabilities in connection with its 
operations as a result of these laws and regulations. In particular, the cost of future compliance with federal, state and local 
clean air laws, such as those that relate to addressing regional haze issues and those that require certain generators, 
including some of PacifiCorp's electric generating facilities, to limit emissions of nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide, carbon 
dioxide, mercury and other potential pollutants or emissions, may require PacifiCorp to make significant capital 
expenditures that may not be recoverable through fbture rates. In addition, these costs and liabilities may include those 
relating to claims for damages to property and persons resulting from PacifiCorp's operations. Regulatory changes, 
including new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, imposing more comprehensive or stringent requirements on 
PacifiCorp, to the extent such changes would result in increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions, could 
have a material adverse effect on PacifiCorp's business, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Furthermore, regulatory compliance for existing facilities and the construction of new facilities is a costly and 
time-consuming process, and intricate and rapidly changing environmental regulations may require major expenditures for 
permitting and create the risk of expensive delays or material impairment of value if projects cannot function as planned due 
to changing regulatory requirements or local opposition. 

In addition to operational standards, environmental laws also impose obligations to clean up or remediate contaminated 
properties or to pay for the cost of such remediation, often upon parties that did not actually cause the contamination. 
Accordingly, PacifiCorp may become liable, either contractually or by operation of law, for remediation costs even if the 
contaminated property is not presently owned or operated by it, or if the contamination was caused by third parties during or 
prior to its ownership or operation of the property. Given the nature of the past industrial operations conducted by 
PacifiCorp and others at its properties, all potential instances of soil or groundwater contamination may not have been 
identified, even for those properties where an environmental site assessment or other investigation has been conducted. 
Although PacifiCorp has accrued reserves for its known remediation liabilities, future events, such as changes in existing 
laws or policies or their enforcement, or the discovery of currently unknown contamination, may give rise to additional 
remediation liabilities which may be material. Any failure to recover increased environmental, health or safety costs 
incurred by PacifiCorp may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows. 

Poor performance ofpension plan investments and other factors impacting pension plan costs could unfavorably impact 
PaciJiCorp 's liquidity and results of operations. 

PacifiCorp's costs of providing non-contributory defined benefit pension plans depend upon a number of factors, including 
the rates of return on plan assets, discount rates, the level of interest rates used to measure the required minimum funding 
levels of the plans, future government regulation and PacifiCorp's required or voluntary contributions made to the plans. 
While PacifiCorp co~nplies with the minimum funding requirements under federal law, as of March 3 1, 2006 its projected 
benefit obligations, which include the impact of expected future compensation increases, exceeded the value of plan assets 
by approximately $ 5  13.6 million, including contributions made between the December 3 1, 2005 measurement date and 



March 3 1, 2006. Without sustained growth in the pension investments over time to increase the value of its pension plan 
assets, and depending upon the other factors described above, PacifiCorp could be required to fund its pension plans with 
significant amounts of cash. Such cash funding obligations, as well as the impact of the other factors described above, could 
have a material impact on PacifiCorp's liquidity by reducing its cash flows and could negatively affect its results of 
operations. 

A downgrade in PacifiCorp's credit ratings could negatively affect its ability to access capital and its ability to 
economically hedge in wholesale markets. 

Changes in PacifiCorp's financial performance, capital structure, the regulatory environment in which it operates and other 
factors expose it to the risk of a credit ratings downgrade by Standard and Poor's or Moody's Investor Services, the 
principal ratings agencies that evaluate PacifiCorp's creditworthiness and that of its debt securities and preferred stock. 
Although PacifiCorp has no rating-downgrade triggers that would accelerate the maturity dates of its outstanding debt. A 
downgrade in its credit ratings could directly increase the interest rates and commitment fees on its revolving credit 
agreement. A ratings downgrade also may reduce the accessibility and increase the cost of PacifiCorp's commercial paper 
program, its principal source of short-term borrowing, and may result in the requirement that PacifiCorp post collateral 
under certain of its power purchase and other agreements. In addition, a credit ratings downgrade could allow 
counterparties in the wholesale electric, wholesale natural gas and energy derivatives markets to require PacifiCorp to post a 
letter of credit or other collateral, make cash prepayments, obtain a guarantee agreement or provide other mutually 
agreeable security. These consequences of a credit ratings downgrade could increase PacifiCorp's borrowing and operating 
costs. 

PacifiCorp has a substantial amount of debt, which could adversely affect its ability to obtain futurefinancing and limit 
its expenditures. 

As of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp had $4.1 billion in total debt securities outstanding. Its principal financing agreements 
contain restrictive covenants that limit its ability to borrow funds, and any issuance of debt securities requires prior 
authorization from multiple state regulatory commissions. PacifiCorp expects that it will need to supplement cash generated 
from operations and availability under committed credit facilities with new issuances of long-term debt. However, if market 
conditions are not favorable for the issuance of long-term debt, or if an issuance of long-term debt would exceed contractual 
or regulatory limits, PacifiCorp may postpone planned capital expenditures, or take other actions, to the extent those 
expenditures are not h l ly  covered by cash from operations or equity contributions from MEHC and not available under 
committed credit facilities. 

MEHC ntay exercise its significant influence over PacifiCorp in a manner that would benefit MEHC to the detriment of 
PaciJiCorp's creditors and preferred stockholders. 

MEHC, through its subsidiary, owns all of PacifiCorp's common stock and therefore has significant influence over its 
business and any matters submitted for shareholder approval. In circumstances involving a conflict of interest between 
MEHC and PacifiCorp's creditors and preferred stockholders, MEHC could exercise its influence in a manner that would 
benefit MEHC to the detriment of PacifiCorp's creditors and preferred stockholders. 

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

No information is required to be reported pursuant to this item. 



ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

PacifiCorp owns its principal properties in fee (except as indicated below), subject to defects and encumbrances that do not 
interfere materially with their use. Substantially all of PacifiCorp's electric utility properties are subject to the lien of 
PacifiCorp's Mortgage and Deed of Trust. See "Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules - Exhibit 4.1." PacifiCorp 
considers all of its properties to be well maintained, in good operating condition, and suitable for their intended purposes. 

PacifiCorp's corporate offices consist of approximately 900,000 square feet of owned and leased office space located in 
several buildings in Portland, Oregon, and Salt Lake City, Utah. PacifiCorp's corporate headquarters are in Portland, but 
there are several executives and departments located in Salt Lake City. In addition to the corporate headquarters, PacifiCorp 
owns and leases approximately 1.2 million square feet of field office and warehouse space in various other locations in 
Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California. The field location square footage does not include offices 
located at PacifiCorp's generating plants. 

Generation 

PacifiCorp owns, or has an interest in, various hydroelectric, thermal and wind generating plants. A generator's nameplate 
rating is its fill-load capacity (in megawatts) under normal operating conditions as defined by the manufacturer. The net 
capability is the maximum level a generator can operate at under specified conditions. The following table summarizes 
PacifiCorp's existing generating plants: 



Location Enerev Source 

HYDROELECTRIC PLANTS (a) 

Swift No. 1 (b) 

Menvin 

Yale 

Five North Umpqua Plants 

John C. Boyle 

Copco Nos. 1 and 2 Plants 

Cleanvater Nos. 1 and 2 Plants 

Grace 

Prospect No. 2 

Cutler 

Oneida 

Iron Gate 

Soda 

Fish Creek 

3 1 Minor Hydroelectric Plants (c) 

Cougar, WA 

Ariel, WA 

Amboy, WA 

Toketee Falls, OR 

Keno, OR 

Hombrook, CA 

Toketee Falls, OR 

Grace, ID 

Prospect, OR 

Collingston, UT 

Preston, ID 

Hornbrook, CA 

Soda Springs, ID 

Toketee Falls, OR 

Various 

Lewis River 

Lewis River 

Lewis River 

N. Umpqua River 

Klamath River 

Klamath River 

Cleanvater River 

Bear River 

Rogue River 

Bear River 

Bear River 

Klamath River 

Bear River 

Fish Creek 

Various 

Unit 
Installation 

Date(s) 
Nameplate 

Rating (MW) 

Plant Net 
Capability 

(MW) 

Subtotal (51 Hydroelectric Plants) 1,083.6 1,159.4 

THERMAL PLANTS 

Jim Bridger 

Huntington 

Dave Johnston 

Naughton 

Hunter Nos. 1 and 2 

Hunter No. 3 

Cholla No. 4 

Wyodak 

Carbon 

Craig Nos. 1 and 2 

Colstrip Nos. 3 and 4 

Hayden Nos. 1 and 2 

Currant Creek 

Hermiston 

Gadsby Steam 

Gadsby Peakers 

Little Mountain 

Camas Co-Gen 

Blundell (d) 

Rock Springs, WY 

Huntington, UT 

Glenrock, WY 

Kemmerer, WY 

Castle Dale, UT 

Castle Dale, UT 

Joseph City, AZ 

Gillette, WY 

Castle Gate, UT 

Craig, CO 

Colstrip, MT 

Hayden, CO 

Mona, UT 

Hermiston, OR 

Salt Lake City, UT 

Salt Lake City, UT 

Ogden, UT 

Camas, WA 

Milford, UT 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Coal-Fired 

Natural Gas-Fired 

Natural Gas-Fired 

Natural Gas-Fired 

Natural Gas-Fired 

Natural Gas-Fired 

Black Liquor 

Geothermal 

Subtotal (I7 Thermal Electric Plants) 7,934.6 7,278.4 

WIND PLANT 

Foote Creek Arlington, WY Wind Turbines 1998 32.6 * 32.6 * 

Subtotal (I Other Plant) 

Total Generating Plants (69) 

* Jointly owned plants; amount shown represents PacifiCorp's share only. 
(a) Hydroelectric project locations are stated by locality and river watershed. 
(b) On April 21. 2002, the Cowlitz County Public Utility District-owned Swift No. 2 power canal failed, impacting the 

operations of the PacifiCorp-onaed 240.0 MW Swift No. 1 hydroelectric facility. In June 2004, PacifiCorp and 
Cowlitz County Public Utility District, through an amendment to an existing power purchase agreement, agreed to a 



mechanism for settling all claims and terms of rebuilding. Reconstruction of the canal is nearing completion and the 
project began operating on an interim basis in the three months ended March 3 1, 2006. 

(c) PacifiCorp has negotiated settlement agreements with resource agencies and other interested parties to decommission 
the American Fork, Condit, Cove Development and Powerdale hydroelectric plants, which have a combined net 
capability of 16.6 MW. These settlement agreements have been filed with the FERC and are pending further 
regulatory action. 

(d) As a result of the settlement agreement between MEHC, the Utah Committee of Consumer Services ("CCS"), a state 
utility consumer advocate, and Utah Industrial Energy Consumers, MEHC contributed to PacifiCorp, at no cost, 
MEHC's indirect 100.0% ownership interest in Intermountain Geothermal Company, which controls 69.3% of the 
steam rights associated with the geothermal field serving PacifiCorp's Blundell Geothermal Plant in Utah. Therefore, 
Intermountain Geothennal Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of PacifiCorp in March 2006, subsequent to 
the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC. 

In May 2002, PacifiCorp entered into a 15-year operating lease for an electric generation facility with West Valley Leasing 
Company, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of ScottishPower. The Utah facility consists of five generation units with an 
aggregate nameplate rating of 217.0 MW and a net plant capability of 202.0 MW. PacifiCorp, at its sole option, may 
tenninate the lease, or purchase the facility, if written notice is provided to West Valley on or before December 1, 2006. If 
the termination option is exercised, the lease would end in May 2008. 

Transmission and Distribution 

PacifiCorp's generating facilities are interconnected through PacifiCorp's own transmission lines or by contract through the 
transmission lines of other transmission owners. Substantially all of PacifiCorp's generating plants and reservoirs are 
managed on a coordinated basis to obtain maximum load-carrying capability and efficiency. Portions of PacifiCorp's 
transmission and distribution systems are located: 

On property owned or leased by PacifiCorp; 

Under or over streets, alleys, highways and other public places, the public domain and national forests and state lands 
under franchises, easements or other rights that are generally subject to termination; 

Under or over private property as a result of easements obtained primarily from the record holder of title; or 

Under or over Native American reservations under grant of easement by the Secretary of Interior or lease by Native 
American tribes. 

It is possible that some of the easements, and the property over which the easements were granted, may have title defects or 
may be subject to mortgages or liens existing at the time the easements were acquired. 



At March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp owned, or participated in, an electric transmission and distribution system consisting of: 

Nominal 
Voltage 

(In kilovolts) 
Transmission Lines 

5 00 
345 
230 
161 
138 
115 
69 
5 7 
46 

Distribution Lines 
Less than 46 

Total 

Miles 

At March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp owned 908 substations. 

Mining 

PacifiCorp believes that the respective coal reserves available to the Craig, Huntington, Hunter and Jim Bridger Plants, 
together with coal available under both long-term and short-term contracts with external suppliers, will be substantially 
sufficient to provide these plants with he1 that meets the Clean Air Act standards for their current economically useful 
lives. Blending of PacifiCorp-owned and contracted coal, together with electricity plant technologies for controlling sulfur 
and other emissions, are utilized to meet the applicable standards. PacifiCorp-owned plants held sufficient sulhr dioxide 
emission allowances to comply with the EPA Title IV requirements during the compliance year. The sulfur content of the 
coal reserves ranges from 0.30% to 0.94%, and the British Thermal Units value per pound of the reserves ranges from 8,600 
to 12,400. 

Coal reserve estimates are subject to adjustment as a result of the development of additional engineering and geological 
data, new mining technology and changes in regulation and economic factors affecting the utilization of such reserves. 
Recoverable coal reserves at March 3 1, 2006, based on PacifiCorp's most recent engineering studies, were as follows: 

Recoverable Tons 
Location Plant Served Mining Method (in Millions) 

Craig, CO Craig Surface 48.0 (a) 
Huntington & Castle Dale, UT Huntington and Hunter Underground 61.1 (b) 

Rock Springs, WY Jim Bridger SurfaceiUnderground 139.2 (c) 

(a) These coal reserves are leased and mined by Trapper Mining, Inc., a Delaware non-stock corporation 
operated on a cooperative basis, in which PacifiCorp has an ownership interest of 21.4%. 

(b) These coal reserves are leased by PacifiCorp and mined by a wholly owned subsidiary of PacifiCorp. 
(c) These coal reserves are leased and mined by Bridger Coal Company, a joint venture between Pacific 

Minerals, Inc. ("PMI") and a subsidiary of Idaho Power Company. PMI, a subsidiary of PacifiCorp, has a 
two-thirds interest in the joint venture. The Bridger mine is in the process of conversion from surface 
operation to primarily underground operation, while currently continuing production at its surface operations. 

Recoverability by surface mining methods typically ranges from 90.0% to 95.0%. Recoverability by underground mining 
techniques ranges from 50.0% to 70.0%. Most of PacifiCorp's coal reserves are held pursuant to leases from the federal 
government through the Bureau of Land Management and from certain states and private parties. The leases generally have 



multi-year terms that may be renewed or extended and require payment of rents and royalties. In addition, federal and state 
regulations require that comprehensive environmental protection and reclamation standards be met during the course of 
mining operations and upon completion of mining activities. See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - 
Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs." 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

In October 2005, PacifiCorp was added as a defendant to a lawsuit originally filed in February 2005 in state district court in 
Salt Lake City, Utah by USA Power, LLC and its affiliated companies, USA Power Partners, LLC and Spring Canyon, LLC 
(collectively, "USA Power"), against Utah attorney Jody L. Williams and the law firm Holme, Roberts & Owen, LLP, who 
represent PacifiCorp on various matters from time to time. USA Power is the developer of a planned generation project in 
Mona, Utah called Spring Canyon, which PacifiCorp, as part of its resource procurement process, at one time considered as 
an alternative to the Currant Creek Power Plant. USA Power's complaint alleges that PacifiCorp misappropriated 
confidential proprietary information in violation of Utah's Uniform Trade Secrets Act and accuses PacifiCorp of breach of 
contract and related claims. USA Power seeks $250.0 million in damages, statutory doubling of damages for its trade 
secrets violation claim, punitive damages, costs and attorneys' fees. PacifiCorp believes it has a number of defenses and 
intends to vigorously oppose any claim of liability for the matters alleged by USA Power. Furthermore, PacifiCorp expects 
that the outcome of this proceeding will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of 
operations or liquidity. 

In October 2005, CCS filed a request for agency action with the UPSC. The request sought an order requiring PacifiCorp to 
return to Utah ratepayers certain monies collected in Utah rates for taxes, which the CCS alleges were improperly retained 
by PacifiCorp's parent company, PHI. The CCS has publicly announced it is seeking a rehnd of at least $50.0 million to 
Utah ratepayers. Following PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC in March 2006, the CCS, MEHC and intervening party Utah 
Industrial Energy Consumers filed with the UPSC an agreement settling the claims made by the CCS. In exchange for 
dismissal of the claims, MEHC agreed to contribute to PacifiCorp, at no cost, MEHC's 100.0% ownership interest in 
Intermountain Geothermal Company, which controls 69.3% of the steam rights associated with the geothermal field serving 
PacifiCorp's Blundell Geothermal Plant in Utah. The settlement agreement has been approved by the UPSC, which 
dismissed the CCS request. 

In May 2004, PacifiCorp was served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon by 
the Klamath Tribes of Oregon, individual Klamath Tribal members and the Klamath Claims Committee. The complaint 
generally alleges that PacifiCorp and its predecessors affected the Klamath Tribes' federal treaty rights to fish for salmon in 
the headwaters of the Klamath River in southern Oregon by building dams that blocked the passage of salmon upstream to 
the headwaters beginning in 19 1 1. In September 2004, the Klamath Tribes filed their first amended complaint adding claims 
of damage to their treaty rights to fish for sucker and steelhead in the headwaters of the Klamath River. The complaint seeks 
in excess of $1 .O billion in compensatory and punitive damages. In July 2005, the District Court dismissed the case and in 
September 2005 denied the Klamath Tribes' request to reconsider the dismissal. In October 2005, the Klamath Tribes 
appealed the District Court's decision to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals and briefing was completed in March 2006. 
Any final order will be subject to appeal. PacifiCorp believes the outcome of this proceeding will not have a material impact 
on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow. 

In April 2004, PacifiCorp filed a complaint with the federal district court in Wyoming challenging the WPSC decision made 
in March 2003 to deny recovery of the Hunter No. 1 replacement power costs and certain deferred excess net power costs. 
The complaint was filed on the grounds that the decision violates federal law by denying PacifiCorp recovery in retail rates 
of its wholesale electricity and transmission costs incurred to serve Wyoming customers. In February 2006, PacifiCorp and 
certain parties intervening in its then-pending Wyoming general rate case reached a settlement of the terms of PacifiCorp's 
general rate case request. PacifiCorp also agreed to dismiss its federal lawsuit challenging the WPSC decision. The case was 
dismissed in May 2006. 

In December 2004, a group of Utah customers filed a petition with the UPSC on behalf of themselves and other similarly 
situated customers seeking monetary compensation from PacifiCorp as a result of a severe winter storm in December 2003. 
This petition was substantially similar to an April 2004 petition that the UPSC resolved by consolidating customer requests 
with an ongoing regulatory winter stonn inquiry. In May 2006, PacifiCorp reached a stipulation with the petitioners that 
resolved all claims in consideration of system maintenance and vegetation management colnmitments and additional credits 
for customers. The stipulation was approved by the UPSC on May 22,2006. 



ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No information is required to be reported pursuant to this item. 

PART I1 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRGNT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY 
SECURITIES 

PacifiCorp is an indirect subsidiary of MEHC, which owns all shares of PacifiCorp's outstanding common stock. Therefore, 
there is no public market for PacifiCorp's common stock. Dividend information required by this item is included in "Item 8. 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Quarterly Financial Data." 

The state regulatory orders that authorized the acquisition by MEHC contain restrictions on PacifiCorp's ability to pay 
dividends to the extent that they would reduce PacifiCorp's common stock equity below specified percentages of defined 
capitalization. 

As of March 3 1, 2006, the most restrictive of these commitments prohibits PacifiCorp from making any distribution to PPW 
Holdings LLC or MEHC without prior state regulatory approval to the extent that it would reduce PacifiCorp's common 
stock equity below 48.25% of its total capitalization, excluding short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt. 
After December 3 1,2008, this minimum level of common equity declines annually to 44.0% after December 31, 201 1. The 
terms of this commitment treat 50.0% of PacifiCorp's preferred stock outstanding prior to the acquisition of PacifiCorp by 
MEHC as common equity. As of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp's actual common stock equity percentage, as calculated under 
this measure, exceeded the minimum threshold. 

In addition, PacifiCorp is restricted from making any distributions to PPW Holdings LLC or MEHC if PacifiCorp's 
unsecured debt rating is BBB- or lower by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or Fitch Ratings or Baa3 or lower by 
Moody's Investor Service, as indicated by two of the three rating services. As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp's unsecured 
debt rating was BBB+ by Standard & Poor's Rating Services and Fitch Ratings and Baal by Moody's Investor Service. 

PacifiCorp does not presently anticipate that it will declare dividends on common stock during the 12 months ending March 
3 1, 2007. 

PacifiCorp is also subject to maximum debt-to-total capitalization ratios under various debt agreements. For further 
discussion, see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - 
Liquidity and Capital Resources." 



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited) 

(Millions of dollars, except pel 

share and employee amounts) 

Revenues: 

Electric Operations 

Australian Operations 

Years Ended March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Other Operations (a) 12.6 

Total 

Income (loss) from operations: 

Electric Operations 

Australian Operations 

Other Operations (a) 15.0 

Total 

Net income 

Earnings on common stock: 

Continuing operations 

Electric Operations 

Australian Operations 

Other Operations (a) 20.5 

Total 

Discontinued operations (b) 

Cumulative effect of 
accounting change (c) (d) (e) 

Total earnings on common stock 

Common dividends declared per share $ 0.53 S 0.62 S 0.51 S $ 0.81 

Common dividends paid per share S 0.53 $ 0.62 S 0.51 S S 1 .OO 

At March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Capitalization: 

Short-term debt $ 184.4 S 468.8 S 124.9 S 25.0 $ 177.5 

Long-term debt. including current maturities 3,937.9 3,898.9 3,760.2 3,554.3 3,698.3 

Preferred Securities of Trusts 341.8 341.5 

Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 45.0 52.5 60.0 66.7 74.2 

Preferred stock 41.3 41.3 41.3 41.3 41.3 

Common equity 4,010.5 3.335.8 3,278.7 3,194.4 2,891.9 

Total Capitalization $ 8,219.1 $ 7.797.3 $ 7,265.1 $ 7,223.5 $ 7,224.7 

Total assets S 12,731.3 S 12,520.9 $ 11,677.1 $ 11,695.8 $ 10,234.9 

Total employees 6,750 6,654 6,507 6,140 6,287 

(a) Other Operations includes the activities of PacifiCorp Financial Services, Inc. and PacifiCorp Group Holdings Con~pany, 
until their transfer in February 2002 to PacifiCorp's former parent company, PHI. 

(b) The year ended March 31, 2002 includes the collection of a contingent note receivable relating to the discontinued 
operations of a former mining and resource developn~ent business, NERCO, Inc. 

(c) The year ended March 3 1 ,  2004 reflects the effect of implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
("SFAS") No. 143, Asset Retirement Obligations ("SFAS No. 143"). 

(d) The year ended March 3 1, 2003 reflects the effect of the implementation of the Derivatives Implementation Group (the 



"DIG") Revised Issue C15, Normal Purchases and Normal Sales Exception,for Certain Option-Type Contracts and 
Fol-cvard Contracts in Electricitl., ("Issue CIS'), and Issue C16, Applving the Normal Purchases and Normal Sales 
Exception to Contracts that Combine a Forward Contract and a Purchased Option Contract ("Issue C16"). 

(e) The year ended March 31, 2002, reflects the effect of the implementation of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, ("SFAS No. 133"). Upon receiving regulatory approval, PacifiCorp has 
subsequently recorded the effects of unrealized gains or losses on certain long-term contracts as regulatory assets and 
liabilities. 



ITEM 7. RIANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

OVERVIEW 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

PacifiCorp is a regulated electricity company serving approximately 1.6 million retail customers in service 
territories aggregating approximately 136,000 square miles in portions of the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, 
Washington, Idaho and California. The regulatory commissions in each state approve rates for retail electric sales 
within their respective states. PacifiCorp also sells electricity on the wholesale market to public and private utilities, 
energy marketing companies and to incorporated municipalities. Wholesale activities are regulated by the FERC. 
PacifiCorp owns, or has interests in, 69 thermal, hydroelectric and wind generating plants, with an aggregate 
nameplate rating of 9,050.8 MW and plant net capability of 8,470.4 MW. The FERC and the six state regulatory 
commissions also have authority over the construction and operation of PacifiCorp's electric generation facilities. 
PacifiCorp delivers electricity through approximately 59,5 10 miles of distribution lines and approximately 15,580 
miles of transmission lines. 

Sale of PacifiCorp 

As described in "Item 1. Business - Overview - Ownership by MEHC; Sale of PacifiCorp," MEHC completed its 
acquisition of PacifiCorp from ScottishPower and PHI on March 21,2006. MEHC purchased all PacifiCorp 
common stock for approximately $5.1 billion in cash. 

In January through March 2006, the state commissions in all six states where PacifiCorp has retail customers 
approved PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC. The approvals were conditioned on a number of regulatory commitments, 
including expected financial benefits in the form of reduced corporate overhead and financing costs, certain mid- to 
long-term capital and other expenditures of significant amounts and a commitment not to seek utility rate increases 
attributable solely to the change in ownership. The capital and other expenditures proposed by MEHC and 
PacifiCorp include: 

Approximately $812.0 milljon in investments (generally to be made over several years following the sale and 
subject to subsequent regulatory review and approval) in emissions reduction technology for PacifiCorp's 
existing coal plants, which, when coupled with the use of reduced emissions technology for anticipated new 
coal-fueled generation, is expected to result in significant reductions in emissions rates of sulfur dioxide, 
nitrogen oxide and mercury and to avoid an increase in the carbon dioxide emissions rate; 

Approximately S519.5 million in investments (to be made over several years following the sale and subject to 
subsequent regulatory revjew and approval) in PacifiCorp's transmission and distribution system that would 
enhance reliability, facilitate the receipt of renewable resources and enable further system optimization; and 

The addition of 400.0 MW of cost-effective renewable resources to PacifiCorp's generation portfolio by 
December 3 1 ,  2007, including 100.0 MW of cost-effective wind resources by March 2 1, 2007. 

The commitments approved by the state commissions also include credits that will reduce retail rates generally 
through 2010 to the extent that PacifiCorp does not achieve identified cost reductions or demonstrate mitigation of 
certain risks to customers. The maximum potential value of these rate credits to customers in all six states is $142.5 
million. PacifiCorp and MEHC have made additional commitments to the state commissions that limits the 
dividends PacifiCorp can make to MEHC or its affiliates. As of March 3 1,2006, the most restrictive of these 
commit~nents prohibits PacifiCorp from making any distribution to PPW Holdings LLC or MEHC without prior 
state regulatory approval to the extent that it would reduce PacifiCorp's common stock equity below 48.25% of its 
total capitalization, excluding short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt. After December 3 1, 2008, 
this minimurn level of common equity declines annually to 44.0% after December 3 1, 201 1. The terms of this 
commitment treat 50.0% of PacifiCorp's preferred stock outstanding prior to the acquisition of PacifiCorp by 
MEHC as common equity. As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp's actual common stock equity percentage, as 
calculated under this measure, exceeded the minimum threshold. 



Forward-Looking Statements 

This report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act 
of 1995. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, made in this report are forward-looking. When used 
in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in 
this report, the words "will," "may," "could," "believes," "estimates," "expects," "anticipates," "forecasts," "plans," 
"intends," "projected," "potential" and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify 
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements included in this report relate to, among other matters, the 
effect on PacifiCorp of the following: regulatory comlnitments related to PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC; recently 
enacted Oregon Senate Bill 408; potential adjustment of regulatory rates to cover costs; growth of retail customers 
and demand; the impact of new accounting standards or accounting policy changes; the outcome of litigation or 
regulatory proceedings; the timing of future regulatory filings; environmental laws; federal energy policy and 
legislation; capital expenditure levels; results from, and the timing of, the construction or repair of generating 
facilities; hydroelectric relicensing and decommissioning activities; electricity outages; pension and other 
postretirement contributions; outcome of tax proceedings; growth in customers and usage; levels of hydroelectric 
and thermal generation; sufficiency of PacifiCorp's available funds to meet its liquidity needs and future financing; 
off-balance sheet arrangements; the effect of risk management measures, including use of financial derivatives to 
manage and mitigate interest rate exposure; fluctuations in forward prices for electricity and natural gas; and the 
efficiency and effectiveness of PacifiCorp's resource and fuel procurement. Forward-looking statements reflect 
management's current expectations, plans or projections and are inherently uncertain. There can be no assurance the 
results predicted will be realized. Actual results may vary from those represented by the forecasts, and those 
variations may be material. The following are among the factors, in addition to those set forth under "Item 1A. Risk 
Factors," that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements: 

The outcome of general rate cases and other proceedings conducted by regulatory commissions or other 
governmental and legal bodies; 

Changes in prices and availability (for both purchases and sales) of wholesale electricity, natural gas and other 
fuel sources and other changes in operating costs that could affect PacifiCorp's cost recovery; 

Changes in regulatory requirements or other legislation, including the recently enacted federal Energy Policy 
Act of 2005, legislation or regulatory outcomes limiting the ability of public utilities to recover income tax 
expense in retail rates such as Senate Bill 408, industry restructuring and deregulation initiatives; 

Industrial, colnmercial and residential customer growth and demographic patterns in PacifiCorp's service 
territories; 

Economic trends that could impact electricity usage; 

Changes in weather conditions and other natural events that could affect customer demand or electricity supply; 

A high degree of variance between actual and forecasted load and prices that could impact the hedging strategy 
and costs to balance electricity load and supply; 

Hydroelectric conditions, as well as natural gas and coal production and price levels, that could have a 
significant impact on electric capacity and cost and on PacifiCorp's ability to generate electricity; 

Performance of PacifiCorp's generation facilities, including the level of planned and unplanned outages; 

The cost, feasibility and eventual outcome of hydroelectric facility relicensing proceedings; 

Changes in, and compliance with, environmental and endangered species laws, regulations, decisions and 
policies that could increase operating and capital improvement costs, reduce plant output andlor delay plant 
construction; 

Changes resulting from MEHC ownership; 

The impact of new accounting pronouncements or changes in current accounting estimates and assumptions on 
financial position and results of operations; 



The impact of interest rates, investment performance and increases in health care costs on pension and post- 
retirement expense; 

Continued availability of funds to meet liquidity requirements; 

The impact of any required performance under off-balance sheet arrangements; 

Financial condition and creditworthiness of significant customers and suppliers; 

The impact of financial derivatives used to mitigate or manage interest rate risk and volume and price risk due 
to weather extremes; 

Changes in PacifiCorp's credit ratings; 

Timely and appropriate completion of PacifiCorp's resource procurement process, unanticipated construction 
delays, changes in costs, receipt of required permits and authorizations, ability to fund resource projects and 
other factors that could affect future generation plants and infrastructure additions; 

Other risks or unforeseen events, including wars, the effects of terrorism, embargos and other catastrophic 
events; and 

Other business or investment considerations that inay be disclosed from time to time in SEC filings or in other 
publicly disseminated written documents. 

Any forward-looking statements issued by PacifiCorp should be considered in light of these factors. PacifiCorp 
does not intend to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions 
or changes in other factors affecting such forward-looking statements or if PacifiCorp later becomes aware that 
these assumptions are not likely to be achieved. 

Accounting Matters 

Critical Accounting Estimates and Related Policies 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the results of operations and 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The estimates and 
assumptions may change as time passes and accounting guidance evolves. Management bases its estimates and 
assumptions on historical experience and on other various judgments that it believes are reasonable at the time of 
application. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. If estimates and assumptions are different than the actual amounts recorded, adjustments are made in 
subsequent periods to take into consideration the new information. Critical accounting estimates, in addition to 
certain less significant accounting estimates, are discussed with senior members of management and PacifiCorp's 
Board of Directors, as appropriate, and were previously disclosed to the ScottishPower Audit Committee and from 
March 21,2006 are disclosed to the MEHC Audit Committee. Those estimates that management considers critical 
are described below. 

Derivatives 
On April 1, 2001, PacifiCorp adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended. PacifiCorp uses derivative instruments 
(primarily forward and-sales) to manage the commodity price risk inherent in its fuel and electricity 
obligations, as well as to optimize the value of power generation assets and related contracts. PacifiCorp also enters 
into short-term energy derivatives on a limited basis for arbitrage purposes to take advantage of opportunities 
arising from market inefficiencies. 

SFAS No. 133 requires that derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. The fair values of 
derivative instruments are determined using forward price curves. Forward price curves represent PacifiCorp's 
estimates of the prices at which a buyer or seller could contract today for delivery or settlement of a commodity at 

future dates. PacifiCorp bases its forward price curves upon market price quotations when available and uses 
internally developed, modeled prices when market quotations are unavailable. In general, PacifiCorp estimates the 
fair value of a contract by calculating the present value of the difference between the contract and the applicable 



forward price curve. 

Price quotations for certain major electricity trading hubs are generally readily obtainable for the first six years and, 
therefore, PacifiCorp's forward price curves for those locations and periods reflect observable market quotes. 
However, in the later years or for locations that are not actively traded, forward price curves must be estimated in 
other ways. For short-term contracts at less actively traded locations, prices are modeled based on observed 
historical price relationships with actively traded locations. For long-term contracts extending beyond six years, the 
forward price curve is based upon the use of a fundamentals model (cost-to-build approach), due to the limited 
information available. Factors used in the hndamentals model include the forward prices for the commodities used 
as fuel to generate electricity, the expected system heat rate (which measures the efficiency of power plants in 
converting fuel to electricity) in the region where the purchase or sale takes place and a fundamentals forecast of 
expected spot prices for a commodity in a region based on modeled supply of and demand for the commodity in the 
region. The assumptions in these models are critical, since any changes in assumptions could have a significant 
impact on the fair value of the contract. 

Despite the large volume of implementation guidance, SFAS No. 133 and the supplemental guidance do not provide 
specific guidance on all contract issues. As a result, significant judgment must be used in applying SFAS No. 133 
and its interpretations. 

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits 
PacifiCorp sponsors defined benefit pension plans that cover the majority of its employees. In addition, certain 
bargaining unit employees participate in a joint trust plan to which PacifiCorp contributes. PacifiCorp accounts for 
these plans in accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employers ' Accountingfor Pensions ("SFAS No. 87"). PacifiCorp 
accounts for its other postretirement benefit plan in accordance with SFAS No. 106, Employers ' Accounting fol* 
Postretivement Benejts Other than Pensions ("SFAS No. 106"). The expense and benefit obligations relating to 
PacifiCorp's pension and other postretirement benefit plans are based on actuarial valuations. Inherent in these 
valuations are key assumptions, including discount rates, expected returns on plan assets, compensation increases. 
PacifiCorp contributions and health care cost trend rates. These actuarial assumptions are reviewed annually and 
modified as appropriate. The effect of modifications is generally amortized over future periods. PacifiCorp believes 
that the assumptions utilized in recording obligations under the plans are reasonable based on prior experience, 
market conditions and the advice of plan actuaries. However, actual results may differ from such assumptions. 

The PacifiCorp Retirement Plan (the "Retirement Plan") currently has assets with a fair value that is less than the 
accumulated benefit obligation, primarily due to declines in the equity markets during calendar years 2000 through 
2002 and lower discount rates. PacifiCorp recognized a minimum pension liability in the three months ended March 
31, 2003, and continues to recognize this liability at March 31, 2006. The liability adjustment did not affect the 
consolidated results of operations. PacifiCorp requested and received accounting orders from the regulatory 
colnmissions in Utah, Oregon, Wyoming and Washington to classify most of this charge as a Regulatory asset 
instead of a charge to Other comprehensive income. This increase to Regulatory assets was adjusted as of March 3 1, 
2006 and 2005 and will be adjusted in future periods as the difference between the fair value of the trust assets and 
the accumulated benefit obligation changes. PacifiCorp has determined that costs related to SFAS No. 87 for the 
Retirement Plan are currently recoverable in rates. 

PacifiCorp's contributions to the Retirement Plan have exceeded the minimum funding requirements of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act ("ERISA"). PacifiCorp made $63.7 n~illion in cash contributions to the 
Retirement Plan during the year ended March 31, 2006, including those contributions made between the December 
3 1 ,  2005 measurement date and March 3 1,2006, and made $61.6 million in cash contributions to the Retirement 
Plan during the year ended March 31, 2005. In April 2006, PacifiCorp contributed $72.7 million to its Retirement 
Plan and expects to contribute another $1 1.0 million to its pension plans in the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007. 
PacifiCorp is funding the Retirement Plan at what it believes to be an adequate level, but it currently expects to 
make larger cash contributions in the future due to its underfunded pension obligation and ERISA requirements. 
Such cash requirements could be material to PacifiCorp's cash flows. PacifiCorp believes it has adequate access to 
capital resources to support these contributions. As of March 3 1. 2006, PacifiCorp's underfunded status of the 
pension plans was $5 13.6 million, including contributions made between the December 3 1, 2005 measurement date 
and March 3 1, 2006. For further details. see "Item 8. Financial Statements - Note 17 - Employee Benefits," which 
are incorporated by reference into this Item 7. 



PacifiCorp discounted its future pensjon and other postretirement plan obligations using a rate of 5.75% at March 
3 1,2006 and 2005. Thus, the discount rate used for PacifiCorp's expense during the 12 months ended March 31, 
2006 was 5.75% and the discount rate that will be used for PacifiCorp's expense during the 12 months ending 
March 3 1, 2007 will also be 5.75%. PacifiCorp chooses a discount rate based upon high quality fixed-income 
investment yields. The pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities, as well as expenses, increase as the 
discount rate is reduced. 

At March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp assumed that the pension and other postretirement assets would generate a long-term 
rate of return of 8.50% for the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007 compared to an assumed rate of return of 8.75% 
for the year ended March 3 1, 2006. In establishing its assumption as to the expected return on assets, PacifiCorp 
reviews the expected asset allocation and develops return assumptions for each asset class based on historical 
performance and independent advisors' forward-looking views of the financial markets. Pension and other 
postretirement benefit expenses increase as the expected rate of return on Retirement Plan and other postretirement 
benefit plan assets decreases. 

Based on the above assumptions, PacifiCorp expects to record pension expense of $71.0 million for the 12 months 
ending March 3 1, 2007, compared to $63.8 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006. 

The following table reflects the sensitivities of the March 3 1, 2006 disclosures and the projected pension expense 
for the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007 associated with a change in certain actuarial assumptions by the indicated 
percentage: 

(Millions of dollars) Impact on Projected Impact on Minimum Impact on Annual 
Change in Benefit Obligation Pension Liability Pension Cost 

Actuarial Assulnption Assumption Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) 

Expected long-term return on plan assets (0 .5)% $ - S - $ 4.2 
Expected long-term return on plan assets 0.5 (4.2) 
Discount rate (0.5) 89.4 77.9 8.9 
Discount rate 0.5 (83.7) (73 .O) (8.7) 

PacifiCorp expects to record other postretirement benefit expense of $36.6 million for the 12 months ending March 
3 1, 2007, compared to $29.9 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006. PacifiCorp has determined that costs 
related to SFAS No. 106 for other postretirement benefits are currently recoverable in rates. PacifiCorp contributed 
$29.7 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 and $24.9 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2005 to the 
funding vehicles for its postretirement benefit plan. PacifiCorp expects to contribute S36.6 million to its other 
postretirement benefit plans for the 12 months ending March 3 1,2007. As of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp's 
underfunded status of the other postretirement benefit plans was $260.6 million, including contributions made 
between the December 3 1,2005 measurement date and March 3 1,2006. For further details, see "Item 8. Financial 
Statements -Note 17 - Employee Benefits," which are incorporated by reference into this Item 7. 

In valuing its accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, PacifiCorp must make an assumption regarding future 
changes in health care costs. Assumed changes impact the obligation and expense as follows: 

Impact on Accumulated Impact on Annual 
(Millions of dollars) Postretirement Other Postretirement 

Benefit Obligation Benefit Cost 
Assumed health care cost trend rates Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) 

One percentage point increase $ 43.7 $ 6.2 

One percentage point decrease (35.5) (5.1) 

Regulation 
PacifiCorp prepares its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the 
Effects of Certain Tjpes ofRegzilation ("SFAS No. 71"). SFAS No. 71 requires PacifiCorp to reflect the impact of 



regulatory decisions in its Consolidated Financial Statements and requires that certain costs be deferred on the 
balance sheet until matching revenues can be recognized. Similarly, certain items may be deferred as regulatory 
liabilities and are amortized to the Consolidated Statements of Income as rates to customers are reduced or costs 
previously recovered in rates are actually incurred. SFAS No. 71 provides that regulatory assets may be capitalized 
if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capitalized costs will result from their 
treatment as allowable costs for rate-making purposes. In addition, the rate action should permit recovery of the 
specific previously incurred cost rather than provide for expected levels of similar h ture  costs. 

PacifiCorp is subject to state and federal regulation. In the event of deregulation, PacifiCorp would seek recovery of 
its net regulatory assets and any additional stranded costs. If unsuccessful, the unrecoverable portion of its net 
regulatory assets would be written-off and PacifiCorp would evaluate the remaining assets on its balance sheet for 
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accountingfor- the Inrpairment or- Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. 
PacifiCorp is unable to predict the likelihood of deregulation and its future impacts. 

At March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had recorded specifically identified regulatory assets, net of regulatory liabilities, 
totaling $174.3 million. In the event PacifiCorp stopped applying SFAS No. 71 at March 31, 2006, an after-tax loss 
of approximately $108.2 million would be recognized. 

Unbilled Revenues 
Electricity sales to retail customers are determined based on meter readings taken throughout the month. PacifiCorp - - 
accrues an estimate of unbilled revenues, net of estimated line losses, each month for electric service provided after 
the meter reading date to the end of the month. The unbilled revenue estimate is based on three components: 
PacifiCorp's total electricity delivered during the month, assignment of unbilled revenues to customer type and 
valuation of the unbilled energy. Factors involved in the estimation of consumption and line losses relate to weather 
conditions, amount of natural light, historical trends, economic impacts and customer type. Valuation of unbilled 
energy is based on estimating the average price for the month for each customer type. These estimates can vary 
significantly from period to period depending on monthly weather patterns, customers' space heating and cooling, 
production levels due to economic activity or changing irrigation patterns due to precipitation conditions. 

Differences between estimated unbilled revenue and the subsequently billed revenue would most likely occur due to 
the variation in assignments of customer usage by revenue class and jurisdiction or variations from estimates of line 
losses due to changes related to line capacity utilization and weather conditions. At March 3 1, 2006, the amount 
accrued for unbilled revenues was $148.2 million. 

Contingencies 
PacifiCorp follows SFAS No. 5, Accountingfov Contingeilcies ("SFAS No. 5'7, to determine accounting and 
disclosure requirements for contingencies. According to SFAS No. 5, an estimated loss from a contingency shall be 
charged to income if (i) it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of 
the financial statements, and (ii) the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Disclosure in the notes to the 
financial statements is required for loss contingencies not meeting both of these conditions if there is a reasonable 
possibility that a loss may have been incurred. Gain contingencies are not recorded until realized. 

PacifiCorp operates in a highly regulated environment. Governmental bodies such as the FERC, state regulatory 
commissions, the SEC, Internal Revenue Service, Department of Labor, the EPA and others have authority over 
various aspects of PacifiCorp's business operations and public reporting. Reserves are established when required 
based upon management's best judgment. Appropriate disclosures are made regarding litigation, tax matters, 
environmental issues, assessments and creditworthiness of customers or counterparties, among others. The 
evaluation of these contingencies is performed by various specialists inside and outside of PacifiCorp. Accounting 
for contingencies requires significant judgment by management regarding the estimated probabilities and ranges of 
exposure to potential loss. Management's assessment of PacifiCorp's exposure to contingencies could change as 
new developments occur or more infom~ation becomes available. The outcome of the contingencies could vary 
significantly and could materially impact PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows. Management has used its best judgment in applying SFAS No. 5 to these matters. 



New Accounting Standards 

For new accounting standards, see "Item 8. Financial Statements -Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies," which are incorporated by reference into this Item 7. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 

PacifiCorp's net income was $360.7 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 compared to $251.7 million for the 
year ended March 31,2005. Significant factors affecting results for the year ended March 3 1,2006 included higher 
retail prices approved by regulators, customer growth and a net increase in customer usage, as well as increased 
generation output, partially offset by higher operations and maintenance expense, including employee-related 
expenses, and the impact of increased fuel prices. The increase in net income was also significantly affected by a 
$78.4 million increase in net unrealized gains on wholesale sales, wholesale purchase and fuel contracts primarily 
due to movements in forward prices. 

Retail energy sales volumes grew by 2.4% in the year ended March 3 1, 2006 compared to the year ended March 3 1, 
2005. PacifiCorp's number of retail customers has been increasing by approximately 2.0% annually over the past 
four years. This trend is expected to continue for the foreseeable future. Increased customer usage, which also 
contributed to the higher volumes, is generally affected by economic and weather conditions, consumer trends and 
energy savings programs. 

In recent years, PacifiCorp has filed general rate cases in all six states where it has retail customers, with the 
objective of keeping customer rates closely aligned to ongoing operating costs and to recover costs of capital 
investments. PacifiCorp may make additional general rate case filings in certain states over the coming year. 
PacifiCorp's regulatory program has also included various other filings such as proposed power cost adjustment 
mechanisms. See "Item I. Business - Regulation" for developments regarding state regulatory issues and pending 
rate case filings. 

PacifiCorp relies on electricity generated by its thermal facilities to meet a substantial portion of its customer load. 
PacifiCorp's maintenance and overhaul programs are utilized to facilitate reliable generation availability at its 
thermal facilities through planned outages, but PacifiCorp still may experience unplanned outages. During these 
outage periods, other owned generation or wholesale market purchases are utilized to balance system requirements. 
PacifiCorp's hydroelectric facilities are utilized as lower-cost sources of electricity generation but are dependent 
upon precipitation, temperatures and other variables. Wholesale energy sales and purchase contracts are utilized to 
balance PacifiCorp's physical excess or shortage of net electricity and are impacted by the movements in the market 
prices of both natural gas and electricity. While increased thermal generation output reduces the need for wholesale 
market purchases, its financial impact can be significantly affected by market prices for coal and natural gas. 

Output from PacifiCorp's thermal plants increased by 1,055,579 megawatt-hours ("MWh"), or 2.2%, during the 
year ended March 3 1,2006 compared to the year ended March 3 1,2005. The Currant Creek Power Plant 
commenced full combined-cycle operation in March 2006, adding 523.0 MW of capability to PacifiCorp's 
generation portfolio. Construction of the Lake Side Power Plant 1s progressing and is expected to begin operations 
in May 2007. Once in full commercial operation, the Lake Side Power Plant will add an estimated capability of 
550.0 MW to meet expected future energy needs. 

Output from PacifiCorp-owned hydroelectric facilities for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 increased by 1,074,640 
MWh, or 35.096, as compared to the year ended March 3 1, 2005. This increase was primarily attributable to current- 
year water conditions that, although slightly lower than normal, ilnproved relative to the prior-year period. 
PacifiCorp's hydroelectric generation was 98.2% of normal for the year ended March 3 1, 2006, based on a 30-year 
average. Hydroelectric generation has been below nonnal for the past six years. PacifiCorp cannot predict if this 
trend will continue in future years. 

PacifiCorp continues to experience increasing employee costs primarily due to rising healthcare and pension costs. 
additional en~ployees and normal annual salary and wage increases. Pension costs continue to increase as a result of 



previous years' decreases in discount rates, which result in increases in PacifiCorp's projected benefit obligation, as 
well as the recognition of deferred losses from previous years' lower-than-expected plan asset returns. 

Wholesale energy sales and purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are recorded at fair value. For 
derivative contracts, when forward prices are higher than contract prices, wholesale energy sales contracts will have 
unrealized losses and wholesale purchase contracts will have unrealized gains. The opposite is true when forward 
prices are lower than contract prices. Unrealized gains and losses will reverse in future periods when the contracts 
settle at contract prices. They do not result in cash collections or payments other than in obtaining or providing cash 
collateral required in support of certain contracts. See "Item 8. Financial Statements -Note 3 - Derivative 
Instruments7' for a summary of unrealized gains and losses on wholesale energy sales and purchase contracts. 

Year Ended March 31,2006 Compared to Year Ended March 31,2005 

Revenues 

(Millions of dollars) Year Ended March 3 1, Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2006 2005 $ Change % Change 

Retail $ 2,808.6 $ 2,648.8 S 159.8 6.0 % 

Wholesale sales and other 1,088.1 400.0 688.1 172.0 

Total revenues $ 3,896.7 $ 3,048.8 $ 847.9 27.8 

Retail energy sales (thousands of MWh) 50,112 48,919 1,193 2.4 

Total retail customers (in thousands) 1,640 1,605 35 2.2 

Retail revenues increased $159.8 million, or 6.0%, primarily due to: 
$74.1 million of increases from higher prices approved by regulators; 
S43.2 million of increases related to growth in the number of residential and commercial customers; 
$28.7 million of increases due to higher average residential and industrial customer usage, net of decreases in 
commercial and other customer usage; and 
$13.8 million of increases due to changes in price mix, resulting from the levels of customer usage at different 
customer tariffs in the various states that PacifiCorp serves. 

Wholesale sales and other revenues increased $688.1 million, or 172.0%, primarily due to: 
$554.4 million of increases from higher unrealized gains on short- and long-term energy sales contracts 
recorded at fair value, primarily due to changes in forward prices; 
S 108.7 nlillion of increases in wholesale electric sales, primarily due to higher prices; 
$29.2 million of increases resulting from sales of sulfur dioxide emission allowances; 
S1l.O million of increases in wholesale natural gas sales: and 
$8.2 million of increases in revenues from the settlement of amounts previously disputed with third parties; 
partially offset by, 
$28.2 million of decreases related to non-physically settled system balancing transactions. 

Operating Expenses 

(Millions of dollars) Year Ended March 3 1, Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2006 2005 $ Change % Change 

Energy costs S 1,545.1 S 948.0 $ (597.1) (63.0) % 

Operations and maintenance 1,014.5 913.1 (101.4) (1 1.1) 

Depreciation and amortizat~on 448.3 436.9 (1 1.4) (2.6) 
Taxes, other than income taxes 96.8 94.4 (2.4) (2.5) 

Total operating expenses S 3.104.7 $ 2,392.4 $ (712.3) (29.8) 



Energy costs increased $597.1 million, or 63.0%, primarily due to: 
$469.5 million of increases from higher unrealized losses on short- and long-term energy purchase contracts 
recorded at fair value, primarily due to changes in forward prices; 
$43.5 million of increases related to unfavorable changes in the fair value of streamflow weather derivative 
contracts resulting primarily from improved streamflow conditions in the current year compared to prior 
forecasts; 
$40.7 million of increases in purchased electricity due to higher prices and volumes; 
$14.8 million of increases related to higher volumes of coal consumed due primarily to an increase in thermal 
generation; 
$1 3.9 million of increases related to higher prices for coal consumed; and 
S 1 1.2 million of increases related to higher wheeling expenses. 

Operations and maintenance expense increased $10 1.4 million, or 1 1.1 %, primarily due to: 
$43.7 million of increases in employee expenses, primarily due to an increase in headcount and higher benefit 
and pension costs; 
S17.0 million in employee severance expense incurred during the current year; 
$1 1.3 million of increases in materials and supplies utilized in plant overhaul activities; 
$9.7 million of increases in third-party contract and service fees; and 
$7.2  nill lion of increases from services rendered by Scottish Power UK plc prior to the sale of PacifiCorp to 
MEHC, and charged to PacifiCorp pursuant to the affiliated interest cross-charge policy. 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $1 1.4 million, or 2.6%, primarily due to: 
$13.9 million of increases in depreciation expense due to additions to plant in service; partially offset by, 
$3.0 million of decreases in amortization expense predominantly due to certain capitalized software becoming 
fully amortized. 

Interest and Other (Income) Expense 

Year Ended March 3 1, Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 S Change % Change 

Interest expense S 279.9 $ 267.4 S (12.5) (4.7) % 

Interest income (9.5) (9.1) 0.4 4.4 

Interest capitalized (32.4) (14.8) 17.6 118.9 

Minority interest and other (6.1) (7.3) (1.2) (16.4) 
Total S 231.9 $ 236.2 $ 4.3 1.8 

Interest expense increased $12.5 million, or 4.7%, primarily due to: 
Higher average debt outstanding and higher variable rates during the year ended March 3 1,2006; partially 
offset by, 
Lower average fixed rates on long-term debt during the year ended March 31,2006. 

Interest capitalized increased $17.6 million, or 118.9%, primarily due to higher average construction work-in- 
progress balances that qualify for capitalized interest and higher capitalization rates during the year ended March 
3 1,2006. 

Minority interest and other expense changed $1.2 million, primarily due to lower gains on net investments for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2006 compared to the year ended March 3 1,2005. 

Income Tax Expense 

Income tax expense increased $30.9 million, or 18.3%, primarily due to: 
S49.0 million of increases due to higher levels of income from continuing operations before income taxes for 
the year ended March 3 1,2006; and 



$9.7 million of increases in the income tax contingency reserve; partially offset by, 
$9.2 million of decreases from the tax effect of the regulatory treatment of book and tax depreciation 
differences of $3.1 million and of the regulatory treatment of other differences of $6.1 million; 
$5.4 million of decreases due to permanent book and tax differences of Internal Revenue Service settlements in 
the prior year; 
$5.0 million of decreases from the tax effect of increases in depletion expense; and 
$4.3 million of decreases from the tax effect of certain state income tax credits. 

Year Ended March 31,2005 Compared to Year Ended March 31,2004 

Revenues 

(Millions of dollars) Year Ended March 3 1. Favorablel(Unfavorab1e) 

2005 2004 S Change 

Retail $ 2,648.8 $ 2,547.0 $ 101.8 4.0 % 

Wholesale sales and other 400.0 647.5 (247.5) (38.2) 

Total revenues S 3,048.8 $ 3,194.5 $ (145.7) (4.6) 

Retail energy sales (thousands of MWh) 48,919 48,679 240 0.5 

Total retail customers (in thousands) 1,605 1,570 35 2.2 

Retail revenues increased $101.8 million, or 4.0%, primarily due to: 
$108.9 million of increases from higher prices approved by regulators; and 
$49.0 million of increases relating to growth in the number of residential, commercial and industrial customers: 
partially offset by, 
$39.8 million of decreases from lower average residential customer usage, net of increases in commercial 
usage; and 
$7.3 million of decreases due to a change in price mix, which resulted from the levels of customer usage at 
different customer tariffs in the various states that PacifiCorp serves. 

Wholesale sales and otlzer revenues decreased $247.5 million, or 38.294, primarily due to: 
$300.6 million of decreases from higher unrealized losses on short- and long-term energy sales contracts 
recorded at fair value, primarily due to changes in forward prices; and 
$48.1 million of decreases related to non-physically settled system balancing transactions; partially offset by, 
$47.2 million of increases due to higher revenues related to regulatory asset recovery, including $27.9 million 
due to a new tariff in Utah; 
$45.9 million of increases in wholesale electric sales due to higher volumes and prices; and 
$2.8 million of increases due to higher wheeling revenue. 

Operating Expenses 

(Millions of dollars) Year Ended March 3 1, Favorablel(Unfavorab1e) 
2005 2004 6 Change % Change 

Energy costs $ 948.0 $ 1,156.7 $ 208.7 18.0 % 

Operations and maintenance 913.1 895.8 (17.3) (1.9) 
Depreciation and amortization 436.9 428.8 (8.1) (1.9) 
Taxes, other than income taxes 94.4 95.3 0.9 0.9 

Total operating expenses 

Energy costs decreased $208.7 million, or 18.0%, primarily due to: 
$302.9 million of decreases from higher unrealized gains on short- and long-term energy purchase contracts 
recorded at fair value, pri~llarily due to changes in forward prices; 



$27.5 million of decreases due to favorable changes in fair value on streamflow weather derivative contracts; 
and 
S9.9 million of decreases due to lower volumes of coal consumed due inainly to a reduction in thermal plant 
generation; partially offset by, 
$98.4 million of increases in purchased electricity due to higher volumes and prices; and 
$30.0 million of increases due to higher prices for coal consumed. 

Operations and maintenance expense increased $17.3 million, or 1.9%, primarily due to: 
$44.3 million of increases in employee salary expense and other direct employee expenses, primarily due to an 
increase in headcount and higher benefit and pension costs; 
$14.9 million of increases from services rendered by Scottish Power UK plc and charged to PacifiCorp 
pursuant to ScottishPower7s affiliated interest cross-charge policy, which became effective April 1, 2004; and 
S12.1 million of net increases due to changes in regulatory assets and liabilities, including $27.0 million of 
increased Utah demand-side management amortization; partially offset by, 
$26.9 million of decreases in third-party contract and service fees, including a reduction in the use of 
contractors for certain activities, including information technology, planned outages and field operations; 
$5.5 million of a decrease due to the recognition of claims in the prior year due to the bankruptcy of an 
insurance carrier; and 
$5.5 million of decreases in insurance costs. 

Depreciation and aazortization expense increased $8.1 million, or 1.9%, primarily due to: 
$15.8 million of increases in depreciation and amortization expense due to an increase in plant in service; and 
$4.6 million of increases in amortization expense due to higher capitalized software balances; partially offset 

by, 
S12.9 million of decreases in capitalized software amortization following a change in the estimated useful lives 
of certain computer software systems. 

Interest and Other (Income) Expense 

Year Ended March 3 1,  Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
(Millions of dollars) 2005 2004 $ Change % Change 

Interest expense $ 267.4 S 256.5 S (10.9) (4.2) % 
Interest income (9.1) (13.8) (4.7) (34.1) 
Interest capitalized (14.8) (19.9) (5.1) (25.6) 
Minority interest and other (7.3) 1.6 8.9 556.3 
Total S 236.2 S 224.4 $ (11.8) (5.3) 

Interest expense increased $10.9 million, or 4.2%, primarily due to $8.9 million of increases resulting from an 
increase in average amount of debt outstanding, due in part to the refinancing of $352.0 million of Preferred 
securities redeemed in August 2003 with long-term debt, partially offset by a decrease in average interest rates. 

Interest incoine decreased S4.7   nil lion, or 34.196, primarily due to decreases in interest income on regulatory 
assets. 

Interest capitalized decreased $5.1 million, or 25.69'0, primarily due to lower average capitalization rates applied to 
higher qualifying construction work-in-progress balances during the year ended March 3 1, 2005. 

Minority interest arid other expense changed $8.9 inillion, primarily due to: 
$1 1.7 million of a decrease in expense relating to distributions on Preferred securities, which were redeemed in 
August 2003; 
$2.3 n~illion of a decrease in charitable donations; partially offset by, 
$4.3 million of an increase in incoine relating to proceeds from company-owned life insurance. 



Income Tax Expense 

Income tax expense increased $24.0 million, or 16.6%, primarily due to: 
$14.2 million of increases in the federal tax contingency reserve due to $8.5 million of additional accruals in 
the current year related to new activitiesldevelopment of tax examinations, compared to $5.7 million of 
contingency reserve releases in the prior year due to the resolution of certain tax examinations; 
$9.5 million of increases due to higher levels of income from continuing operations before income taxes and 
cumulative effect of accounting change for the year ended March 3 1,2005; and 

8 $5.4 million of increases due to permanent book and tax differences of Internal Revenue Service settlements; 
partially offset by, 
$3.9 million of decreases from the tax effect of regulatory treatment of book and tax differences; and 
$3.7 million of decreases in state income tax effect. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Sources and Uses of Cash 

PacifiCorp depends on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund capital 
requirements. Short-term cash requirements not met by cash provided by operating activities are generally satisfied 
with proceeds from short-term borrowings. Long-term cash needs are met through sales of securities, including 
additional long-term debt issuances, and, in the past, also by issuance of common stock to PacifiCorp's former 
parent company, PHI. PacifiCorp expects it will need additional periodic equity contributions from its existing 
parent over the next five years. Issuance of longer-term securities is influenced by levels of short-term debt, cash 
from operations, capital expenditures, market conditions, regulatory approvals and other considerations. 

Operating Activities 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities increased $183.5 million to $894.6 million for the year ended March 
3 1, 2006 compared to $7 1 1.1 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2005, primarily due to higher retail revenues, 
increased generation output, reduced net cash collateral requirements and the net impact of the timing of cash 
collection and payments, partially offset by increases in income tax payments and higher fuel inventory levels. 

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $120.8 million to $71 1.1 million for the year ended March 3 1, 
2005 compared to $83 1.9 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2004, due primarily to increases in net cash 
collateral requirements; increases in the level of funding for pension and other postretirement benefit plans; higher 
inventory levels; and the net impact of the timing of cash collection and payments. 

Investing Activities 

Net cash used in investing activities increased $177.4 million to $1,024.1 million for the year ended March 3 1, 
2006, primarily due to higher capital expenditures during the year ended March 3 1, 2006 compared to the prior 
year. Capital expenditures totaled $1,049.0 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006, compared to $851.6 million 
for the year ended March 3 1, 2005. The increase was primarily due to $1 09.7 million of increased expenditures on 
the construction of the Lake Side Power Plant, increases in various capital projects related to transmission and 
distribution and other thermal and hydroelectric facilities and $58.5 million for the installation of emission control 
equipment at the Huntington Power Plant, partially offset by $1 13.9 million of decreases in expenditures for the 
Currant Creek Plant. Expenditures for the Lake Side Power Plant will continue to be capitalized as construction 
work-in-progress until the plant is placed into service, which is expected to occur by May 2007. The Currant Creek 
Power Plant was completed in simple and combined-cycle phases. The simple-cycle phase was placed into service 
during May and June 2005 and combined-cycle phase was placed into service during March 2006. 

Net cash used in investing activities increased $143.2 million to $846.7 million for the year ended March 31, 2005, 
primarily due to higher capital expenditures during the year ended March 3 1, 2005 compared to the prior year. 
Capital expenditures totaled $85 1.6 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2005, compared to $690.4 million for the 
year ended March 3 1,2004. The increase was primarily due to $1 58.9 million of increased expenditures on the 



construction of the Currant Creek Power Plant and $49.6 million for construction of the Lake Side Power Plant, 
partially offset by lower expenditures on the distribution and transmission upgrades along the Wasatch Front in 
Utah, as well as reductions in other capital expenditures. 

Financing Activities 

Short-Term Debt 
PacifiCorp's short-term debt decreased by $284.4 million during the year ended March 31,2006 to $184.4 million, 
primarily due to proceeds from long-term debt and common stock financing during the period, partially offset by 
capital expenditures in excess of net cash from operations. Regulatory authorities limit PacifiCorp to $1.5 billion of 
short-tenn debt, of which $184.4 million was outstanding at March 31, 2006, with a weighted-average interest rate 
of 4.8%. 

PacifiCorp's short-tenn debt increased by $343.9 million during the year ended March 31,2005 to $468.8 million, 
primarily due to capital expenditures in excess of net cash from operations and pre-funding of maturing long-term 
debt, partially offset by the proceeds from the long-term debt financing during the period. Short-term debt increased 
by $99.9 million during the year ended March 3 1, 2004, primarily due to changes in working capital, maturing long- 
term debt, increased capital expenditures and the resumption of paying dividends on common shares. 

Revolvin~ Credit Agreement 
PacifiCorp's short-term borrowings and certain other financing arrangements are supported by an $800.0 million 
committed bank revolving credit agreement, which was amended during August 2005. Changes included an 
increase to 65.0% in the covenant not to exceed a specified debt-to-capitalization percentage, extension of the 
termination date to August 201 0 and exclusion of the acquisition of PacifiCorp by MEHC as an event of default 
under the agreement. The interest rate on advances under this facility is generally based on the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a margin that varies based on PacifiCorp's credit ratings. As of March 31, 2006, this 
facility was fully available and there were no borrowings outstanding. In addition to this committed credit facility, at 
March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had $79.6 million in money market accounts included in Cash and cash equivalents 
available to meet its liquidity needs. 

PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement contains customary covenants and default provisions, which PacifiCorp 
monitors on a regular basis. As of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp was in compliance with the covenants of its 
revolving credit agreement, which also apply to its letters of credit. See "Future Uses of Cash - Contractual 
Obligations and Comlnercial Commitments - Commercial Commitments" below for information regarding 
PacifiCorp's letters of credit. 

Long-Term Debt 
During the year ended March 31,2006, PacifiCorp made scheduled long-term debt repayments of $269.7 million 

In June 2005, PacifiCorp issued $300.0  nill lion of its 5.25% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due June 15, 2035. 
PacifiCorp used the proceeds for the reduction of short-term debt, including the short-term debt used in December 
2004 to redeem its 8.62594 Series of First Mortgage Bonds due December 13, 2024 totaling $20.0 million. 

During the year ended March 3 1 ,  2005, PacifiCorp made scheduled long-term debt repayments of $239.8 million. 
Additionally, during December 2004, PacifiCorp redeemed, prior to maturity, all of the 8.625% First Mortgage 
Bonds due December 13, 2024 totaling $20.0 million. 

In March 2005, the maturity dates for three series of variable-rate pollution-control revenue bonds totaling $38.1 
million were extended to December 1, 2020. 

In August 2004, PacifiCorp issued $200.0 million of its 4.95% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due August 15, 2014 
and $200.0 million of its 5.90% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due August 15,2034. PacifiCorp used the proceeds 
for general corporate purposes, including the reduction of short-term debt. 

For the year ended March 31. 2004, PacifiCorp made scheduled long-term debt repayments of $136.6 million. 
Additionally, during July and August 2003. PacifiCorp redeemed, prior to maturity, First Mortgage Bonds totaling 



557.5 million and Preferred Securities totaling $352.0 million. These retirements were funded initially with short- 
term debt. In September 2003, PacifiCorp issued $200.0 million of its 4.30% First Mortgage Bonds due September 
15,2008 and S200.0 million of its 5.45% First Mortgage Bonds due September 15,2013. 

PacifiCorp's Mortgage and Deed of Trust creates a lien on most of PacifiCorp's electric utility property, allowing 
the issuance of bonds based on: 

A percentage of utility property additions; 

Bond credits arising from retirement of previously outstanding bonds; and/or 

Deposits of cash 

The amount of bonds that PacifiCorp may issue generally is also subject to a net earnings test. As of March 3 1, 
2006, PacifiCorp estimated it would be able to issue up to $4.7 billion of new First Mortgage Bonds under the most 
restrictive issuance test in the mortgage. Any issuances would be subject to market conditions and amounts may be 
further limited by regulatory authorizations or commitments or by covenants and tests contained in other financing 
agreements. PacifiCorp also has the ability to release property from the lien of the Mortgage on the basis of property 
additions, bond credits and/or deposits of cash. See also "Limitations" below. 

During September 2005, the SEC declared effective PacifiCorp's shelf registration statement covering $700.0 
million of future first mortgage bond and unsecured debt issuances. PacifiCorp has not yet issued any of the 
securities covered by this registration statement. 

PacifiCorp has state regulatory authority to issue up to an additional $700.0 million of long-term debt from the 
UPSC, OPUC and IPUC and up to S1OO.O million of first mortgage bonds from the WUTC. An additional filing 
will be made with the WUTC prior to any future issuances. 

Common Stock 
During the year ended March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp issued 44,884,826 shares of its common stock to PHI, its former - - 
parent company, at a total price of $484.7 million. PacifiCorp used the proceeds from the sale of these shares for the 
reduction of short-term debt. 

PacifiCorp expects to seek amendments to existing state regulatory authority or new authorizations that would 
permit the issuance of its common stock to PPW Holdings LLC. 

Preferred Stock Redemptions 
PacifiCorp redeemed S7.5 million of Preferred stock subject to mandatory and optional redemption during each of 
the years ended March 31,2006,2005 and 2004. 

Dividends 
During the year ended March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had the following dividend activity: 

$175.0 nlillion declared and paid on common stock: 
$5.6 million declared on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, of which $3.5 
million was recorded as interest expense; and 
S5.8 million paid on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. 

On March 20, 2006, immediately prior to the closing of PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC, PacifiCorp paid a dividend on 
common stock, at that time held by PHI, in the aggregate amount of $16.8 million. The dividend was reduced 
pursuant to Amendment No. 1 to the Stock Purchase Agreement among MEHC, ScottishPower and PHI executed 
on the date of the transaction's closing from the S56.6 million aggregate amount originally declared by the 
PacifiCorp Board of Directors on January 27,2006. 

During the year ended March 3 1, 2005, PacifiCorp had the following dividend activity: 
$193.3 million declared and paid on common stock; 
$6.1 million declared on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, of which $4.0 
million was recorded as interest expense; and 



$6.2 million paid on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. 

During the year ended March 3 1, 2004, PacifiCorp had the following dividend activity: 
$160.6 million declared and paid on common stock; 
$6.7 million declared on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, of which $3.4 
million was recorded as interest expense; and 
$6.8 million paid on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. 

Capitalization 

(Millions of dollars) 
March 31, 

2006 2005 

Short-term debt $ 184.4 2.2 % $ 468.8 6.0 % 
Long-term debt, including current maturities 3,937.9 47.9 3,898.9 50.0 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 45.0 0.5 52.5 0.7 
Preferred stock 41.3 0.5 41.3 0.5 
Common equity 4,010.5 48.9 3,335.8 42.8 

Total capitalization $ 8,219.1 100.0 % $ 7,797.3 100.0 % 

PacifiCorp manages its capitalization and liquidity position with a key objective of retaining existing credit ratings, 
which is expected to facilitate continuing access to flexible borrowing arrangements at favorable costs and rates. 
This objective, subject to periodic review and revision, attempts to balance the interests of all shareholders, 
ratepayers and creditors and to provide a competitive cost of capital and predictable capital market access. 

As a result of recent changes in accounting standards, such as FIN 46R, Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities, 
an interpretation ofAccounting Research Bulletin No. 51, and EITF No. 01-08, Determining Whether an 
Ari*angement Is a Lease, it is possible that new purchase power and gas agreements, transmission arrangements or 
amendments to existing arrangements may be accounted for as capital lease obligations or debt on PacifiCorp's 
financial statements. While PacifiCorp has successfully amended covenants in financing arrangements that may be 
impacted by these changes, it may be more difficult for PacifiCorp to comply with its capitalization targets or 
regulatory commitments concerning minimum levels of common equity as a percentage of capitalization. This may 
lead PacifiCorp to seek amendments or waivers from regulators, delay or reduce dividends or spending programs, 
seek additional new common equity contributions from its immediate parent, PPW Holdings LLC, or take other 
actions. 

Limitations 
In addition to PacifiCorp's capital structure objectives, its debt capacity is also governed by its contractual and 
regulatory commitments. 

PacifiCorp's credit agreement contains customary covenants and default provisions, including a covenant not to 
exceed a specified debt-to-capitalization ratio of 65.0%. As of March 3 I ,  2006, management believes that 
PacifiCorp could have borrowed an additional $3.3 billion without exceeding this threshold. Any additional 
borrowings would be subject to market conditions, and amounts may be further limited by regulatory authorizations 
or by covenants and tests contained in other financing agreements. 

The state regulatory orders that authorized the acquisition by MEHC contain restrictions on PacifiCorp's ability to 
pay common dividends to the extent that they would reduce PacifiCorp's common stock equity below specified 
percentages of defined capitalization. 

As of March 3 1 ,  2006, the most restrictive of these comlnitments prohibits PacifiCorp from making any distribution 
to PPW Holdings LLC or MEHC without prior state regulatory approval to the extent that it would reduce 
PacifiCorp's colnmon stock equity below 48.25% of its total capitalization, excluding short-term debt and current 
maturities of long-tenn debt. After December 3 I ,  2008, this nlinin~um level of common equity declines annually to 
44.0% after December 31, 201 1.  The terms of this commitment treat 50.0% of PacifiCorp's preferred stock 



outstanding prior to the acquisition of PacifiCorp by MEHC as common equity. As of March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp's 
actual common stock equity percentage, as calculated under this measure, exceeded the minimum threshold. 

FUTURE USES OF CASH 

Dividends 

PacifiCorp does not presently anticipate that it will declare dividends on common stock during the 12 months 
ending March 3 1, 2007. 

Capital Expenditure Program 

Actual capital expenditures were $ 1,049.0 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 and $85 1.6 milljon for the 
year ended March 3 1,2005. Estimated capital expenditures for the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007 are expected 
to be approximately $1.1 billion, which include $129.2 million for emissions control equipment to address current 
and anticipated air quality regulations, $137.9  nill lion for generation development projects, and $875.1 million for 
ongoing operational projects. 

In conjunction with state regulatory approvals of the PacifiCorp acquisition, MEHC and PacifiCorp committed to 
invest $812.0 lnillion in capital spending for emission control equipment to address current and future air quality 
initiatives implemented by the EPA or by the states in which PacifiCorp operates facilities. Additional capital 
expenditures for emission reduction projects may be required, depending on the outco~ne of pending or new air 
quality regulations. The actual and estimated expenditures for emissions control equipment include amounts for 
installation of equipment at the Huntington Power Plant. The actual expenditures for the Huntington Power Plant 
were $59.6 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006. The estimated expenditures for the 12 months ending March 
3 1,2007 are $68.7 million. 

In March 2006, PacifiCorp completed construction of the Currant Creek Power Plant, a 523.0-MW combined-cycle 
plant in Utah. Total project costs incurred through March 3 1, 2006 were approximately $338.0 million. The 
estimates provided above for generation development projects include the remaining costs to have the Lake Side 
Power Plant constructed, as well as upgrades of other generation plant equipment. As of March 3 1, 2006, $208.9 
mjllion of the $347.0 million expected total cost for the Lake Side Power Plant had been incurred. 

PacifiCorp is focused on infrastructure ilnprovement projects in targeted areas to improve customer service and 
network safety and enhance system reliability and performance. PacifiCorp and MEHC have committed to a number 
of transmission and distribution system investments in connection with regulatory approval of PacifiCorp's sale to 
MEHC. Approximately $5 19.5 million in investments in PacifiCorp's transmission and distribution system are 
expected over the next several years, of which $13.9 million are currently estimated to be incurred during the 12 
months ending March 3 1, 2007. 

All of these expenditures are subject to continuing review and revision by PacifiCorp, and actual costs could vary 
from estimates due to various factors, such as changes in business conditions, revised load-growth estimates, future 
legislative and regulatory developments, increasing costs in labor, equipment and materials, competition in the 
industry for similar technology and management's strategies for achieving compliance with regulations. The 
estimates of capital expenditures for the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007 generally excludes the potential impact 
on generation and transmission capacity of future decisions arising from further stages of PacifiCorp's various 
Integrated Resource Plans. Additional expenditures may be significant but are spread over a number of years and 
cannot be accurately estimated at this time. Based on future decisions arising from the Integrated Resource Plan 
process, including wind generation projects, the estimate of capital expenditures may be revised. 

In funding its capital expenditure program, PacifiCorp expects to obtain funds required for construction and other 
purposes froin sources similar to those used in the past, including operating cash flows, the issuance of new long- 
tenn and short-term debt and equity contributions from MEHC. 



Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 

Contractual Obligations 
The table below shows PacifiCorp's contractual obligations as of March 31, 2006. 

Payments due during the 12 months ending March 3 1, 

(Millions of dollars) 

Long-term debt, including interest: 
Fixed-rate obligations 
Variable-rate obligations (a) 

Short-tern1 debt, including interest 
Preferred stock subject to 

mandatory redemption 
Capital leases, including interest 
Operating leases (b) 
Asset retirement obligations (c) 
Power purchase agreements: (d) 

Electricity commodity contracts 
Electricity capacity contracts 
Electricity mixed contracts 

Transmission 
Fuel purchase agreements: (d) 

Natural gas supply and transporation 
Coal supply and transportation 

Purchase obligations (e) 
Owned hydroelectric commitments (0 
Other long-term liabilities (g) 

2007 2008-2009 2010-201 1 Thereafter Total 

Total contractual cash obligations $ 2,138.5 S 3,080.3 $ 2,049.0 S 10,405.0 $ 17,672.8 

(a) Consists of principal and interest for pollution-control revenue bond obligations with interest rates scheduled to 
reset within the next 12 months. Future variable interest rates are set at March 3 1, 2006 rates. See "Item 7A. 
Interest Rate Risk" for additional discussion related to variable-rate liabilities. 

(b) Excluded from these amounts are power purchase agreements that meet the definition of an operating lease. Such 
amounts are included with power purchase agreements. 

(c) Represents expected cash payments adjusted for inflation for estimated costs to perform legally required asset 
retirement activities. 

(d) Colnmodity contracts are agreements for the delivery of energy. Capacity contracts are agreements that provide 
rights to the energy output of a specified facility. Forecasted or other applicable estimated prices were used to 
determine total dollar value of the commitments for purposes of the table. Amounts included in power purchase 
agreements include those agreements that meet the definition of an operating lease. 

(e) Includes minimum commitments for maintenance, outsourcing of certain services, contracts for software, 
telephone, data and consulting or advisory services. Also includes contractual obligations for engineering, 
procurement and constn~ction costs on the Lake Side Power Plant and Huntington Power Plant emission control 
equipment. 
The purchase obligation amounts consist of items for which PacifiCorp is contractually obligated to purchase 
from a third party as of March 3 1,2006. These amounts only constitute the known portion of PacifiCorp's 
expected future expenses; therefore, the amounts presented in the table will not provide a reliable indicator of 
PacifiCorp's expected future cash outflows on a stand-alone basis. For purposes of identifying and accumulating 
purchase obligations, PacifiCorp has included all contracts meeting the definition of a purchase obligation (e.g., 
legally binding and specifying all significant terms, including fixed or minimurn amount or quantity to be 
purchased and the approximate timing of the transaction). For those contracts involving a fixed or minimum 
quantity but variable pricing. PacifiCorp has estimated the contractual obligation based on its best estimate of 
pricing that will be in effect at the time the obligation is incurred. 

( PacifiCorp has entered into settlement agreements with various interested parties to resolve issues necessary to 



obtain new hydroelectric licenses from the FERC. These settlement agreements generally include clauses that 
allow for termination of certain of PacifiCorp's obligations if the FERC license order is not consistent with the 
settlement agreement. The table only includes contractual obligations made in settlement agreements that are not 
contingent upon the FERC license being consistent with the settlement agreement and obligations that are 
required by the FERC licenses. Hydroelectric licenses have varying expiration dates, and several expire within 
the next five years. The contractual obligations included in the table expire with the license expiration dates. 
However, PacifiCorp plans to acquire new ljcenses that will allow for continued operation for more than 30 years 
and expects contractual obligations to continue or increase. 
Includes environmental commitments recorded on the balance sheet that are contractually or legally binding. 
Excludes regulatory liabilities and employee benefit plan obligations that are not legally or contractually fixed as 
to timing and amount. Deferred income taxes are also excluded since cash payments are based primarily on 
taxable income for each discrete year. 

Commercial Commitments 
At March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp had $5 17.8 million of standby letters of credit and standby bond purchase 
agreements available to provide credit enhancement and liquidity support for variable-rate pollution-control revenue 
bond obligations. In addition, PacifiCorp had approximately $40.5 million of standby letters of credit to provide 
credit support for certain transactions as requested by third parties. These committed bank arrangements were all 
fully available as of March 3 1, 2006 and expire periodically through the 12 months ending March 3 1, 201 1. 

PacifiCorp's standby letters of credit and standby bond purchase agreements generally contain similar covenants to 
those contained in PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement. See "Financing Activities - Revolving Credit 
Agreement" for further information. However, the maximum debt-to-capitalization ratio for one of these 
arrangements was 60.0% as of March 3 1,2006 and was amended in May 2006 to now pennit a maximum ratio of 
65.0%. PacifiCorp monitors these covenants on a regular basis and at March 3 1, 2006, was in compliance with the 
covenants of these agreements. 

PacifiCorp's commercial commitments include surety bonds that provide indemnities for PacifiCorp in relation to 
various commitments it has to third parties for obligations in the event of default on behalf of PacifiCorp. The 
majority of these bonds are continuous in nature and renew annually. Based on current contractual commitments, 
PacifiCorp's level of surety bonding beyond the year ended March 31, 2006, is estimated to be approximately $27.3 
million. This estimate is based on current information and actual amounts may vary due to rate changes or changes 
to the general operations of PacifiCorp. 

CREDIT RATINGS 

PacifiCorp's credit ratings at March 31,2006, were as follows: 

IssuerICorporate 
Senior secured debt 
Senior unsecured debt 
Preferred stock 
Commercial paper 

Moody's Standard & Poor's 

Baal A- 
A3 A- 

Baal BBB+ 
Baa3 BBB 
P-2 A- 1 

Outlook Stable Stable 

In February 2006, Moody's Investors Service affinned the issuer and securities ratings of PacifiCorp and changed 
the ratings outlook to stable from developing. In March 2006, Standard & Poor's Rating Services affirmed the 
corporate credit ratings and securities ratings of PacifiCorp and changed the ratings outlook to stable from 
Creditwatch with negative implications. Also in March 2006, Standard & Poor's Rating Services raised the short- 
tenn rating for PacifiCorp to A-1 from A-2. 

PacifiCorp has no rating-downgrade triggers that would accelerate the maturity dates of its debt. A change in ratings 
is not an event of default, nor is the maintenance of a specific rninimurn level of credit rating a condition to drawing 
upon PacifiCorp's credit agreement. However, interest rates on loans under the revolving credit agreement and 



commitment fees are tied to credit ratings and would increase or decrease when ratings are changed. A ratings 
downgrade may reduce the accessibility and increase the cost of PacifiCorp's commercial paper program, its 
principal source of short-term borrowing, and may result in the requirement that PacifiCorp post collateral under 
certain of PacifiCorp's power purchase and other agreements. Certain authorizations or exemptions by regulatory 
commissions for the issuance of securities are valid as long as PacifiCorp maintains investment-grade ratings on 
senior secured debt. A downgrade below that level would necessitate new regulatory applications and approvals. 

In conjunction with its risk management activities, PacifiCorp must meet credit quality standards as required by 
counterparties. In accordance with industry practice, contractual agreements that govern PacifiCorp's energy 
management activities either specifically provide bilateral rights to demand cash or other security if credit exposures 
on a net basis exceed certain ratings-dependent threshold levels or provide the right for counterparties to demand 
"adequate assurances" in the event of a material adverse change in PacifiCorp's creditworthiness. If one or more 
of PacifiCorp's credit ratings decline below investment grade, PacifiCorp would be required to post cash collateral, 
letters of credit or other similar credit support to facilitate ongoing wholesale energy management activities. As of 
March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp's credit ratings from Standard & Poor's and Moody's were investment grade; however, 
if the ratings fell more than one rating below investment grade, PacifiCorp's estimated potential collateral 
requirements totaled approximately S334.0 million. PacifiCorp's potential collateral requirements could fluctuate 
considerably due to seasonality, market prices and their volatility, a loss of key PacifiCorp generating facilities or 
other related factors. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

PacifiCorp from time to time enters into arrangements in the normal course of business to facilitate commercial 
transactions with third parties that involve guarantee, indemnification or similar arrangements. PacifiCorp currently 
has indemnification obligations for breaches of warranties or covenants in connection with the sale of certain assets. 
In addition, PacifiCorp evaluates potential obligations that arise out of variable interests in unconsolidated entities, 

determined in accordance with the FASB Interpretation No. 46, Corzsolidation of Variable-Interest Entities, an 
interpretation ofAccozrnting Research Bulletin No. 51. PacifiCorp believes that the likelihood that it would be 
required to perform or otherwise incur any significant losses associated with any of these obligations is remote. See 
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data -Note 11 - Guarantees and Other Commitments" and "Note 
13 - Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities" for more information on these obligations and arrangements. 

INFLATION 

PacifiCorp is subject to rate-of-return regulation and the impact of inflation on the level of cost recovery under 
regulation varies by state depending upon the type of test-period convention used in the state. In PacifiCorp's state 
jurisdictions, a 12-month period of historical costs is typically used as the basis for developing a "test year," which 
may also include various adjustments to eliminate abnormal or one time events, normalize cost levels, or escalate 
the historical costs to a future level when the new rates will actually be in effect. To the extent that the levels of 
costs beyond the historical 12-month period can be established either through known adjustments or through the 
escalation of cost levels in establishing prices, PacifiCorp can mitigate the impacts of inflationary pressures. The 
majority of PacifiCorp's retail customer prices are established using forecasts. These forecasts may include, but are 
not limited to, projected rate base levels and expenses, which are adjusted for both inflation and known and 
measurable changes. They may also include projected revenue and power cost changes related to load growth. 



ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET 
RISK 

PacifiCorp participates in a wholesale energy market that includes public utility companies, electricity and natural 
gas marketers, financial institutions, industrial companies and government entities. A variety of products exist in 
this market, ranging from electricity and natural gas purchases and sales for physical delivery to financial 
instruments such as futures, swaps, options and other complex derivatives. Transactions may be conducted directly 
with customers and suppliers, through brokers, or with an exchange that serves as a central clearing mechanism. 

PacifiCorp is subject to the various risks inherent in the energy business, including credit risk, interest rate risk and 
commodity price risk. 

Risk Management 

PacifiCorp has a risk management committee that is responsible for the oversight of market and credit risk relating 
to the commodity transactions of PacifiCorp. To limit PacifiCorp's exposure to market and credit risk, the risk 
management committee sets policies and limits and approves commodity strategies, which are reviewed frequently 
to respond to changing market conditions. 

Risk is an inherent part of PacifiCorp's business and activities. The risk management process established by 
PacifiCorp is designed to identify, assess, monitor, report, manage and mitigate each of the various types of risk 
involved in its business and activities and to measure quantitative market risk exposure and identify qualitative 
market risk exposure in its businesses. To assist in managing the volatility relating to these exposures, PacifiCorp 
enters into various transactions, including derivative transactions, consistent with PacifiCorp's risk management 
policy and procedures. The risk management policy governs energy transactions and is designed for hedging 
PacifiCorp's existing energy and asset exposures, and to a limited extent, the policy permits arbitrage activities to 
take advantage of market inefficiencies. The policy and procedures also govern PacifiCorp's use of derivative 
instruments for commodity derivative transactions, as well as its energy purchase and sales practices, and describe 
PacifiCorp's credit policy and management information systems required to effectively monitor such derivative use. 
PacifiCorp's risk management policy provides for the use of only those instruments that have a similar volume or 
price relationship to its portfolio of assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions, thereby ensuring that such 
instruments will be primarily used for hedging. PacifiCorp's portfolio of energy derivatives is substantially used for 
non-trading purposes. 

PacifiCorp continues to actively manage its exposure to commodity price volatility. These activities may include 
adding to the generation portfolio and entering into transactions that help to shape PacifiCorp's system resource 
portfolio, including wholesale contracts and financially settled temperature-related derivative instruments that 
reduce volume and price risk due to weather extremes. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that might occur as a result of non-perfomlance by counterparties of their 
contractual obligations to make or take delivery of electricity, natural gas or other commodities and to make 
financial settlements of these obligations. Credit risk may be concentrated to the extent that one or more groups of 
counterparties have similar economic, industry or other characteristics that would cause their ability to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in market or other conditions. In addition, credit risk 
includes not only the risk that a counterparty may default due to circumstances relating directly to it, but also the 
risk that a counterparty may default due to circumstances involving other market participants that have a direct or 
indirect relationship with such counterparty. 

PacifiCorp seeks to mitigate credit risk (and concentrations of credit risk) by applying specific eligibility criteria to 
prospective counterparties. However, despite mitigation efforts, defaults by counterparties occur from time to time. 
PacifiCorp continues to actively monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties with whom it transacts and uses a 
variety of risk mitigation techniques to limit its exposure as it believes appropriate. When PacifiCorp considers a 
new asset purchase, transaction or contractual arrangement, market liquidity and the ability to optimize the 



investment are main considerations. To mitigate exposure to the financial risks of wholesale counterparties, 
PacifiCorp has entered into netting and collateral arrangements that include margining and cross-product netting 
agreements and obtaining third-party guarantees, letters of credit and cash deposits. Counterparties may be assessed 
interest fees for delayed receipts. If required, PacifiCorp exercises rights under these arrangements, including 
calling on the counterparty's credit support arrangement. 

The following table represents PacifiCorp's March 3 1, 2006 distribution of unsecured credit exposure, net of 
collateral, within its electricity and natural gas portfolio of purchase and sale contracts and takes into account 
contractual netting rights. 

Distribution of Credit Exposure % of Total 

Investment grade - Externally rated 81.6 % 
Non-investment grade - Externally rated 0.1 
Investment grade - Internally rated 0.2 
Non-investment grade - Internally rated 18.1 

100.0 % 

"Externally rated" represents enterprise relationships that have published ratings from at least one major credit 
rating agency. "Internally rated" represents those relationships that have no rating by a major credit rating agency. 
For those relationships, PacifiCorp utilizes internally developed, commercially appropriate rating methodologies 
and credit scoring models to develop a public rating equivalent. 

The "Non-investment grade - Internally rated" component of PacifiCorp's overall credit exposure reflects the 
market value of a small number of contracts that support PacifiCorp's Integrated Resource Plan and Oregon's 
electric energy restructuring legislation as it relates to renewable energy projects, as well as compliance with FERC 
regulations requiring utilities to purchase power from qualifying facilities. 

Interest Rate Risk 

PacifiCorp is exposed to risk resulting from changes in interest rates as a result of its issuance of variable-rate debt 
and commercial paper. PacifiCorp manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a blend of fixed-rate and 
variable-rate debt and by monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates. Changing interest rates will 
affect interest paid on variable-rate debt and interest earned by PacifiCorp's pension plan assets, mining reclamation 
trust funds and cash balances. PacifiCorp's principal sources of variable-rate debt are commercial paper and 
pollution-control revenue bonds remarketed on a periodic basis. Commercial paper is periodically refinanced with 
fixed-rate debt when needed and when interest rates are considered favorable. PacifiCorp may also enter into 
financial derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps, swaptions and United States Treasury lock 
agreements, to manage and mitigate interest rate exposure. PacifiCorp does not anticipate using financial derivatives 
as the principal means of managing interest rate exposure. PacifiCorp's weighted-average cost of debt is recoverable 
in rates. Increases or decreases in interest rates are reflected in PacifiCorp's cost of debt calculation as rate cases are 
filed. Any adverse change to PacifiCorp's credit rating could negatively impact PacifiCorp's ability to borrow and 
the interest rates that are charged. 

As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had fixed-rate long-term liabilities of $3,405.4 million in aggregate principal 
amount and having a fair value of $3,597.1 million. These instruments have fixed interest rates and therefore do not 
expose PacifiCorp to the risk of earnings loss due to changes in market interest rates. However, the fair value of 
these instruments would decrease by approximately $1 14.3 million if interest rates were to increase by 10.0% from 
their levels at March 3 I ,  2006. In general, such a decrease in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows only 
if PacifiCorp were to reacquire all or a portion of these instruments prior to their maturity. 

As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had $726.1 million of variable-rate liabilities and $1 13.6 million of temporary 
cash investments compared to $1,010.5 million of variable-rate liabilities and $1 82.2 million of temporary cash 
investments at March 3 1, 2005. At March 31, 2006 and 2005, PacifiCorp had no financial derivatives in effect 
relating to interest rate exposure. 



Based on a sensitivity analysis as of March 31, 2006, for a one-year horizon, PacifiCorp estimates that if market 
interest rates average 1.0% higher (lower) during the 12 months ending March 31, 2007 than during the year ended 
March 3 1, 2006, interest expense, net of offsetting impacts on interest income, would increase (decrease) by $6.1 
million. Comparatively, based on a sensitivity analysis as of March 3 1,2005, for a one-year horizon, had interest 
rates averaged 1 .O% higher (lower) during the year ended March 3 1,2006 than during the year ended March 3 1, 
2005, PacifiCorp estimated that interest expense, net of offsetting impacts in interest income, would have increased 
(decreased) by $8.3 million. These amounts include the effect of invested cash and were determined by considering 
the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on the variable-rate securities outstanding as of March 31, 2006 and 
2005. The decrease in interest rate sensitivity is primarily due to the decrease in outstanding variable-rate 
commercial paper, partially offset by the decrease in invested cash. If interest rates change significantly, PacifiCorp 
might take actions to manage its exposure to the change. However, due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that 
might be taken and their possible effects, the sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in PacifiCorp's financial 
structure. 

Commodity Price Risk 

PacifiCorp's exposure to market risk due to commodity price change is primarily related to its fuel and electricity 
commodities, which are subject to fluctuations due to unpredictable factors, such as weather, electricity demand and 
plant performance, that affect energy supply and demand. PacifiCorp's energy purchase and sales activities are 
governed by PacifiCorp's risk management policy and the risk levels established as part of that policy. 

PacifiCorp's energy commodity price exposure arises primarily from its electric supply obligation in the western 
United States. PacifiCorp manages this risk principally through the operation of its generation plants with a net 
capability of 8,470.4 MW, as well as transmission rights held both on some of its own 15,580-mile transmission 
system and on third-party transmission systems, and through its wholesale energy purchase and sales activities. 
Wholesale contracts are utilized primarily to balance PacifiCorp's physical excess or shortage of net electricity for 
future time periods. Financially settled contracts are utilized to further mitigate commodity price risk. PacifiCorp 
may from time to time enter into other financially settled, temperature-related derivative instruments that reduce 
volume and price risk on days with weather extremes. In addition, a financially settled hydroelectric streamflow 
hedge is in place through September 2006 to reduce volume and price risks associated with PacifiCorp's 
hydroelectric generation resources. 

PacifiCorp measures the market risk in its electricity and natural gas portfolio daily, utilizing a historical Value-at- 
Risk ("VaR") approach and other measurements of net position. PacifiCorp also monitors its portfolio exposure to 
market risk in comparison to established thresholds and lneasures its open positions subject to price risk in terms of 
quantity at each delivery location for each forward time period. 

VaR computations for the electricity and natural gas commodity portfolio are based on a historical simulation 
technique, utilizing historical price changes over a specified (holding) period to simulate potential forward energy 
market price curve movements to estimate the potential unfavorable impact of such price changes on the portfolio 
positions scheduled to settle within the following 24 months. The quantification of market risk using VaR provides 
a consistent measure of risk across PacifiCorp's continually changing portfolio. VaR represents an estimate of 
possible changes at a given level of confidence in fair value that would be measured on its portfolio assuming 
hypothetical movements in future market rates and is not necessarily indicative of actual results that may occur. 

PacifiCorp's VaR computations for its electricity and natural gas commodity portfolio utilize several key 
assumptions, including a 99.0% confidence level for the resultant price changes and a holding period of five 
business days. The calculation includes short-term derivative commodity instruments held for risk mitigation and 
balancing purposes, the expected resource and demand obligations from PacifiCorp's long-tern1 contracts, the 
expected generation levels from PacifiCorp's generation assets and the expected retail and wholesale load levels. 
The portfolio reflects flexibility contained in contracts and assets, which accommodate the normal variability in 
PacifiCorp's demand obligations and generation availability. These contracts and assets are valued to reflect the 
variability PacifiCorp experiences as a load-serving entity. Contracts or assets that contain flexible elements are 
often referred to as having embedded options or option characteristics. These options provide for energy volume 
changes that are sensitive to market price changes. Therefore, changes in the option values affect the energy 



position of the portfolio with respect to market prices, and this effect is calculated daily. When measuring portfolio 
exposure through VaR, these position changes that result from the option sensitivity are held constant through the 
historical simulation to avoid understating VaR. 

As of March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp's estimated potential five-day unfavorable impact on fair value of the electricity 
and natural gas commodity portfolio over the next 24 months was $22.4 million, as measured by the VaR 
computations described above, compared to $15.5 million as of March 3 1,2005. The minimum, average and 
maximum daily VaR (five-day holding periods) for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 

Minimum VaR (measured) S 6.7 $ 10.6 
Average VaR (calculated) 16.9 16.6 
Maximum VaR (measured) 46.2 26.3 

PacifiCorp maintained compliance with its VaR limit procedures during the year ended March 3 1, 2006. Changes in 
markets inconsistent with historical trends or assumptions used could cause actual results to exceed predicted limits. 

Fair Value of Derivatives 

The following table shows the changes in the fair value of energy-related contracts subject to the requirements of 
SFAS No. 133 from April 1, 2005, to March 31,2006 and quantifies the reasons for the changes. 

Regulatory 
Net Asset (LiabiliM Net Asset 

(Millions of dollars) Trading Non-trading (Liability) (b) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1 ,  2005 $ 0.2 S (154.4) $ 170.0 
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period (0.2) (1 15.8) 128.3 
Other changes in fair values (a) 0.2 277.9 (203.6) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1, 2006 $ 0.2 $ 7.7 S 94.7 

(a) Other changes in fair values include the effects of changes in market prices, inflation rates and interest 
rates, 
including those based on models, on new and existing contracts. 

(b) Net unrealized losses (gains) related to derivative contracts included in rates are recorded as a regulatory net 
asset (liability). 

The fair value of derivative instruments is determined using forward price curves. Forward price curves represent 
PacifiCorp's esti~nates of the prices at which a buyer or seller could contract today for delivery or settlement of a 
commodity at future dates. PacifiCorp bases its forward price curves upon market price quotations when available 
and internally developed and commercial models with internal and external fundamental data inputs when market 
quotations are unavailable. In general, PacifiCorp estimates the fair value of a contract by calculating the present 
value of the difference between the prices in the contract and the applicable forward price curve. Price quotations 
for certain major electricity trading hubs are generally readily obtainable for the first six years, and therefore 
PacifiCorp's forward price curves for those locations and periods reflect observable market quotes. However; in the 
later years or for locations that are not actively traded, PacifiCorp must develop forward price curves. For short- 
term contracts at less actively traded locations, prices are modeled based on observed historical price relationships 
with actively traded locations. For long-tenn contracts extending beyond six years, the forward price curve is based 
upon the use of a fundamentals model (cost-to-build approach) due to the limited infonnation available. Factors 
used in the fundamentals model include the forward prices for the con~modities used as fuel to generate electricity, 
the expected system heat rate (which measures the efficiency of electricity plants in converting fuel to electricity) in 
the region where the purchase or sale takes place and a fundamental forecast of expected spot prices based on 



modeled supply and demand in the region. The assumptions in these models are critical since any changes to the 
assuinptions could have a significant impact on the fair value of the contract. Contracts with explicit or embedded 
optionality are valued by separating each contract into its physical and financial forward and option components. 
Forward components are valued against the appropriate forward price curve. The optionality is valued using a 
modified Black-Scholes model or a stochastic simulation (Monte Carlo) approach. Each option component is 
modeled and valued separately using the appropriate forward price curve. 

PacifiCorp's valuation models and assumptions are continuously updated to reflect current market information, and 
evaluations and refinements of model assumptions are performed on a periodic basis. 

The following table shows summarized information with respect to valuation techniques and contractual maturities 
of PacifiCorp's energy-related contracts qualifying as derivatives under SFAS No. 133 as of March 3 1, 2006. 

Fair Value of Contracts at Period-End 

(Millions of dollars) 

Trading: 
Values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources 

Non-trading: 

Values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources 

Values based on models and other valuation methods 

Total non-trading 

Regulatory net asset (liability) 

Maturity Maturity in Total 

Less Than Maturity Maturity Excess of Fair 

l Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Value 

Standardized derivative contracts that are valued using market quotations are classified as "values based on quoted 
market prices from third-party sources." All remaining contracts, which include non-standard contracts and 
contracts for which market prices are not routinely quoted, are classified as "values based on models and other 
valuation methods." Both classifications utilize market curves as appropriate for the first six years. 

PacifiCorp currently has a non-exchange traded streamflow weather derivative contract to reduce PacifiCorp's 
exposure to variability in weather conditions that affect hydroelectric generation. Under the agreement, PacifiCorp 
pays an annual premium in return for the right to make or receive payments if streamflow levels are above or below 
certain thresholds. PacifiCorp estimates and records an asset or liability corresponding to the total expected future 
cash flow under the contract in accordance with EITF No. 99-2, Accountingfor. FVeatlzer,Der,ivatives. The net asset 
(liability) recorded for this contract was $(2.1) million at March 3 1, 2006 and $20.3 million at March 31, 2005. 
PacifiCorp recognized a loss of S 15.6 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006; a gain of $27.9 million for the 
year ended March 31,2005; and a gain of $0.4 million for the year ended March 3 1,2004. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of PacifiCorp: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, 
common shareholder's equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries at March 3 1, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended March 3 1, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries changed the manner 
in which they apply the normal purchases and normal sales exception to derivative contracts entered into or 
modified after June 30, 2003, upon their adoption of SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities, as of July I, 2003. 

As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries changed the manner 
in which they account for asset retirement obligations upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations, as of April I ,  2003. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Portland, Oregon 
May 26,2006 



(Millions of dollars) 

Revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Energy costs 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes, other than income taxes 

Total 

PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCORlE 

Income from operations 

Interest expense and other (income) expense: 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Interest capitalized 
Minority interest and other 

Total 

Income from operations before income tax expense 
and cumulative effect of accounting change 

Income tax expense 

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (less applicable 
income tax benefit of $(0.6)/2004 

Net income 

Preferred dividend requirement 

Earnings on common stock 

Years Ended March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(Millions of dollars) 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable less allowance for doubthl accounts of 

$1 1.412006 and $1 1.612005 
Unbilled revenue 
Amounts due from affiliates - ScottishPower 
Inventories at average costs: 

Materials and supplies 
Fuel 

Current derivative contract asset 
Other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Generation 
Transmission 
Distribution 
Intangible plant 
Other 

Total operating assets 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net operating assets 
Construction work-in-progress 

Total property, plant and equipment, net 

Other assets: 
Regulatory assets 
Derivative contract regulatory asset 
Non-current derivative contract asset 
Deferred charges and other 

Total other assets 

Total assets 

March 3 1 : 
2006 2005 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 



PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS, continued 

(Millions of dollars) 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Amounts due to affiliates - MidAmerican 
Amounts due to affiliates - ScottishPower 
Accrued employee expenses 
Taxes payable 
Interest payable 
Current derivative contract liability 
Current deferred tax liability 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, currently maturing 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, currently maturing 
Notes payable and commercial paper 
Other 

Total current liabilities 

Deferred credits: 
Deferred income taxes 
Investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabilities 
Non-current derivative contract liability 
Pension and other post employment liabilities 
Other 

Total deferred credits 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current maturities 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, net of current maturities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments, contingencies and guarantees (See Notes 10 and 11) 

Shareholders' equity: 
Preferred stock 
Common equity: 

Common shareholder's capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax of $1.712006 and $2.612005 

Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $(2.5)12006 and $(5.5)12005 

Total common equity 

Total shareholders' equity 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 

March 3 1, 

2006 2005 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of  these consolidated financial statements 
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PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Millions of dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 
Unrealized gain on derivative contracts, net 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 
Regulatory assetiliability establishment and amortization 
Other 

Changes in: 
Accounts receivable, prepayments and other current assets 
Inventories 
Amounts due tolfrom affiliates - MidAmerican, net 
Amounts due tolfrom affiliates - ScottishPower, net 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from sales of assets 
Proceeds from available-for-sale securities 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 
Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Changes in short-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt. net of issuance costs 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to PHI 
Dividends paid 
Repayments and redemptions of long-term debt 
Repayment of preferred securities 
Redemptions of preferred stock 
Other 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Years Ended March 3 1. 

The accotnpanying notes are an integral part of these collsolidated financial statements. 
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PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMON SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

(Millions of dollars, thousands of shares) 
Common Shareholder's 

Accumulated 
Other Total 

Capital Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive 
Shares Amounts Earnings Income (Loss) Income (Loss) 

Balance at March 3 1, 2003 312,176 S 2,892.1 $ 305.9 $ (3.6) 

Comprehensive income 
Net income 248.1 - $ 248.1 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax of $3.8 6.2 6.2 

Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $(3.8) (6.1) (6.1) 
Cash dividends declared: 

Preferred stock (3.3) 
Common stock ($0.51 per share) (160.6) 

Balance at March 3 1,  2004 312,176 2,892.1 390.1 (3.5) $ 248.2 

Comprehensive income 
Net income 25 1.7 - S 251.7 
Other comprehensive loss: 

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax of $(0.1) (0.2) (0.2) 

Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $(0.6) (1 .o) (1.0) 
Stock-based colnpensation expense 2.0 
Cash dividends declared: 

Preferred stock (2.1) 
Common stock (50.62 per share) (193.3) 

Balance at March 3 1, 2005 312,176 2,894.1 446.4 (4.7) 9 250.5 

Comprehensive income 
Net income 
Other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax of $(0.9) 

Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $3.0 
Common stock issuance 
Tax benefit from stock option exercises 
Separation of elnployee benefit plans 
Other 
Cash dividends declared: 

Preferred stock 
Common stock ($0.53 per share) 

Balance at March 3 I, 2006 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



PACIFICORP AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

On March 2 1, 2006, MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company ("MEHC") completed its purchase of all of 
PacifiCorp's outstanding common stock from PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. ("PHI"), a subsidiary of Scottish Power plc 
("ScottishPower"), pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement among MEHC, ScottishPower and PHI dated May 
23,2005, as amended on March 21,2006. The cash purchase price was $5.1 billion. PacifiCorp's common stock 
was directly acquired by a subsidiary of MEHC, PPW Holdings LLC. As a result of this transaction, MEHC 
controls the significant majority of PacifiCorp's voting securities, which includes both common and preferred stock. 
MEHC, a global energy company based in Des Moines, Iowa, is a majority-owned subsidiary of Berkshire 
Hathaway Inc. 

Nature o f  operations - PacifiCorp (which includes PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries) is a United States electricity 
company serving retail customers in portions of the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and 
California. PacifiCorp generates electricity and also engages in electricity sales and purchases on a wholesale basis. 
The subsidiaries of PacifiCorp support its electric utility operations by providing coal mining and other fuel-related 
services, as well as environmental remediation. 

As a result of a settlement agreement between MEHC, the Utah Committee of Consumer Services and Utah 
Industrial Energy Consumers, MEHC contributed to PacifiCorp, at no cost, MEHC's indirect 100.0% ownership 
interest in Intermountain Geothermal Company, which controls 69.3% of the steam rights associated with the 
geothermal field serving PacifiCorp's Blundell Geothermal Plant in Utah. Intermountain Geothermal Company 
therefore became a wholly owned subsidiary of PacifiCorp in March 2006, subsequent to the sale of PacifiCorp to 
MEHC. 

Basis o f  presentation - The Consolidated Financial Statements of PacifiCorp include its integrated electric utility 
operations and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have 
been eliminated upon consolidation. 

Re~ulation - Accounting for the electric utility business conforms to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States as applied to regulated public utilities and as prescribed by agencies and the commissions of the 
various locations in which the electric utility business operates. PacifiCorp prepares its financial statements in 
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 7 1, Accounting for the EfSects of 
Certain Types ofRegztlation ("SFAS No. 71 ") as further discussed in Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of 
Regulation. 

Use o f  estiinates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements. These estimates involve judgments with respect to numerous factors that are difficult to predict 
and are beyond management's control. As a result, actual results could differ materially from these estimates. 

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications of prior years' amounts have been made to conform to the fiscal 2006 
method of presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported consolidated net income. 

Cash and cash e~uivalents - For the purposes of these financial statements, PacifiCorp considers all liquid 
investments with maturities of three months or less, at the time of acquisition, to be cash equivalents. 

Accozlnts receivable and allowance for doubtfkl accounts - Accounts receivable includes billed retail and 
wholesale services plus any accrued and unpaid interest. Credit is granted to customers, which include retail and 
wholesale customers, government agencies and other utilities. Management performs continuing credit evaluations 
of customers' financial conditions, and although PacifiCorp does not require collateral, deposits may be required 
from customers in certain circumstances. Accounts receivable are considered delinquent based on regulations 
provided by 



each state, which is generally if payment is not received by the date due, typically 30 days after the invoice date. 
PacifiCorp charges interest on delinquent customer accounts or past due balances in the states where PacifiCorp 
does business based on the respective regulation of each state, and this interest varies between 1 .O% to 1.7% per 
month. 

Management reviews accounts receivable on a monthly basis to determine if any receivable will potentially be 
uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful accounts includes amounts estimated through an evaluation of specific 
accounts, primarily for wholesale accounts receivable, and a reserve for retail accounts receivable based on 
historical experience. After all attempts to collect a receivable have failed or, if later, by six months from when a 
customer becomes inactive, the receivable is written-off against the allowance. Management believes that the 
alloniance for doubtful accounts as of March 3 1, 2006 was adequate. However, actual write-offs could exceed the 
recorded allowance. The allowance activity was as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 
Years Ended March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 

Beginning balance $ 11.6 $ 23.3 $ 31.1 

Charged to costs and expenses, net (a) 9.2 5.0 5.2 

Write-offs, net (b) (9.4) (16.7) (13.0) 

Ending balance $ 11.4 $ 11.6 $ 23.3 

(a) Includes amounts charged to expense for adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts, net of 
recoveries of niholesale accounts receivable. 

(b) Includes write-offs of retail and wholesale accounts receivable, net of recoveries of retail accounts 
receivable. 

Inventories - Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market. 

Propertv, plant and equipment - Property, plant and equipment are originally recorded at the cost of contracted 
services, direct labor and materials, interest capitalized during construction and indirect charges for engineering, 
supervision and similar overhead items. The cost of depreciable electric utility properties retired, less salvage value, 
is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of removal is charged against the regulatory liability established 
through depreciation rates. Annual overhaul costs for the replacement of defined retirement units are capitalized. 
Generally other costs of overhaul activities and other repairs and maintenance are expensed as they are incurred. 

Intangible plant consists primarily of computer software costs that are originally recorded at cost. Accumulated 
amortization on Intangible plant was $329.8 million at March 3 I ,  2006 and $307.6 million at March 31, 2005. 
Amortization expense on Intangible plant was $45.5 million for the year ended March 31,2006 and $48.5 million 
for the year ended March 3 1, 2005. The estimated aggregate amortization on Intangible plant for the next five 
succeeding 12 month periods ending from March 3 1, 2007 to March 3 1, 201 1 is $45.4 million, $38.9 million, $3 1.0 
million, $24.7 million and $2 1.8 million. Unamortized computer software costs were $186.7 million at March 3 1, 
2006 and $185.1 million at March 3 1, 2005. 

Depreciation and amortization - The average depreciable lives of Property, plant and equipment currently in use by 
category are as follows: 

Generation 
Steam plant 
Hydroelectric plant 
Other plant 

Transmission 
Distribution 
Intangible plant 
Other 

20 - 43 years 
14 - 85 years 
15 - 35 years 
20 - 70 years 
44 - 50 years 
5 - 50 years 
5 - 30 years 



Computer software costs included in Intangible plant are initially assigned a depreciable life of 5 to 10 years. 

During the year ended March 3 1,2005, PacifiCorp changed the estimated average lives of certain computer 
software systems to reflect operational plans. This change reduced amortization expense by $12.9 million annually 
on existing computer software systems, with an annual impact to net income of approximately $8.0 million. 

Depreciation and amortization are computed by the straight-line method either over the life prescribed by 
PacifiCorp's various regulatory jurisdictions for regulated assets or over the assets' estimated useful lives. 
Composite depreciation rates of average depreciable assets on utility Property, plant and equipment (excluding 
amortization of capital leases) were 3.0% for each of the years ended March 3 1, 2006, 2005 and 2004. 

Asset impairments - Long-lived assets to be held and used by PacifiCorp are reviewed for impairment when events 
or circumstances indicate costs may not be recoverable. Such reviews are performed in accordance with SFAS No. 
144, Accounting for the Inzpairment or Disposal of Long-LivedAssets ("SFAS No. 144"). The impacts of regulation 
on cash flows are considered when determining impairment. Impairment losses on long-lived assets are recognized 
when book values exceed expected undiscounted future cash flows with the impairment measured on a discounted 
future cash flows basis. 

Allowance for furzds used during construction - The allowance for funds used during construction (the "AFUDC") 
represents the cost of debt and may also include equity funds used to finance utility property additions during 
construction. As prescribed by regulatory authorities, the AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of utility 
property and is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Interest capitalized. Under regulatory rate 
practices, PacifiCorp is generally permitted to recover the AFUDC, and a fair return thereon, through its rate base 
after the related utility property is placed in service. 

The composite capitalization rates were 6.5% for the year ended March 31,2006; 4.5% for the year ended March 
3 1, 2005; and 7.9% for the year ended March 3 1,2004. PacifiCorp's AFUDC rates do not exceed the maximum 
allowable rates determined by regulatory authorities. 

Derivatives - In accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accountingfor Dei,ivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, 
("SFAS No. 133"), as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain 
Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities ("SFAS No. 149") (collectively "SFAS No. 133"), derivative instruments are measured at fair value and 
recognized as either assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, unless they qualify for the exemptions 
afforded by the standard. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings during the period of 
change. Certain long-term derivative contracts have been approved by regulatory authorities for recovery through 
retail rates. Accordingly, changes in fair value of these contracts are deferred as regulatory assets or liabilities 
pursuant to SFAS No. 71. Derivative contracts for commodities used in PacifiCorp's normal business operation and 
that settle by physical delivery, among other criteria, are eligible for the normal purchases and normal sales 
exemption afforded by SFAS No. 133. These contracts are accounted for under accrual accounting and recorded in 
Revenues or Energy costs in the Consolidated Statements of Income when the contracts settle. 

Marketable securities - PacifiCorp accounts for marketable securities, included in Deferred charges and other on 
PacifiCorp's Consolidated Balance Sheets, in accordance with SFAS No. 11 5, Accounting for Certain Investments 
in Debt and Equiv Sectrities. PacifiCorp determines the appropriate classification of all marketable securities as 
held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such classification as of each 
balance sheet date. As shown in Note 5 - Marketable Securities, at March 3 I ,  2006 and 2005, all of PacifiCorp's 
investments in marketable securities were classified as available-for-sale and were reported at fair value. PacifiCorp 
uses the specific identification method in computing realized gains and losses on the sale of its available-for-sale 
securities. Realized gains and losses are included in Other (income) expense. Unrealized gains and losses are 
reported as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Investments that are in loss positions 
as of the end of each reporting period are analyzed to determine whether they have experienced a decline in market 
value that is considered other-than-temporary. An investment will generally be written down to market value if it 
has a significant unrealized loss for more than nine months. If additional information is available that indicates an 
investment is other-than-temporarily impaired, it will be written down prior to the nine-month time period. If an 



investment has been impaired for more than nine months but available information indicates that the impairment is 
temporary, the investment will not be written down. 

Amounts held irz trust - PacifiCorp holds certain trusts to fund decommissioning and reclamation activities as 
described in Note 5 - Marketable Securities and Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental 
Costs. Amounts are also held in trusts that serve as funding vehicles for certain of PacifiCorp's employee benefits, 
including the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the "SEW") as described in Note 17 - Employee Benefits. 

Asset retirement obliaations and accrued renzoval costs - Effective April 1,2003, PacifiCorp recognizes the fair 
value of legal obligations associated with the retirement or removal of long-lived assets at the time the obligations 
are incurred and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with SFAS No. 143, Accountingfor Asset Retirement 
Obligations ("SFAS No. 143"). The initial recognition of this liability is accompanied by a corresponding increase 
in Property, plant and equipment. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability is adjusted for any revisions to 
the expected value of the retirement obligation (with corresponding adjustments to Property, plant and equipment) 
and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of time. Additional depreciation expense is recorded 
prospectively for any Property, plant and equipment increases. In general, depreciation and accretion expense 
generated by SFAS No. 143 accounting is recorded as a regulatory asset or liability because such amounts are 
recoverable in rates. As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (the 
"FASB") Interpretation No. 47, Accounting,for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations - an Interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 143 ("FIN 47") as described in Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued 
Environmental Costs. 

For those asset retirement removal costs that do not meet the requirements of SFAS No. 143, PacifiCorp recovers 
through approved depreciation rates estimated removal costs and accumulates such amounts in Asset retirement 
removal costs within Regulatory liabilities as described in Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of Regulation. 

Income taxes - PacifiCorp uses the liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. Deferred tax liabilities 
and assets reflect the expected future tax consequences, based on enacted tax law, of temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. 

Prior to the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC on March 21,2006, PacifiCorp was a wholly owned subsidiary of PHI. 
Therefore, it was included in the consolidated income tax return for PHI from April 1, 2003 through March 2 1, 
2006. PacifiCorp currently is an indirect, majority-owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and is included in 
its consolidated income tax return. PacifiCorp's provision for income taxes has been computed on the basis that it 
files separate consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiaries. 

Historically, PacifiCorp did not recognize deferred taxes on many of the timing differences between book and tax 
depreciation. In prior years, these benefits were flowed through to the utility customer as prescribed by PacifiCorp's 
various regulatory jurisdictions. Deferred income tax liabilities and Regulatory assets have been established for 
those flow-through tax benefits as shown in Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of Regulation since PacifiCorp is 
allowed to recover the increased income tax expense when these differences reverse. 

Investment tax credits are deferred and amortized to income over periods prescribed by PacifiCorp's various 
regulatory jurisdictions. 

PacifiCorp establishes accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the belief that its tax return positions are 
supported, it also believes that certain positions may be challenged and that it is probable those positions may not be 
fully sustained. PacifiCorp is under continuous examination by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax 
authorities and accounts for potential losses of tax benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 5 ,  Accounting for 
Contingencies ("SFAS No. 5"). See Note 19 - Income Taxes for further information. 

Stock-based cor?zpensatiorz - As permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accot/nting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 
No. 123"), PacifiCorp accounts for its stock-based compensation arrangements, primarily employee stock options, 
under the intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion 
No. 25, Accounting.fo~* Stock Isszied to Employees ("APB No. 25"), and related interpretations in accounting for 
employee stock options issued to PacifiCorp employees. Under APB No. 25, because the exercise price of employee 



stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no con~pensation expense is 
recorded if the ultimate number of shares to be awarded is known at the date of the grant. All options currently 

accounted for under APB No. 25 were issued in ScottishPower American Depository Shares, as discussed in Note 
18 - Stock-Based Compensation. Had PacifiCorp determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant 
date for all stock options vesting in each period under SFAS No. 123, PacifiCorp's Net income would have been 
reduced to the pro forma amounts below: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Net income as reported 

Years Ended March 3 1,  
2006 2005 2004 

Add: stock-based compensation included 
in reported net income, net of related tax effects 0.1 3.1 

Less: stock-based compensation expense 
using the fair value method, net of related tax effects (1.4) (4.3) (1.1) 

Pro forma net income $ 359.4 $ 250.5 $ 247.0 

Revenue recopnition - Revenue is recognized upon delivery for retail and wholesale electricity sales. Electricity 
sales to retail customers are determined based on meter readings taken throughout the month. PacifiCorp accrues an 
estimate of unbilled revenues, which are earned but not yet billed, net of estimated line losses, each month for 
electric senlice provided after the meter reading date to the end of the month. The process of calculating the 
Unbilled revenue estimate consists of three components: quantifying PacifiCorp's total electricity delivered during 
the month, assigning Unbilled revenues to customer type and valuing the unbilled energy. Factors involved in the 
estimation of consumption and line losses relate to weather conditions, amount of natural light, historical trends, 
economic impacts and customer type. Valuation of unbilled energy is based on estimating the average price for the 
month for each customer type. The amount accrued for Unbilled revenues was S 148.2 million at March 3 1,  2006 
and $143.8 million at March 31, 2005. 

Seament inforniation - PacifiCorp currently has one segment, which includes the regulated retail and wholesale 
electric operations. 

New accountinp standards - 
SFAS No. 123R 
On April 1, 2006, PacifiCorp adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123R),  a revision of the 
originally issued SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which 
an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. SFAS No. 123R requires that the cost resulting 
from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements using the fair value method. The 
intrinsic value method of accounting established by APB No. 25 will no longer be allowed. The adoption of SFAS 
No. 123R did not have an effect on PacifiCorp's financial position or results of operations as all requisite service 
has been rendered by employees and the outstanding stock awards are fully vested. For further information see Note 
18 - Stock-Based Compensation. 

EITF NO. 04-6 
On April 1,2006, PacifiCorp adopted Emerging Issues Task Force No. 04-6, Accounting for Stripping Costs 
Incurred during Production in the Mining Industry ("EITF No. 04-6"). EITF No. 04-6 requires that stripping costs 
incurred during the production phase of a mine are variable production costs that should be included in the costs of 
the inventory produced (that is, extracted) during the period that the stripping costs are incurred. The adoption of 
EITF No. 04-6 did not have a material impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position or results of 
operations. 



Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of Regulation 

Regulated utilities have historically applied the provisions of SFAS No. 7 1, which is based on the premise that 
regulators will set rates that allow for the recovery of a utility's costs, including cost of capital. Accounting under 
SFAS No. 71 is appropriate as long as (i) rates are established by or subject to approval by independent, third-party 
regulators, (ii) rates are designed to recover the specific enterprise's cost of service, and (iii) in view of demand for 
service, it is reasonable to assume that rates are set at levels that will recover costs and can be collected from 
customers. 

SFAS No. 71 provides that regulatory assets may be capitalized if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at 
least equal to the capitalized costs will result from their treatment as allowable costs for rate-making purposes. In 
addition, the rate action should permit recovery of the specific previously incurred costs rather than provide for 
expected levels of similar future costs. PacifiCorp records regulatory assets and liabilities based on management's 
assessment that it is probable that a cost will be recovered (asset) or that an obligation has been incurred (liability). 
The final outcome, or additional regulatory actions, could change management's assessment in future periods. A 
regulator can provide current rates intended to recover costs that are expected to be incurred in the future, with the 
understanding that if those costs are not incurred, future rates will be reduced by corresponding amounts. If current 
rates are intended to recover such costs, PacifiCorp recognizes amounts charged pursuant to such rates as liabilities 
and takes those amounts to income only when the associated costs are incurred. In applying SFAS No. 71, 
PacifiCorp must give consideration to changes in the level of demand or competition during the cost recovery 
period. In accordance with SFAS No. 71, PacifiCorp capitalizes certain costs as regulatory assets if authorized to 
recover the costs in future periods. 

PacifiCorp continuously evaluates the appropriateness of applying SFAS No. 71 to each of its jurisdictions. At 
March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had recorded specifically identified net regulatory assets of $174.3 million. In the event 
PacifiCorp stopped applying SFAS No. 71 at March 31, 2006, an after-tax loss of approximately $108.2 million 
would be recognized. 

PacifiCorp is subject to the jurisdiction of public utility regulatory authorities of each of the states in which it 
conducts retail electric operations with respect to prices, services, accounting, issuance of securities and other 
matters. The jurisdictions in which PacifiCorp operates are in various stages of evaluating deregulation. At present, 
PacifiCorp is subject to cost-based rate-making for its business. PacifiCorp is a "licensee" and a "public utility" as 
those terms are used in the Federal Power Act and is, therefore, subject to regulation by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (the "FERC") as to accounting policies and practices, certain prices and other matters. 

Regulatory assets include the following: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Deferred income taxes (b) 

Minimum pension liability (c) 

Unamortized issuance expense on retired debt 
Demand-side resource costs 
Transition plan - retirement and severance 
Various other costs 

Subtotal 
Derivative contracts (d) 
Total 

March 3 1, 
2006 (a) 2005 (a) 

(a) PacifiCorp had regulatory assets not accruing carrying charges of $952.9 million at March 31, 2006 and 
S1,095.6 million at March 3 1, 2005. 

(b) Represents accelerated income tax benefits pre\riously passed on to ratepayers that will be included in rates 
concurrently with recognition of the associated income tax expense. 

(c) Represents lninimum pension liability offsets proportionate to the amount of pension costs that are 



recoverable in rates. Remaining minimum pension liability offsets are included net of tax in Accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss). 

(d) Represents net unrealized losses related to derivative contracts included in rates. See Note 3 - Derivative 
Instruments for further information. 

Regulatory liabilities include the following: 

March 3 1. 
(Millions of dollars) 

Asset retirement removal costs (a) $ 699.8 $ 692.1 
Deferred income taxes 43.7 44.4 
Bonneville Power Administration Regional Exchange Program 23.3 12.6 
Various other costs 37.9 56.9 

Total S 804.7 S 806.0 

(a) Represents removal costs recovered in rates. 

PacifiCorp evaluates the recovery of all regulatory assets periodically and as events occur. The evaluation includes 
the probability of recovery, as well as changes in the regulatory environment. Regulatory andlor legislative action in 
Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California may require PacifiCorp to record regulatory asset 
write-offs and charges for impairment of long-lived assets in future periods. Impairment would be measured in 
accordance wjth PacifiCorp's asset impairment policy, as discussed in Note 1 - Sulnrnary of Significant Accounting 
Policies. 

Note 3 - Derivative Instruments 

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, PacifiCorp records derivative instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as 
assets or liabilities measured at estimated fair value, unless they qualify for the exemptions afforded by the standard. 
PacifiCorp uses derivative instruments (primarily forward purchases and sales) to manage the commodity price risk 
inherent in its fuel and electricity obligations, as well as to optimize the value of power generation assets and related 
contracts. 

In July 2003, the EITF issued EITF No. 03-1 1, Reporting Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments 
That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and Not "Held for Trading Purposes" as defined in Issue No. 02-3 
("EITF No. 03-1 1 "), which provides guidance on whether to report realized gains or losses on physically settled 
derivative contracts not held for trading purposes on a gross or net basis and requires realized gains or losses on 
derivative contracts that do not settle physically to be reported on a net basis. The adoption of EITF No. 03-1 1 
during the year ended March 3 1, 2004 resulted in PacifiCorp netting certain contracts that were previously recorded 
on a gross basis in Wholesale sales and other revenues and Energy costs in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 
The adoption of EITF No. 03-1 1 had no impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated Net income and all periods presented 
are consistent with the requirements of EITF 03-1 1. 

As the FASB continues to issue interpretations, PacifiCorp may change the conclusions that it has reached and, as a 
result, the accounting treatment and financial statement impact could change in the future. 

The accounting treatment for the various classifications of derivative financial instruments is as follows: 

Normal purchases and ttorntal sales - The contracts that qualify as normal purchases and normal sales are excluded 
from the requirements of SFAS No. 133. The realized gains and losses on these contracts are reflected in the 
Consolidated Statements of Income at the contract settlement date. 



Undeslgnated - Unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts held for trading purposes are presented on a net 
basis in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Revenues. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts 
not held for trading purposes are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Income as Revenues for sales 
contracts and as Energy costs and Operations and maintenance expense for purchase contracts and financial swaps. 

PacifiCorp has the following types of commodity transactions: 

Wliolesale electricitv purchase and sales contracts - PacifiCorp makes continuing projections of future retail and 
wholesale loads and future resource availability to meet these loads based on a number of criteria, including 
historical load and forward market and other economic information and experience. Based on these projections, 
PacifiCorp purchases and sells electricity on a forward yearly, quarterly, monthly, daily and hourly basis to match 
actual resources to actual energy requirements and sells any surplus at the prevailing market price. This process 
involves hedging transactions, which include the purchase and sale of finn energy under long-term contracts, 
forward physical contracts or financial contracts for the purchase and sale of a specified amount of energy at a 
specified price over a given period of time. 

ATatural pus upid other fuel purchase contracts - PacifiCorp manages its natural gas supply requirements by 
entering into forward commitments for physical delivery of natural gas. PacifiCorp also manages its exposure to 
increases in natural gas supply costs through forward commitments for the purchase of physical natural gas at fixed 
prices and financial swap contracts that settle in cash based on the difference between a fixed price that PacifiCorp 
pays and a floating market-based price that PacifiCorp receives. 

Where PacifiCorp's derivative instruments are subject to a master netting agreement and the criteria of FIN 39, 
Offsetting of Amozrnts Related to Certain Contracts- An Inte?.pretation of APB Opinion No. 10 and FASB Statement 
No. 105, are met, PacifiCorp presents its derivative assets and liabilities, as well as accompanying receivables and 
payables, on a net basis in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Unrealized gains and losses on energy sales and purchase contracts are affected by fluctuations in forward prices for 
electricity and natural gas. The following table summarizes the amount of the pre-tax unrealized gains and losses 
included within the Consolidated Statements of Income associated with changes in the fair value of PacifiCorp's 
derivative contracts that are not included in rates. 

Years Ended March 3 1, 

(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 2004 

Revenues 
Operating expenses: 

Energy costs 
Operations and maintenance 

Total unrealized gain on derivative contracts $ 86.8 $ 8.4 $ 6.1 

The following table shows the changes in the fair value of energy-related contracts subject to the requirements of 
SFAS No. 133, as amended, from April 1,2005 to March 3 1, 2006. 

Regulatory 

(Millions of dollars) 
Net Asset (Liability) Net Asset 

Trading Non-trading (Liability) (b) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1 ,  2005 S 0.2 $ (154.4) $ 170.0 
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period (0.2) (1 15.8) 128.3 
Other changes in fair values (a) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1, 2006 



(a) Other changes in fair values include the effects of changes in market prices, inflation rates and interest 
rates, 
including those based on models, on new and existing contracts. 

(b) Net unrealized losses (gains) related to derivative contracts included in rates are recorded as a regulatory net 
asset (liability). 

PacifiCorp bases its forward price curves upon market price quotations when available and bases them on internally 
developed and commercial models, with internal and external fundamental data inputs, when market quotations are 
unavailable. Market quotes are obtained from independent energy brokers, as well as direct information received 
from third-party offers and actual transactions executed by PacifiCorp. Price quotations for certain major electricity 
trading hubs are generally readily obtainable for the first six years and therefore PacifiCorp's forward price curves 
for those locations and periods reflect observable market quotes. However, in the later years or for locations that are 
not actively traded, forward price curves must be developed. For short-term contracts at less actively traded 
locations, prices are modeled based on observed historical price relationships with actively traded locations. For 
long-term contracts extending beyond six years, the forward price curve (beyond the first six years) is based upon 
the use of a fundamentals model (cost-to-build approach) due to the limited information available. The 
fundamentals model is updated as warranted, at least quarterly, to reflect changes in the market such as long-term 
natural gas prices and expected inflation rates. 

Short-term contracts, without explicit or embedded optionality, are valued based upon the relevant portion of the 
forward price curve. Contracts with explicit or embedded optionality are valued by separating each contract into its 
physical and financial forward, swap and option components. Forward and swap components are valued against the 
appropriate forward price curve. The optionality is valued using a modified Biack-Schojes mode! approach or a 
stochastic simulation (Monte Carlo) approach. Each option component is modeled and valued separately using the 
appropriate forward price curve. 

Standardized derivative contracts that are valued using market quotations, as described above, are classified in the 
table below as "values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources." All remaining contracts, which 
include non-s&ndard contracts and contracts for which market prices are not routinely quoted, are classified as 
"values based on models and other valuation methods." 

Fair Value of Contracts at Period-End 

Maturity Maturity in Total 

Less Than Maturity Maturity Excess of Fair 

(Millions of dollars) 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Value 

Trading: 
Values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources $ 0.2 5 - S - S - S 0.2 

Non-trading: 

Values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources S 58.7 $ 49.7 $ 6.0 $ 1.2 S 115.6 

Values based on models and other valuation methods 64.9 82.9 4.9 (260.6) (107.9) 

Total non-trading 

Regulatory net asset (liability) 

Weather derivatives - PacifiCorp currently has a non-exchange traded streamflow weather derivative contract to 
reduce PacifiCorp's exposure to variability in weather conditions that affect hydroelectric generation. Under the 
agreement, PacifiCorp pays an annual premium in return for the right to make or receive payments if streamflow 
levels are above or below certain thresholds. PacifiCorp estimates and records an asset or liability corresponding to 
the total expected future cash flow under the contract in accordance with EITF No. 99-2, Accounting for Weather 
Derivatives. The net asset (liability) recorded for this contract was S(2.1) million at March 3 1,  2006 and $20.3 
million at March 3 1 ,  2005 and was included in other current assets (liabilities) in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
PacifiCorp recognized a loss of $15.6 million for the year ended March 3 1,  2006; a gain of $27.9 million for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2005; and a gain of $0.4 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2004. 



Note 4 - Related-Party Transactions 

Transactions wlzile owned bv MEHC - As discussed in Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, 
PacifiCorp was acquired by MEHC on March 2 1,2006. The following describes PacifiCorp's transactions and 
balances with unconsolidated related parties while owned by MEHC. 

PacifiCorp began participating in a captive insurance program provided by MEHC Insurance Services Ltd. 
("MISL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of MEHC. MISL covers all or significant portions of the property damage 
and liability insurance deductibles in many of PacifiCorp's current policies, as well as overhead distribution and 
transmission line property damage. PacifiCorp has no equity interest in MISL and has no obligation to contribute 
equity or loan funds to MISL. Premium amounts are established based on a combination of actuarial assessments 
and market rates to cover loss claims, administrative expenses and appropriate reserves. Certain costs associated 
with the program are prepaid and amortized over the policy coverage period expiring March 20,2007. Prepayments 
to MISL were $7.2 inillion at March 31, 2006. Premium expenses were $0.2 million for March 21, 2006 through 
March 3 1, 2006. 

As of March 31, 2006, Amounts due to affiliates - MEHC included $3.8 million of current income taxes payable to 
PPW Holdings LLC. 

See Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for information related to the transfer of MEHC's 
100.0% ownership interest in Intermountain Geothermal Company to PacifiCorp. 

Transactions while owned bv ScottislzPower - There were no ioans or advances betweeii FacifiCoip a d  
ScottishPower or between PacifiCorp and PHI. Loans from PacifiCorp to ScottishPower or PHI were prohibited 
under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 ("PUHCA"), which was repealed effective February 2006. 
Loans from ScottishPower or PHI to PacifiCorp generally required state regulatory and SEC approval. There were 
intercompany loan agreements that allowed funds to be lent to PacifiCorp from PacifiCorp Group Holdings 
Company ("PGHC"), but loans from PacifiCorp to PGHC were prohibited. There were intercompany loan 
agreements that allowed funds to be lent between PacifiCorp and Pacific Minerals, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary 
of PacifiCorp. PacifiCorp does not maintain a centralized cash or money pool. Therefore, funds of each company 
were not co~nmingled with funds of any other company. 



The tables below detail PacifiCorp's transactions and balances with unconsolidated related parties while owned by 
ScottishPower. 

(Millions of dollars) 
Amounts due from former affiliated entities: 

SPUK (a) 
PHI and its subsidiaries (b) 

Prepayments to former affiliated entities: 

PHI and its subsidiaries (c) 

Amounts due to former affiliated entities: 

SPUK (d) 

Deposits received from former affiliated entities: 

PHI and its subsidiaries (e) 

(Millions of dollars) 

March 3 1,2006 * March 3 1,2005 

S 9 0.3 

Years Ended March 3 1. 

2006 2005 2004 
Revenues from former affiliated entities: 

PHI and its subsidiaries (e) S 7.8 S 5.9 $ 4.4 

Expenses recharged to former affiliated entities: 
SPUK (a) S 6.2 9 3.0 S 0.7 

PHI and its subsidiaries (b) 7.3 9.4 8.0 

$ 13.5 S 12.4 S 8.7 

Expenses incurred from former affiliated entities: 
SPUK (d) $ 18.6 $ 18.3 S 7.8 
PHI and its subsidiaries (c) 19.3 17.3 17.0 
DIIL (f) 7.0 

S 44.9 S 35.6 $ 24.8 

Interest expense to former affiliated entities: 
PHI and its subsidiaries (g) S $ 0.1 S 0.2 

* Amounts settled at close of sale to MEHC. 
(a) For the years ended March 3 1,2006 and 2005, receivables and expenses included amounts allocated to 

Scottish Power UK plc ("SPUK"), an indirect subsidiary of ScottishPower, by PacifiCorp for administrative 
services provided under ScottishPower's affiliated interest cross-charge policy. For the year ended March 
3 1, 2006, expenses also included costs associated with retention agreements and severance benefits 
reimbursed by SPUK. In addition, PacifiCorp recharged to SPUK payroll costs and related benefits of 
PacifiCorp employees working on international assignment in the United Kingdom for ScottishPower 
during the years ended March 3 1,2006,2005 and 2004. 

(b) Amounts shown pertain to activities of PacifiCorp with its former parent PHI and its subsidiaries. Expenses 
recharged reflect costs for support services to PHI and its subsidiaries. Amounts due from PHI and its 
subsidiaries included S33.8 million as of March 3 1, 2005 of income taxes receivable from PHI. PHI was the 
tax-payjng entity while PacifiCorp was owned by ScottishPower. 

(c) These expenses primarily related to operating lease payments for the West Valley facility, located in Utah 
and owned by West Valley Leasing Company, LLC ("West Valley"). West Valley is a subsidiary of PPM 
Energy, Inc. ("PPM"), which is a subsidiary of PHI. The lease is a 15 year operating lease on an electric 
generation facility. The facility consists of five generating units each with a nameplate rating of 43.4 MW. 
Certain costs associated with the West Valley lease are prepaid on an annual basis. Lease expense was 



$16.4 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006; $17.1 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2005; and 
S17.0 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2004. PacifiCorp has an option to terminate the West Valley 
lease if written notice is provided to West Valley on or before December 1,2006. If the option to terminate 
is exercised, the lease would terminate in May 2008. PacifiCorp is committed to future minimum lease 
payments of S 10.0 million annually for each of the 12 months ending March 3 1, 2007 and 2008 and $1.7 
million for the two months ending May 31, 2008. These minimum future lease payments reflect the 
reduction in monthly payments resulting from a March 2006 amendment to the lease terms. 

(d) These liabilities and expenses primarily represented amounts allocated to PacifiCorp by SPUK for 
administrative services received under the cross-charge policy. Cross-charges from SPUK to PacifiCorp 
amounted to S 16.7 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 and $14.9 lnillion for the year ended March 
3 1,2005. These costs were recorded in Operations and maintenance expense. SPUK also recharged 
PacifiCorp for payroll costs and related benefits of SPUK employees working on international assignment 
with PacifiCorp in the United States. 

(e) These revenues and the associated deposits related to u~heeling services billed to PPM. PacifiCorp provided 
these services to PPM pursuant to PacifiCorp's FERC-approved open access transmission tariff, which 
required PacifiCorp to make transmission services available on a non-d~scriminatory basis to all interested 
parties. 

(f) PacifiCorp began participating in a captive insurance program provided by Dornoch International Insurance 
Limited ("DIIL"), an indirect wholly owned consolidated subsidiary of ScottishPower, in May 2005. DIIL 
covered all or significant portions of the property damage and liability insurance deductibles in many of 
PacifiCorp's policies, as well as overhead distribution and transmission line property damage. PacifiCorp 
had no equity interest in DIIL and had no obligation to contribute equity or loan h n d s  to DIIL. Premium 
amounts were established to cover loss claims, administrative expenses and appropriate reserves, but 
otherwise DIIL was not operated to generate profits. 

(g) Included interest on short-term demand loans made to PacifiCorp by PGHC, in accordance with regulatory 
authorization. 

Note 5 - Marketable Securities 

PacifiCorp, by contract with Idaho Power, the minority owner of Bridger Coal Company (an indirect subsidiary of 
PacifiCorp), maintains a trust relating to final reclamation of a leased coal mining property. Amounts funded are 
based on estimated future reclamation costs and estimated fbture coal deliveries. Tmst fund assets associated with 
Bridger Coal Company recorded at fair value included in Deferred charges and other were $101.9 million at March 
3 1, 2006 and $92.4 million at March 3 1, 2005, including the Idaho Power minority-interest portion. Minority 
interest in Bridger Coal Company was $49.5 lnillion at March 3 1, 2006 and $26.2 million at March 3 1, 2005. See 
also Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs. 

The amortized cost and fair value of reclamation trust securities and other investments included in Deferred charges 
and other on PacifiCorp's Consolidated Balance Sheets, which are classified as available-for-sale, were as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Gross Gross 
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated 

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 

March 3 1, 2006 
Debt securities $ 25.9 S 0.2 $ (0.6) $ 25.5 
Equity securities 61.7 7.0 (0.7) 68.0 

Total S 87.6 $ 7.2 $ (1.3) S 93.5 

March 3 1,2005 
Mutual h n d  account (a) $ 27.0 $ $ (1.0) S 26.0 
Debt securities 25.6 0.4 (0.4) 25.6 
Equity securities 60.6 13.2 (1.2) 72.6 

Total 



(a) In October 2005, the mutual fund account was transferred to a money market account. 

The quoted market price of securities is used to estimate their fair value. 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at March 3 1,2006 and 2005 by contractual maturities 
and of equity securities for the same dates are shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual 
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment 
penalties. 

March 3 1, 
2006 2005 

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated 
(Millions of dollars) Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 

Debt securities 
Due in one year or less $ 0.7 $ 0.6 $ 0.7 $ 0.7 
Due after one year through five years 6.5 6.4 5.6 5.6 
Due after five years through ten years 9.9 9.8 9.8 9.9 
Due after ten years 8.8 8.7 9.5 9.4 

Mutual fund account 
Equity securities 

Total 

Proceeds, gross gains and gross losses from realized sales of available-for-sale securities using the specific 
identification method were as follows for the years ended March 3 1, 2006,2005 and 2004: 

Years Ended March 3 1, 
(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 2004 

Proceeds $ 123.4 $ 49.1 S 95.8 

Gross gains $ 16.6 $ 6.3 $ 6.5 
Gross losses (2.3) (2.2) (3.4) 

Net gains 14.3 4.1 3.1 
Less net gains included in Regulatory liabilities (a) (1 6.6) (5.6) (3.2) 

Net losses included in Net income $ (2.3) $ (1.5) $ (0.1) 

(a) Realized gains and losses on the Bridger Coal Company reclamation trust described above are recorded as a 
regulatory liability in accordance with the prescribed regulatory treatment. 

Note 6 - Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs 

Asset Retirement Oblinations - PacifiCorp records asset retirement obligations for long-lived physical assets that 
qualify as legal obligations under SFAS No. 143. PacifiCorp estimates its asset retirement obligation liabilities 
based upon detailed engineering calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash spending for a third party 
to perform the required work. Spending estimates are escalated for inflation and then discounted at a credit- 
adjusted, risk-free rate. PacifiCorp then records an asset retirement obligation asset associated with the liability. The 
asset retirement obligation assets are depreciated over their expected lives and the asset retirement obligation 
liabilities are accreted to the projected spending date. Changes in estimates could occur due to plan revisions, 
changes in estimated costs and changes in timing of the perforlnance of reclamation activities. In addition, 
PacifiCorp records removal costs as a part of depreciation expense in accordance with regulatory accounting 
requirements described in Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of Regulation. Since asset retirement costs are 
recovered through the ratemaking process, PacifiCorp records a regulatory asset or regulatory liability on the 



Consolidated Balance Sheets to account for the difference between asset retirement costs as currently approved in 
rates and costs under SFAS NO. 143. 

PacifiCorp does not recognize liabilities for asset retirement obligations for which the fair value cannot be 
reasonably estimated. PacifiCorp has asset retirement obligations associated with its transmission and distribution 
systems and certain coal mines. However, due to the indeterminate removal date, the fair value of the associated 
liabilities currently cannot be estimated and no amounts are recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47. FIN 47 clarifies that an entity is required to recognize a liability for the 
fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred if the fair value of the liability can be 
reasonably estimated. Upon adoption of FIN 47 at March 3 I ,  2006, PacifiCorp recorded an asset retirement 
obligation liability at a net present value of $22.7 million. PacifiCorp also increased net depreciable assets by $1.8 
million, reclassified $13.5 million of costs accrued for retirement removals from regulatory liabilities to asset 
retirement obligation liabilities, increased regulatory liabilities by $0.4 million and increased regulatory assets by 
$7.8 million for the difference between retirement costs approved by regulators and obligations under FIN 47. 

The pro fonna total asset retirement obligation liability balances that would have been reported assuming FIN 47 
had been adopted on April 1, 2004, rather than March 3 1,2006, are as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Pro forma asset retirement obligation liability at April 1, 2004 $215.8 
Pro fonna asset retirement obligation liability at March 3 1, 2005 $222.1 

Due to regulatory accounting treatment, the adoption of FIN 47 would have no material impact on net income for 
the pro forma periods listed above and had no impact on PacifiCorp's reported cash flows. 

The following table describes the changes to PacifiCorp's asset retirement obligation liability for the years ended 
March 3 1,2006 and 2005: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Liability recognized at beginning of period 
Liabilities incurred (a) 
Liabilities settled (b) 
Revisions in cash flow (c) 
Accretion expense 

Asset retirement obligation 

March 3 1,2006 March 3 1, 2005 

$ 199.6 $ 193.5 
25.2 1.4 

(10.4) (1 3 .O) 
(1 1.2) 8.9 

8.9 8.8 

212.1 199.6 

Less current portion (d) 7.0 17.8 

Long-term asset retirement obligation at end of period (e) $ 205.1 S 181.8 

(a) Relates primarily to the adoption of FIN 47 at March 31, 2006. 
(b) Relates primarily to ongoing reclamation work at the Glenrock coal mine. 

(c) Results from changes in the timing and amounts of estimated cash flows for certain plant reclamation. 
(d) Amount included in Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
(e) Amount included in Deferred credits - other on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

PacifiCorp had trust fund assets recorded at fair value included in Deferred charges and other of $103.0 million at 
March 3 1, 2006 and $93.4 lnillion at March 3 1, 2005 relating to mine and plant reclamation, including the minority- 
interest joint-owner portions. 

Accrued Environmental Costs - PacifiCorp's policy is to accrue environmental cleanup-related costs of a 
non-capital nature when those costs are believed to be probable and can be reasonably estimated. The quantification 
of environmental exposures is based on assessments of many factors, including changing laws and regulations, 



advancements in environmental technologies, the quality of information available related to specific sites, the 
assessment stage of each site investigation, preliminary findings and the length of time involved in remediation or 
settlement. PacifiCorp hires external consultants from time to time to conduct studies in order to establish reserves 
for various site environmental remediation costs. PacifiCorp is subject to cost-sharing agreements with other 
potentially responsible parties based on decrees, orders and other legal agreements. In these circumstances, 
PacifiCorp assesses the financial capability of other potentially responsible parties and the reasonableness of 
PacifiCorp's apportionment. These agreements may affect the range of potential loss. Additionally, PacifiCorp may 
benefit from excess insurance policies that may cover some of the cleanup costs if costs incurred exceed certain 
amounts. 

PacifiCorp assesses its potential obligations to perform environmental remediation on an ongoing basis. As a result 
of studies performed during the year ended March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp increased its reserve by $9.7 million to 
reflect its most likely estimate for probable liabilities. Remediation costs that are fixed and determinable have been 
discounted to their present value using credit-adjusted, risk-free discount rates based on the expected future annual 
borrowing rates of PacifiCorp. The liability recorded was $38.5 million at March 3 1, 2006 and $33.3 million at 
March 3 1, 2005 and is included as part of Deferred credits - other. The March 3 1, 2006 recorded liability included 
$18.1 million of discounted liabilities. Had none of the liabilities included in the $38.5 million balance recorded at 
March 31, 2006 been discounted, the total would have been $40.7 million. The expected payments for each of the 
five 12 month periods ending March 31 and thereafter are as follows: $5.4 million in 2007, $3.9 million in 2008, $- 
2.4 million in 2009, $1.5 million in 2010, $1.2 million in 201 1 and $26.3 million thereafter. 

It is possible that future findings or changes in estimates could require that additional amounts be accmed. Should 
current circumstances change, it is possible that PacifiCorp could incur an additional undiscounted obligation of up 
to approximately $53.1 million relating to existing sites. However, management believes that completion or 
resolution of these matters will have no material adverse effect on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. 

Note 7 - Notes Payable and Commercial Paper 

Amounts outstanding under PacifiCorp's short-term notes payable and commercial paper arrangements were as 
follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

March 3 1,2006 

March 3 1, 2005 

Average 
Interest 

Balance Rate 

Revolving Credit Agreement 
PacifiCorp amended and restated its existing $800.0 mjllion committed bank revolving credit agreement in August 
2005. Changes included an increase to 65.0% in the covenant not to exceed a specified debt-to-capitalization 
percentage, extension of the termination date to August 29, 2010 and exclusion of the acquisition of PacjfiCorp by 
MEHC as an event of default under the agreement. As of March 3 1,2006. PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement 
was fully available and had no borrowings outstanding. The interest on advances under this facility is generally 
based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a margin that varies based on PacifiCorp's credit 
ratings. This facility supports PacifiCorp's commercial paper program and $38.1 million of variable rate pollution 
control revenue bonds. 

PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement contains customary covenants and default provisions and PacifiCorp 
monitors these covenants on a regular basis. As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp was in compliance with the 
covenants of its revolving credit agreement. 



Note 8 - Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 

PacifiCorp's long-term debt and capital lease obligations were as follows: 

March 3 1 

(Millions of dollars) 

First mortgage bonds 
4.3% to 8.8%, due through 201 1 
5.0% to 9.2%, due 2012 to 2016 
8.5% to 8.6%, due 2017 to 2021 
6.7% to 8.5%, due 2022 to 2026 
5.3 % to 7.7%, due 2032 to 2036 
Unamortized discount 

Guaranty of pollution-control revenue bonds 
Variable rates, due 2014 (a) (b) 
Variable rates. due 2014 to 2026 (b) 
Variable rates, due 2025 (a) (b) 
3.4% to 5.7%, due 2014 to 2026 (a) 
6.2%, due 203 1 
Unamortized discount 
Funds held by trustees 

Capital lease obligations 
10.4% to 14.8%, due through 2035 

Total 
Less current maturities 

Total 

2006 2005 
Average Average 
Interest Interest 

Rate Amount Amount Rate 

(a) Secured by pledged first mortgage bonds generally at the same interest rates, maturity dates and 
redemption provisions as the pollution-control revenue bonds. 

(b) Interest rates fluctuate based on various rates, primarily on certificate of deposit rates, interbank 
borrowing rates, prime rates or other short-term market rates. 

First mortgage bonds of PacifiCorp may be issued in amounts limited by PacifiCorp's property, earnings and other 
provisions of the mortgage indenture. Approximately $13.8 billion of the eligible assets (based on original cost) of 
PacifiCorp are subject to the lien of the mortgage. 

Approximately $2.3 billion of first mortgage bonds were redeemable at PacifiCorp's option at March 3 1, 2006 at 
redemption prices dependent upon United States Treasury yields. Approximately $541.7 million of variable-rate 
pollution-control revenue bonds were redeemable at PacifiCorp's option at par at March 3 1, 2006. Approximately 
S71.2 million of fixed-rate pollution-control revenue bonds were redeemable at PacifiCorp's option at par at March 
3 1, 2006. The remaining long-term debt was not redeemable at March 3 1, 2006. 

In September 2005, the SEC declared effective PacifiCorp's shelf registration statement covering $700.0 million of 
future first mortgage bond and unsecured debt issuances. PacifiCorp has not yet issued any of the securities covered 
by this registration statement. 

In June 2005, PacifiCorp issued S300.0 million of its 5.25% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due June 15, 2035. 
PacifiCorp used the proceeds for the reduction of short-term debt. including the short-term debt used in December 
2004 to redeem its 8.625% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due December 13, 2024 totaling $20.0 million. 



In March 2005, the maturity dates were extended to December 1, 2020 for three series of variable-rate pollution- 
control revenue bonds totaling $38.1 million. 

PacifiCorp leases equipment and real estate in various states in which it does business under long-term agreements, 
extending through March 2035, which are classified as capital leases. These capital leases are payable in monthly 
installments allocated between principal and imputed interest rates ranging from 10.4% to 14.8%. 

In April 2005, PacifiCorp entered into a 30-year transportation service agreement with Questar Pipeline Company 
for the right to use a newly constructed pipeline facility with a majority of the output designated to provide natural 
gas to the Currant Creek Power Plant. This agreement qualifies as a capital lease with an initial net present value 
lease obligation of $12.4 million at an imputed interest rate of 11.3%. 

The annual maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations for the 12 months ending March 31 are: 

(Millions of dollars) 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

Thereafter 

Long-term 
Debt 

S 216.3 
1 19.9 
412.4 
138.5 

14.6 
3.007.8 

Unamortized discount 
Funds held by trustee 
Amounts representing interest 

Capital Lease 
Obligations 

$ 4.8 
4.8 
4.8 
5.0 
4.9 

63.8 

88.1 

Total 

$ 221.1 
124.7 
417.2 
143.5 
19.5 

3,071.6 

3,997.6 

(5.2) 
(2.2) 

(52.3) 

PacifiCorp made interest payments, net of capitalized interest, of $240.3 million for the year ended March 3 I ,  2006; 
$220.4 million for the year ended March 31, 2005; and $236.7 million for the year ended March 31, 2004. 

At March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp had $5 17.8 million of standby letters of credit and standby bond purchase 
agreements available to provide credit enhancement and liquidity support for variable-rate pollution-control revenue 
bond obligations. In addition, PacifiCorp had approximately $40.5 million of standby letters of credit to provide 
credit support for certain transactions as requested by third parties. These committed bank arrangements were all 
fully available as of March 3 1, 2006 and expire periodically through the 12 months ending March 3 1, 201 1. 

PacifiCorp's standby letters of credit and standby bond purchase agreements generally contain similar covenants to 
those contained in PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement, although the maximum permitted debt-to-capitalization 
ratio for one of the standby bond purchase agreements was 60.0% as of March 3 1,2006 and was amended in May 
2006 to now permit a maximum ratio of 65.0%. See Note 7 - Notes Payable and Commercial Paper for further 
information. PacifiCorp monitors these covenants on a regular basis in order to ensure that events of default will not 
occur and as of March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp was in compliance with the covenants of these agreements. 

Note 9 - Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory Redemption 

PacifiCorp's Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption was as follows: 

(Thousands of shares, millions of dollars) March 3 1,2006 March 3 1, 2005 
Series Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 
S7.48 No Par Serial Preferred. $100 stated value, 16.000 shares authorized 450 $ 45.0 525 S 52.5 



PacifiCorp has mandatory redemption requirements on 37,500 shares of the $7.48 series Preferred stock on June 15, 
2006, with a non-cumulative option to redeem an additional 37,500 shares on June 15,2006, at $100.0 per share, 
plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the date of such redemption. All outstanding shares on June 15,2007 are 
subject to mandatory redemption. Holders of Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption are entitled to certain 
voting rights and may have the right to elect members to the PacifiCorp Board of Directors in the event dividends 
payable are in default in an amount equal to four full quarterly payments. PacifiCorp redeemed $7.5 million of 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory and optional redemption during each of the years ended March 3 1, 2006, 2005 
and 2004. 

PacifiCorp had $0.8 million at March 3 1, 2006 and S 1.0 million at March 3 1, 2005 in dividends declared but unpaid 
on Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption that were included in Interest payable. 

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies 

PacifiCorp follows SFAS No. 5, to determine accounting and disclosure requirements for contingencies. PacifiCorp 
operates in a highly regulated environment. Governmental bodies such as the FERC, state regulatory commissions, 
the SEC, the Internal Revenue Service, the Department of Labor, the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (the "EPA") and others have authority over various aspects of PacifiCorp's business operations and public 
reporting. Reserves are established when required in management's judgment, and disclosures regarding litigation, 
assessments and creditworthiness of customers or counterparties, among others, are made when appropriate. The 
evaluation of these contingencies is performed by various specialists inside and outside of PacifiCorp. 

From time to time, PacifiCorp is also a party to various legal claims, actions, complaints and disputes, certain of 
which involve material amounts. PacifiCorp has recorded $6.7 million in reserves as of March 3 1, 2006 related to 
various outstanding legal actions and disputes, excluding those discussed below. This amount represents 
PacifiCorp's best estimate of probable losses related to these matters. PacifiCorp currently believes that disposition 
of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position, results of 
operations or liquidity. 

Environmer~tal ittatters - PacifiCorp is subject to numerous environmental laws, including the federal Clean Air Act 
and various state air quality laws; the Endangered Species Act, particularly as it relates to certain endangered 
species of fish; the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, and similar state 
laws relating to environmental cleanups; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and similar state laws 
relating to the storage and handling of hazardous materials; and the Clean Water Act, and similar state laws relating 
to water quality. These laws could potentially impact future operations. Environmental contingencies identified at 
March 31, 2006 principally consist of air quality matters. Pending or proposed air regulations will require 
PacifiCorp to reduce its electricity plant emissions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and other pollutants below 
current levels. These reductions will be required to address regional haze programs, mercury emissions regulations 
and possible re-interpretations and changes to the federal Clean Air Act. In the future, PacifiCorp expects to incur 
significant costs to co~nply with various stricter air emissions requirements. These potential costs are expected to 
consist primarily of capital expenditures. PacifiCorp expects these costs would be included in rates and, as such, 
would not have a material adverse impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated results of operations. See also Note 6 - 
Asset Retirement Obligations and Accrued Environmental Costs. 

Hvdroelectric relicensinz - PacifiCorp's hydroelectric portfolio consists of 51 plants with an aggregate plant net 
capability of 1,159.4 MW. The FERC regulates 93.9% of the installed capacity of this portfolio through 18 
individual licenses. Several of PacifiCorp's hydroelectric projects are in some stage of relicensing under the Federal 
Power Act. Hydroelectric relicensing and the related environmental compliance requirements are subject to 
uncertainties. PacifiCorp expects that future costs relating to these matters may be significant and will consist 
primarily of additional relicensing costs, operations and maintenance expense, and capital expenditures. Electricity 
generation reductions may result from the additional environmental requirements. PacifiCorp had incurred $70.3 
million in costs as of March 31, 2006 for ongoing hydroelectric relicensing, which are reflected in Construction 
work-in-progress on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. PacifiCorp expects that these and future costs will be included 
in rates and, as such, will not have a material adverse impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. 



In October 2005, the new FERC license for the North Umpqua hydroelectric project became final under the terms of 
the North Umpqua Settlement Agreement. Prior to this date, the license had been effective, but not final, because 
environmental groups had challenged its legality before the FERC and in federal court. In September 2005, the 
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order upholding the new license. Since the Court's order was not appealed 
within the allowed time, all legal challenges of the FERC license order have been exhausted and the license is final 
for purposes of recording liabilities. PacifiCorp is committed, over the 35-year life of the license, to fund 
approximately $48.4 million for environmental mitigation and enhancement projects. As a result of the license 
becoming final, PacifiCorp recorded additional liabilities and intangible assets in October 2005 amounting to a 
present value of $11.2 million. At March 3 1, 2006, the liability recorded for all North Umpqua obligations 
amounted to a present value of $21.8 million. 

FERC Issues 
California Refund Case - PacifiCorp is a party to a FERC proceeding that is investigating potential refunds for 
energy transactions in the California Independent System Operator and the California Power Exchange markets 
during past periods of high energy prices. PacifiCorp has a reserve of $17.7 million for these potential refunds. 
PacifiCorp's ultimate exposure to refunds is dependent upon any order issued by the FERC in this proceeding. In 
addition, beginning in summer 2000, California market conditions resulted in defaults of amounts due to PacifiCorp 
from certain counterparties resulting from transactions with the California Independent System Operator and 
California Power Exchange. PacifiCorp has reserved $5.0 million for these receivables. 

FERCMarket Power Analvsis - Pursuant to the FERC's orders granting PacifiCorp authority to sell capacity and 
energy at market-based rates, PacifiCorp and certain of its former affiliates had been required to submit a joint 
market power analysis every three years. Under the FERC's current policy, applicants must demonstrate that they 
do not possess market power in order to charge market-based rates for sales of wholesale energy and capacity in the 
applicants' control areas. An analysis demonstrating an applicant's passage of certain threshold screens for 
assessing generation market power establishes a rebuttable presumption that the applicant does not possess 
generation market power, while failure to pass any screen creates a rebuttable presumption that the applicant has 
generation market power. In February 2005, PacifiCorp submitted a joint triennial market power analysis in 
compliance with the FERC's requirements. The analysis indicated that PacifiCorp failed to pass one of the 
generation market power screens in PacifiCorp's eastern control area and in Idaho Power Company's control area. 
In May 2005, the FERC issued an order instituting a proceeding pursuant to section 206 of the Federal Power Act to 
determine whether PacifiCorp may continue to charge market-based rates for sales of wholesale energy and 
capacity. Under the terms of the order, PacifiCorp and its formerly affiliated co-applicants were required to submit 
additional information and analysis to the FERC within 60 days to rebut the presumption that PacifiCorp has 
generation market power. In June and July 2005, PacifiCorp filed additional analysis in response to the FERC's 
May 2005 order. In January 2006, the FERC requested PacifiCorp to amend its previous filings with additional 
analysis, which was filed in March 2006. If the FERC ultimately finds that PacifiCorp has market power, PacifiCorp 
will be required to implement measures to mitigate any exercise of market power, which may result in decreased 
revenues and/or increased operating expenses. PacifiCorp believes the outcome of this proceeding will not have a 
material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

Note 11 -Guarantees and Other Commitments 

Guarantees 
PacifiCorp is generally required to obtain state regulatory commission approval prior to guaranteeing debt or 
obligations of other parties. In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting 
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ("FIN 45"). 
F I N  45 requires disclosure of certain direct and indirect guarantees. 

The following represent the indemnification obligations of PacifiCorp as of March 3 1,2006 and 2005. 

PacifiCorp has made certain commitments related to the decommissioning or reclamation of certain jointly owned 
facilities and mine sites. The decommissioning guarantees require PacifiCorp to pay a proportionate share of the 
decommissioning costs based upon percentage of ownership. The mine reclamation obligations require PacifiCorp 
to pay the mining entity a proportionate share of the mine's reclamation costs based on the amount of coal 



purchased by PacifiCorp. In the event of default by any of the other joint participants, PacifiCorp potentially may be 
obligated to absorb, directly or by paying additional sums to the entity, a proportionate share of the defaulting 
party's liability. PacifiCorp has recorded its estimated share of the decommissioning and reclamation obligations as 
either an asset retirement obligation, regulatory liability or other liability. 

In connection with the sale of PacifiCorp's Montana service territory, PacifiCorp entered into a purchase and sale 
agreement with Flathead Electric Cooperative in October 1998. Under the agreement, PacifiCorp indemnified 
Flathead Electric Cooperative for losses, if any, occurring after the closing date and arising as a result of certain 
breaches of warranty or covenants. The indemnification has a cap of $10.1 million until October 2008 and a cap of 
$5.1 million thereafter (less expended costs to date). Two indemnity claims relating to environmental issues have 
been tendered, but remediation costs for these claims, if any, are not expected to be material. 

From time to time, PacifiCorp executes contracts that include indemnities typical for the underlying transactions, 
which are related to sales of businesses, property, plant and equipment, and service territories. These indemnities 
might include any of the following matters: privacy rights; governmental regulations and employment-related 
issues; commercial contractual relationships; financial reports; tax-related issues; securities laws; and 
environmental-related issues. Performance under these indemnities generally would be triggered by breach of 
representations and warranties in the contract. PacifiCorp regularly evaluates the probability of having to incur costs 
under the indemnities and appropriately accrues for expected losses that are probable and estimable. Some of these 
indemnities may not limit potential liability; therefore, PacifiCorp is unable to estimate a maximum potential 
amount of future payments that could result from claims made under these indemnities. PacifiCorp believes that the 
likelihood that it would be required to perform or otherwise incur any significant losses associated with any of these 
obligations is remote. 

Unconditional Purchase Obligations 

Payments due during the 12 months ending March 31, 
(Millions of dollars) 

Construction 
Operating leases 
Purchased electricity 
Transmission 
Fuel 
Other 

Total commitments 

2007 2008 2009 2010 20 1 1 Thereafter Total 

Construction - PacifiCorp has an ongoing construction program to meet increased electricity usage, customer 
growth and system reliability objectives. At March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp had estimated long-term unconditional 
purchase obligations for construction of the new Lake Side Power Plant. 

Operatinp leases - PacifiCorp leases offices, certain operating facilities, land and equipment under operating leases 
that expire at various dates through the 12 months ended March 3 1, 2093. Certain leases contain renewal options for 
varying periods and escalation clauses for adjusting rent to reflect changes in price indices. These leases generally 
require PacifiCorp to pay for insurance, taxes and maintenance applicable to the leased property. Excluded from the 
operating lease payments above are any power purchase agreements that meet the definition of an operating lease. 

Net rent expense was $28.8 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006; $26.1 million for the year ended March 3 1, 
2005; and $29.4 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2004. 

Minimum non-cancelable sublease rent payments expected to be received through the 12 months ended March 3 1, 
2013 total S6.8 million. 



Purchased electricitv - As part of its energy resource portfolio, PacifiCorp acquires a portion of its electricity 
through long-term purchases andlor exchange agreements. Included in the purchased electricity payments above are 
any power purchase agreements that meet the definition of an operating lease. 

Included in the minimum fixed annual payments for purchased electricity above are commitments to purchase 
electricity from several hydroelectric projects under long-term arrangements with public utility districts. These 
purchases are made on a "cost-of-service" basis for a stated percentage of project output and for a like percentage of 
project operating expenses and debt service. These costs are included in Energy costs in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. PacifiCorp is required to pay its portion of operating costs and its portion of the debt service, 
whether or not any electricity is produced. 

At March 31,2006, PacifiCorp's share of long-term arrangements with public utility districts was as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 
Year Contract 

Generating Facility Expires 

W anapum 2009 
Rocky Reach 201 1 
Priest Rapids 2045 
Wells 2018 

Total 

Capacity Percentage Annual 
(MW) of Output Costs (a) 

194.1 1 8 . 7 %  $ 6.6 
67.8 5.3 3.6 
61.0 6.5 2.0 
58.3 6.9 2.1 

381.2 $ 14.3 

(a) Includes debt service totaling $7.0 million 

PacifiCorp's minimum debt service and estimated operating obligations included in purchased electricity above for 
the 12 months ending March 3 1 are as follows: 

Minimum 
(Millions of dollars) Debt Service 

2007 $ 9.3 
2008 9.3 
2009 9.3 
20 10 4.7 
201 1 4.7 
Thereafter 55.5 

$ 92.8 

Operating 
Obligations 

$ 8.3 
8.4 
8.6 
4.8 
4.9 

84.3 

$ 119.3 

PacifiCorp has a 4.0% entitlement to the generation of the Intermountain Power Project, located in central Utah, 
through a power purchase agreement. PacifiCorp and the City of Los Angeles have agreed that the City of Los 
Angeles will purchase capacity and energy from PacifiCorp's 4.0% entitlement of the Intermountain Power Project 
at a price equivalent to 4.0% of the expenses and debt service of the project. 

Fuel - PacifiCorp has "take or pay" coal and natural gas contracts that require minimum payments. - 

Other - Unconditional purchase obligations, as defined by accounting standards, are those long-term commitments - 
that are non-cancelable or cancelable only under certain conditions. PacifiCorp has such commitments related to 
legal or contractual asset retirement obligations, environmental obligations, hydroelectric obligations, equipment 
maintenance and various other service and maintenance agreements. 



Resource Management 
PacifiCorp, as a public utility and a franchise supplier, has an obligation to manage resources to supply its 
customers. Rates charged to most customers are tariff rates authorized by regulatory agencies as discussed in Note 2 
- Accounting for the Effects of Regulation. 

Note 12 -Jointly Owned Facilities 

At March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp's share in jointly owned facilities was as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Jim Bridger Nos. 1 - 4 (a) 
Wyodak 
Hunter No. 1 
Colstrip Nos. 3 and 4 (a) 
Hunter No. 2 
Hermiston (b) 
Craig Station Nos. 1 and 2 
Hayden Station No. 1 
Foote Creek 
Hayden Station No. 2 
Trojan (c) 
Other transmission and distribution plants 
Unallocated acquisition adjustments (d) 

Total 

PacifiCorp 
Share 

66.7 % 
80.0 
93.8 
10.0 
60.3 
50.0 
19.3 
24.5 
78.8 
12.6 
2.5 

Various 

Plant 
in 

Service 

$ 922.2 
308.8 
307.7 
239.2 
212.2 
167.0 
165.3 
41.1 
36.3 
26.4 

78.6 
157.2 

$ 2,662.0 

Accumulated 
Depreciation/ 
Amortization 

S 467.6 
165.9 
142.5 
116.2 
99.4 
38.9 
71.3 
18.6 
10.4 
12.8 

21.2 
75.8 

$ 1,240.6 

Construction 
Work-in- 
Progress 

$ 18.3 
14.8 
1.8 
1.5 
8.1 
1.6 
0.7 
1 .o 

0.3 

(a) Includes kilovolt lines and substations. 

(b) Additionally, PacifiCorp has contracted to purchase the remaining 50.0% of the output of the Hermiston 
Plant. See Note 13 - Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities. 

(c) The Trojan Plant was closed in 1993 and PacifiCorp is allowed recovery of costs associated with the plant 
over the remaining life of the original license. Plant, inventory, fuel and decommissioning costs totaling 
$8.1 million relating to the Trojan Plant were included in regulatory assets at March 3 1, 2006. 

(d) Represents the excess of the costs of the acquired interests in purchased facilities over their original net 
book values. 

Under the joint ownership agreements, each participating utility is responsible for financing its share of 
construction, operating and leasing costs. PacifiCorp's portion is recorded in its applicable construction work-in- 
progress, operations, maintenance and tax accounts, which is consistent with wholly owned plants. 

Note 13 - Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities 

In December 2003, the FASB issued revised FIN 46, Consoliu'ation of Variable-Interest Entities, an interpretation 
of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 ("FIN 46RW), which requires existing unconsolidated variable-interest 
entities ("VIES") to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse risks 
among parties involved. FIN 46R was adopted as of January 1,2004 and resulted in disclosures describing 
identifiable variable interests. 

VIE'S Required to be Consolidated 

PacifiCorp holds an undivided interest in 50.0% of the 474-MW Hermiston Plant (see Note 12 -Jointly Owned 
Facilities), procures 100.0% of the fuel input into the plant and subsequently receives 100.0% of the generated 
electricity, 50.0% of which is acquired through a long-term purchase power agreement. As a result, PacifiCorp 
holds a variable interest in the joint owner of the remaining 50.0% of the plant and is the primary beneficiary. 





PacifiCorp had $0.5 million at both March 3 1, 2006 and March 3 1, 2005 in dividends declared but unpaid on 
Preferred stock. The shares and amounts outstanding for each series of Preferred stock not subject to mandatory 
redemption were unchanged from March 3 1, 2004 through March 3 1, 2006. 

Note 15 - Common Shareholder's Equity 

Common Sharelzolder's Equitv - PacifiCorp has one class of common stock with no par value. A total of 
750,000,000 shares were authorized and 357,060,915 shares were issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 
3 12,176,089 shares were issued and outstanding at March 3 1, 2005. During the year ended March 3 1,2006, 
PacifiCorp issued 44,884,826 shares of its colnlnon stock to PHI, its former parent company, at a total price of 
$484.7 million. The proceeds from the sale of the shares were used to repay short-term debt. 

On March 20, 2006, immediately prior to the closing of PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC, PacifiCorp paid a dividend on 
common stock, at that time held by PHI, in the aggregate amount of $16.8 million. The dividend was reduced 
pursuant to Amendment No. 1 to the Stock Purchase Agreement among MEHC, ScottishPower and PHI executed 
on the date of the transaction's closing from the $56.6 million aggregate amount originally declared by the 
PacifiCorp Board of Directors on January 27,2006. 

In the past, to the extent PacifiCorp did not reimburse ScottishPower for stock-based compensation awarded under 
ScottishPower plans, such amounts increased the value of PacifiCorp's common shareholder's capital. 

Common Dividend Restrictions - MEHC is the sole indirect shareholder of PacifiCorp's common stock. The state 
regulatory orders that authorized the acquisition of PacifiCorp by MEHC contain restrictions on PacifiCorp's ability 
to pay dividends to the extent that they would reduce PacifiCorp's colnmon stock equity below specified 
percentages of defined capitalization. 

As of March 3 1, 2006, the most restrictive of these commitments prohibits PacifiCorp from making any distribution 
to PPW Holdings LLC or MEHC without prior state regulatory approval to the extent that it would reduce 
PacifiCorp's common stock equity below 48.25% of its total capitalization, excluding short-term debt and current 
maturities of long-term debt. After December 3 1, 2008, this minimum level of common equity declines annually to 
44.0% after December 3 I ,  201 I .  The terms of this commitment treat 50.0% of PacifiCorp's preferred stock 
outstanding prior to the acquisition of PacifiCorp by MEHC as common equity. As of March 31, 2006, PacifiCorp's 
actual common stock equity percentage, as calculated under this measure. exceeded the minimum threshold. 

In addition, PacifiCorp is restricted from making any distributions to PPW Holdings LLC or MEHC if PacifiCorp's 
unsecured debt rating is BBB- or lower by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or Fitch Ratings or Baa3 or lower by 
Moody's Investor Service, as indicated by two of the three rating services. As of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp's 
unsecured debt rating was BBB+ by Standard & Poor's Rating Services and Fitch Ratings and Baal by Moody's 
Investor Service. 

PacifiCorp is also subject to maximum debt-to-total capitalization levels under various debt agreements. 

Note 16 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

March 3 1, 2006 March 3 1, 2005 
Canying Fair Carrying Fair 

(Millions of dollars) Amount Value Amount Value 

Long-term debt (a) $ 3,902.1 $ 4,091.4 $ 3,872.3 $ 4,209.5 
Preferred stock subject to 

mandatory redemption 45.0 46.3 52.5 56.0 

(a) Includes long-term debt classified as currently maturing, less capital lease obligations. 

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables, accrued liabilities and short-term 
borrowings approxilnates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. 



The fair value of PacifiCorp's long-term debt, current maturities of long-term debt and redeemable preferred stock 
has been estimated by discounting projected future cash flows, using the current rate at which similar loans would 
be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same maturities. 

Note 17 - Employee Benefits 

PacifiCorp sponsors defined benefit pension plans that cover the majority of its employees and also provides health 
care and life insurance benefits through various plans for eligible retirees. The measurement date for plan assets and 
obligations is December 3 1 of each year. 

As a result of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC, plan participants that were employees or retirees of certain 
ScottishPower affiliates and a former PacifiCorp mining subsidiary ceased to participate in PacifiCorp's plans. This 
separation resulted in a net $3.5 million reduction in Common shareholder's capital. 

Pension Plans 

PacifiCorp's pension plans include the PacifiCorp Retirement Plan (the "Retirement Plan"), the SERP and a joint 
trust plan to which PacifiCorp contributes on behalf of certain bargaining unit employees of IBEW Local 57. 
Benefits under the Retirement Plan are based on the employee's years of service and average monthly pay in the 60 
consecutive months of highest pay out of the last 120 months, with adjustments to reflect benefits estimated to be 
received from social security. Pension costs are hnded annually by no more than the maximum amount that can be 
deducted for federal income tax purposes. 

Components of the net periodic pension benefit cost (income) are summarized as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Service cost (a) 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets (b) 
Amortization of unrecognized 
net transition obligation 

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 
Cost of termination benefits 

Net periodic pension benefit cost 

Years Ended March 3 1, 
2006 2005 2004 

(a) Includes contributions to the PacifiCorpiIBEW Local 57 Retirement Trust Fund of $1.4 million for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2006; no contributions for the year ended March 3 1,2005; and contributions of $5.6 
million for the year ended March 3 1, 2004. 

(b) The market-related value of plan assets, among other factors, is used to determine expected return on plan 
assets and is calculated by spreading the difference between expected and actual investment returns over a 
five-year period beginning in the first year in which they occur. 



The weighted-average rates assumed in the actuarial calculations used to determine the net periodic benefit costs for 
the pension and postretirement benefit plans were as follows: 

Years Ended March 3 1. 

Discount rate 5.75 % 6.25 % 6.75 % 
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.75 8.75 8.75 
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.00 4.00 4.00 

PacifiCorp determined the long-tenn rate of return based on historical asset class returns and current market 
conditions, taking into account the diversification benefits of investing in multiple asset classes. 

The weighted-average rates assumed in the actuarial calculations used to determine benefit obligations for the 
pension and postretirement benefit plans were as follows: 

March 3 1 ,  
2006 2005 2004 

Discount rate 
Rate of increase in compensation levels 



The change in the projected benefit obligation, change in plan assets and funded status of the pension plans are as 
follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Change in ~roiected benefit obligation 
Projected benefit obligation - beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan amendments 
Cost of termination benefits 
Separation of former participants 
Actuarial loss 
Benefits paid 
Transfers 

Projected benefit obligation - end of year 

Change in glan assets 
Plan assets at fair value - beginning of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Separation of former participants 
Company contributions 
Benefits paid 
Transfers 

Plan assets at fair value - end of year 

Reconciliation of accrued pension cost and 
total amount recognized 

Funded status of the plan 
Unrecognized net loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net transition obligation 

Accrued postretirement benefit before final contribution 
Contribution made after measurement date 

but before March 3 1 

Accrued pension cost 

March 3 1, 
2006 2005 

Accrued benefit liability S (342.3) $ (383.2) 
Intangible asset 17.3 25.0 
Accumulated other comprehensive income, pre-tax 6.6 14.5 
Regulatory assets 257.7 280.7 

Accrued pension cost $ (60.7) $ (63.0) 

The aggregated accumulated benefit obligation was $1,170.9 million and the fair value of assets was $828.6 million, 
measured as of December 3 1, 2005, and including contributions prior to March 3 1,2006. 

The Retirement Plan and the SERP currently have assets with a fair value that is less than the accumulated benefit 
obligation under the Retirement Plan and the SERP, primarily due to prior declines in the equity markets and 
historically low interest rate levels. As a result, PacifiCorp recognized lninilnum pension liabilities in the fourth 
quarters of the years ended March 3 1, 2006 and 2005. The minimum pension liability adjustment impacted 



Regulatory assets, Intangible assets and Accumulated other comprehensive income. These adjustments are reflected 
in the table above and did not materially affect the consolidated results of operations. PacifiCorp requested and 
received accounting orders from the regulatory commissions in Utah, Oregon, Wyoming and Washington to classify 
most of the minitllum pension liability adjustment as a Regulatory asset instead of a charge to Other comprehensive 
income. This increase to Regulatory assets will be adjusted in future periods as the difference between the fair value 
of the trust assets and the accumulated benefit obligation changes. PacifiCorp has determined that costs related to 
SFAS No. 87, Employers ' Accountingfor Pensions ("SFAS No. 87") for the Retirement Plan are currently 
recoverable in rates. 

Retirement Plan assets are managed and invested in accordance with all applicable requirements, including the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act and the Internal Revenue Code. PacifiCorp employs an investment 
approach that uses a mix of equities and fixed-income investments to maximize the long-term return of plan assets 
at a prudent level of risk. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded 
status, and corporate financial condition. The investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed- 
income investments as shown in the table below. Equity investments are diversified across United States and non- 
United States stocks, as well as growth and value companies, and small and large market capitalizations. Fixed- 
income investments are diversified across United States and non-United States bonds. Other assets, such as private 
equity investments, are used to enhance long-term returns while improving portfolio diversification. PacifiCorp 
primarily minimizes the risk of large losses through diversification but also monitors and manages other aspects of 
risk through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements and periodic assedliability 
studies. 

Details of the Retirement Plan assets by investment category based on market values are as follows: 

March 3 1 

Equity securities 
Debt securities 
Private equity 

Target 2006 2005 

Although the SERP had no qualified assets as of March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp has a Rabbi tmst that holds corporate- 
owned life insurance and other investments to provide funding for the future cash requirements of the SERP. 
Because this plan is nonqualified, the assets in the Rabbi trust are not considered plan assets. The cash surrender 
value of all of the policies included in the Rabbi trust plus the fair market value of other Rabbi tmst investments was 
$36.4 million at March 3 1, 2006 and $34.7 million at March 3 1, 2005, net of amounts borrowed against the cash 
surrender value. 

Other Postretirement Benefits 

The cost of other postretirement benefits, including health care and life insurance benefits for eligible retirees, is 
accrued over the active service period of employees. The transition obligation represents the unrecognized prior 
service cost and is being amortized over a period of 20 years. PacifiCorp funds other postretirement benefits 
through a combination of funding vehicles. PacifiCorp contributed $29.7 million for the year ended March 3 1, 
2006; $24.9 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2005; and S25.3 million for the year ended March 31, 2004. The 
measurement date for plan assets and obligations is December 3 1 of each year. 

For the postretirement benefit plan assets, PacifiCorp employs an investment approach that uses a mix of equities 
and fixed-income investments to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk 
tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial 
condition. The investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed-income investments. Equity 
investments are diversified across United States and non-United States stocks, as well as growth and value 
companies, and small and large market capitalizations. Fixed-income investments are diversified across United 
States and non-United States bonds. Other assets, such as private equity investments, are used to enhance long-term 
returns while improving portfolio diversification. PacifiCorp primarily minimizes the risk of large losses through 
diversification, but also monitors and manages other aspects of risk through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, 



annual liability measurements and periodic asset/liability studies. 

The assets for other postretirement benefits are composed of three different trust accounts. The 401(h) account is 
invested in the same manner as the pension account. Each of the two Voluntary Employees' Beneficiaries 
Association Trusts has its own investment allocation strategies. Details of the Voluntary Employees' Beneficiaries 
Association Trusts' assets by investment category based on market values are as follows: 

March 3 1, 
2006 2005 

Equity securities 
Debt securities 

Components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost are summarized as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 
Years Ended March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 

Service cost $ 8.8 
Interest cost 30.4 
Expected return on plan assets (a) (26.3) 
Amortization of unrecognized 
net transition obligation 12.2 

Amortization of unrecognized loss 2.7 
Amortization of prior service cost 2.1 

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost S 29.9 

(a) The market-related value of plan assets, among other factors, is used to determine expected return on plan 
assets and is calculated by spreading the difference between expected and actual investment returns over a 
five-year period beginning in the first year in which they occur. 



The change in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation, change in plan assets and funded status of the 
postretirement plan is as follows: 

March 3 1, 
(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 

Change in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 
Accumulated postretirement benefit 

obligation - beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan participant contributions 
Plan amendments 
Separation of former participants 
Actuarial loss (gain) 
Benefits paid 

Accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation - end of year 

Change in plan assets 
Plan assets at fair value - beginning 

of year 
Actual return on plan assets 
Company contributions 
Plan participant contributions 
Separation of former participants 
Net benefits paid 

Plan assets at fair value - end of year 

Reconciliation of accrued postretirement costs and 
total amount recognized 

Funded status of the plan $ (290.3) $ (241.7) 
Unrecognized net transition obligation 81.1 94.6 
Unrecognized prior service cost 22.1 1.4 
Unrecognized loss 138.1 100.1 

Accrued postretirement benefit cost, before final contribution (49.0) (45.6) 
Contribution made after measurement date 

but before March 3 1 29.7 24.9 

Accrued postretirement cost $ (1 9.3) $ (20.7) 

The assumed health care cost trend rates are as follows: 

March 3 1, 
- 

2006 2005 2004 
Initial health care cost trend - under 65 10.0 % 7.5 % 8.5 % 
Initial health care cost trend - over 65 
Ultimate health care cost trend rate 

Year that rate reaches ultimate - under 65 
Year that rate reaches ultimate - over 65 



The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported. An annual increase or 
decrease in the assumed medical care cost trend rate of 1 .O% would affect the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation and the service and interest cost components as follows: 

One Percent 

(Millions of dollars) 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 
Service and interest cost components 

Increase Decrease 

Future Contributions and Benefit Pavments 

In April 2006, PacifiCorp contributed $72.7 million to its Retirement Plan. In addition, PacifiCorp expects to 
contribute another $1 1.0 million to its pension plans, as well as $36.6 million to its postretirement benefit plan, 
during the 12 months ending March 3 1,2007. The benefit payments expected to be paid, which reflect expected 
future service and the Medicare Part D subsidy expected to be received, are as follows: 

Medicare 
(Millions of dollars) Other Part D 

Retirement Postretirement Subsidy 
12 months ending March 3 1, Plans Benefits Receipts 

2007 $ 92.5 $ 35.8 $ (3.0) 
2008 92.4 37.9 (3.4) 
2009 93.6 40.0 (3.9) 
2010 94.7 42.1 (4.3) 
201 1 97.7 44.4 (4.6) 
20 12 to 20 16 (inclusive) 541.2 248.2 (29.9) 

Employee Savings Plan 

PacifiCorp has an employee savings plan (the "Savings Plan") that qualifies as a tax-deferred arrangement under the 
Internal Revenue Code. Eligible employees of adopting affiliates are those who are not temporary, casual, leased or 
covered by a collective bargaining agreement that does not provide for participation. Employees of any company 
within the PacifiCorp controlled group of companies that has not adopted the Savings Plan are not eligible. 
Participating United States employees may defer up to 50.0% of their compensation, subject to certain statutory 
limitations. Compensation includes base pay, overtime and annual incentive, but is limited to the maximum 
allowable under the Internal Revenue Code. Employees can select a variety of investment options. PacifiCorp 
matches 50.0% of employee contributions on amounts deferred up to 6.0% of total compensation, with that portion 
vesting over the initial five years of an employee's qualifying service. Thereafter, PacifiCorp's contributions vest 
immediately. PacifiCorp's matching contribution is allocated based on the employee's investment selections. 
PacifiCorp may also make an additional contribution equal to a percentage of the employee's eligible earnings. This 
additional contribution is allocated based on the employee's investment selections or to the money market fund if 
the employee has made no selections. These contributions are immediately vested. PacifiCorp's contributions to the 
Savings Plan were $22.5 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2006; S20.2 million for the year ended March 3 1, 
2005; and $19.3 million for the year ended March 3 1,2004; and represent amounts expensed for such periods. 

As a result of general workforce reductions and ScottishPower's corporate restructuring during the year ended 
March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp incurred severance expense of $4.1 million under its severance and other benefit plans 
related to the involuntary termination of approximately 62 employees. Services provided by these employees are 
expected to be complete by March 3 1, 2007. 



As a result of the MEHC acquisition, PacifiCorp has experienced organizational changes and additional workforce 
reductions resulting in severance expense of $12.9 million during the year ended March 3 1,2006 under its 
severance and other benefit plans, primarily related to the involuntary termination of 29 employees. Additional 
severance expense is expected to be incurred in the future as additional organizational changes occur. 

Note 18 - Stock-Based Compensation 

PacifiCor~ Stock Incentive Plan PPSIP") - During 1997, PacifiCorp adopted the PSIP. The exercise price of 
options granted under the PSIP was equal to the market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. 
ScottishPower took control of the plan upon completion of its merger and all stock options were converted into 
options to purchase ScottishPower American Depository Shares. The PSIP expired on November 29,2001 and all 
outstanding options under the plan were fully vested as of March 3 1,2005. 

As a result of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC and in accordance with the PSIP provisions regarding a change in 
control, all outstanding options must be exercised no later than 12 months after the date of the sale of PacifiCorp; 
otherwise they will be forfeited. 

ScottishPower Executive Share Option Plan ("ExSOP'3 - In prior years, a select group of PacifiCorp employees 
received grants of stock options under the ScottishPower ExSOP. Certain grants awarded in May 2001 were 
performance-based awards which resulted in $2.0 million of compensation expense included in Operations and 
maintenance expense for the year ended March 3 1,2005. 

As a result of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC on March 21,2006, all ExSOP options held by PacifiCorp employees 
became fully vested in accordance with the change-in-control provisions of the ExSOP. The change-in-control 
provisions also provide that all outstanding options are exercisable up to the later of 12 months after the date of the 
sale of PacifiCorp or 42 months after the date of original option grant. Options that are not exercised within this 
time period will be forfeited. As of the date of the sale, PacifiCorp ceased to participate in the plan but as of March 
3 1,2006, there are still options outstanding and exercisable by PacifiCorp employees. 

The table below summarizes the stock option activity under the PSIP and the ExSOP. 

PSIP ExSOP 
Weighted Weighted 

Number of Average Number of Average 
ScottishPower American Depositow Shares Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding options at March 3 1, 2003 3,403,251 S 31.67 935,054 $ 23.55 

Granted 780,901 24.40 
Exercised (147,496) 25.55 (25,508) 23.55 
Forfeited (33 1,706) 34.65 (41,991) 23.93 

Outstanding options at March 3 1, 2004 2,924,049 3 1.64 1,648,456 23.94 

Granted 763,843 28.72 
Exercised (750,126) 26.10 (483,667) 23.84 
Forfeited (40,3 10) 35.36 (30,136) 26.37 

Outstanding options at March 3 1, 2005 2,133,613 33.52 1,898,496 25.85 

Exercised (1,325,284) 3 1.32 (1,404,637) 25.58 
Forfeited (30,578) 35.86 (1 6,096) 27.59 
Transfers due to separation (68,7 10) 37.35 (1 64,677) 25.56 

Outstanding options at March 3 1 ,  2006 709,041 37.15 313,086 27.15 



Information with respect to options outstanding and options exercisable under the PSIP and the ExSOP as of March 
3 1. 2006 and 2005 were as follows: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 

Number Exercise Remaining Number Exercise 
Range of Exercise Prices of Shares Price Life (in years) of Shares Price 

Year ended March 3 1,2006 

PSIP 
$25.70 - $36.64 268,205 $ 3 1.25 1 .O 268,205 $ 3 1.25 
$39.99 - $41.38 440,836 40.74 1 .O 440,836 40.74 

Total 709,041 37.15 1 .O 709,041 37.15 

ExSOP 
$23.55 - $28.72 313,086 $ 27.15 1.4 313,086 $ 27.15 

Year ended March 3 1,2005 

PSIP 
$25.70 - S36.64 1,589,323 $ 3 1.05 4.2 1,589,323 $ 3 1.05 
$39.99 - $43.83 544,290 40.72 3.0 544,290 40.72 

Total 2,133,613 33.52 3.9 2,133,613 33.52 

ExSOP 
$23.55 - $28.72 1,898,496 S 25.85 8.2 182,134 $ 23.97 

ScottishPower Long-Term Incentive Plan - In prior years, a select group of PacifiCorp employees received grants 
of performance share awards under ScottishPower's Long-Term Incentive Plan. The number of shares that actually 
vest is dependent upon the outcome of certain performance measures over a three-year period. The plan's change- 
in-control provisions resulted in removal of the employees' future service requirement as of the date of the 
acquisition but retained the three-year performance requirements. As a result, the number of shares that ultimately 
vest at the end of the performance period, if any, will be prorated to reflect only the portion of the three-year period 
which had elapsed between the date of original grant and the date of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC. During the 
year ended March 3 1,2006, no stock-based compensation expense was recorded because the performance measures 
were not yet reached. 

Deferred Share Program - In May 2004, ScottishPower implemented a deferred share program under which certain 
PacifiCorp employees were granted an annual stock bonus award based on a fixed dollar amount but distributable in 
ScottishPower American Depository Shares with the number of shares to be determined by the quoted market price 
of the shares at the date of issuance. Historically, compensation expense was accrued throughout the year in which 
the employee services were rendered and awards earned. During the year ended March 3 1,2005, $3.1 million of 
compensation costs were accrued. However, as a result of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC, the program was 
modified during the year ended March 3 1,2006 to provide for a cash payment rather than a share-based payment. 
The plan was discontinued as of April 1, 2006. 



Note 19 - Income Taxes 

The difference between the United States federal statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate attributed to 
income from continuing operations is as follows: 

Federal statutory rate 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 
Effect of regulatory treatment of depreciation differences 
Tax reserves 
Tax credits 
Other 

Effective income tax rate 

The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Current 
Federal 
State 

Total 

Deferred 
Federal 
State 

Total 

Investment tax credits 

Total income tax expense 

Years Ended March 3 1, 

2006 2005 2004 

35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 % 
2.9 3.8 3.6 
2.5 4.1 4.5 
1.1 (0.9) (3.1) 

(2.6) (2.3) (2.5) 
(3.3) 0.4 (0.8) 

Years Ended March 3 1, 
2006 2005 2004 



The tax effect of temporary differences giving rise to significant portions of PacifiCorp's deferred tax liabilities and 
deferred tax assets were as follows: 

March 3 1, 
(Millions of dollars) 2006 2005 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Property, plant and equipment 
Regulatory assets 
Derivative contract regulatory assets 
Other deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets: 
Regulatory liabilities 
Employee benefits 
Derivative contracts 
Other deferred tax assets 

Net deferred tax liability 

PacifiCorp made net income tax payments of $140.0 million for the year ended March 31,2006; $92.0 million for 
the year ended March 3 1,2005; and $1 14.1 million for the year ended March 3 1,2004. The income tax payments 
include payments for current federal and state income taxes, as well as amounts paid in settlement of prior years' 
liabilities as a result of income tax proceedings. 

PacifiCorp has established, and periodically reviews, an estimated contingent tax reserve on its Consolidated 
Balance Sheets to provide for the possibility of adverse outcomes in tax proceedings. The net federal and state 
contingency reserve increased $6.1 million during the year ended March 31,2006 primarily due to new issues 
identified for tax years ended after March 3 1,2000. The Internal Revenue Service started its examination of the 
2001, 2002 and 2003 tax years in October 2004. PacifiCorp anticipates that final settlement and payment on settled 
issues and other unresolved issues will not have a material adverse impact on its consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. 

The sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC on March 21,2006 triggered the recognition of a deferred intercompany gain or 
loss for tax purposes. The recognition of the tax effects of this item is considered to have been recognized 
immediately prior to the closing of the sale of PacifiCorp while it was part of the PHI consolidated group. 
PacifiCorp is currently unable to estimate the amount of the tax effect, if any, or determine a range of the potential 
tax effect. Due to the uncertainty of the amount of the deferred intercompany gain or loss, no adjustments have been 
recorded as of March 31,2006. 

Pursuant to a formal agreement with PHI and ScottishPower, any tax liabilities generated as a result of a deferred 
intercompany gain would be recorded as an equity contribution to PacifiCorp. Additionally, as this transaction is 
deemed to be with shareholders, the net tax expense would be recorded as a reduction in Common shareholder's 
capital similar to a return of capital distribution. As a result, there would be no net impact to PacifiCorp's Common 
shareholder's capital, statement of financial position or results of operations. 

If a deferred intercompany loss is determined to exist, PacifiCorp would be required to recognize the tax benefit of 
the deferred intercompany loss as an increase in Common shareholder's capital and establish a corresponding tax 
receivable or deferred tax asset, depending on whether PacjfiCorp would be able to currently utilize the capital loss. 
In the event a deferred tax asset is created with respect to the capital loss, it will be necessary to determine whether a 
valuation allowance should be established against the deferred tax asset. 



At March 3 1, 2006, PacifiCorp had no federal or state net operating loss carryfonvards. At March 3 1, 2005, 
PacifiCorp had total available federal net operating loss carryfonvards of approximately $2.7 million and no state 
net operating loss carryforwards. PacifiCorp has Oregon business energy tax credits of approximately $0.6 million 
at March 31, 2006 available to reduce future income tax liabilities. These credits begin to expire in 2012. PacifiCorp 
has Idaho investment tax credits of approximately $1.9 million at March 3 1, 2006 that are available to reduce future 
income tax liabilities. These credits begin to expire in 2017. PacifiCorp anticipates utilizing the tax credits prior to 
the expiration dates. 

Note 20 - Concentration of Customers 

During the year ended March 31, 2006, no single retail customer accounted for more than 2.0% of PacifiCorp's 
retail electric revenues, and the 20 largest retail customers accounted for 13.0% of total retail electric revenues. The 
geographical distribution of PacifiCorp's retail operating revenues for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 was: Utah, 
40.9%; Oregon, 29.3%; Wyoming, 13.3%; Washington, 8.4%; Idaho, 5.7%; and California, 2.4%. 

Note 21 - Subsequent Events 

On May 10, 2006, the PacifiCorp Board of Directors determined to change PacifiCorp's fiscal year-end from March 
3 1 to December 3 1.  PacifiCorp's report covering the transjtion period beginning April 1,2006 and ending 
December 3 1,2006 will be filed on Form 10-K. 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Quarters Ended 

(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts) June 30 September 30 December 3 1 March 3 1 

2006 
- - - - - - - - - 

Revenues $ 881.4 $ 620.7 $ 1,165.0 $ 1,229.6 
Income from operations 135.9 129.2 256.2 270.7 
Net income 46.4 39.4 127.8 147.1 
Earnings on common stock 45.9 38.9 127.2 146.6 
Common dividends declared per share 16.3# 16.3$ 16.36 4.86 
Common dividends paid per share 16.3# 16.3# 16.3$ 4.80 

2005 

Revenues S 747.8 S 828.7 $ 849.5 $ 622.8 
Income from operations 129.9 165.3 155.2 206.0 
Net income 50.9 61.9 51.3 87.6 
Earnings on common stock 50.4 61.4 50.7 87.1 
Common dividends declared per share 15.50 15.50 15.56 15.56 
Common dividends paid per share 15.5# 15.5$ 15.5# 15.56 

On March 3 1,2006, MEHC was the only common shareholder of record. 



ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

No information is required to be reported pursuant to this item. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

PacifiCorp maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that material 
information required to be disclosed by it in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and 
forms, and that the information is accumulated and communicated to PacifiCorp's management, including its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. PacifiCorp performed an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, 
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of 
PacifiCorp's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this 
evaluation, PacifiCorp's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded 
that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report. 

On March 2 1, 2006, MEHC completed its purchase of PacifiCorp, at which time PacifiCorp became a subsidiary of 
MEHC. Although PacifiCorp has maintained its disclosure controls and procedures that were in effect prior to the 
acquisition, subsequent to the acquisition there have been material changes in PacifiCorp's internal control over 
financial reporting. The material changes are due to the effect of the acquisition on PacifiCorp's control 
environment, which includes changes in the composition of the board of directors, PacifiCorp7s organizational 
structure, audit committee oversight and its corporate governance framework. PacifiCorp believes these changes 
have not negatively affected its internal control over financial reporting. 

During the three months ended March 3 1,2006, there was no other change in PacifiCorp's internal control over 
financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurred that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, PacifiCorp's internal control over financial reporting. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

No information is required to be reported pursuant to this item. 



PART I11 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The following is a list of directors and executive officers of PacifiCorp. There are no family relationships among the 
executive officers of PacifiCorp. Officers of PacifiCorp are normally elected annually. 

Name and Age Business Experience Past Five Years 

Gregory E. Abel(43) Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Abel was elected Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of PacifiCorp's Board 
of Directors in March 2006. Mr. Abel is also the President and Chief Operating 
Officer and a director of MEHC. Mr. Abel joined MEHC in 1992. 

Douglas L. Anderson (48) Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Anderson is the Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate 
Secretary of MEHC. Mr. Anderson joined MEHC in February 1993 and has served 
in various legal positions, including General Counsel of MEHC's independent 
power affiliates. Prior to that, Mr. Anderson was a corporate attorney in private 
practice. 

William J. Fehrman (45) President, PacifiCorp Energy. Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Fehnnan was elected President, PacifiCorp Energy in March 2006 and has 
responsibility for PacifiCorp's electric generation, commercial and energy trading 
and coal-mining operations. He joined MEHC in March 2006 to oversee integration 
activities of MEHC's acquisition of PacifiCorp. Prior to joining MEHC, Mr. 
Fehrman was President and Chief Executive Officer of Nebraska Public Power 
District in Columbus, Nebraska. He joined Nebraska Public Power in 1981, serving 
as its President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2003 and before that as 
Vice President of Energy Supply. 

Brent E. Gale (54) Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Gale was appointed Senior Vice President of Regulation and Legislation of 
MEHC in March 2006. Previously he had been Senior Vice President of 
MidAmerican Energy Company, a MEHC subsidiary, since July 2004. Mr. Gale has 
served in various legal, regulatory and strategic positions with MidAmerican Energy 
Company and its predecessors for more than five years prior to that. 

Patrick .I. Goodman (39) Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Goodman is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of MEHC. Mr. 
Goodman joined MEHC in 1995 and has served in various financial positions, 
including Chief Accounting Officer. 



Andrew P. Haller (54) Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Director since 
May 2003. 

Mr. Haller joined PacifiCorp as its Senior Vice President, General Counsel and 
Corporate Secretary in December 2000 and was also named General Counsel for 
Pacific Power in March 2006. Prior to joining PacifiCorp, he was chief executive 
for the United States operations of Kvaerner Process, a position he assumed in 1999. 
Mr. Haller began his career with Kvaerner in 1987, and held various senior counsel 
and management positions, including Senior Vice President and General Counsel- 
Americas. From 1998 to 1999, he served as the Associate General Counsel for the 
parent company, Kvaerner ASA, in its United States corporate headquarters. 

Nolan E. Karras (61) Director since February 1993. 

Mr. Karras is President of The Karras Company, Inc., an investment adviser, and 
has served in that capacity since 1983. He is Chief Executive Officer of Western 
Hay Company, Inc., a non-executive director of Scottish Power plc and Beneficial 
Life Insurance Company and is a Registered Principal for Raymond James Financial 
Services. 

A. Robert Lasich (46) Vice President and General Counsel, PacifiCorp Energy. Director since March 
2006. 

Mr. Lasich joined PacifiCorp and was elected to his current positions in March 
2006. Previously he served as Vice President of MEHC with responsibility for 
integration and transition matters related to the acquisition of PacifiCorp since July 
2005. Prior to that, Mr. Lasich was Vice President of Gas Supply and Trading for 
MidAmerican Energy Company since August 2004. He joined MidAmerican 
Energy Company in October 1997 and has also served as a senior attorney in its 
legal department. 

Mark C. Moench (50) Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Rocky Mountain Power. Director since 
March 2006. 

Mr. Moench joined PacifiCorp and was elected to his current positions in March 
2006. Previously he served as Senior Vice President, Law, of MEHC with 
responsibility for regulatory approvals of the PacifiCorp acquisition since June 
2005. Prior to that, Mr. Moench was Vice President and General Counsel of Kern 
River Gas Transmission Company since 2002, when Kern River was acquired by 
MEHC from the Williams Companies, Inc., which he joined in 1987. Mr. Moench 
served the Williams Companies in various senior legal positions, including as 
General Counsel of Kern River. 

Richard D. Peach (42) Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Director since May 2003. 

Mr. Peach was elected PacifiCorp's Chief Financial Officer effective January 2003 
and elected Senior Vice President in March 2006. Mr. Peach had served previously 
as Senior Vice President of Finance since March 2002. Prior to his appointment as 
Chief Financial Officer, he also served as Group Controller for Scottish Power plc 
from March 2000 to December 2002, Head of Customer Services, Energy Supply 
for ScottishPower from April 1999 to March 2000 and in various other management 
positions with ScottishPower since 1995. 



A. Richard Walje (54) President, Rocky Mountain Power. Director since July 2001. 

Mr. Walje was elected President, Rocky Mountain Power in March 2006 and has 
responsibility for the electric distribution operations of PacifiCorp in Utah, Idaho 
and Wyoming. Mr. Walje previously served as PacifiCorp's Executive Vice 
President since April 2004 and as Chief Information Officer since May 2000. 
Previously he served as PacifiCorp's Senior Vice President of Corporate Business 
Services from May 2001 to April 2004 and as PacifiCorp's Vice President for 
Transmission and Distribution Operations and Customer Service from 1998 to 2000. 
Mr. Walje has been with PacifiCorp since 1986. 

Stanley K. Watters (47) President, Pacific Power. Director since March 2006. 

Mr. Watters was elected President, Pacific Power in March 2006 and has 
responsibility for the electric distribution operations of PacifiCorp in Oregon, 
Washington and California. Mr. Watters was elected Senior Vice President of 
Commercial and Trading in June 2003. Mr. Watters served as Vice President of 
Trading and Origination from July 2001 to June 2003 and as Managing Director of 
Wholesale Energy Services since 1998. Mr. Watters has been with PacifiCorp since 
1982. 

Bruce N. Williams (47) Treasurer. 

Mr. Williams has served as PacifiCorp's Treasurer since February 2000. Prior to 
being elected Treasurer, he served as Assistant Treasurer of PacifiCorp and has been 
with PacifiCorp since 1985. 

In addition to following MEHC's Code of Business Conduct and Berkshire Hathaway's Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics Policy, which provide a basis for employee ethical standards and conduct for all employees, the 
PacifiCorp Board of Directors previously approved and implemented a "Code of Ethics for Principal Officers" 
designed to promote the integrity of PacifiCorp's financial reporting and legal compliance. The Code of Ethics for 
Principal Officers applies to PacifiCorp's Chief Executive Officer and its financial and accounting officers. The 
Guide to Business Conduct and Code of Ethics for Principal Officers are available in the "About Us - Company 
Overview" section of PacifiCorp's website at www.pacificorp.con~. PacifiCorp intends to make available on its 
website any amendment to, or waiver from, the Code of Ethics for Principal Officers as the Code applies to 
PacifiCorp's Chief Executive Officer and its financial and accounting officers. 

Through its affiliation with Berkshire Hathaway, PacifiCorp participates in The Network, an independent company 
that employees and vendors can call to report business conduct issues confidentially and anonymously involving 
fraud, financial reporting irregularities, misrepresentation of financial reports, non-compliance with internal 
controls, or suspected illegal or unethical activity. 

Because PacifiCorp's common stock is indirectly, wholly owned by MEHC, its Board of Directors consists 
primarily of internal executives and it is not required to have an audit committee. However, the audit committee of 
MEHC acts as the audit committee for PacifiCorp. 



ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

PACIFICORP BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Introduction 

The PacifiCorp Board of Directors submits this report on executive compensation, which outlines the compensation 
provided to PacifiCorp's executive officers. For most of the year ended March 3 1,2006, PacifiCorp was owned by 
ScottishPower, and this report generally reflects the executive compensation philosophy, practices and programs 
maintained under ScottishPower ownership. PacifiCorp's acquisition by MEHC on March 21, 2006 generally did 
not result in material changes to PacifiCorp executive compensation practices, but any such changes are described 
in this Item 11. 

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 

Under ScottishPower ownership, the Remuneration Committee of the ScottishPower Board of Directors, assisted by 
its outside advisors, had the responsibility to approve compensation levels and executive compensation plans for the 
PacifiCorp Chief Executive Officer, as well as any ScottishPower executive officers serving as PacifiCorp executive 
officers in a dual capacity, and to review compensation for other executive officers and senior management of 
PacifiCorp. During the year ended March 3 1, 2006, the Remuneration Committee was composed entirely of 
independent, non-executive directors. With the exception of any compensation requiring review by the 
Remuneration Committee, the Compensation Committee of the PacifiCorp Board of Directors, which under 
ScottishPower ownership consisted of the PacifiCorp Chief Executive Officer and, at various times during the year 
ended March 3 1,2006, the ScottishPower Chief Executive Officer, the ScottishPower Human Resources Director 
and PacifiCorp's General Counsel, had responsibility for approving compensation levels and executive 
compensation plans for executive officers of PacifiCorp. The Remuneration Committee also approved any stock- 
based compensation to PacifiCorp executive officers, all of which was in the form of ScottishPower equity. 

Effective upon MEHC's acquisition of PacifiCorp, PacifiCorp's Board of Directors eliminated its Compensation 
Committee and delegated its duties to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Gregory E. Abel. Mr. Abel also 
serves as PacifiCorp's Chief Executive Officer and as MEHC's President and Chief Operating Officer. He is 
employed by MEHC and receives no compensation from PacifiCorp or specific compensation from MEHC for his 
PacifiCorp service; accordingly, references to executive officers in this Item 11 exclude Mr. Abel unless otherwise 
indicated. The following describes the components of PacifiCorp's executive compensation program and the basis 
upon which recommendations and determinations were made for the year ended March 3 1, 2006. 

Compensation Philosophy 

PacifiCorp's philosophy is that executive compensation should be linked closely to corporate and operational 
performance, customer service and increases in shareholder value. PacifiCorp's executive compensation program 
has the following objectives: 

(i) provide competitive total compensation that enables PacifiCorp to attract and retain key executives; 
(ii) provide variable compensation opportunities that are linked to PacifiCorp, operational area, and 

individual performance; and 
(iii) establish an appropriate balance between incentives focused on short-term objectives and those 

encouraging sustained performance improvements. 

Qualifying compensation for deductibility under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) is one of the factors that 
PacifiCorp considers in designing PacifiCorp's incentive compensation arrangements for executive officers. Internal 
Revenue Code Section 162(m) limits to S1.O million the annual deduction by a publicly held corporation of 
compensation paid to any executive officer. except with respect to certain fonns of incentive compensation that 
qualify for exclusion. Although it is the intent to design and administer compensation programs that maximize 
deductibility. PacifiCorp views the objectives outlined above as luore important than compliance with the technical 
requirements necessary to exclude compensation from the deductibility limit of Internal Revenue Code Section 



162(m). Nevertheless, with the exception of severance payments made to PacifiCorp's former President and Chief 
Executive Officer, Judith A. Johansen, PacifiCorp believes that nearly all compensation paid to the executive 
officers for services rendered in the year ended March 3 1, 2006, is fully deductible. 

Compensation Program Components 

During the year ended March 3 1,2006, the compensation programs were focused on market-based comparisons on 
the relevant industry for each executive officer. The electric utility industry was utilized as the exclusive basis for 
market comparison for positions with a principal focus on electric operations. For positions with a corporate-wide 
focus, the general industry and electric utility industry were used for market comparison. In all cases, compensation 
is targeted at market median levels, with an assumption that total compensation greater than market median, in any 
specific time period, anticipates that PacifiCorp and industry perfonnance exceeds the median performance of peer 
companies. 

PacifiCorp's executive compensation programs have three principal elements: base salaries, annual incentive 
compensation and long-term incentive compensation, as described below. 

Base Salaries 

Base salaries and target incentive amounts are reviewed for adjustment at least annually based upon competitive pay 
levels, individual performance and potential, and changes in duties and responsibilities. Base salary and the target 
incentive are set at a level such that total annual compensation for satisfactory performance would approximate the 
median of pay levels in the comparison group used to develop competitive data. In the year ended March 3 1, 2006, 
the base salary of each executive officer was increased, based on market analysis, to reflect competitive market 
changes, individual performance and changes in the responsibilities of some officers. 

Annual Incentive Compensation 

All PacifiCorp executive officers, including those listed in the Summary Compensation Table other than Mr. Abel, 
participate in PacifiCorp's Annual Incentive Plan (the "AIP"). In May 2006, PacifiCorp determined that named 
executive officers are eligible under certain conditions for payments under the AIP in June 2006 as follows: Judith 
A. Johansen, $393,751 ; Andrew P. Haller, $185,980; A. Richard Walje, $158,789; Richard D. Peach, $1 84,356; 
Stanley K. Watters, $13 1,016; and Matthew Wright, $142,916, 

Long-Term Incentive Compensation 

In May 2005, the ScottishPower Remuneration Committee approved grants of performance share awards under 
ScottishPower's Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP") for a select group of PacifiCorp executive officers and 
other senior managers. LTIP awards were also made in April 2004 to certain executive officers and senior 
managers. The LTIP provides for awards of performance shares that link the rewards closely between management 
and shareholders and focus on long-term corporate performance. The awards will vest only if the Remuneration 
Committee is satisfied that certain threshold customer service and financial performance measures are achieved. The 
number of shares that actually vest depends upon ScottishPower's comparative Total Shareholder Return 
performance over a three-year performance period. Vested shares are released to participants only after the 
conclusion of the performance period. In addition to the criteria described above, the vesting of LTIP awards held 
by PacifiCorp executive officers and senior managers will be prorated to reflect only the portion of the three-year 
performance period in which PacifiCorp was owned by ScottishPower. 

In April 2004, the ScottishPower Remuneration Committee also approved grants of stock options under the ExSOP 
for certain executive officers and other senior managers, which were awarded in May 2004. These grants were the 
last stock options awarded under the ExSOP. Upon the closing of PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC, all outstanding 
ExSOP options vested in full. A number of restricted stock and stock option awards originally made under the PSIP, 
which was assumed by ScottishPower in connection with its acquisition of PacifiCorp in 1999 and expired in 2001, 
remain outstanding but are fully vested. Except for the ExSOP grants awarded in May 2004, ExSOP and PSIP 
awards relate to ScottishPower American Depository Shares or Ordinary Shares and will remain outstanding until 
March 21, 2007. The ExSOP awards granted in May 2004, will remain outstanding until November 2007. 



In May 2004, the ScottishPower Remuneration Committee approved a new program to replace the ExSOP, called 
the Deferred Share Program, which was part of the AIP for executive officers and senior management. Eligible 
employees received an increase to their AIP maximum target incentive payment, with the increase paid in 
ScottishPower American Depository Shares, for the year ended March 3 1, 2005. For the year ended March 3 1, 
2006, the Deferred Share Program was modified and potential payments for eligible employees under the program 
were added to cash payments under the AIP. This program was discontinued as of April 1,2006. 

William Fehrman, President of PacifiCorp Energy, currently participates in MEHC's Long-Term Incentive 
Partnership Plan. The participation of the other named executive officers (excluding Mr. Abel, who is not a 
participant) in the plan will be evaluated for PacifiCorp's fiscal year ending December 3 1,2007. A copy of the plan 
is attached as Exhibit 10.71 to the MEHC Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

Compensation of Directors 

Directors are not paid any fees for serving as directors. All directors are reimbursed for their expenses incurred in 
attending Board meetings. 

Executive Compensation 

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation for sewices in all capacities to PacifiCorp for 
the years ended March 3 I ,  2006,2005 and 2004 of the Chief Executive Officer of PacifiCorp, the next four other 
most highly compensated executive officers of PacifiCorp who were sewing as executive officers at the end of the 
last completed fiscal year and two former PacifiCorp executive officers, either of whom would have been among the 
four other most highly compensated executive officers if they had been serving in such capacity as of March 3 1, 
2006. 



Summary Compensation Table 

Long-Tern Com~ensation 
All Other Restricted Securities LTIP ScottishPower 

Annual Compensation (b) Compensation Stock Underlying Payout Performance 

Name and Principal Position Year Salary (c) Bonus (d) (el Awards Options (f) Shares (g) 

Gregory E. Abel (a) 

Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Judith A. Johansen (h) 2006 $ 808,042 $ 393,751 $ 4,115,523 - $ 15,839 

Former President and 2005 743,750 437,500 23,311 52,228 19,916 

Chief Executive Officer 2004 589,394 337,500 22,883 6 1,475 12,458 

Andrew P. Haller 2006 361.349 185,980 108,955 

Senior Vice President, 2005 334,480 167,137 20,515 1 1,667 

General Counsel and 2004 327,996 190,109 20,165 13,530 

Corporate Secretary 

A. Richard Walje 2006 343,004 158,789 104,409 

President, Rocky 2005 317,307 158,108 20,270 16,613 

Mountain Power 2004 299,544 127,557 83,173 17,751 

Richard D. Peach 2006 380,456 209,088 248,494 

Senior Vice President and 2005 21 0,654 153,987 100,368 11,406 

Chief Financial Officer 2004 200,291 136,150 11 5,899 10,977 

Stanley K. Watters 2006 277,671 131,016 88,326 58,102 2,900 

President, Pacific Power 2005 256,875 128,550 20,100 8,965 3,647 

2004 243,693 130,728 22,544 8,865 3,593 

Matthew Wright ( i )  2006 3 16,545 142,916 2,028,82 1 

Former Executive 2005 292,481 141,945 151,425 15,331 

Vice President 2004 253,612 127,527 62.766 10,502 

Michael J. Pittman 6) 2006 1 90.909 268,125 1,839,328 

Former Senior 2005 323,750 189,000 20,329 33.948 

Vice President 2004 313,125 187,500 20,097 38,729 

(a) Mr. Abel receives no compensation from PacifiCorp or specific colnpensation from MEHC for his PacifiCorp 
service. Please refer to MEHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2005 (File 
No. 001-14881) for executive con~pensation information for Mr. Abel. 

(b) May include amounts deferred pursuant to the Compensation Reduction Plan, under which key executives and 
directors may defer receipt of cash compensation until retirement or a preset future date. Amounts deferred are 
invested in ScottishPower American Depository Shares or a cash account on which interest is paid at a rate 
equal to the Moody's Intermediate Corporate Bond Yield for AA-rated Public Utility Bonds. 

(c) Salary includes foreign housing benefits paid to Mr. Peach and Mr. Wright. The amounts for Mr. Peach were 
S8,638 for the year ended March 3 1,2006, $64,944 for the year ended March 3 1, 2005 and $68,5 13 for the 
year ended March 3 1, 2004. The amount for Mr. Wright was $39,380 for the year ended March 31, 2004. 

(d) Bonus includes the value of ScottishPower American Depository Shares awarded under the AIP Deferred 
Share Program for the fiscal year ended March 3 1,2005. 

(e) Amounts shown for the year ended March 3 1, 2006, include: 
(i) Company contributions to the PacifiCorp Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan (the "Savings 



(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v> 

(h) 
(i> 
ti) 

Plan") of $12,850 for Ms. Johansen, $1 1,366 for Mr. Haller, $1 1,259 for Mr. Walje, $7,531 for Mr. 
Peach, $1 1,165 for Mr. Watters, $1 1,258 for Mr. Wright, and $7,240 for Mr. Pittman. 
Portions of premiums on term life insurance policies that PacifiCorp paid in the amounts of $2,344 for 
Ms. Johansen, $1,088 for Mr. Haller, $1,072 for Mr. Walje, $1,179 for Mr. Peach, $836 for Mr. Watters, 
$953 for Mr. Wright, and $513 for Mr. Pittman. These benefits are available to all employees. 
Annual vehicle allowances of $9,263 paid to Ms. Johansen, $9,375 paid to each of Messrs. Haller, 
Walje, Watters, and Wright, $4,800 paid to Mr. Peach and $4,875 paid to Mr. Pittman. 
Retention payments in the amounts of $87,126 to Mr. Haller, $82,703 to Mr. Walje, $62,500 to Mr. 
Peach, $66,950 to Mr. Watters and $76,323 to Mr. Wright. 
Additional international assignment payments of $42,195 to Mr. Peach and $37,868 to Mr. Wright for 
the year ended March 3 1, 2006. Also includes international assignee localization payments of 5130,289 
to Mr. Peach and $12,611 to Mr. Wright for the year ended March 31, 2006. 
Severance benefits, including enhancements related to PacifiCorp's change in control, paid during the 
year ended, or payable or accrued as of, March 3 1, 2006, in the amounts of $4,091,066 to Ms. Johansen, 
$1,880,433 to Mr. Wright and $1,826,700 to Mr. Pittman. Ms. Johansen's and Mr. Wright's amounts 
include the value of excise tax gross-up payments to be made by PacifiCorp to the Internal Revenue 
Service on their behalf. ScottishPower reimbursed PacifiCorp for $1,389,937 of Mr. Pittman's benefits. 
Represents the dollar value of awards under the ScottishPower LTIP that vested and were distributed to 
the named officer in the form of ScottishPower American Depository Shares. 
Represents the number of ScottishPower American Depository Shares contingently granted in 2006, 
2005 and 2004 that can be earned under the terms of the LTIP. 
Ms. Johansen resigned as a PacifiCorp executive officer effective March 2 1,2006. 
Mr. Wright resigned as a PacifiCorp executive officer effective March 2 1, 2006. 
Mr. Pittman resigned as a PacifiCorp executive officer effective September 5,2005. 

Aggregated Option Exercises at March 31,2006 and Year-End Option Values 

The following table sets forth information regarding the aggregate options exercised during the past fiscal year and 
the option values at March 3 1,2006 for each of the named executive officers. All options are for ScottishPower 
American Depository Shares and include options granted under the PSIP and the ExSOP. 

Number of Securities Value of Unexercised 
Underlying Unexercised Options In-the-Money Options 

at March 3 1, 2006 at March 3 1, 2006 
Shares 

Acquired on Value 
Name Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable 

Gregory E. Abel 
Judith A. Johansen 
Andrew P. Haller 
A. Richard Walje 
Richard D. Peach (a) 
Stanley K. Watters 
Matthew Wright (a) 
Michael J. Pittman 

(a) Certain options of Mr. Peach and Mr. Wright are for ScottishPower Ordinary Shares, but are presented as American 
Depository Shares. 



Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards in the Last Fiscal Year 

The following table sets forth information regarding awards made in the year ended March 3 1, 2006 to each named 
executive officer under the LTIP. Each LTIP award entitles the executive officer to acquire, at no cost, the number 
of ScottishPower American Depository Shares listed in the table, less any withholding for applicable taxes. An 
award will only vest if the ScottishPower Remuneration Committee is satisfied that certain performance measures 
related to the sustained underlying financial performance of the ScottishPower group and improvements in customer 
service standards are achieved over a period of three years commencing with the fiscal year preceding the date an 
award is made. The number of shares that vest depend upon ScottishPower's comparative Total Shareholder Return 
performance over the three-year performance period. Total Shareholder Return performance is measured against 
a peer group of major international energy companies. No shares vest unless ScottishPower's Total Shareholder 
Return performance is at least equal to the median performance of the peer group, at which point 40% of the initial 
award vests. If ScottishPower's performance is equal to or exceeds the top quartile, 100% of the shares vest. The 
number of shares that vest for performance between these two points is determined on a straight-line 
basis. Furthermore, the number of vested shares for each award will be prorated to reflect only the portion of the 
three-year performance period in which PacifiCorp was owned by ScottishPower. Participants may acquire 
the vested shares at any time after the third anniversary of grant. 

Performance Estimated Future Payouts 
Number of or Other Under Non-Stock Price-Based Plans 

Shares, Units Period Until Exercise or 

Name 

Gregory E. Abel 
Judith A. Johansen 
Andrew P. Haller 
A. Richard Walje 

Richard D. Peach 
Stanley K. Watters 
Matthew Wright 
Michael J .  Pittman 

or Other 
Rights 

Maturation 
or Payout 

3 years 
3 years 
3 years 
3 years 
3 years 
3 years 
3 years 

Threshold Target 
Shares Shares (a) 

Maximum 
Shares (b) 

(a) Amount to vest if threshold measures and median Total Shareholder Return performance are achieved. 
(b) Maximum number of shares exercisable reflects prorating related to acquisition by MEHC as described above. 

Employment Agreements 

In September 2003, Ms. Johansen and PacifiCorp executed an employment agreement providing for a base salary of 
$700,000 and a maximum annual incentive award of 75.0% of base salary. Under the agreement, she was eligible 
for participation in the LTIP, the ExSOP and the Retirement Plan referred to below, in addition to other benefit 
plans available for senior-level executives of PacifiCorp. Additionally, Ms. Johansen agreed to standard 
confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitation terms. In December 2005, Ms. Johansen signed an amendment 
to her employment agreement with PacifiCorp and ScottishPower. The amendment: 

Provided for the termination of Ms. Johansen's employlnent with PacifiCorp and her resignation as an officer 
and director of PacifiCorp and all affiliates, including ScottishPower, effective immediately following the 
closing of the sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC; 

Restated her waiver of participation in the PacifiCorp Executive Severance Plan; 

Provided for the cash retention award associated with PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC previously approved by 
ScottishPower's Remuneration Committee, equal to one times base salary, which was contingent on the closing 
of PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC and also on Ms. Johansen's continued elnployment and her satisfactory 
performance of duties in the period through the sale's closing; Ms. Johansen will receive 80.0% of the retention 
award within 90 days of the closing of the sale and will receive the rell~aining 20.0% of the award 365 days 
from the date of the closing, provided there are no claims by MEHC against ScottishPower related to the sale: 



Modified her AIP terms to reflect a single measurement, PacifiCorp's performance against its budget, and to 
eliminate pro rata payout, as described above; 

Clarified the respective obligations of PacifiCorp and ScottishPower to her after the termination of her 
employment; 

Provided that upon termination and assuming compliance by her with the terms of her employment agreement, 
she would receive severance benefits equal to 12 months of salary, bonus and vehicle allowance, plus enhanced 
change-in-control benefits under the PacifiCorp Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan; 

Provided for a gross-up payment by PacifiCorp to Ms. Johansen to cover any excise tax payable in connection 
with separation payments, as well as certain health insurance and other benefits following her employment 
termination; and 

Added certain customary obligations relating to non-disparagement and conflicts of interest. 

In December 2004, Mr. Pittman and PacifiCorp executed an employment agreement providing for a base salary of 
$325,000 and a maximum annual incentive award of 100.0% of base salary (unless otherwise modified by the 
Remuneration Committee). Under the agreement, he was eligible for participation in the LTIP, the ExSOP and the 
Retirement Plan, in addition to other benefit plans available for senior level executives of PacifiCorp. Additionally, 
Mr. Pittman agreed to standard confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitation terms. 

In October 2005, PacifiCorp entered into a compromise agreement with PHI and Mr. Pittman that superseded Mr. 
Pittman's employment agreement with PacifiCorp and ScottishPower and documented the terms of his separation 
from the companies following a ScottishPower corporate restructuring that eliminated his position. Under his 
employment agreement, Mr. Pittman was entitled to severance benefits equal to 12 months of salary, bonus and 
vehicle allowance and 6 months of continued health insurance coverage. The Compromise Agreement 
supplemented those benefits with enhancements generally comparable to those payable under the PacifiCorp 
Executive Severance Plan for a termination following a change in control of PacifiCorp, including an additional 12 
months of salary, bonus and vehicle allowance and health insurance coverage for an additional 18 months. 
ScottishPower reimbursed PacifiCorp for the cost of the supplemental benefits provided by the compromise 
agreement. 

Mr. Abel's employment agreement with MEHC is described in MEHC's Annual Report on Forn~ 10-K for the year 
ended December 31,2005 (File No. 001-14881). 

Retention Agreements 

In May 2005, PacifiCorp and its Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Richard D. Peach entered into a 
retention agreement entitling Mr. Peach to an $80,000 retention bonus on June 1,2006 if he remains employed at an 
acceptable level of performance in PacifiCorp's corporate finance department through May 30,2006 and has 
developed a succession and risk mitigation plan for his department. If Mr. Peach's employment is terminated 
involuntarily due to a workforce reduction during the term of the retention agreement, he will receive the full 
amount of any unpaid retention bonuses. 

In August 2005, PacifiCorp's named executive officers (other than Mr. Abel, Ms. Johansen and Mr. Pittman) 
entered into agreements with ScottishPower for awards under the Transaction Incentive Program, which is a $6.0 
million pool created by ScottishPower for retention incentives during the period of completion of ScottishPower's 
sale of PacifiCorp to MEHC. The agreement signed by each named executive officer provided for a transaction 
incentive award in an amount equal to the executive officer's base salary (in Mr. Peach's case, this amount was 
adjusted for his existing retention agreement), payable as follows: 

25.0% of the award was paid within one month of execution and delivery of the award agreement; 

50.0% of the award is payable three months after the closing of PacifiCorp's sale to MEHC, provided there are 
no claims by MEHC against ScottishPower; and 



25.0% of the award is payable 12 months after the closing, again as long as there are no claims by MEHC 
against ScottishPower. 

Continued employment by PacifiCorp, observance of confidentiality obligations and satisfactory performance in 
support of the transaction until the sale's con~pletion are conditions to the executive officer's receipt of these 
payments. Award payments are the obligation of ScottishPower. Ultimate determinations of award eligibility will be 
made by ScottishPower's Chief Executive Officer, subject to review by its Remuneration Committee. 

On May 24,2006, PacifiCorp entered into certain retention agreements with each of Messrs. Haller and Peach. 
Under each retention agreement, provided that the executive has not voluntarily resigned or had his employment 
with PacifiCorp terminated for cause prior to December 3 1, 2006 for Mr. Haller and November 22,2006 for Mr. 
Peach, the executive (i) will be entitled to the same benefits the executive would have been entitled to 
under PacifiCorp's Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan ("SEW") had the executive terminated his 
employment during the two-month window period following the first anniversary of a change in control, and (ii) 
will be entitled, upon any termination on or following the applicable retention date, to the same benefits the 
executive would have been entitled to under PacifiCorp's Executive Severance Plan had such termination occurred 
in connection with a material alteration in position or compensation within the 24-month period following a change 
in control. 

Severance Arrangements 

PacifiCorp's Executive Severance Plan provides severance benefits to certain executive-level employees who in the 
past were designated by the PacifiCorp Compensation Committee, but who in the future will be designated by the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors. The executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table (other than 
Mr. Abel and Ms. Johansen) participate in this plan. 

Severance benefits are payable by PacifiCorp for voluntary terminations as a result of a certain material alterations 
in position or compensation that have a detrimental impact on the executive's employment or involuntary 
terminations (including a PacifiCorp-initiated resignation) for reasons other than cause. Severance payments 
generally equal one or two times the executive's annual cash compensation, three months of health insurance 
benefits and outplacement services. 

The Executive Severance Plan also provides enhanced severance benefits in the event of certain terminations during 
the 24-month period following a qualifying change-in-control transaction; with respect to MEHC's acquisition of 
PacifiCorp, this qualifying period commenced on May 23, 2005. Executives designated by the PacifiCorp 
Compensation Committee or Chairman, as applicable, are eligible for change-in-control benefits resulting from 
either a PacifiCorp-initiated termination without cause or a resignation generally within two months after certain 
material alterations in position or compensation. If qualified for the enhanced severance benefits, an executive 
would receive severance pay in an amount equal to either two, two and one-half or three times the annual cash 
compensation of the executive, depending on the level set by the PacifiCorp Compensation Committee or Chairman, 
as applicable. PacifiCorp is required to make an additional payment to compensate the executive for the effect of 
any excise tax. The executive would also receive continuation of subsidized health insurance from six to 24 months, 
depending on length of service, and outplacement services. 

Retirement Plans 

PacifiCorp has adopted non-contributory defined benefit retirement plans for its employees, other than employees 
subject to collective bargaining agreements that do not provide for coverage. Certain executive officers, including 
the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table other than Mr. Abel, are also eligible to 
participate in PacifiCorp's non-qualified SERF'. The following description assumes participation in both the 
Retirement Plan and the SERP. Participants receive benefits at retirement payable for life based on length of service 
with PacifiCorp and average pay in the 60 consecutive months of highest pay out of the last 120 months, and pay 
for this purpose would include salary and AIP payments reflected in the Summary Compensation Table above. 
Benefits are based on 50.0% of final average pay plus 1 .O% of final average pay for each year that PacifiCorp meets 
certain performance goals set for each fiscal year by, in the past, the PacifiCorp Compensation Committee, and now 



the Chairman of the Board of Directors. The maximum benefit is 65.0% of final average pay. Participants may also 
elect actuarially equivalent alternative forms of benefits. Retirement benefits are adjusted to reflect social security 
benefits as well as certain prior employer retirement benefits. Participants are entitled to receive full benefits upon 
retirement after age 60 with at least 15 years of service. Participants are also entitled to receive reduced benefits 
upon early retirement after age 55 or after age 50 with at least 15 years of service and five years of participation in 
the SERP. 

The following table shows the estimated annual retirement benefit payable upon retirement at age 60 as of March 
31, 2006. Amounts in the table reflect payments from the Retirement Plan and the S E W  combined, prior to any 
offset of projected social security benefits and benefits paid from any prior employer plan. 

Estimated Annual Pension at Retirement (a) 

Years of Service (b) 

Final Average Pay at 
Retirement Date 5 15 2 5 3 0 

) The benefits shown in this table assume that the individual will remain in the employ of PacifiCorp until 
retirement at age 60, that the Retirement Plan and the SERP will continue in their present form and that 
PacifiCorp achieves its performance goals under the SERP in all years. 

(b) The number of credited years of service used to compute aggregate benefits under the Retirement Plan 
and the SERP are five for Ms. Johansen, five for Mr. Haller, 20 for Mr. Walje, 11 for Mr. Peach, 24 for 
Mr. Watters, 19 for Mr. Wright and 26 for Mr. Pittman. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

All outstanding shares of common stock of PacifiCorp are indirectly owned by MEHC, 666 Grand Avenue, Des 
Moines, Iowa 50309. MEHC is a consolidated subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway, which owns approximately 88.2% 
of MEHC's common stock (86.6% on a diluted basis). The balance of MEHC's common stock is owned by a 
private investor group comprised of Walter Scott, Jr. (including family members and related entities), David L. 
Sokol and Gregory E. Abel, PacifiCorp's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. 

Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 15,2006, CAM North America, LLC, 399 Park Avenue, 
New York, KY 10022, is the beneficial owner of 38,910 shares, or 5.19%, of PacifiCorp's outstanding 7.48% Series 
Preferred Stock. 

No PacifiCorp executive officers or directors own shares of PacifiCorp's preferred stock or shares of the Class B 
common stock of Berkshire Hathaway. The following table sets forth certain information as of March 3 1, 2006 
regarding the beneficial ownership of common stock of MEHC and the Class A common stock of Berkshire 
Hathaway by (i) each of the executive officers named in the Suminary Compensation Table under Item 11. 
Executive Compensation above, (ii) each director of PacifiCorp as detailed under "Item 10. Directors and Executive 
Officers of the Registrant," and (iii) all executive officers and directors of PacifiCorp as a group. 



MidAmerican Common Stock 

Beneficial Owner 

Gregory E. Abel (b) 
Douglas L. Anderson 
William J. Fehrman 
Brent E. Gale 
Patrick J. Goodman 
Andrew P. Haller 
Nolan E. Karras 
A. Robert Lasich 
Mark C. Moench 
Richard D. Peach 
A. Richard Walje 
Stanley K. Watters 
Bruce N. Williams 

Number of shares Percentage of 
Beneficially Owned (a) Class (a) 

All executive officers and directors 
as a group (1 3 persons) 749,992 1.01 % 

Berkshire Hathaway Class A Common Stock 
Number of shares Percentage of 

Beneficially Owned (a) Class (a)(c) 

- % 
3 * 

(a) Includes shares as to which the listed beneficial owner is deemed to have the right to acquire beneficial 
ownership under Rule 13d-3(d) under the Securities Exchange Act, including, among other things, shares 
which the listed beneficial owner has the right to acquire within 60 days. 

(b) Includes options to purchase 649,052 shares of common stock which are exercisable within 60 days. 
Excludes 10,041 shares reserved for issuance pursuant to a deferred compensation plan. 

(c) * Indicates beneficial ownership of less than one percent of all outstanding shares. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 
RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

According to the terms of Andrew P. Haller's offer letter, PacifiCorp made a $200,000.00 loan to Mr. Haller on 
May 21, 2001 for the repayment of obligations to his former employer. The loan accrues interest at the annual rate 
of 4.74%. Mr. Haller has repaid $146,793.50 of the loan amount. The largest outstanding loan balance, including 
accrued interest, at any time during the year ended March 31, 2006 was $86,206.50 at July 11, 2005. As of March 
3 1, 2006, the outstanding loan balance was $55,016.83, including accrued interest. The remaining balance and 
interest is payable in one payment of $32,988.56 on June 30, 2006 and one payment of $23,730.98 on June 30, 
2007. 

See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Note 4 - Related-Party Transactions" for other 
information on related-party transactions. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

The ScottishPower Audit Committee retained PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent certified public 
accountants, as PacjfiCorp's independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended March 3 1, 2006, 
which was affirmed by the MEHC Audit Committee. 

Fees and Pre-Approval Policy 

MEHC's Audit Committee has an Audit and Non-Audit Services Pre-Approval Policy (the "Policy") which sets 
forth the procedures and the conditions pursuant to which services to be performed by the independent registered 
public accountant are to be pre-approved. Pursuant to the Policy, certain services described in detail in the Policy 
may be pre-approved on an annual basis together with pre-approved maximum fee levels for such services. The 
services eligible for annual pre-approval consist of services that would be included under the categories of Audit 



fees, Audit-related fees and Tax fees below. If not pre-approved on an annual basis, proposed services must 
otherwise be separately approved prior to being performed by the independent registered public accountant. In 
addition, any services that receive annual pre-approval but exceed the pre-approved maximum fee level also will 
require separate approval by the Audit Committee prior to being performed. The PacifiCorp Board of Directors has 
not adopted any pre-approval policy that is in addition to or different than the MEHC Audit Committee's pre- 
approval policy. 

ScottishPower7s Audit Committee used a pre-approval policy for PricewaterhouseCoopers' services and fees. This 
policy detailed the services that could be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm, and 
required that where the initial fee value for any services permitted in accordance with the policy exceeded £100,000 
(or its United States dollar equivalent), the assignment had to be reviewed and authorized by the Chairman of the 
ScottishPower Audit Committee with the concurrence of the ScottishPower Finance Director. Any services 
authorized by the Chairman were reported to the ScottishPower Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting, and 
fees paid to the independent registered public accounting firm were reported regularly to the ScottishPower Audit 
Committee. 

The following table presents fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the years ended March 3 1, 2006 and 2005. 

(Millions of dollars) Year Ended March 3 1,  
2006 2005 - 

Audit fees $ 1.4 4 2 . 4 %  $ 1.4 30.4 % 
Audit-related fees 0.4 12.2 1.1 23.9 
Tax fees 1.4 42.4 2.0 43.5 
Other fees 0.1 3.0 0.1 2.2 

Total 

Audit fees are for the audit and review of PacifiCorp's financial statements in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), including comfort letters, statutory and regulatory 
audits, consents and services related to SEC matters. 

Audit-related fees are for assurance and related services that are related to the audit or review of PacifiCorp's 
financial statements, including employee benefit plan audits, due diligence services and financial accounting and 
reporting consultation. 

Tax fees are fees for tax compliance services and related costs. 

Other fees are mainly for services rendered in connection with requests from state regulatory commissions and for 
regulatory matters. 



PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

(a) 1. The list of all financial statements filed as a part of this report is included in Item 8. Financial Statements 
and Supplementary Data. 

2. Schedules:* 
* All schedules have been omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are 

required or because the required information is included elsewhere in the financial statements 
included under "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

3. Exhibits: 

Exhibit 
Number Exhibit Title 

2.l(a)* Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 6, 1998, by and among Scottish Power 
plc, NA General Partnership, Scottish Power NA 1 Limited and Scottish Power NA 2 Limited. 
(Exhibit 1 to the Form 6-K, dated December 11, 1998, filed by Scottish Power plc, File No. 1- 
14676). 

2.1 (b)* Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 6, 1998, as 
amended as of January 29, 1999 and February 9, 1999, and amended and restated as of February 
23, 1999, by and among New Scottish Power PLC, Scottish Power plc, NA General Partnership 
and PacifiCorp (Exhibit (2)b, Form 10-K for year ended December 3 1, 1998, File No. 1-5 152). 

3.1* Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of PacifiCorp (Exhibit (3)b, Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 3 1, 1996, File No. 1-5152). 

3.2 Bylaws of PacifiCorp, as amended May 23,2005. 

4.1* Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of January 9, 1989, between PacifiCorp and JP Morgan 
Chase Bank (formerly known as The Chase Manhattan Bank), Trustee, Ex. 4-E, Form 8-B, File 
No. 1-5 152, as supplemented and modified by 18 Supplemental Indentures as follows: 

Exhibit 
Number File Type File Date 

January 9, 1990 
September 1 1, 199 1 
January 7, 1992 
Quarter ended March 3 1, 1992 
Quarter ended September 30, 1992 
April 1, 1993 
Quarter ended September 30, 1993 
Quarter ended June 30, 1994 
Year ended December 3 1, 1994 
Year ended December 3 1, 1995 
Year ended December 3 1, 1996 
Year ended December 3 1, 1998 
November 2 1,200 1 
Quarter ended June 30,2003 
September 8, 2003 
August 24,2004 
June 13,2005 

File 
Number 



4.2* Third Restated Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. See 3.1 and 3.2 above. 

In reliance upon item 601(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K, various instruments defining the rights of holders of long- 
term debt of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are not being filed because the total amount authorized under 
each such instrument does not exceed 10.0% of the total assets of the Registrant and its subsidiaries on a 
consolidated basis. The Registrant hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Commission 
upon request. 

10.1* Judith Johansen Employment Agreement (Exhibit 10.3, Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed May 
27,2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.2* Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement among PacifiCorp, Scottish Power plc and Judith 
Johansen, dated as of December 20,2005 (Exhibit 10, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
December 23,2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.3* Compensation Reduction Plan (Exhibit 10.5, Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed May 27,2005, 
File No. 1-5 152). 

10.4* Amendment No. 1 to PacifiCorp Compensation Reduction Plan, dated effective July 1, 2003 
(Exhibit 10.2, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed November 10, 2005, File No. 1-5 152). 

10.5* Amendment No. 2 to PacifiCorp Compensation Reduction Plan, dated effective September 20, 
2005 (Exhibit 10.3, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed November 10,2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.6* Executive Severance Plan (Exhibit 10.3, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 6,2005, File 
NO. 1-5 152). 

10.7* Amendment to PacifiCorp Executive Severance Plan, dated effective October 3 1,2005. (Exhibit 
10.2, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed February 14, 2006, File No. 1-5152). 

10.8* Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Exhibit 10.7, Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed May 
27, 2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.9* Richard Peach Retention Agreement (Exhibit 10.4, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 6, 
2005, File No. 1-5 152). 

10.10* Andrew Haller Promissory Note (Exhibit 10.1 1, Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed May 27, 
2005, File No. 1-5 152). 

10.11* Form of Transaction Incentive Program Award Agreement for Named Executive Officers 
(Exhibit 10, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 1, 2005, File No. 1-5 152). 

10.12* Michael Pittman Employment Agreement (Exhibit 10.4, Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed 
May 27, 2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.13* Co~~lpromise Agreement among PacifiCorp, PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. and Michael J. Pittman, 
dated October 4, 2005 (Exhibit 10.4, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. filed November 10, 2005, 
File No. 1-5 152). 

10.14 Andrew Haller Retention Agreement. 

10.15 Richard Peach Retention Agreement. 

12.1 Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 



12.2 Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred 
Stock Dividends. 

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

24 Power of Attorney. 

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-l4(a). 

3 1.2 Section 302 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a- 14(a)/l5d- 14(a). 

32.1 Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

32.2 Section 906 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

99.1* Stock Purchase Agreement among Scottish Power plc, PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. and 
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company (Exhibit 99.1, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 
24,2005, by MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company, File No. 001-14881). 

99.2" Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2 I ,  2006, by and among 
Scottish Power plc, PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. and PPW Holdings LLC (as successor-in-interest 
to MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company) (Exhibit 10.1, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed 
March 21,2006, by MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company, File No. 001-14881). 

*Incorporated herein by reference. 

(b) See (a) 3. above. 
(c) See (a) 2. above. 



SIGNATURES 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended December 31,2005 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission file number: 1-5 152 

PacifiCorp 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

State of Oregon 
(State or other jurisdiction of 
incorporation or organization) 

825 N.E. Multnomah Street, Portland, Oregon 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

93-0246090 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

97232 
(Zip Code) 

503-813-5000 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

None 
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that 
the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the 
past 90 days. Yes [XI N o [  1 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non- 
accelerated filer. See definition of "accelerated filer and large accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act. Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated filer [ ] Non-accelerated filer [XI 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange 
Act). Yes [ 1 No [XI 

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest 
practicable date. 

Class 
Common Stock, no par value 

Outstanding at February 10,2006 
347,158,187 shares 

All shares of outstanding common stock are indirectly owned by Scottish Power plc, 1 Atlantic Quay, Glasgow, G2 
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PACIFICORP 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

(Unaudited) 

(Millions of dollars) 

Revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Energy costs 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes, other than income taxes 

Total 

Income from operations 

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 
December 3 1, December 3 1, 

2005 2004 2005 2004 

Interest expense and other (income) expense: 
Interest expense 71.1 68.2 210.5 199.3 

Interest income (2.5) (2.3) (7.1) (7.6) 

Interest capitalized (7.9) (3.3) (2 1.4) (9.2) 

Minority interest and other (0.8) (4.6) (3.4) (8.4) 

Total 59.9 58.0 178.6 174.1 

Income from operations before income tax expense 196.3 97.2 342.7 276.0 
Income tax expense 68.5 45.9 129.1 111.9 

Net income 127.8 51.3 213.6 164.1 

Preferred dividend requirement (0.6) (0.6) (1.6) (1.6) 

Earnings on common stock $ 127.2 S 50.7 S 212.0 $ 162.5 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD $ 427.6 $ 405.3 S 446.4 $ 390.1 
Net income 127.8 51.3 213.6 164.1 
Cash dividends declared: 

Preferred stock (0.6) (0.6) (1.6) (1.6) 

Common stock (54.6) (48.3) (1 58.2) (144.9) 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF PERIOD $ 500.2 S 407.7 $ 500.2 $ 407.7 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 



PACIFICORP 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(Unaudited) 

(Millions of dollars) 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$ IO.9lDecember and $1 1.6lMarch) 
Unbilled revenue 
Amounts due from affiliates 
Inventories at average costs: 
Materials and supplies 
Fuel 

Current derivative contract asset 
Other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Construction work-in-progress 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Total property, plant and equipment - net 

Other assets: 
Regulatory assets 
Derivative contract regulatory asset 
Non-current derivative contract asset 
Deferred charges and other 

Total other assets 

Total assets 

December 3 1, March 3 1, 

2005 2005 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 



PACIFICORP 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS, continued 

(Unaudited) 

(Millions of dollars) 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Amounts due to affiliates 
Accrued employee expenses 
Taxes payable 
Interest payable 
Current derivative contract liability 
Current deferred tax liability 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, currently maturing 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, currently maturing 
Notes payable and commercial paper 
Other 

Total current liabilities 

Deferred credits: 
Deferred income taxes 
Investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabilities 
Derivative contract regulatory liability 
Non-current derivative contract liability 
Pension and other post employment liabilities 
Other 

Total deferred credits 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current maturities 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, net of current maturities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 6) 

Shareholders' equity: 
Preferred stock 
Common equity: 

Common shareholder's capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss): 

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of 
$2.l/December and $2.6/March 

Minimum pension liability, net of tax of $(5.5)/December and March 

Total common equity 

Total shareholders' equity 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 

December 3 1, March 3 1. 

2005 2005 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 



(Millions of dollars) 

PACIFICORP 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(Unaudited) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivative contracts 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits - net 
Regulatory assetiliability establishment and amortization - net 
Other 

Changes in: 
Accounts receivable, prepayments and other current assets 
Inventories 
Amounts due tolfrom affiliates, net 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Proceeds from sales of assets 
Proceeds from available-for-sale securities 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 
Other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Changes in short-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt, net of issuance costs 
Proceeds from equity contributions 
Dividends paid 
Repayments and redemptions of long-term debt 
Redemptions of preferred stock 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Nine Months Ended December 3 1, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 



NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Unaudited) 

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

PacifiCorp (which includes PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries) is a United States electricity company serving retail 
customers in portions of the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California. PacifiCorp 
generates electricity and conducts its retail electric utility business as Pacific Power and Utah Power and also 
engages in electricity sales and purchases on a wholesale basis. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
of PacifiCorp include its integrated electric utility operations and its wholly owned and majority-owned 
subsidiaries. The subsidiaries of PacifiCorp support its electric utility operations by providing coal mining facilities 
and services and environmental remediation services. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated 
upon consolidation. PacifiCorp is an indirect subsidiary of Scottish Power plc ("ScottishPower"). 

The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 3 1,2005 and for the 
three and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004, in the opinion of management, include all nonnal 
recurring adjustments necessary for a fair statement of financial position, results of operations and cash flows for 
such periods. The March 3 1,2005 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet data was derived from audited financial 
statements. These statements as of December 3 1,2005 and for the three and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 
and 2004 are presented in accordance with the interim reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the "SEC") and therefore do not include all of the disclosures required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Certain information and footnote disclosures made in 
PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 3 1,2005 have been condensed or omitted 
from the interim statements. A portion of the business of PacifiCorp is of a seasonal nature and, therefore, results of 
operations for the three and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 are not necessarily indicative of the 
results for a full year. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the 
financial statements and related notes in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 3 1, 
2005. 

These interim statements have been prepared using accounting policies consistent with those applied at March 3 1, 
2005. 

Sale of PacifiCorp 

On May 23,2005, ScottishPower and PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. ("PHI"), PacifiCorp's direct parent company, 
executed a Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Stock Purchase Agreement") providing for the sale of all PacifiCorp 
common stock to MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company ("MidAmerican") for a value of approximately $9.4 
billion, consisting of approximately $5.1 billion in cash plus approximately $4.3 billion in net debt and preferred 
stock, which will remain outstanding at PacifiCorp. MidAmerican is based in Des Moines, Iowa, and is a privately 
owned global provider of energy services. 

The closing of the sale of PacifiCorp is subject to a number of conditions, including ScottishPower shareholder 
consent and regulatory notification andlor approvals from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the 
"FERC"), the Department of Justice or the Federal Trade Commission, the Federal Communications Commission, 
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the public utility commissions in the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, 
Washington, Idaho and California, as well as consents under existing third-party agreements. Pending satisfaction of 
the closing conditions, the Stock Purchase Agreement requires ScottishPower and PHI to cause PacifiCorp to 
operate its business in the ordinary course consistent with past business practice. The Stock Purchase Agreement 
also requires ScottishPower and PHI to obtain MidAmerican's prior approval to certain actions taken by PacifiCorp 
beyond limits specified in the Stock Purchase Agreement, including: 

borrowings or debt issuances; 
capital expenditures; 
construction or acquisition of new generation, transmission or delivery facilities or systems, other than as 
budgeted or necessary to fulfill regulatory commitments; 
unbudgeted significant acquisitions or dispositions; 
modifications to material agreements with regulators; 

6 



issuance or sale of any capital stock to any person, other than PHI in certain circumstances; 
adoption or amendment of employee benefit plans or material increases to employee compensation; and 
payment of dividends to PHI. 

While the sale of PacifiCorp is pending and the Stock Purchase Agreement is in effect, ScottishPower and PHI have 
agreed to make common equity contributions to PacifiCorp of $125.0 million at the end of each quarter in fiscal 
year 2006 and $1 3 1.25 million at the end of each quarter in fiscal year 2007. If the sale is completed, MidAmerican 
will refund to PHI the amount of required fiscal year 2007 common equity contributions as an increase to the 
purchase price. As described in Note 7 - Common Shareholder's Equity, PHI has made the equity contributions 
required to date by the Stock Purchase Agreement. 

Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, ScottishPower has agreed to cause PacifiCorp to not pay quarterly 
dividends to PHI in excess of $2 14.8 million in the aggregate during fiscal year 2006 and $242.3 million in the 
aggregate during fiscal year 2007. These restrictions will terminate upon either the close of the sale of PacifiCorp or 
the earlier termination of the Stock Purchase Agreement. 

PacifiCorp is party to pre-existing agreements with affiliates of MidAmerican for certain gas transportation and 
steam purchase transactions. These transactions are not significant to PacifiCorp's Energy costs. 

Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, upon the closing of PacifiCorp's sale to MidAmerican, PacifiCorp will 
settle outstanding intercompany liabilities with ScottishPower subsidiaries and transfer to certain of these affiliate 
entities the assets and liabilities associated with the participation of affiliate employees in benefit plans sponsored 
by PacifiCorp. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications of prior-year amounts have been made to conform to the current method of presentation. 
These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported consolidated net income or shareholders' equity. 

Stock-based Compensation 

As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation ("SFAS No. 123"), PacifiCorp accounts for its stock-based compensation arrangements, primarily 
employee stock options, under the intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles 
Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Emnployees ("APB No. 25"), and related 
interpretations in accounting for employee stock options issued to PacifiCorp employees. Under APB No. 25, 
because the exercise price of employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of 
grant, no compensation expense is recorded if the ultimate number of shares to be awarded is known at the date of 
the grant. All options are issued in ScottishPower American Depository Shares. Had PacifiCorp determined 
compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for all stock options vesting in each period under SFAS 
No. 123, PacifiCorp's net income would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts below: 

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 

(Millions of dollars) 
December 3 1, December 3 1, 

2005 2004 2005 2004 

Net income as reported $ 127.8 $ 51.3 $ 213.6 $ 164.1 
Add: stock-based compensation expense using the 

intrinsic value method, net of related tax effects 0.2 0.1 0.7 
Less: stock-based compensation expense 

using the fair value method, net of related tax effects (0.3) (0.5) (0.9) (1.6) 

Pro forma net income S 127.5 $ 51.0 $ 212.8 $ 163.2 



New Accounting Standards 

SFAS No. 123R and SAB No. 107 
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123R"), a revision of the 
originally issued SFAS NO. 123. SFAS No. 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which 
an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting 
Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107 ("SAB No. 107"), which provides additional guidance in applying the provisions of 
SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be 
recognized in the financial statements using the fair value method. The intrinsic value method of accounting 
established by APB No. 25 will no longer be allowed. SAB No. 107 describes the SEC Staffs guidance in 
determining the assumptions that underlie the fair value estimates and discusses the interaction of SFAS No. 123R 
with other existing SEC guidance. 

In April 2005, the effective date of SFAS No. 123R was deferred until the beginning of the fiscal year that begins 
after June 15,2005; however, early adoption is encouraged. A modified prospective application is required for new 
awards and for awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after the required effective date. The provisions of SAB 
No. 107 will be applied upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. 

Certain PacifiCorp employees receive awards under various ScottishPower share-based payment plans. Application 
to these awards of the fair value method required by SFAS No. 123R, as compared to the application of the intrinsic 
value method allowed under APB No. 25, is not expected to result in a material change to recorded compensation 
expense upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. 

FSP SFAS NO. 109-1 
In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") SFAS No. 109-1, Application of FASB Statement 
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to the Tax Deduction on Qualzfied Production Activities Provided by the 
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. The tax deduction addressed in FSP SFAS No. 109-1 will be treated as a 
"special deduction" as described in SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. As such, the special deduction 
has no effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities existing at the enactment date. Rather, the impact of this deduction 
will be reported in the period in which the deduction could be claimed on a separate return basis in accordance with 
PacifiCorp's accounting policy. This statement became effective upon issuance. PacifiCorp currently believes the 
effect of this statement on its consolidated financial position and results of operations is immaterial. 

FIN 47 
In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement 
Obligations - an Interpretation ofFASB Statement No. 143 ("FIN 47"). FIN 47 clarifies that the term "conditional 
asset retirement obligation" as used in SFAS No. 143 refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement 
activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be 
within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional, even though 
uncertainty exists about the timing andlor method of settlement. FIN 47 clarifies that an entity is required to 
recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation when incurred if the liability's fair 
value can be reasonably estimated. FIN 47 is effective at the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2005. 
PacifiCorp is currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 47 on its consolidated financial position and results of 
operations. 

EITF NO. 04-6 
In March 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force (the "EITF") issued EITF No. 04-6, Accountingfor Stripping Costs 
Incurred dtiring Production in the Mining Industry ("EITF No. 04-6"). EITF No. 04-6 requires that stripping costs 
incurred during the production phase of a mine are variable production costs that should be included in the costs of 
the inventory produced (that is, extracted) during the period that the stripping costs are incurred. EITF No. 04-6 is 
effective for all fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005 and is expected to be adopted by PacifiCorp on 
April I, 2006. While the Company is currently evaluating what impact this guidance will have on its consolidated 
financial statements, its adoption is not expected to have a material impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial 
position or results of operations. 



Note 2 - Accounting for the Effects of Regulation 

PacifiCorp records regulatory assets and liabilities based on management's assessment that it is probable that a cost 
will be recovered (asset) or that an obligation has been incurred (liability) in accordance with the provisions of 
SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation. The final outcome, or additional regulatory 
actions, could change management's assessment in future periods. 

Regulatory assets include the following: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Deferred income taxes 
Minimum pension liability 
Unamortized issuance costs on retired debt 
Demand-side resource costs 
Transition plan - retirement and severance 
Various other costs 

Subtotal 
Derivative contracts (a) 
Total 

December 3 1.2005 March 3 1. 2005 

(a) Represents net unrealized losses related to derivative contracts included in rates at March 3 1, 2005. See 
Note 3 - Derivative Instruments for further information. 

Regulatory liabilities include the following: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Asset retirement removal costs (a) 
Bonneville Power Administration Regional Exchange Program 
Deferred income taxes 
Various other costs 

Subtotal 
Derivative contracts (b) 
Total 

December 3 1,2005 March 3 1,2005 

$ 709.8 $ 692.1 
21.9 12.6 
41.7 44.4 

(a) Represents removal costs recovered in rates. 

(b) Represents net unrealized gains related to derivative contracts included in rates at December 31,2005. See 
Note 3 - Derivative Instruments for further information. 

PacifiCorp e~aluates the recovery of all regulatory assets periodically and as events occur. The evaluation includes 
the probability of recovery, as well as changes in the regulatory environment. Regulatory andlor legislative actions 
in Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California may require PacifiCorp to record regulatory asset 
write-offs and charges for impairment of long-lived assets in future periods. 

Note 3 - Derivative Instruments 

PacifiCorp's derivative instruments are recorded on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as assets or 
liabilities measured at estimated fair value, unless they qualify for certain exemptions permitted under SFAS No. 
133, Accozinting,for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended. Changes in fair value of 
PacifiCorp's recorded derivative contracts are recognized immediately in the Condensed Consolidated Statements 
of Income and Retained Earnings, except for contracts probable of recovery in rates based upon approval in states 
comprising substantially all of PacifiCorp's retail revenues. The net change in fair value for such contracts is 
deferred as either a regulatory asset or liability until realized. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts 
held for trading purposes are presented on a net basis in Revenues. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative 



contracts not held for trading purposes are presented on a gross basis in Revenues for sales contracts and in Energy 
costs and Operations and maintenance expense for purchase contracts and financial swaps. 

Unrealized gains and losses on energy sales and purchase contracts are affected by fluctuations in forward market 
prices for electricity and natural gas. The following table summarizes the amount of the pre-tax unrealized gains and 
losses included within the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income and Retained Earnings associated with 
changes in the fair value of PacifiCorp's derivative contracts. 

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 
December 3 1, December 3 1, 

(Millions of dollars) 

Revenues 
Operating expenses: 

Energy costs 
Operations and maintenance 

Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative contracts $ 79.5 $ (15.5) $ 33.5 S (0.7) 

The following table summarizes the changes in fair value of PacifiCorp's derivative contracts executed for 
balancing system resources and load obligations (non-trading) and for taking advantage of arbitrage opportunities 
(trading) for the nine months ended December 3 1,2005, as well as the portion of those amounts that has been 
recognized as a regulatory net asset (liability) because the contracts are receiving recovery in rates. 

Regulatory 

(Millions of dollars) 
Net Asset (Liability) Net Asset 

Trading Non-trading 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1, 2005 $ 0.2 $ (154.4) $ 170.0 
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period (0.1) (72.7) 74.0 
Other changes in fair values (a) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at December 3 1, 2005 $ (0.2) $ 141.8 $ (92.3) 

(a) Other changes in fair values include the effects of changes in market prices, inflation rates and interest 
rates, including those based on models, on new and existing contracts. 

(b) Net unrealized losses (gains) related to derivative contracts included in rates are recorded as a regulatory 
net asset (liability). 

Weather derivatives - PacifiCorp currently has a non-exchange traded streamflow weather derivative contract to 
reduce PacifiCorp's exposure to variability in weather conditions that affect hydroelectric generation. Under the 
agreement, PacifiCorp pays an annual premium in return for the right to make or receive payments if streamflow 
levels are above or below certain thresholds. PacifiCorp estimates and records an asset or liability corresponding to 
the total expected future cash flow under the contract in accordance with EITF No. 99-2, Accountingfor Weather 
Derivatives. The net asset recorded for this contract was zero at December 3 1, 2005 and $20.3 million at March 3 1, 
2005. PacifiCorp did not recognize a net gain or net loss on this contract for the three months ended December 3 1, 
2005 or 2004 because streamflow levels did not meet the required thresholds for these periods. PacifiCorp 
recognized a loss on this contract of $15.6 million for the nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and a gain on this 
contract of $2.9 million for the nine months ended December 31, 2004. 

Note 4 - Related-Party Transactions 

There are no loans or advances between PacifiCorp and ScottishPower or between PacifiCorp and PHI. Loans from 
ScottishPower or PHI to PacifiCorp generally require state regulatory approval. There are intercompany loan 
agreements that allow funds to be lent from PacifiCorp Group Holdings Company ("PGHC") to PacifiCorp, but 
loans from PacifiCorp to PGHC are prohibited. There are intercompany loan agreements that allow funds to be lent 
between PacifiCorp and Pacific Minerals, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of PacifiCorp. PacifiCorp does not 

10 



maintain a centralized cash or money pool. Therefore, finds of each company are not commingled with funds of 
any other company. Other affiliate transactions that PacifiCorp enters into are subject to certain approval and 
reporting requirements of the regulatory authorities. 

The following tables detail PacifiCorp's transactions and balances with unconsolidated related parties: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Amounts due from affiliated entities: 
SPUK (a) 
PHI and its subsidiaries (b) 

Prepayments to affiliated entities: 
PHI and its subsidiaries (c) 
DIIL (d) 

Amounts due to affiliated entities: 
SPUK (e) 
PHI and its subsidiaries (f) 

Deposits received from affiliated entities: 
PHI and its subsidiaries (g) 

(Millions of dollars) 

Revenues from affiliated entities: 
PHI and its subsidiaries (g) 

December 3 1, March 3 1, 

2005 2005 

Three Months Ended December 3 1,  Nine Months Ended December 3 1,  
2005 2004 2005 2004 

Expenses recharged to affiliated entities: 
SPUK (a) $ 1.7 
PHI and its subsidiaries (b) 1.4 

Expenses incurred from affiliated entities: 
SPUK (e) $ 4.3 
PHI and its subsidiaries (c) 6.6 

DIIL (d) 1.9 
5 12.8 

(a) These receivables and expenses primarily represent costs associated with retention agreements and 
severance benefits reimbursable by Scottish Power UK plc ("SPUK"), an indirect subsidiary of 
ScottishPower, and amounts allocated to SPUK by PacifiCorp for administrative services provided under 
ScottishPower's affiliated interest cross-charge policy. In addition, PacifiCorp recharged to SPUK payroll 
costs and related benefits of PacifiCorp employees working on international assignment in the United 
Kingdom during each of the three and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004. 

(b) Amounts shown pertain to activities of PacifiCorp with PHI and its subsidiaries. Expenses recharged reflect 
costs for support services to PHI and its subsidiaries. Amounts due from PHI and its subsidiaries include 
$33.8 million as of March 3 1 ,  2005 of taxes receivable from PHI. PHI is the tax-paying entity for 
PacifiCorp. 

(c) These expenses primarily relate to operating lease payments for the West Valley facility, located in Utah 
and owned by West Valley Leasing Company, LLC ("West Valley"). West Valley is a subsidiary of PPM 
Energy, Inc. ("PPM"), which is a subsidiary of PHI. Certain costs associated with the West Valley lease are 
prepaid on an annual basis. Lease expense for the West Valley facility for the three months ended 
December 3 1,2005 and 2004 was $4.2 inillion and for the nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 
was $12.6 million. 



(d) PacifiCorp began participating in a captive insurance program provided by Dornoch International Insurance 
Limited ("DIIL"), an indirect wholly owned consolidated subsidiary of ScottishPower, in May 2005. DIIL 
covers all or significant portions of the property damage and liability insurance deductibles in many of 
PacifiCorp's current policies, as well as overhead distribution and transmission line property damage. 
PacifiCorp has no equity interest in DIIL and has no obligation to contribute equity or loan funds to DIIL. 
Premium amounts are established to cover loss claims, administrative expenses and appropriate reserves, 
but otherwise DIIL is not operated to generate profits. Certain costs associated with the captive insurance 
program are prepaid. 

(e) These liabilities and expenses primarily represent amounts allocated to PacifiCorp by SPUK for 
administrative services received under the cross-charge policy. Cross-charges from SPUK to PacifiCorp 
amounted to $3.8 million for the three months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004, $1 1.9 million for the 
nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and $12.4 for the nine months ended December 3 1,2004. These 
costs were recorded in Operations and maintenance expense. SPUK also recharged PacifiCorp for payroll 
costs and related benefits of SPUK employees working on international assignments with PacifiCorp in the 
United States for the three and nine months ended December 3 1, 2005 and 2004. 

(0 The amount shown primarily represents taxes payable to PHI as of December 3 1,2005. PHI is the tax- 
paying entity for PacifiCorp. 

(g) These revenues and the associated deposits relate to wheeling services billed to PPM. PacifiCorp provides 
these services to PPM pursuant to PacifiCorp's FERC-approved open access transmission tariff, which 
requires PacifiCorp to make transmission services available on a non-discriminatory basis to all interested 
parties. 

Note 5 - Financing Arrangements 

Long-Term Debt 
In September 2005, the SEC declared effective PacifiCorp's shelf registration statement covering $700.0 million of 
future first mortgage bond and unsecured debt issuances. PacifiCorp has not yet issued any of the securities covered 
by this registration statement. 

In June 2005, PacifiCorp issued $300.0 million of its 5.25% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due June 15,2035. 
PacifiCorp used the proceeds for the reduction of short-term debt, including the short-term debt used in December 
2004 to redeem its 8.625% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due December 13,2024 totaling $20.0 million. 

Other Financinp Arrangements 
During the nine months ended December 31,2005, PacifiCorp entered into three new standby letters of credit, 
which totaled $56.7 million at December 31, 2005. 

During the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005, PacifiCorp amended $42 1.3 million of its existing committed 
standby bond purchase and letter of credit agreements, which provide credit enhancement and liquidity support for 
eight series of variable-rate pollution control revenue bond obligations. Changes included an exclusion of the 
acquisition of PacifiCorp by MidAmerican as an event of default under the agreements. 

In August 2005, PacifiCorp amended and restated its existing $800.0 million committed bank revolving credit 
agreement. Changes included an increase to 65.0% in the covenant not to exceed a specified debt-to-capitalization 
percentage, extension of the termination date to August 29, 2010 and an exclusion of the acquisition of PacifiCorp 
by MidAmerican as an event of default under the agreement. 

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies 

PacifiCorp follows SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, to determine accounting and disclosure 
requirements for contingencies. PacifiCorp operates in a highly regulated environment. Governmental bodies such 
as the FERC, state regulatory commissions, the SEC, the Internal Revenue Service, the Department of Labor, the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") and others have authority over various aspects of 
PacifiCorp's business operations and public reporting. Reserves are established when required, in management's 
judgment, and disclosures regarding litigation, assessments and creditworthiness of customers or counterparties, 
among others, are made when appropriate. The evaluation of these contingencies is perfomled by various specialists 
inside and outside of PacifiCorp. 



Litigation 
In May 2004, PacifiCorp was served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court for the District of 
0regon by the   la math-~ribes of Oregon, individual Klamath Tribal members and the Klamath Claims Committee. 
The complaint generally alleges that PacifiCorp and its predecessors affected the Klamath Tribes' federal treaty 
rights to fish for salmon in the headwaters of the Klamath River in southern Oregon by building dams that blocked 
the passage of salmon upstream to the headwaters beginning in 191 1. In September 2004, the Klamath Tribes filed 
their first amended complaint adding claims of damage to their treaty rights to fish for sucker and steelhead in the 
headwaters of the Klamath River. The complaint seeks in excess of $1.0 billion in compensatory and punitive 
damages. In July 2005, the District Court dismissed the case and in September 2005 denied the Klamath Tribes' 
request to reconsider the dismissal. In October 2005, the Klamath Tribes appealed the District Court's decision to 
the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals and briefing is scheduled to be completed by March 2006. PacifiCorp believes 
the outcome of this proceeding will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of 
operations or liquidity. 

In October 2005, PacifiCorp was added as a defendant to a lawsuit originally filed in February 2005 in state district 
court in Salt Lake City, Utah by USA Power, LLC and its affiliated companies, USA Power Partners, LLC and 
Spring Canyon, LLC (collectively, "USA Power"), against Utah attorney Jody L. Williams and the law firm Holme, 
Roberts & Owen, LLP, who represent PacifiCorp on various matters from time to time. USA Power is the developer 
of a planned generation project in Mona, Utah called Spring Canyon, which PacifiCorp, as part of its resource 
procurement process, at one time considered as an alternative to the Currant Creek Power Plant. USA Power's 
complaint alleges that PacifiCorp misappropriated confidential proprietary information in violation of Utah's 
Uniform Trade Secrets Act and accuses PacifiCorp of breach of contract and related claims. USA Power seeks 
$250.0 million in damages, statutory doubling of damages for its trade secrets violation claim, punitive damages, 
costs and attorneys' fees. PacifiCorp believes it has a number of defenses and intends to vigorously oppose any 
claim of liability for the matters alleged by USA Power. Furthermore, PacifiCorp expects that the outcome of this 
proceeding will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity. 

In October 2005, the Utah Committee of Consumer Services (the "CCS"), a state utility consumer advocate, filed a 
request for agency action with the Utah Public Service Commission (the "UPSC"). The request seeks an order 
requiring PacifiCorp to return to Utah ratepayers certain monies collected in Utah rates for taxes, which the CCS 
alleges were improperly retained by PacifiCorp's parent company, PHI. The CCS has publicly announced it is 
seeking a refund of at least $50.0 million to Utah ratepayers. In November 2005, PacifiCorp filed a response with 
the UPSC seeking dismissal of the request. In December 2005 that request was denied. PacifiCorp disagrees with, 
and intends to vigorously oppose, the claims made by the CCS. A procedural schedule to hear the matter has not 
been established. 

In April 2004, PacifiCorp filed a complaint with the federal district court in Wyoming challenging the Wyoming 
Public Service Commission (the "WPSC") decision made in March 2003 to deny recovery of the Hunter No. 1 
replacement power costs and certain deferred excess net power costs. The complaint was filed on the grounds that 
the decision violates federal law by denying PacifiCorp recovery in retail rates of its wholesale electricity and 
transmission costs incurred to serve Wyoming customers. The lawsuit seeks an injunction requiring the WPSC to 
pass through PacifiCorp's wholesale electricity and transmission costs in retail rates. In November 2004, the court 
denied the defendants' motion to dismiss the complaint. In January 2005, the defendants appealed the court's ruling 
on the motion to dismiss and requested a stay of the underlying litigation. The defendants' appeal on sovereign 
immunity grounds and a decision on the issue of whether the defendants' notice of appeal was timely are pending at 
the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals. In February 2006, PacifiCorp and certain parties intervening in its pending 
Wyoming general rate case reached a settlement of the tenns of PacifiCorp's general rate case request. PacifiCorp 
also agreed to dismiss its federal lawsuit challenging the WPSC decision, and the defendants agreed to dismiss their 
pending appeal, subject to final approval of the general rate case settlement. 

From time to time, PacifiCorp is also a party to various other legal claims, actions, complaints and disputes, certain 
of which involve material amounts. PacifiCorp recorded S7.1 n~illion in reserves as of December 3 1, 2005 related to 
various outstanding legal actions and disputes, excluding those discussed below. PacifiCorp currently believes that 
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position, 
results of operations or liquidity. 



Environmental Issues 
PacifiCorp is subject to numerous environmental laws, including the Federal Clean Air Act and various state air 
quality laws; the Endangered Species Act, particularly as it relates to certain endangered species of fish; the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, and similar state laws relating to 
environmental cleanups; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and similar state laws relating to the storage 
and handling of hazardous materials; and the Clean Water Act, and similar state laws relating to water quality. 
These laws could potentially impact future operations. Contingencies identified at December 3 1, 2005 principally 
consist of air quality matters. Pending or proposed air regulations will require PacifiCorp to reduce its electricity 
plant emissions of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and other pollutants below current levels. These reductions will 
be required to address regional haze programs, mercury emissions regulations and possible re-interpretations and 
changes to the federal Clean Air Act. In the future, PacifiCorp expects to incur significant costs to comply with 
various stricter air emissions requirements. These potential costs are expected to consist primarily of capital 
expenditures. PacifiCorp expects these costs would be included in rates and, as such, would not have a material 
adverse impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

Hydroelectric Relicensing 
PacifiCorp's hydroelectric portfolio consists of 51 plants with an aggregate plant net capability of 1,159.4 MW. The 
FERC regulates 99.0% of the installed capacity through 18 individual licenses. Several of PacifiCorp's hydroelectric 
projects are in some stage of relicensing under the Federal Power Act. Hydroelectric relicensing and the related 
environmental compliance requirements are subject to uncertainties. PacifiCorp expects that future costs relating to 
these matters may be significant and consist primarily of additional relicensing costs, operations and maintenance 
expense and capital expenditures. Electricity generation reductions may result from the additional environmental 
requirements. PacifiCorp has accumulated approximately $67.3 million in costs as of December 3 1, 2005 for 
ongoing hydroelectric relicensing that are reflected in assets on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. 
PacifiCorp expects that these and future costs will be included in rates and, as such, will not have a material adverse 
impact on PacifiCorpls consolidated financial position or results of operations. 

The Bear River license issued by the FERC that was final in May 2004 included a requirement to evaluate 
decommissioning the 7.5 MW Cove Plant and associated project features (the "Cove Development"). In July 2005, 
a settlement agreement to remove the Cove Development was signed by PacifiCorp, state and federal agencies, and 
non-governmental agencies. Decommissioning of the Cove Development is contingent upon receiving an amended 
FERC license and removal order that is not materially inconsistent with the settlement agreement and other 
regulatory approvals. The settlement agreement was filed with the FERC in August 2005 as part of an application to 
amend the Bear River project license to provide for the removal of the Cove Development while continuing the 
operation of the other Bear River project plants. Decommissioning of the Cove Development is expected to be 
completed by the end of calendar 2006 for a total cost not to exceed $3.9 million, excluding inflation. 

In October 2005, the new FERC license for the North Umpqua hydroelectric project became final under the terms of 
the North Umpqua Settlement Agreement. Prior to this date, the license had been effective, but not final, because 
environmental groups had challenged its legality before the FERC and in federal court. In September 2005, the 
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order upholding the new license. Since the Court's order was not appealed 
within the allowed time, all legal challenges of the FERC license order have been exhausted and the license is final 
for purposes of recording liabilities. PacifiCorp is committed, over the 35-year life of the license, to fund 
approximately $47.5 million for environmental mitigation and enhancement projects. As a result of the license 
becoming final, PacifiCorp recorded additional liabilities and intangible assets in October 2005 amounting to a 
present value of $1 1.2 million. At December 3 1 ,  2005, the liability recorded for all North Umpqua obligations 
amounted to a present value of $22.9 million. 

FERC Issues 
California Refund Case - PacifiCorp is a party to a FERC proceeding that is investigating potential refunds for 
energy transactions in the California Independent System Operator and the California Power Exchange markets 
during past periods of high energy prices. PacifiCorp has a reserve of $17.7 million for these potential refunds. 
PacifiCorp's ultimate exposure to refunds is dependent upon any order issued by the FERC in this proceeding. In 
addition, beginning in summer 2000, California market conditions resulted in defaults of amounts due to PacifiCorp 
from certain counterparties resulting from transactions with the California Independent System Operator and 
California Power Exchange. PacifiCorp has reserved $5.0 million for these receivables. 



Northwest Refund Case - In June 2003, the FERC terminated its proceeding relating to the possibility of requiring 
rehnds for wholesale spot-market bilateral sales in the Pacific Northwest between December 2000 and June 2001. 
The FERC concluded that ordering refunds would not be an appropriate resolution of the matter. In November 
2003, the FERC issued its final order denying rehearing. Several market participants have filed petitions in the 
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for review of the FERC's final order. A decision from the Ninth Circuit Court of 
Appeals is not expected to have a significant impact on PacifiCorp's consolidated financial position or results of 
operations. 

Federal Power Act Section 206 Case - In June 2003, the FERC issued a final order denying PacifiCorp's request 
for recovery of excessive prices charged under certain wholesale electricity purchases scheduled for delivery during 
summer 2002 and dismissing PacifiCorp's complaints, under Section 206 of the Federal Power Act, against five 
wholesale electricity suppliers. In July 2003, PacifiCorp filed its request for rehearing of the FERC's order, which 
request was granted in August 2003. The FERC issued its final order denying rehearing in November 2003. Also in 
November 2003, PacifiCorp filed a petition in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for review of the FERC's final 
order denying recovery. Court briefs from interested parties were filed by March 2005. In August 2005, the Ninth 
Circuit Court of Appeals dismissed PacifiCorp's appeal. In September 2005, PacifiCorp filed a request for rehearing 
of the Ninth Circuit's decision. This request was denied by the Ninth Circuit in October 2005. PacifiCorp will not 
pursue further review of the case; therefore, the Ninth Circuit's dismissal is final. 

FERCShow-Cause Orders - In May 2002, PacifiCorp, together with other California electricity market 
participants, responded to data requests from the FERC regarding trading practices connected with the electricity 
crisis during 2000 and 2001. PacifiCorp confirmed that it did not engage in any trading practices intended to 
manipulate the market as described in the FERC's data requests issued in May 2002. In June 2003, the FERC 
ordered 60 companies (including PacifiCorp) to show cause why their behavior during the California energy crisis 
did not constitute manipulation of the wholesale electricity market, as defined in the California Independent System 
Operator and the California Power Exchange tariffs. In setting the cases for hearing, the FERC directed the 
administrative law judge to hear evidence and render findings and conclusions quantifying the extent of any unjust 
enrichment that resulted and to recommend monetary or other appropriate remedies. In August 2003, PacifiCorp 
and the FERC staff reached a resolution on the show-cause order. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, 
PacifiCorp denied liability and agreed to pay a nominal amount of $67,745, in exchange for complete and total 
resolution of the issues raised in the FERC's show-cause order relating to PacifiCorp. In March 2004, the FERC 
issued its final order approving the settlement and terminating the docket. In April 2004, certain market participants 
filed a request for rehearing of the FERC's final order. A decision from the FERC on the rehearing request is 
pending. 

FERC Market Power Analvsis - Pursuant to the FERC's orders granting PacifiCorp authority to sell capacity and 
energy at market-based rates, PacifiCorp and certain of its affiliates are required to submit a joint market power 
analysis every three years. Under the FERC's current policy, applicants must demonstrate that they do not possess 
market power in order to charge market-based rates for sales of wholesale energy and capacity in the applicants' 
control areas. An analysis demonstrating an applicant's passage of certain threshold screens for assessing generation 
market power establishes a rebuttable presumption that the applicant does not possess generation market power, 
while failure to pass any screen creates a rebuttable presumption that the applicant has generation market power. In 
February 2005, PacifiCorp submitted a joint triennial market power analysis in compliance with the FERC's 
requirements. The analysis indicated that PacifiCorp failed to pass one of the generation market power screens in 
PacifiCorp's eastern control area and in Idaho Power Company's control area. In May 2005, the FERC issued an 
order instituting a proceeding pursuant to Section 206 of the Federal Power Act to determine whether PacifiCorp 
may continue to charge market-based rates for sales of wholesale energy and capacity in its east control area. Under 
the terms of the order, PacifiCorp and its affiliated co-applicants were required to submit additional information and 
analysis to the FERC within 60 days to rebut the presumption that PacifiCorp has generation market power. In June 
and July 2005, PacifiCorp filed additional analysis in response to the FERC's May 2005 order. In January 2006, the 
FERC requested PacifiCorp to amend its previous filings with additional analysis. If the FERC ultimately finds that 
PacifiCorp has market power, PacifiCorp will be required to implement measures to mitigate any exercise of market 
power, which may result in decreased revenues andlor increased operating expenses. PacifiCorp believes the 
outcome of this proceeding will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of 
operations. 



Note 7 - Common Shareholder's Equity 

On December 30,2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,627,907 shares of its common stock to its direct parent company, PHI, 
in consideration of the capital contribution of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on that date. On September 30, 
2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,617,101 shares of its common stock to PHI in consideration of the capital contribution 
of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on that date. On July 21,2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,737,090 shares of its 
common stock to PHI in consideration of the capital contribution of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on June 
30, 2005. Proceeds from each issuance were used for the reduction of short-term debt. 

Note 8 - Retirement Benefit Plans 

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the three months and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 
2004 are as follows: 

Retirement Plans 
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 

December 3 1, December 3 1, 
(Millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2005 2004 

Service cost S 7.7 $ 6.5 $ 23.1 $ 19.5 
Interest cost 18.6 18.4 55.8 55.3 
Expected return on plan assets (a) (19.2) (19.4) (57.6) (58.2) 
Amortization of unrecognized net obligation 2.1 2.1 6.3 6.3 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 0.3 0.3 0.9 1 .O 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 5.4 2.2 16.1 6.4 

Net periodic benefit cost 

Other Postretirement Benefits 
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 

December 3 1, December 3 1, 
(Millions of dollars) 2005 2004 2005 2004 

Service cost $ 2.2 S 2.1 $ 6.6 $ 6.4 
Interest cost 7.6 7.7 22.8 23.2 
Expected return on plan assets (a) (6.6) (6.6) (19.7) (1 9.8) 
Amortization of unrecognized net obligation 3.1 3.1 9.2 9.2 
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 0.6 1.6 
Amortization of unrecognized loss 0.7 0.2 2.0 0.5 

Net periodic benefit cost $ 7.6 $ 6.5 $ 22.5 $ 19.5 

(a) The market-related value of plan assets, among other factors, is used to determine expected return on plan 
assets and is calculated by spreading the difference between expected and actual investment returns over a 
five-year period beginning in the first year in which they occur. 

Employer Contributions 

As discussed in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the year ended March 3 1, 2005, PacifiCorp expects 
to contribute $70.1 million to its retirement plans and S29.9 million to its other postretirement benefit plans during 
the year ending March 3 1, 2006. PacifiCorp contributed $62.8 million to its retirement plans and $0.2 million to its 
other postretirement benefit plans during the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005. 



Note 9 - Income Taxes 

PacifiCorp uses an estimated annual effective tax rate for computing the provision for income taxes on an interim 
basis. 

The difference between taxes calculated as if the United States federal statutory tax rate of 35.0% was applied to 
income from operations before income taxes and the recorded tax expense is reconciled as follows: 

Nine Months Ended December 3 1, 
2005 2004 

Federal statutory rate 
State taxes, net of federal benefit 
Effect of regulatory treatment of depreciation differences 
Effect of regulatory treatment of other differences 
Tax reserves 
Tax credits 
Other 

Effective income tax rate 

PacifiCorp has established, and periodically reviews, an estimated contingent tax reserve on its Condensed 
Consolidated Balance Sheets to provide for the possibility of adverse outcomes in tax proceedings. The current-year 
accruals are primarily attributable to new issues identified for tax years ended after March 3 1, 2000. PacifiCorp 
anticipates that final settlement and payment on settled issues and other unresolved issues will not have a material 
adverse impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations. A tax contingency reserve of $4.3 
million released in the nine months ended December 3 1, 2004 was primarily attributable to an audit settlement with 
the Oregon Department of Revenue for tax years 199 1 through 1999. 

Note 10 - Comprehensive Income 

The components of comprehensive income are as follows: 

Three Months Ended December 3 1. Nine Months Ended December 3 1. 

(Millions of dollars) 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income: 
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale 

securities, net of tax of S(0.2) and $(0.5)/2005 
and S 1.2 and $0.712004 (0.3) 1.9 (0.9) 1.1 

Total comprehensive income $ 127.5 $ 53.2 $ 2 12.7 $ 165.2 

Note 11 - Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Review Report 

PacifiCorp's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q are incorporated by reference into various filings under the Securities 
Act of 1933 (the "Act"). PacifiCorp's independent registered public accountants are not subject to the liability 
provisions of Section 1 1 of the Act for their report on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial information 
because such report is not a "report" or a "part" of a registration statement prepared or certified by an independent 
registered public accounting firm within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act. 



Note 12 - Subsequent Events 

On January 27,2006, PacifiCorp's Board of Directors declared a dividend on common stock of $0.163 per share 
totaling $56.6 million and payable on the earlier of March 31, 2006 or the closing date of the acquisition of 
PacifiCorp by MidAmerican. If the acquisition of PacifiCorp closes prior to March 3 1,2006, the dividend amount 
will be reduced pro rata based on the closing date relative to March 3 1, 2006. 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of PacifiCorp: 

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of PacifiCorp and its subsidiaries as of 
December 3 1, 2005 and the related condensed consolidated statements of income and retained earnings for each of 
the three month and nine month periods ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 and the condensed consolidated 
statements of cash flows for the nine month periods ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004. These interim financial 
statements are the responsibility of PacifiCorpts management. 

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and 
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an 
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We previously audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet as of March 3 1, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, changes in common shareholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein), 
and in our report dated May 27,2005 we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial 
statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as 
of March 3 1, 2005, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it 
has been derived. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Portland, Oregon 

February 13,2006 



ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

OVERVIEW 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

PacifiCorp is a regulated electricity company serving approximately 1.6 million residential, commercial and 
industrial customers in service territories aggregating approximately 136,000 square miles in portions of the states 
of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California. The regulatory commissions in each state approve 
rates for retail electric sales within their respective states. PacifiCorp also sells electricity on the wholesale market to 
public and private utilities, energy marketing companies and incorporated municipalities. Wholesale activities are 
regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the "FERC"). PacifiCorp owns, or has interests in, 69 
thermal, hydroelectric and wind generating plants with an aggregate nameplate rating of 8,776.3 megawatts 
("MW") and plant net capability of 8,23 1.4 MW. The FERC and the six state regulatory commissions also have 
authority over the construction and operation of PacifiCorp's electric facilities. PacifiCorp delivers electricity 
through 58,360 miles of distribution lines and 15,530 miles of transmission lines. 

Sale of PacifiCorp 

On May 23, 2005, Scottish Power plc ("ScottishPower") and PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. ("PHI"), PacifiCorp's direct 
parent company, executed a Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Stock Purchase Agreement") providing for the sale of 
all PacifiCorp common stock to MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company ("MidAmerican") for a value of 
approximately $9.4 billion, consisting of approximately $5.1 billion in cash plus approximately $4.3 billion in net 
debt and preferred stock, which will remain outstanding at PacifiCorp. MidAmerican is based in Des Moines, Iowa, 
and is a privately owned global provider of energy services. Through its energy-related business platforms - 
CalEnergy, CE Electric UK, Kern River Gas Transmission Company, Northern Natural Gas Company and 
MidAmerican Energy Company - MidAmerican provides electric and natural gas services to 5 million customers 
worldwide. 

The closing of the sale of PacifiCorp is subject to a number of conditions, including ScottishPower shareholder 
consent and regulatory notification andlor approvals from the FERC, the Department of Justice or the Federal Trade 
Commission, the Federal Communications Commission, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the public utility 
commissions in the states of Utah, Oregon, Wyoming, Washington, Idaho and California, as well as consents under 
existing third-party agreements. The Energy Policy Act of 2005 enacted in August 2005 includes a provision 
repealing the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935. The repeal took effect on February 8,2006, prior to the 
closing of the sale of PacifiCorp; as a result, approval of the transaction by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the "SEC") is not required. See "Part 11. Other Informatjon - Information Regarding Recent 
Regulatory Developments" for more information on the Energy Policy Act of 2005. ScottishPower shareholders 
approved the sale on July 22, 2005. The Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission completed their 
review of MidAmerican's acquisition of PacifiCorp in August 2005. The FERC and the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission formally approved MidAmerican's acquisition of PacifiCorp in December 2005. 

Pending satisfaction of the closing conditions, which is expected to occur in calendar 2006, the Stock Purchase 
Agreement requires ScottishPower to cause PacifiCorp to operate its business in the ordinary course consistent with 
past business practice. The Stock Purchase Agreement also requires ScottishPower to obtain MidAmerican's prior 
approval to certain actions taken by PacifiCorp beyond limits specified in the Stock Purchase Agreement, including: 

borrowings or debt issuances; 
capital expenditures; 
construction or acquisition of new generation, transmission or delivery facilities or systems, other than as 
budgeted or necessary to fulfill regulatory commitments (for example, the construction of the Currant 
Creek and Lake Side Power Plants is permitted to proceed as planned); 
unbudgeted significant acquisitions or dispositions; 
modifications to material agreements with regulators; 
issuance or sale of any capital stock to any person, other than PHI in certain circumstances; 
adoption or amendment of employee benefit plans or material increases to ernployee compensation; and 
payment of dividends to PHI. 



Although PacifiCorp intends to, and the Stock Purchase Agreement requires ScottishPower to cause PacifiCorp to, 
operate its business in the normal course pending the sale of PacifiCorp to MidAmerican, some of the agreements 
and restrictions in the Stock Purchase Agreement may affect how PacifiCorp manages its affairs. 

While the sale of PacifiCorp is pending and the Stock Purchase Agreement is in effect, ScottishPower and PHI have 
agreed to make common equity contributions to PacifiCorp of $125.0 million at the end of each quarter in fiscal 
year 2006 and $1 3 1.25 million at the end of each quarter in fiscal year 2007. If the sale is completed, MidAmerican 
will refund to PHI the amount of required fiscal year 2007 common equity contributions as an increase to the 
purchase price. On December 30,2005, September 30,2005 and June 30,2005, PHI made quarterly common equity 
contributions of $125.0 million as required by the Stock Purchase Agreement. 

Until completion of the sale (or termination of the Stock Purchase Agreement), a joint executive committee with an 
equal number of representatives from ScottishPower and MidAmerican is facilitating the transactions contemplated 
in the Stock Purchase Agreement (including the process of obtaining required consents and approvals), integration 
planning and strategic development and will develop recommendations concerning the structure and the general 
operation of PacifiCorp prior to the closing. If ScottishPower completes the sale of PacifiCorp, MidAmerican will 
cause the election of its own nominees as directors of PacifiCorp and influence the management and policies of 
PacifiCorp following the sale. 

The Stock Purchase Agreement may be terminated prior to completion by mutual agreement of MidAmerican and 
ScottishPower or otherwise in specified circumstances, including (i) material breach of the representations, 
warranties or covenants of the parties and (ii) the sale not being completed by May 23, 2006; however, if federal or 
state approvals have not been obtained but all other conditions have been fulfilled or are capable of being hlfilled 
as of May 23, 2006, either ScottishPower or MidAmerican may elect to extend the term of the Stock Purchase 
Agreement until February 17,2007. 

In July 2005, MidAmerican and PacifiCorp filed applications with the public utility commissions in the six states 
where PacifiCorp has retail customers seeking approval of MidAmerican's acquisition of PacifiCorp. The 
applications propose a number of regulatory commitments by MidAmerican and PacifiCorp upon which approval of 
the transaction would be conditioned, including expected financial benefits in the form of reduced corporate 
overhead and financing costs, certain mid- to long-term capital and other expenditures of significant amounts and a 
commitment not to seek utility rate increases attributable solely to the change in ownership. The capital and other 
expenditures proposed by MidAmerican and PacifiCorp include: 

Approximately $812.0 million in investments (generally to be made over several years following the sale 
and subject to subsequent regulatory review and approval) in emissions reduction technology for 
PacifiCorp's existing coal plants, which, when coupled with the use of reduced emissions technology for 
anticipated new coal-fueled generation, is expected to result in significant reductions in emissions rates of 
sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide and mercury and to avoid an increase in the carbon dioxide emissions rate; 
and 
Approximately $5 19.5 million in investments (to be made over several years following the sale and subject 
to subsequent regulatory review and approval) in PacifiCorp's transmission and distribution system that 
would enhance reliability, facilitate the receipt of renewable resources and enable further system 
optimization. 

The commitments proposed in the state regulatory filings are subject to the commissions' approval of the sale to 
MidAmerican. While certain of the identified capital expenditures might be incurred even if the transaction is not 
approved, PacifiCorp has not committed to make these specific expenditures regardless of the transaction's 
regulatory outcome. If the sale is not approved, the amount, nature and timing of capital expenditures could differ 
significantly from the commitments proposed to state regulatory authorities. As described in PacifiCorp's testimony 
supporting the requests for transaction approval, PacifiCorp presently expects that annual capital expenditures of at 
least $1.0 billion will be required for at least the next five years, including the investments described above, and 
PacifiCorp expects to seek recovery of these costs in retail rates in the future. This level of spending is dependent 
upon the availability of funding on reasonable terms and conditions. If market conditions are not favorable it may be 
necessary to postpone certain planned capital expenditures or take other actions. 



Hearings on each state regulatory approval were completed in January 2006, and PacifiCorp, along with 
MidAmerican, has participated in settlement discussions with interested parties in all six states. PacifiCorp and 
MidAmerican have reached settlements in each state with a number of interested parties who intervened in the 
approval processes generally based on the originally proposed regulatory commitments. The settlement reached 
with interested parties in Oregon in December 2005 added proposed credits that will reduce retail rates generally 
through 2010 to the extent that PacifiCorp does not achieve identified cost reductions or demonstrate mitigation of 
certain risks to customers. If the rate credits are adopted by all six states required to approve PacifiCorp's sale, their 
maximum potential value is $142.5 million. The Oregon settlement also includes a newly proposed commitment 
that, following the sale and through December 3 1,2008, PacifiCorp will not make any dividends 
to MidAmerican or its affiliates that will reduce PacifiCorp's common equity capital below 48.25% of PacifiCorp's 
total capitalization without prior commission approval. After 2008, the required minimum level of common equity 
declines annually to 44.0% after December 3 1,201 1. In January 2006, the Utah Public Service Commission (the 
"UPSC") issued a written order approving PacifiCorp's sale to MidAmerican and the Wyoming Public Service 
Commission (the "WPSC") orally approved the transaction, and in February 2006 the Idaho Public Utilities 
Commission issued a written order approving the sale, in each case based on the settlement reached with interested 
parties. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act 
of 1995. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, made in this report are forward-looking. When used 
in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in 
this report, the words "will," "may," "could," "believes," "estimates," "expects," "anticipates," "forecasts," "plans," 
"intends," "projected," "potential" and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify 
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements included in this report relate to, among other matters, the 
effect on PacifiCorp of the following: the effect of the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement for the sale of 
PacifiCorp and the completion of the sale, including actions and expenditures proposed by MidAmerican and 
PacifiCorp in order to obtain regulatory approval, as well as the timing of the sale and such proposed actions and 
expenditures; recently enacted Oregon Senate Bill 408; potential adjustment of regulatory rates to cover costs; the 
impact of new accounting standards or accounting policy changes; the outcome of litigation or regulatory 
proceedings; the timing of future regulatory filings; environmental laws; federal energy policy and legislation; 
capital expenditure levels; results from, and the timing of, the construction or repair of generating facilities; 
hydroelectric relicensing and decommissioning activities; electricity outages; retirement plan contributions; outcome 
of tax proceedings; growth in customers and usage; levels of hydroelectric and thermal generation; sufficiency of 
PacifiCorp's available funds to meet its liquidity needs and future financing; proposed amendments to PacifiCorp's 
financing agreements; off-balance sheet arrangements; the effect of risk management measures, including use of 
financial derivatives to manage and mitigate interest rate exposure; fluctuations in forward market prices for 
electricity and natural gas; and the efficiency and effectiveness of PacifiCorp's resource and fuel procurement. 
Forward-looking statements reflect management's current expectations, plans or projections and are inherently 
uncertain. There can be no assurance the results predicted will be realized. Actual results may vary from those 
represented by the forecasts, and those variations may be material. The following are among the factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements: 

The effect of the Stock Purchase Agreement for the sale of PacifiCorp, including the consummation of the sale, 
potential obligations arising out of approval of the sale by regulatory bodies or the termination of the Stock 
Purchase Agreement; 

The outcome of general rate cases and other proceedings conducted by regulatory commissions or other 
governmental and legal bodies; 

Changes in prices and availability (for both purchases and sales) of wholesale electricity, natural gas and other 
fuel sources and other changes in operating costs that could affect PacifiCorp's cost recovery; 

Changes in regulatory requirements or other legislation, including the recently enacted federal Energy Policy 
Act of 2005, legislation or regulatory outcomes limiting the ability of public utilities to recover income tax 
expense in retail rates such as Senate Bill 408, industry restructuring and deregulation initiatives; 

Industrial, commercial and residential customer growth and demographic patterns in PacifjCorp7s service 
territories: 



Economic trends that could impact electricity usage; 

Changes in weather conditions and other natural events that could affect customer demand or energy supply; 

A high degree of variance between actual and forecasted load and prices that could impact the hedging strategy 
and costs to balance electricity load and supply; 

Hydroelectric conditions, as well as natural gas and coal production and price levels, which could have a 
significant impact on electric capacity and cost and on PacifiCorp's ability to generate electricity; 

Performance of PacifiCorp's generation facilities, including the level of planned and unplanned outages; 

The cost, feasibility and eventual outcome of hydroelectric facility relicensing proceedings; 

Changes in, and compliance with, environmental and endangered species laws, regulations, decisions and 
policies that could increase operating and capital improvement costs, reduce plant output and delay plant 
construction; 

= The impact of new accounting pronouncements or changes in current accounting estimates and assumptions on 
financial position and results of operations; 

The impact of interest rates, investment performance and increases in health care costs on pension and post- 
retirement expense; 

= The impact of amendments to existing financing arrangements; 

Continued availability of funds to meet liquidity requirements; 

The impact of any required performance under off-balance sheet arrangements; 

Financial condition and creditworthiness of significant customers and suppliers; 

The impact of financial derivatives used to mitigate or manage interest rate risk and volume and price risk due 
to weather extremes; 

Changes in PacifiCorp's credit ratings; 

The impact of implementation of the proposed regional transmission entity, Grid West, or the formation of any 
similar organization; 

Timely and appropriate completion of PacifiCorp's resource procurement process; unanticipated construction 
delays, changes in costs, receipt of required permits and authorizations, ability to fund resource projects and 
other factors that could affect future generation plants and infrastructure additions; and 

The risks discussed in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the year ended March 3 1,2005, as 
updated in PacifiCorp's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005 and 
its other reports filed with the SEC. 

Any forward-looking statements issued by PacifiCorp should be considered in light of these factors. PacifiCorp 
does not intend to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions 
or changes in other factors affecting such forward-looking statements or if PacifiCorp later becomes aware that 
these assumptions are not likely to be achieved. 

Accounting Matters 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect results of 
operations and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
The estimates and assumptions may change as time passes and accounting guidance evolves. Management bases its 
estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on various other judgments that it believes are reasonable at 
the time of application. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material impact on the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements. If estimates and assumptions are different than the actual amounts recorded, 
adjustments are made in subsequent periods to take into consideration the new information. Critical accounting 
policies, in addition to certain less significant accounting policies, are discussed with senior members of 
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management and PacifiCorp's Board of Directors, as appropriate. Those policies that management considers critical 
are Derivatives, Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, Regulation, Unbilled Revenues, Contingencies and 
Asset Retirement Obligations, and are described in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
March 3 1,2005, under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations." For new accounting standards, see "Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements -Note 1 - Basis of 
Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," which are incorporated by reference into this Item 
,7 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 

PacifiCorp's net income was $21 3.6 million for the nine months ended December 3 1,2005 compared to $164.1 
million during the nine months ended December 3 1,2004. This increase was primarily due to higher retail revenues 
attributable to higher prices approved by regulators, customer growth and a net increase in customer usage, as well 
as increased generation output and higher net unrealized gains on wholesale sales and purchase contracts, partially 
offset by the impact of increased fuel prices and higher operations and maintenance expense. The increase in net 
unrealized gains on wholesale sales and purchase contracts was driven primarily by favorable movements in 
forward market prices of natural gas, partially offset by unfavorable movements in forward market prices of 
electricity. 

Retail energy sales volumes grew by 2.0% in the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005 as compared to the nine 
months ended December 3 1,2004. PacifiCorp's number of customers has been increasing by approximately 2.0% 
annually over the past five fiscal years. This trend is expected to continue for the foreseeable future. Although 
customer usage increased during the nine months ended December 3 1,2005, usage is affected by economic and 
weather conditions, consumer trends and energy savings programs. 

PacifiCorp pursues a regulatory program in all states, with the objective of keeping customer rates closely aligned to 
ongoing costs. In recent years, PacjfiCorp has filed general rate cases in all six states where it has retail customers 
and PacifiCorp expects to make additional general rate case filings in certain states over the coming year. 
PacifiCorp's regulatory program also includes various other filings such as proposed power cost adjustment 
mechanisms. See "Part 11. Other Information - Information Regarding Recent Regulatory Developments" for 
developments regarding state regulatory issues and pending rate case filings. 

PacifiCorp relies on electricity generated by its thermal facilities to meet a substantial portion of its customer load. 
PacifiCorp's maintenance and overhaul programs are utilized to facilitate reliable generation availability at its 
thermal facilities through planned outages, but PacifiCorp still may experience unplanned outages. During these 
outage periods, other owned generation or wholesale market purchases are utilized to balance system requirements. 
PacifiCorp's hydroelectric facilities are utilized as lower-cost sources of electricity generation but are dependent 
upon precipitation, temperatures and other variables. Wholesale energy sales and purchase contracts are utilized to 
balance PacifiCorp's physical excess or shortage of net electricity and are impacted by the movements in the market 
prices of both natural gas and electricity. While increased thermal generation output reduces the need for wholesale 
market purchases, its financial impact is significantly affected by market prices for coal and natural gas. 

Output from PacifiCorp's thermal plants increased by 721,613 megawatt-hours ("MWh"), or 2.0%, during the nine 
months ended December 3 1,2005 as compared to the nine months ended December 3 1,2004. Construction of the 
Currant Creek and Lake Side Power Plants is progressing as scheduled, and once in full commercial operation, these 
plants together will provide 1,067.4 MW of electricity to meet expected future energy needs. 

Output from PacifiCorp-owned hydroelectric facilities during the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005 increased 
by 205,787 MWh, or 9.094, as compared to the nine months ended December 31,2004. This increase was primarily 
attributable to current-year water conditions that, although lower than normal, improved relative to the prior-year 
period. PacifiCorp's hydroelectric generation was 84.2% of normal for the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005, 
based on a 30-year average. Actual hydroelectric generation for the fiscal year ending March 3 1, 2006, will be 
impacted by precipitation, temperatures and other variables during the fourth quarter. Hydroelectric generation has 
been below normal for the past 6 years. PacifiCorp cannot predict if this trend will continue in future years. 

PacifiCorp continues to experience increasing employee costs primarily due to rising healthcare and pension costs. 
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Pension costs continue to increase as a result of decreases in discount rates, which result in increases in PacifiCorp's 
projected benefit obligation, as well as the recognition of deferred losses from lower than expected plan asset 
returns. Other employee costs continue to increase due to normal annual salary and wage increases. 

Wholesale energy sales and purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are recorded at fair value. For 
derivative contracts, when forward market prices are higher than contract prices, wholesale energy sales contracts 
will have unrealized losses and wholesale purchase contracts will have unrealized gains. The opposite is true when 
forward market prices are lower than contract prices. Unrealized gains and losses will reverse in future periods 
when the contracts settle at contract prices. They do not result in cash collections or payments other than in 
obtaining or providing cash collateral required in support of certain contracts. See "Part I - Item 1. Financial 
Statements - Note 3 - Derivative Instruments" for a summary of unrealized losses and gains on wholesale energy 
sales and purchase contracts. 

Three Months Ended December 31,2005 Compared to Three Months Ended December 31,2004 

Revenues 

(Millions of dollars) 

Retail 
Wholesale sales and other 

Three Months Ended December 3 1. Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2005 2004 $ Change % Change 

Total revenues 5 1,165.0 S 849.5 $ 315.5 37.1 

Retail energy sales (thousands of MWh) 12,576 12,318 258 2.1 

Total average retail customers (in thousands) 1,627 1,592 3 5 2.2 

Retail revenues increased $35.5 million, or 5.4%, primarily due to: 
$20.6 million of increases from higher prices approved by regulators; 
$1 1.0 million of increases relating to growth in the number of residential and commercial customers; and 
$5.4 million of increases due to higher average residential and industrial customer usage, net of decreases in 
commercial and other customer usage; partially offset by, 
$1.6 million of decreases due to changes in price mix resulting from the levels of customer usage at different 
customer tariffs in the various states that PacifiCorp serves. 

Wholesale sales and other revenues increased $280.0 million, or 149.6%, primarily due to: 
$294.5 million of increases from higher unrealized gains on short- and long-term energy sales contracts 
recorded at fair value, primarily due to changes in forward market prices; 

= $14.0 million of increases resulting from the sale of SO2 emission allowances; and 
$8.2 million of increases in revenues from the settlement of amounts previously disputed with third parties; 
partially offset by, 
$43.1 million of decreases related to non-physically settled system balancing transactions. 

Operating Expenses 

(Millions of dollars) Three Months Ended December 3 1, Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2005 2004 S Change % Change 

Energy costs $ 529.5 $ 327.7 S (201.8) (61.6) % 

Operations and maintenance 243.7 234.2 (9.5) (4.1) 
Depreciation and amortization 112.4 110.1 (2.3) (2.1) 
Taxes, other than income taxes 23.2 22.3 (0.9) (4.0) 

Total operating expenses S 908.8 $ 694.3 $ (214.5) (30.9) 

Energy costs increased $201.8 million, or 61.6%, primarily due to: 
S 195.3 million of increases from higher unrealized losses on short- and long-tenn energy purchase contracts 
recorded at fair value, primarily due to changes in forward market prices. 
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Operations and maintenance expense increased $9.5 million, or 4.1%, primarily due to: 
$8.3 million of increases in employee expenses, primarily due to higher wages and pension and benefit costs. 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.3 million, or 2.1%, primarily due to: 
$3.9 million of net increases in depreciation expense due to additions to plant in service; partially offset by, 
$1.2 million of decreases in amortization expense predominantly due to certain capitalized software becoming 
fully amortized. 

Interest and Other (Income) Expense 

Three Months Ended December 3 1, Favorablel(Unfavorab1e) 

(Millions of dollars) 2005 2004 $ Change % Change 

Interest expense $ 71.1 $ 68.2 $ (2.9) (4.3) % 

Interest income (2.5) (2.3) 0.2 8.7 

Interest capitalized (7.9) (3.3) 4.6 139.4 
Minority interest and other (0.8) (4.6) (3.8) (82.6) 

Total $ 59.9 $ 58.0 $ (1.9) (3.3) 

Interest expense increased $2.9 million, or 4.3%, primarily due to: 
Higher average debt outstanding and higher variable rates during the three months ended December 3 1, 2005; 
partially offset by, 
Lower average fixed rates on long-term debt during the three months ended December 3 1,2005. 

Interest capitalized increased $4.6 million, or 139.4%, primarily due to: 
Higher average construction work-in-progress balances that qualify for capitalized interest and higher 
capitalization rates during the three months ended December 3 1, 2005. 

Minority interest and other (income) expense changed $3.8 million, primarily due to: - Lower gains on net investments for the three months ended December 3 1,2005 compared to the three months 
ended December 3 1,2004. 

Income Tax Expense 

Income tax expense increased $22.6 million, primarily due to: 
= $34.7 million of increases due to higher levels of income from operations before income tax expense for the 

three months ended December 3 1,2005; partially offset by, 
$12.lmillion of decreases, including $8.8 million from the tax effect of regulatory treatment of differences 
other than depreciation and other decreases from individually insignificant differences. 

Nine Months Ended December 31,2005 Compared to Nine Months Ended December 31,2004 

Revenues 

(Millions of dollars) Nine Months Ended December 3 1. Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2005 2004 S Change % Change 

Retail S 2,095.0 5 1,988.2 $ 106.8 5.4 % 
Wholesale sales and other 572.1 437.8 134.3 30.7 

Total revenues $ 2,667.1 $ 2,426.0 $ 241.1 9.9 

Retail energy sales (thousands of MWh) 37,344 36.616 728 2.0 

Total average retail customers (in thousands) 1,617 1,582 3 5 2.2 



Retail revenues increased $1 06.8 million, or 5.4%, primarily due to: 
$59.4 million of increases from higher prices approved by regulators; 
$32.0 million of increases relating to growth in the number of residential and commercial customers; 
$12.2 million of increases due to higher average residential and industrial customer usage, net of decreases in 
commercial and other customer usage; and 
$3.2 million of increases due to changes in price mix, resulting from the levels of customer usage at different 
customer tariffs in the various states that PacifiCorp serves. 

Wholesale sales and other revenues increased $134.3 million, or 30.7%, primarily due to: 
$72.7 million of increases in wholesale electricity revenues, primarily relating to higher prices; 
$49.0 million of increases from lower unrealized losses on short- and long-term energy sales contracts recorded 
at fair value due to changes in forward market prices; 
$16.2 million of increases resulting from the sale of SO2 emission allowances; and 
$8.2 million of increases in revenues from the settlement of amounts previously disputed with third parties; 
partially offset by, 
$3 1.9 million of decreases related to non-physically settled system balancing transactions. 

Operating Expenses 

(Millions of dollars) 

Energy costs 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes, other than income taxes 

Total operating expenses 

Nine Months Ended December 3 1, Favorablel(Unfavorab1e) 
2005 2004 S Change % Change 

Energy costs increased $107.8 million, or 12.1%, primarily due to: 
$57.8 million of increases from higher purchased electricity relating to higher volumes and prices; 
$18.5 million of increases related to unfavorable changes in fair value on weather derivative contracts 
compared to the prior year; 
$12.1 million of increases relating to higher volumes of coal consumed due mainly to an increase in thermal 
generation; 
$10.1 million of increases relating to higher prices for coal consumed; and 
$9.8 million of increases from lower unrealized gains on short- and long-term energy purchase contracts 
recorded at fair value. 

Operations and maintenance expense increased $5 1.3 million, or 7.4%, primarily due to: 
$43.5 million of increases in employee expenses, primarily due to higher wages and pension and benefit costs; 
57.3 million of increases in materials and supplies utilized in plant overhaul activities; and 
$6.3 million of an increase arising from the prior year reversal of an accrual for certain tax-related employee 
severance liabilities. 

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $8.9 million, or 2.7%, primarily due to: 
$12.0 million of net increases in depreciation expense due to additions to plant in service; partially offset by, 
$2.2 million of decreases in amortization expense predominantly due to certain capitalized software becoming 
fully amortized. 



Interest and Other (Income) Expense 

(Millions of dollars) 

Interest expense 
Interest income 
Interest capitalized 
Minority interest and other 
Total 

Nine Months Ended December 3 1. Favorable/(Unfavorable) 
2005 2004 $ Change % Change 

Interest expense increased $1 1.2 million, or 5.6%, primarily due to: 
Higher average debt outstanding and higher variable rates during the nine months ended December 3 1,2005; 
partially offset by, 
Lower average fixed rates on long-term debt during the nine months ended December 31,2005. 

Interest capitalized increased $12.2 million, or 132.6%, primarily due to: 
Higher average construction work-in-progress balances that qualify for capitalized interest and higher 
capitalization rates during the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005. 

MinoriQ interest and other (income) expense changed $5.0 million, primarily due to: 
Lower gains on net investments for the nine months ended December 3 1,2005 compared to the nine months 
ended December 3 1,2004. 

Income Tax Expense 

Income tux expense increased $17.2 million, primarily due to: 
$23.2 million of increases due to higher levels of income from operations before income tax expense for the 
nine months ended December 3 1,2005; and 
$1 1.1 million of net increases due to $6.8 million of additional tax contingency reserves in the current year as a 
result of new issues identified for the tax years ended after March 31, 2000, compared to $4.3 million of tax 
contingency reserve releases in the prior year primarily attributable to an audit settlement with the Oregon 
Department of Revenue for tax years 1991 through 1999; partially offset by, 
$17.1 million of decreases, including $1 1.0 million from the tax effect of regulatory treatment of differences 
other than depreciation and other decreases from individually insignificant differences. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Sources and Uses of Cash 

PacifiCorp depends on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund capital 
requirements. Short-term cash requirements not met by cash provided by operating activities are generally satisfied 
with proceeds from short-term borrowings. Long-term cash needs are met through sales of securities, including 
additional long-term debt issuances, and also by issuance of common equity to PacifiCorp's immediate corporate 
parent, PHI. Issuance of longer-term securities is influenced by levels of short-term debt, cash from operations, 
capital expenditures, market conditions, regulatory approvals and other considerations. 

Operating Activities 

Net cash flows provided by operating activities increased S214.9 million to $573.2 million for the nine months 
ended December 3 1 ,  2005, compared to $358.3 million for the nine months ended December 3 1,2004, due mainly 
to the impact of changing prices and volumes on wholesale sales and purchase transactions, changes in net cash 
collateral requirements and amounts, increasing en~ployee-related obligations and the net impact of the timing of 
cash collections and payments. 



Investing Activities 

Capital spending totaled $716.1 million for the nine months ended December 31, 2005, compared to $539.9 million 
for the nine months ended December 3 1,2004. Capital spending increased primarily due to construction of the Lake 
Side Power Plant and expenditures for the installation of emission control equipment at the Huntington Power Plant, 
as well as various capital projects related to transmission and distribution and other thermal and hydroelectric 
facilities. 

Financing Activities 

Short-Term Debt 
PacifiCorp's short-term debt decreased by $254.2 million during the nine months ended December 3 1,2005, 
primarily due to proceeds from long-term debt and common stock financing during the period, partially offset by 
capital expenditures in excess of net cash from operations. 

Revolving Credit and Other Financing Agreements 
PacifiCorp's short-term borrowings and certain other financing arrangements are supported by an $800.0 million 
committed bank revolving credit agreement. This facility was amended during August 2005 to extend the 
termination date to August 29, 2010. Other amendments include an increased maximum permitted debt-to- 
capitalization ratio of 65.0% and allowing for the acquisition of PacifiCorp by MidAmerican. The interest rate on 
advances under this facility is generally based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a margin that 
varies based on PacifiCorp's credit ratings. As of December 3 1, 2005, this facility was fully available and there were 
no borrowings outstanding. In addition to this committed credit facility, at December 3 1, 2005 PacifiCorp had 
$ 11 8.8 million in money market accounts included in Cash and cash equivalents available to meet its liquidity 
needs. Regulatory authorities limit PacifiCorp to $1.5 billion of short-term debt, of which $214.6 million was 
outstanding at December 3 1,2005 at a weighted average interest rate of 4.3%. 

At December 3 1,2005, PacifiCorp had $5 17.8 million of standby letters of credit and standby bond purchase 
agreements available to provide credit enhancement and liquidity support for variable-rate pollution-control revenue 
bond obligations. These committed bank arrangements expire periodically through the year ending March 3 1, 201 1. 
At December 3 1,2005, PacifiCorp had amended $421.3 million of these bank arrangements to allow for the 
acquisition of PacifiCorp by MidAmerican and anticipates completion of similar amendments to the remaining bank 
arrangements by the closing date of the sale. 

PacifiCorp's revolving credit agreement contains customary covenants and default provisions. PacifiCorp monitors 
these covenants on a regular basis to ensure that events of default will not occur, and as of December 31, 2005, 
PacifiCorp was in compliance with the covenants of its revolving credit agreement. PacifiCorp's other financing 
arrangements generally contain similar covenants, although the maximum permitted debt-to-capitalization ratio for 
some of the arrangements is 60.0%. PacifiCorp was also in compliance with these agreements at December 31, 
2005. PacifiCorp anticipates seeking amendments to the covenants in these other financing agreements to conform 
them to the amended covenants in its revolving credit agreement. 

During the nine months ended December 31, 2005, PacifiCorp entered into three new standby letters of credit 
totaling $56.7 million at December 3 1, 2005. 

Long-Term Debt 
During September 2005, the SEC declared effective PacifiCorp's shelf registration statement covering $700.0 
million of future first mortgage bond and unsecured debt issuances. PacifiCorp has not yet issued any of the 
securities covered by this registration statement. 

On June 13,2005, PacifiCorp issued S300.0 million of its 5.25% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due June 15, 2035. 
PacifiCorp used the proceeds for the reduction of short-term debt, including the short-term debt used in December 
2004 to redeem its 8.625% Series of First Mortgage Bonds due December 13, 2024 totaling $20.0 million. For the 
nine months ended December 3 1,2005, PacifiCorp made scheduled long-term debt repayments of $169.7 million. 



Preferred Stock Redemptions 
PacifiCorp redeemed $7.5 million of preferred stock subject to mandatory and optional redemption during each of 
the nine months ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004. 

Common Stock 
On December 30, 2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,627,907 shares of its common stock to its direct parent company, PHI, 
in consideration of the capital contribution of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on that date. On September 30, 
2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,617,101 shares of its common stock to PHI in consideration of the capital contribution 
of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on that date. On July 21, 2005, PacifiCorp issued 11,737,090 shares of its 
common stock to PHI in consideration of the capital contribution of $125.0 million in cash made by PHI on June 
30,2005. Proceeds from each issuance were used for the reduction of short-term debt. 

Dividends 
During the nine months ended December 3 1,2005, PacifiCorp had the following dividend activity: 

$158.2 million declared and paid on common stock; 
$4.2 million declared on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, of which $2.6 
million was recorded as interest expense; and 
$4.4 million paid on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. 

During the nine months ended December 3 1,2004, PacifiCorp had the following dividend activity: 
$144.9 million declared and paid on common stock; 

= $4.6 million declared on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption, of which $3.0 
million was recorded as interest expense; and - $4.8 million paid on preferred stock and preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption. 

Cautionary Statement 

If market conditions warrant, PacifiCorp may seek to issue long-term debt to more permanently fund its liquidity 
requirements or to refinance short-term or maturing long-term debt. However, management expects existing funds 
and cash generated from operations, together with additional equity contributions from PHI required by the Stock 
Purchase Agreement and availability under the committed credit facilities, to be sufficient to fund liquidity 
requirements for the next 12 months. Continued availability under committed credit facilities depends upon 
PacifiCorp's obtaining appropriate amendments or waivers under certain of its financing agreements. If these 
amendments or waivers cannot be obtained or replacement facilities arranged, the sale of all of PacifiCorp's 
common stock by PHI to MidAmerican would constitute an event of default under these agreements. 

Future Uses of Cash 

Dividends 
On January 27, 2006, PacifiCorp's Board of Directors declared a dividend on common stock of $0.163 per share, 
totaling $56.6 million and payable on the earlier of March 31,2006 or the closing date of the acquisition of 
PacifiCorp by MidAmerican. If the acquisition of PacifiCorp closes prior to March 3 1,2006, the dividend amount 
will be reduced pro rata based on the closing date relative to March 3 1,2006. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase 
Agreement for the sale of PacifiCorp, ScottishPower has agreed to cause PacifiCorp to not pay quarterly dividends 
to PHI in excess of $214.8 million in the aggregate during fiscal year 2006 and $242.3 million in the aggregate 
during fiscal year 2007. These restrictions will terminate upon either the close of the sale of PacifiCorp or the earlier 
termination of the Stock Purchase Agreement. 

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
For an in-depth discussion of PacifiCorp's contractual obligations and con~mercial commitments, see "Contractual 
Obligations and Commercial Commitments" in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations" in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,2005. 

Capital Expenditure Program 
Capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $2.1 billion for the two-year period ending March 3 1, 2007, 
as reported in PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 3 I ,  2005. However, actual 
expenditures over the two-year period may vary due to timing of capital projects and related expenditures, as well as 
changes in the scope of planned projects and implications of capital commitments related to regulatory approval of 
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the sale of PacifiCorp to MidAmerican. PacifiCorp generally expects at least $1.0 billion per year in capital 
expenditures will be required for at least the next five years. This level of spending is dependent upon the 
availability of funding at reasonable terms and conditions. If market conditions are not favorable it may be 
necessary to postpone certain planned capital expenditures or take other actions. 

Construction of the Currant Creek Power Plant began in March 2004. The simple-cycle phase of the project was 
completed and placed in service during the nine months ended December 3 1, 2005. The combined-cycle phase is 
expected to be placed in service by the end of fiscal year 2006. The total plant is expected to cost approximately 
$350.0 million, which will be incurred from fiscal year 2004 through fiscal year 2007. Of this total expected 
amount, $328.3 million had been spent, of which $164.3 million was included in Property, plant and equipment, and 
S 164.0 million was included in Construction work-in-progress, as of December 3 1,2005. Recovery of PacifiCorp's 
investment in the plant will be reviewed by all states PacifiCorp serves as part of ongoing and future general rate 
cases. 

The development of the Lake Side Power Plant began in May 2004 and its construction began in April 2005. The 
plant is expected to cost approximately $347.0 million, which will be incurred from fiscal year 2005 through fiscal 
year 2008. Of this total expected amount, $150.0 million had been spent, of which $19.0 million was included in 
Property, plant and equipment, and $13 1.0 million was included in Construction work-in-progress, as of 
December 31, 2005. Recovery of PacifiCorp's investment in the plant will be reviewed by all states PacifiCorp 
serves as part of ongoing and future general rate cases. 

Expenditures for the installation of emission control equipment at the Huntington Power Plant are expected to cost 
approximately $1 36.1 million, which will be incurred from fiscal year 2005 through fiscal year 2007. Of this total 
expected amount, $43.3 million had been spent and was included in Construction work-in-progress as of 
December 31, 2005. Recovery of PacifiCorp's investment in these facilities will be reviewed by all states 
PacifiCorp serves as part of ongoing and future general rate cases. 

Credit Ratings 

PacifiCorp's credit ratings at December 3 1, 2005, were as follows: 

Issuer/Corporate 
Senior secured debt 
Senior unsecured debt 
Preferred stock 
Commercial paper 

Outlook 

Moody's Standard & Poor's 

Baal A- 
A3 A- 

Baal BBB+ 
Baa3 BBB 
P-2 A-2 

Developing Credit Watch Negative 

On May 25,2005, following the announcement of the proposed sale of PacifiCorp, Standard & Poor's Ratings 
Services ("Standard & Poor's7') placed the corporate credit rating and securities ratings of PacifiCorp on credit 
watch with negative implications. On May 26, 2005, Moody's Investors Service affirmed the issuer credit rating, 
debt and securities ratings of PacifiCorp and changed the rating outlook to developing from stable. 

Recent reports by Standard & Poor's have stated that PacifiCorp's current credit ratings reflect the benefits of 
ScottishPower ownership and that if PacifiCorp were considered on a stand-alone basis, its current credit ratios 
would not support the existing ratings. Standard & Poor's has also indicated that PacifiCorp's future ratings will be 
influenced by a number of factors, including financial results, the extent to which Oregon Senate Bill 408 will 
impact PacifiCorp, the structure of the proposed acquisition by MidAmerican and other considerations. 

The ratings are subject to change or withdrawal at any time by the respective credit ratings services. Each credit 
rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating. For a further discussion of PacifiCorp's credit ratings 
and their effect on PacifiCorp's business, see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations" in PacifiCorpls Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 3 1, 
2005. 



Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

PacifiCorp from time to time enters into arrangements in the normal course of business to facilitate commercial 
transactions with third parties that involve guarantee, indemnification or similar arrangements. PacifiCorp currently 
has indemnification obligations for breaches of warranties or covenants in connection with the sale of certain assets. 
In addition, PacifiCorp evaluates potential obligations that arise out of variable interests in unconsolidated entities, 
determined in accordance with revised FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities, an 
interpretation ofAccounting Research Bulletin No. 51. PacifiCorp believes that the likelihood that it would be 
required to perform or otherwise incur any significant losses associated with any of these obligations is remote. See 
"Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Note 11 - Guarantees and Other Commitments and Note 
13 - Consolidation of Variable-Interest Entities" for more information on these obligations and arrangements in 
PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,2005. 

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK 

PacifiCorp participates in a wholesale energy market that includes public utility companies, electricity and natural 
gas marketers, financial institutions, industrial companies and government entities. A variety of products exist in 
this market, ranging from electricity and natural gas purchases and sales for physical delivery to financial 
instruments such as futures, swaps, options and other complex derivatives. Transactions may be conducted directly 
with customers and suppliers, through brokers, or with an exchange that serves as a central clearing mechanism. 
PacifiCorp is subject to the various risks inherent in the energy business, including credit risk, interest rate risk and 
commodity price risk. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that might occur as a result of non-performance by counterparties of their 
contractual obligations to make or take delivery of electricity, natural gas or other commodities and to make 
financial settlements of these obligations. Credit risk may be concentrated to the extent that one or more groups of 
counterparties have similar economic, industry or other characteristics that would cause their ability to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in market or other conditions. In addition, credit risk 
includes not only the risk that a counterparty may default due to circumstances relating directly to it, but also the 
risk that a counterparty may default due to circumstances involving other market participants that have a direct or 
indirect relationship with such counterparty. 

PacifiCorp seeks to mitigate credit risk (and concentrations of credit risk) by applying specific eligibility criteria to 
prospective counterparties. However, despite mitigation efforts, defaults by counterparties occur from time to time. 
PacifiCorp continues to actively monitor the creditworthiness of those counterparties with whom it transacts and 
uses a variety of risk mitigation techniques to limit its exposure where it believes appropriate. When PacifiCorp 
considers a new asset purchase, transaction or contractual arrangement, market liquidity and the ability to optimize 
the investment are main considerations. To mitigate exposure to the financial risks of wholesale counterparties, 
PacifiCorp has entered into netting and collateral arrangements that include margining and cross-product netting 
agreements and obtaining third-party guarantees, letters of credit and cash deposits. Counterparties may be assessed 
interest fees for delayed receipts. If required, PacifiCorp exercises rights under these arrangements, including 
calling on the counterparty's credit support arrangement. 

The following table represents PacifiCorp's December 31, 2005 distribution of unsecured credit exposure, net of 
collateral, within its electricity and natural gas portfolio of purchase and sale contracts and takes into account 
contractual netting rights. 



Distribution of Credit Exposure 

Investment grade - Externally rated 
Non-investment grade - Externally rated 
Investment grade - Internally rated 
Non-investment grade - Internally rated 

% of Total 

87.5 % 

"Externally rated" represents enterprise relationships that have published ratings from at least one major credit 
rating agency. "Internally rated" represents those relationships that have no rating by a major credit rating agency. 
For those relationships, PacifiCorp utilizes internally developed, commercially appropriate rating methodologies 
and credit scoring models to develop a public rating equivalent. 

The "Non-investment grade - Internally rated" component of PacifiCorp's overall credit exposure reflects the 
market value of a small number of contracts that support PacifiCorp's Integrated Resource Plan and Oregon's 
electric energy restructuring legislation as it relates to renewable energy projects, as well as compliance with FERC 
regulations requiring utilities to purchase power from qualifying facilities. 

Interest Rate Risk 

PacifiCorp is exposed to risk resulting from changes in interest rates as a result of its issuance of variable-rate debt 
and commercial paper. PacifiCorp manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a blend of fixed-rate and 
variable-rate debt and by monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates. Changing interest rates will 
affect interest paid on variable-rate debt and interest earned by PacifiCorp's pension plan assets, mining reclamation 
tmst funds and cash balances. PacifiCorp's principal sources of variable-rate debt are commercial paper and 
pollution-control revenue bonds remarketed on a periodic basis. Commercial paper is periodically refinanced with 
fixed-rate debt when needed and when interest rates are considered favorable. PacifiCorp may also enter into 
financial derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps, swaptions and United States Treasury lock 
agreements, to manage and mitigate interest rate exposure. PacifiCorp does not anticipate using financial derivatives 
as the principal means of managing interest rate exposure. PacifiCorp's weighted-average cost of debt is recoverable 
in rates. Increases or decreases in interest rates are reflected in PacifiCorp's cost of debt calculation as rate cases are 
filed. Any adverse change to PacifiCorp's credit rating could negatively impact PacifiCorp's ability to borrow and 
the interest rates that are charged. 

As of December 3 I, 2005, PacifiCorp had $756.3 million of variable-rate liabilities and $1 50.0 million of temporary 
cash investments. At December 3 1, 2005, PacifiCorp had no financial derivatives in effect relating to interest rate 
exposure. 

Based on a sensitivity analysis as of December 3 1, 2005, for a one-year horizon, PacifiCorp estimated that if market 
interest rates average 1 .O% higher (lower), interest expense, net of offsetting impacts in interest income, would 
increase (decrease) by $6.1 million. Comparatively, based on a sensitivity analysis as of December 3 1, 2004, for a 
one-year horizon, had interest rates averaged 1 .O% higher (lower), PacifiCorp estimated that interest expense, net of 
offsetting impacts in interest income, would have increased (decreased) by $8.1 million. These amounts include the 
effect of invested cash and were determined by considering the impact of the hypothetical interest rates on the 
variable-rate securities outstanding as of December 3 1, 2005 and 2004. The decrease in interest rate sensitivity was 
primarily due to the increase in invested cash and decrease in outstanding variable rate commercial paper. If interest 
rates changed significantly, PacifiCorp might take actions to manage its exposure to the change. However, due to 
the uncertainty of the specific actions that might be taken and their possible effects, the sensitivity analysis assumes 
no changes in PacifiCorp's financial structure. 

Commodity Price Risk 

PacifiCorp's exposure to market risk due to commodity price change is primarily related to its fuel and electricity 
commodities, which are subject to fluctuations due to unpredictable factors, such as weather, electricity demand and 
plant performance, that affect energy supply and demand. PacifiCorp's energy purchase and sales activities are 
governed by PacifiCorp's risk management policy and the risk levels established as part of that policy. 



PacifiCorp's energy commodity price exposure arises principally from its electric supply obligation in the western 
United States. PacifiCorp manages this risk principally through the operation of its generation plants with a net 
capability of 8,23 1.4 MW, as well as transmission rights held both on some of its own 15,530-mile transmission 
system and on third-party transmission systems, and through its wholesale energy purchase and sales activities. 
Wholesale contracts are utilized primarily to balance PacifiCorp's physical excess or shortage of net electricity for 
future time periods. Financially settled contracts are utilized to further mitigate commodity price risk. PacifiCorp 
may from time to time enter into other financially settled, temperature-related derivative instruments that reduce 
volume and price risk on days with weather extremes. In addition, a financially settled hydroelectric streamflow 
hedge is in place through September 2006 to reduce volume and price risks associated with PacifiCorp's 
hydroelectric generation resources. 

PacifiCorp measures the market risk in its electricity and natural gas portfolio daily, utilizing a historical Value-at- 
Risk ("VaR") approach and other measurements of net position. PacifiCorp also monitors its portfolio exposure to 
market risk in comparison to established thresholds and measures its open positions subject to price risk in terms of 
quantity at each delivery location for each forward time period. 

VaR con~putations for the electricity and natural gas commodity portfolio are based on a historical simulation 
technique, utilizing historical price changes over a specified (holding) period to simulate potential forward energy 
market price curve movements to estimate the potential unfavorable impact of such price changes on the portfolio 
positions scheduled to settle within the following 24 months. The quantification of market risk using VaR provides 
a consistent measure of risk across PacifiCorp's continually changing portfolio. VaR represents an estimate of 
possible changes at a given level of confidence in fair value that would be measured on its portfolio assuming 
hypothetical movements in future market rates and is not necessarily indicative of actual results that may occur. 

PacifiCorp's VaR computations for its electricity and natural gas commodity portfolio utilize several key 
assumptions, including a 99.0% confidence level for the resultant price changes and a holding period of five 
business days. The calculation includes short-term derivative commodity instruments held for risk mitigation and 
balancing purposes, the expected resource and demand obligations from PacifiCorp's long-term contracts, the 
expected generation levels from PacifiCorp's generation assets and the expected retail and wholesale load levels. 
The portfolio reflects flexibility contained in contracts and assets, which accommodate the normal variability in 
PacifiCorp's demand obligations and generation availability. These contracts and assets are valued to reflect the 
variability PacifiCorp experiences as a load-serving entity. Contracts or assets that contain flexible elements are 
often referred to as having embedded options or option characteristics. These options provide for energy volume 
changes that are sensitive to market price changes. Therefore, changes in the option values affect the energy 
position of the portfolio with respect to market prices, and this effect is calculated daily. When measuring portfolio 
exposure through VaR, these position changes that result from the option sensitivity are held constant through the 
historical simulation to avoid understating VaR. 

As of December 3 I ,  2005, PacifiCorp's estimated potential five-day unfavorable impact on fair value of the 
electricity and natural gas commodity portfolio over the next 24 months was $20.1 million, as measured by the VaR 
computations described above, compared to $26.3 million as of December 3 1,2004. The minimum, average and 
maximum daily VaR (five-day holding periods) for the three and nine months ended December 3 1,2005 are as 
follows: 

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended 
December 3 1, December 3 1, 

(Millions of dollars) 2005 2005 

Minimum VaR (measured) S 17.3 S 6.7 
Average VaR (calculated) 24.7 17.8 
Maximum VaR (measured) 36.4 46.2 

PacifiCorp maintained compliance with its VaR limit procedures during the nine rnonths ended December 3 1, 2005. 
Changes in markets inconsistent with historical trends or assumptions used could cause actual results to exceed 
predicted limits. 



Fair Value of Derivatives 

The following table shows the changes in the fair value of energy-related contracts subject to the requirements of 
SFAS No. 133, Accountiizgfor Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, from March 3 1, 2005 to 
December 3 1,2005, and quantifies the reasons for the changes. 

Regulatory 
Net Asset (Liabilitv) Net Asset 

(Millions of dollars) Trading Non-trading (Liability) (b) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at March 3 1, 2005 $ 0.2 $ (154.4) $ 170.0 
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period (0.1) (72.7) 74.0 
Other changes in fair values (a) (0.3) 368.9 (336.3) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at December 3 1, 2005 $ (0.2) $ 141.8 S (92.3) 

(a) Other changes in fair values include the effects of changes in market prices, inflation rates and interest 
rates, including those based on models, on new and existing contracts. 

(b) Net unrealized losses (gains) related to derivative contracts included in rates are recorded as a regulatory net 
asset (liability). 

The fair value of derivative instruments is determined using forward price curves. Forward price curves represent 
PacifiCorp's estimates of the prices at which a buyer or seller could contract today for delivery or settlement of a 
commodity at future dates. PacifiCorp bases its forward price curves upon market price quotations when available 
and internally developed and commercial models with internal and external fundamental data inputs when market 
quotations are unavailable. In general, PacifiCorp estimates the fair value of a contract by calculating the present 
value of the difference between the prices in the contract and the applicable forward price curve. Price quotations 
for certain major electricity trading hubs are generally readily obtainable for the first six years and therefore 
PacifiCorp's forward price curves for those locations and periods reflect observable market quotes. However, in the 
later years or for locations that are not actively traded, PacifiCorp must develop forward price curves. For short- 
term contracts at less actively traded locations, prices are modeled based on observed historical price relationships 
with actively traded locations. For long-term contracts extending beyond six years, the forward price curve is based 
upon the use of a fundamentals model (cost-to-build approach) due to the limited information available. Factors 
used in the fundamentals model include the forward prices for the commodities used as fuel to generate electricity, 
the expected system heat rate (which measures the efficiency of electricity plants in converting fuel to electricity) in 
the region where the purchase or sale takes place, and a fundamental forecast of expected spot prices based on 
modeled supply and demand in the region. The assumptions in these models are critical since any changes to the 
assumptions could have a significant impact on the fair value of the contract. Contracts with explicit or embedded 
optionality are valued by separating each contract into its physical and financial forward and option components. 
Forward components are valued against the appropriate forward price curve. The optionality is valued using a 
modified Black-Scholes model or a stochastic simulation (Monte Carlo) approach. Each option component is 
modeled and valued separately using the appropriate forward price curve. 

PacifiCorp's valuation models and assumptions are continuously updated to reflect current market information, and 
evaluations and refinements of model assumptions are performed on a periodic basis. 

The following table shows summarized information with respect to valuation techniques and contractual maturities 
of PacifiCorp's energy-related contracts qualifying as derivatives under SFAS No. 133 as of December 31, 2005. 



Fair Value of Contracts at Period-End 

Maturity Maturity in Total 

(Millions of dollars) 

less than Maturity Maturity excess of Fair 

I year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years Value 

Trading: 

Values based on quoted market pnces from third-party sources $ (0.2) $ - $ - $ - $ (0.2) 

Values based on models and other valuation methods 

Total trading s (0.2) $ - $ - $ - % (0.2) 

Non-trading: 

Values based on quoted market prices from third-party sources $ 4.0 $ 23.8 $ 14.3 $ 2.4 $ 44.5 

Values based on models and other valuation methods 166.1 161.0 21.1 (250.9) 97.3 

Total non-trading 

Standardized derivative contracts that are valued using market quotations are classified as "values based on quoted 
market prices from third-party sources." All remaining contracts, which include non-standard contracts and 
contracts for which market prices are not routinely quoted, are classified as "values based on models and other 
valuation methods." Both classifications utilize market curves as appropriate for the first six years. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

PacifiCorp maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that material 
information required to be disclosed by it in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and 
forms, and that the information is accumulated and communicated to PacifiCorp's management, including its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. PacifiCorp performed an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, 
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of 
PacifiCorp's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this 
evaluation, PacifiCorp's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded 
that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report. 

During the three months ended December 3 1,2005, there was no change in PacifiCorp's internal control over 
financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurred that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, PacifiCorp's internal control over financial reporting. 

PART 11. OTHER INFORMATION 

INFORMATION REGARDING RECENT REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS 

PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 3 1,2005, contains information concerning the 
federal and state regulatory matters in which PacifiCorp is involved. See "Item 1. Business - Regulation." Certain 
developments with respect to those matters are set forth below, in "Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements -Note 6 - 
Commitments and Contingencies" and in the corresponding sections of PacifiCorp's previous Quarterly Reports on 
Form 10-Q for its current fiscal year, which are incorporated by reference into this discussion. For information 
about regulatory filings with state public utility comnlissions and federal agencies related to MidAmerican's 
proposed acquisition of PacifiCorp, see "Part I - Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations - Sale of PacifiCorp." 



State Regulatory Actions 

Utah 

In November 2005, PacifiCorp filed a Power Cost Adjustment Mechanism ("PCAM") application. The PCAM 
provides for 90.0% recovery of actual power costs that exceed the amount in rates and a 100.0% refund of any over- 
collection of power costs. If approved, the PCAM will become effective after base rates are determined in 
PacifiCorp's next Utah general rate case. 

Oregon 

In December 2005, the Oregon Public Utility Commission (the "OPUC") granted PacifiCorp's motion for 
reconsideration and rehearing of the rate order issued in PacifiCorp's last general rate case. The OPUC's September 
2005 rate order implemented a $26.6 million downward adjustment to PacifiCorp's revenue requirement based on 
the OPUC's interpretation of Oregon Senate Bill 408, legislation intended to address differences between income 
taxes collected by Oregon public utilities in retail rates and actual taxes paid by the utilities or consolidated groups 
in which utilities are included for income tax reporting purposes. In granting PacifiCorp's motion for 
reconsideration and rehearing, the OPUC will reconsider whether Oregon Senate Bill 408 applies to this rate case 
and, it if does, whether the tax adjustment ordered by the OPUC results in rates that are unconstitutional. A hearing 
and submissions of written briefs are scheduled to occur through May 2006. PacifiCorp continues to participate in 
the permanent rulemaking process in order to implement Oregon Senate Bill 408. PacifiCorp expects that the 
permanent rules will be issued during the fiscal quarter ending September 30,2006. 

In April 2006, long-term specid contracts for PacifiCorp's Klamath basin irrigation customers will expire. Under 
the existing contracts, customers receive power at rates equaling less than one-tenth of PacifiCorp's average retail 
rates charged to other customers on general irrigation tariffs. The rates that these Klamath basin customers will pay 
after the expiration of their special contract were a contested issue in PacifiCorp's last general rate proceeding. The 
OPUC separated the rate-standard and rate-setting issues from the general rate proceeding and required parties to 
file legal briefs on the appropriate rate standard to apply to these customers. In November 2005, the OPUC issued 
an order stating that the same "just and reasonable" standard that applies to all of PacifiCorp's retail customers also 
applies to irrigation customers in the Klamath basin. A procedural schedule for the evidentiary rate-setting portion 
of the proceeding has been established. An order is expected in April 2006. Legislation enacted in 2005 by the 
Oregon Legislative Assembly and Governor Kulongoski limits increases in rates for the Klamath Basin customers to 
50.0% per year. The legislation states that the full cost of providing the rate credits will be spread among other 
PacifiCorp customers. 

Wyoming 

In February 2006, the WPSC orally approved an agreement settling PacifiCorp's pending general rate case and a 
separate December 2005 request by PacifiCorp to recover increased costs of net wholesale purchased power used to 
serve Wyoming customers. The settlement provides for a $15.0 million revenue increase effective March 1, 2006, 
an additional $10.0 million revenue increase effective July I ,  2006, a PCAM and an agreement by the parties to 
support a forecast test year in the next general rate case application. 

Washington 

In May 2005, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case request with the Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission (the "WUTC") for approximately $39.2 million annually. PacifiCorp filed rebuttal testimony in 
December 2005 that decreased the originally filed amount by $6.6 million annually, for an updated request of $32.6 
million annually. Hearings on the updated request took place in January and February 2006. If approved by the 
WUTC, customer rates would increase by 14.9% in April 2006. 

As part of that proceeding, PacifiCorp is also requesting to recover $8.3 million in hydroelectric costs. PacifiCorp is 
proposing that future hydroelectric and power cost volatility be recovered through a proposed PCAM. 



California 

In November 2005, PacifiCorp filed a general rate case with the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC") 
for an increase of $1 1.0 lnjlljon annually, or an average increase of 15.6% related to increasing costs, including 
power costs and operating expenses, as well as significant needed capital investments. 

PacifiCorp's application also requests the implementation of an Energy Cost Adjustment Clause ("ECAC"), which 
would allow for annual rate adjustments for changes in the level of net power costs, and a Post Test-Year 
Adjustment Mechanism ("PTAM"), which would allow annual rate adjustments for changes in operating costs and 
plant additions. The proposed ECAC and PTAM would operate outside the context of traditional general rate cases. 

PacifiCorp also serves customers in California that fall under long-term special contracts for Klamath basin 
irrigation customers described above. In January 2006, PacifiCorp served notice to the CPUC of its intent to reset 
the rates for these customers to standard irrigation rates upon expiration of the special contracts in April 2006. After 
a formal protest by the irrigation customers, PacifiCorp and the irrigation customers agreed upon and presented a 
joint proposal for a 4-year transition to standard irrigation rates to the CPUC, which is scheduled to rule on the 
proposal prior to the expiration of the special contracts. 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

See "Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements -Note 6 - Commitments and Contingencies" and "Part 11. Other 
Information - Information Regarding Recent Regulatory Developments," which are incorporated by reference into 
this Item 1. 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 

For a discussion of certain risks and other factors to be considered when evaluating PacifiCorp, please see "Item 7. 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Risk Factors" in 
PacifiCorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2005 and "Part I - Item 2. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Risk Factors" in PacifiCorp's Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005, as well as "Part I - Item 3. Quantitative 
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" of this Quarterly Report. 



ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

10.1 * Compromise Agreement among PacifiCorp, PacifiCorp Holdings, Inc. and Michael J. Pittman, dated 
October 4, 2005. (Exhibit 10.4, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarterly period ended September 
30, 2005, File No. 1-5152). 

10.2 Amendment to PacifiCorp Executive Severance Plan, dated effective October 3 1,2005. 

10.3" Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement among PacifiCorp, Scottish Power plc and Judi 
Johansen, dated as of December 20,2005. (Exhibit 10, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 
23, 2005, File No. 1-5152). 

12.1 Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 

12.2 Statements of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock 
Dividends. 

15 Letter regarding unaudited interim financial information. 

3 1.1 Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)I15d-l4(a). 

3 1.2 Section 302 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-l4(a). 

32.1 Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

32.2 Section 906 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

*Incorporated herein by reference. 
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1 Q. Please state your name, business address and present position with 

2 PacifiCorp. 

3 A. My name is James M. O'Connell and my business address is Suite 1500, Lloyd 

4 Center Tower, 825 NE Multnomah Street, Portland, Oregon. My present position 

5 at PacifiCorp is Principal Engineer, Hydro Asset Management. 

6 Q. Briefly describe your educational and professional background. 

7 A. I graduated from Portland State University with a Bachelor of Science Degree and 

8 a Masters of Business Administration Degree in 1971 and 1980, respectively. I 

9 am a registered Mechanical Engineer in the State of Oregon. Following 

10 graduation I worked in the gas distribution and oil pipeline industries in 

11 operations, then joined PacifiCorp in 1980. My last 10 years with PacifiCorp 

12 have been in Hydro Resources. 

13 Q. What are your major job responsibilities? 

14 A. My current role is to manage and coordinate ongoing activities related to small 

15 hydroelectric facility divestment. 

16 Q. What is the purpose of your testimony? 

17 A. I describe the proposed sale of PacifiCorp's Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 

18 (Project) to the City of Beaver, Utah, and the reasons for the proposed sale. 

19 Q. Please describe the assets proposed for sale. 

20 A. Please see PPL Exhibit 101 for a photograph of the Project power house. 

2 1 PacifiCorp owns and operates the Project, located in southwestern Utah on the 

22 Beaver River near City of Beaver, Utah. All land is owned by the United States 

23 Forest Service (USFS). The Project consists of the Merchant Valley Dam, 
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approximately two miles of main flow line (diameter 30 to 36 inches), three 

connecting diversions (South Fork, 16-inch diameter pipe 1.79 miles in length; 

Dry Hollow, 12-inch diameter line 0.33 miles in length; and the East Fork, 12- 

inch diameter line 0.22 miles in length), a 20-foot diameter, 50-foot high surge 

tank, a penstock approximately one mile in length (diameter 20 to 30 inches), and 

a powerhouse containing two horizontal Pelton runner generating units (Unit No. 

1 capacity 1.3 MW, Unit No. 2 capacity 1.2 MW). 

Please describe the purchaser. 

The City of Beaver (City) is a municipal corporation of the State of Utah. It owns 

and operates the downstream Lower Beaver Hydroelectric Project (previously 

owned by PacifiCorp). The City desires to purchase the nearby Upper Beaver 

Hydroelectric Project to serve its local municipal retail electric loads. 

Why does PacifiCorp want to sell the Project? 

In mid-2004, PacifiCorp's Hydro Engineering department recommended 

replacement of a 350-foot section of main flow line just below the Merchant 

Valley Dam. The estimated cost of this flow line section replacement plus other 

capital additions and replacements planned over the next thirty years was $3.9 

million. The high expected future capital costs prompted Hydro Resources to 

conduct a financial analysis of continued operation compared to other options. 

Why sell small hydro plants at the same time the Company is building new 

thermal generating stations? 

This makes sense for the customers if the replacement resource is expected to 

deliver energy at a lower cost than the divested resource. 
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What is the age of the Project? 

The original Project facilities are approximately 90 years old. 

What arrangements are in place for disposition of the energy produced by 

the hydroelectric facility? 

PacifiCorp plans to separate the Project facilities from transmission facilities 

located at the Project powerhouse and install metering and communications 

equipment to be utilized to facilitate wheeling of Project output to the City of 

Beaver. The sale contract requires the City of Beaver to enter into a Generation 

Interconnection Agreement, providing for the interconnection of the Project with 

the PacifiCorp system. 

Please describe governmental regulation of the Project's operations. 

This facility is exempt from FERC licensing, but subject to annual FERC dam 

safety inspections under Part 12 of the Federal Power Act. 

What are the basic terms of the sale to the City of Beaver? 

The City of Beaver will pay PacifiCorp $2 million for the Project, which is 

expected to cover the estimated book cost and the sale processing cost and 

produce a minor gain on sale. Mr. Weston discusses the details in his testimony. 

Please describe the O&M costs associated with operating the Project. 

For the past five years, the inflation-adjusted operations and maintenance costs for 

the Project as reported in the Company's FERC Form 1 reports have averaged 

approximately $21 8,000 per year. 

What is the typical generation output from the Project? 

The thirty-year average generation from this plant (1974-2004) is 8,964 MWh. 
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How does the proposed sale benefit PacifiCorp's customers? 

PacifiCorp completed a revised estimate of the 30-year plans for capital and 

O&M for the Project in December 2005. The economic analysis shows that the 

sale option is preferable to either continued operation or decommissioning. Mr. 

Satter discusses this analysis in his testimony. 

Why is the City of Beaver uniquely positioned to purchase this Project? 

The City of Beaver has synergies that other prospective buyers do not have (local 

labor that can be utilized on both Upper and Lower Beaver Hydro Projects and the 

capability to increase generation due to additional water rights) and a need for two 

additional MW of capacity. 

When does PacifiCorp expect the proposed sale to close? 

The expected closing date of the proposed sale is the first or second quarter of 

2007, contingent upon approval by the utility commissions of California, Oregon, 

and Wyoming and the Company's separation of the Project's generation and 

transmission assets. The Company will notify state utility regulatory 

commissions whose approval is not required. 

Are you familiar with the Project Purchase Agreement By and between The 

City of Beaver, Utah and PacifiCorp relating to the Upper Beaver 

Hydroelectric Project, Dated as of March 29,2006? 

Yes. 

Is the document included in the Application as Application Exhibit 1 a true 

and correct version of that agreement? 

Yes. 
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1 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

2 A. Yes. 
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Please state your name, business address and present position with 

PacifiCorp. 

My name is Stan P. Satter and my business address is 825 NE Multnomah Street, 

Suite 1500, Lloyd Center Tower, Portland, Oregon. My present position at 

PacifiCorp is Financial Consultant assigned to Hydro Resources at PacifiCorp 

Energy. 

Briefly describe your educational and professional background. 

I graduated from Portland State University with a Bachelor of Science Degree 

with a Business Administration major in 1972. I joined Pacific Power 

(PacifiCorp) in 1974 as an accountant and advanced to Accounting Supervisor for 

PacifiCorp Trans, Inc., a subsidiary of PacifiCorp, in 1985. After ten years with 

that company, I returned to PacifiCorp in 1995, accepting a position as a financial 

analyst. I soon became involved with Hydro financial analysis and have 

continued my relationship with Hydro Resources to this date. 

What are your responsibilities in Hydro Resources? 

In my present duties, I serve as a financial consultant to Hydro Resources 

advising on the economics of relicensing, plant divestments, and new hydro plant 

investments. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

My testimony explains the financial analysis supporting the decision to enter into 

agreement with the City of Beaver (City) to sell the Upper Beaver Hydroelectric 

Project as described in Mr. O'Connell's testimony (the "Upper Beaver Project" or 

the "Project") to the City. This analysis demonstrates that the option of selling 
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the Project is superior, from a customer benefit standpoint, to the other two 

options available to the Company regarding the Upper Beaver Project. 

When did you conduct the analysis you are presenting in this testimony? 

I conducted this analysis in December 2005 at the time the Company was 

evaluating the options it faced regarding the future of the Upper Beaver Project, 

including the opportunity to sell the Project to the City of Beaver. 

Have you produced an exhibit summarizing the results of your analysis? 

Yes. PPL Exhibit 201 presents a summary of my analysis. 

What options available to PacifiCorp were addressed in your analysis? 

The analysis evaluated three options: 1) to continue to own and operate the 

Project (Continued Operations), 2) to remove and decommission the Project in 

2007 while continuing to operate until decommissioning work is initiated and the 

Project taken off line (Decommission), and 3) to sell the Project while continuing 

to operate until the sale is complete (Sale of Plant). 

What methodology did you use to conduct your analysis? 

I used the present value of revenue requirement difference (PVRR(d)) approach. 

This analysis begins with computing the 30-year present value of the year-by-year 

revenue requirement (PVRR) of each option. Then, the lowest PVRR option is 

identified and the difference in PVRR between the next best option and the other 

options is computed resulting in the PVRR(d) values of each option. The option 

with the highest PVRR(d) value is identified as the preferred option. 
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What are the PVRR and PVRR(d) values your analysis produced for each of 

the three options? 

As shown in PPL Exhibit 20 1, the PVRR of the Continued Operations option is 

$10.73 million, of the Decommission option is $10.59 million and of the Sale of 

Plant option is $8.34 million. Thus, Sale of Plant is shown to be the preferred 

option and Decommissioning as the next best. The PVRR(d) values of the Sale of 

Plant, Decommission and Continued Operations options are $2.25 million, $0 and 

negative $0.14 million, respectively. 

Do these numerical results support your conclusion that the Sale of Plant 

option is the appropriate choice for the Company and its customers? 

Yes. Under the Sale of Plant option PacifiCorp's customers receive the maximum 

available benefit from the Project. The Sale of Plant option will impose over $2 

million lower revenue requirement over the next 30 years on a discounted basis 

than either of the other two options. 

Will you please provide a more detailed explanation of your PVRR(d) 

analysis? 

Yes. Each option was analyzed using standard revenue requirement calculations 

to determine the cost that option will impose on customers over the 30-year 

anticipated life of the Project. For all options, this includes all costs of operation 

and maintenance (O&M) and rate base-related costs of ownership and operation 

of the plant for as long as it is owned and operated by the Company. In addition, 

for the Decommission and Sale of Plant options, the costs and revenues unique to 

each option are incorporated. As with all revenue requirement calculations, the 
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results include a "gross-up for taxes." The analysis is conducted on a year-by- 

year basis and the annual projected revenue requirement values are discounted to 

the present at the Company's 7.1 percent after tax financial analysis discount rate 

to produce the PVRR estimates. 

Will you please describe the cost and/or revenue elements incorporated in 

analysis of each of the options. 

Yes. I'll begin with the Continued Ownership option. For this option, the costs 

are associated with a $21 8,000 annual average Project operation and maintenance 

(O&M) costs plus an anticipated additional capital expenditure over the life of the 

Project of approximately $3.9 million. These cost figures are discussed in Mr. 

O'Connell's testimony. As Mr. O'Connell discusses, this capital expenditure 

projection is front-end loaded because of the need for near-term improvements to 

the main flow line. 

In the case of the Decommission option, annual O&M costs continue until 

decommissioning is initiated. The $3.9 million in year capital expenditures are 

not undertaken. However, two additional cost elements are included: the one- 

time cost of decommissioning, estimated at $950,000, and the annual cost of 

buying power on the market to replace the 8,964 MWH of power produced by the 

Project. Replacement power was priced using the then-current September 2005 

PacifiCorp Official Base Price Projection. 

For the Sale of Plant option, annual O&M costs continue until March 3 1 

2007. As in the Decommission option, the $3.9 million in year capital 

expenditures are not undertaken. However the additional costs of preparing the 
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Project for sale will be incurred before the sale can be completed. At the time my 

analysis was done, these sale-related expenditures were estimated, based on 

professional judgment, at $250,000 million. As shown in Mr. Weston's testimony 

an additional sale related expenditure of approximately $105,000 has been 

identified. After completion of the sale, the Company will have to purchase 8,964 

MWH of replacement power annually. As in the Decommission option analysis, 

replacement power was priced using the then-current September 2005 PacifiCorp 

Official Base Price Projection. Also, on the date of sale the Company will receive 

the $2 million purchase price from the City of Beaver. At the time the analysis 

was completed, it was estimated that the transaction would produce a gain on sale 

of $1 18,000 after subtracting sale-related expenditures and the remaining net 

book value of the plant. This gain was treated as a revenue credit against revenue 

requirement in the analysis. Mr. Weston presents the current estimate of gain on 

sale in his testimony. 

You mentioned that the analysis was performed in December 2005. Do you 

believe that the same general results would be obtained if you were to update 

for today's circumstances? 

Yes. I believe the results continue to provide a reliable basis for the 

Commission's approval of the proposed sale. As indicated earlier, the analysis 

summarized in PPL Exhibit 201 is based on the Company's September 2005 

Official Base Price Projection. The most current June 2006 Projection shows 

somewhat lower future replacement power prices than the September 2005 

vintage. Therefore, an update to current market price projections would produce a 
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1 somewhat higher benefit to customers of the Project sale compared to the 

2 Continued Operations option. However, the Company believes that the 

3 Commission's approval should be based on information available at the time the 

4 decision was made by the Company. 

5 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

6 A. Yes. 

Direct Testimony of Stan P. Satter 



Case No. UP- 
PPL Exhibit 201 
Stan P. Satter 

September 2006 

7 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

PACIFICORP 

Exhibit Accompanying Direct Testimony of Stan P. Satter 

Proposed Sale of Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 

Economic Analysis 





BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

PACIFICORP 

Case No. UP- 
PPL Exhibit 300 
Witness: J. Ted Weston 

September 2006 

Direct Testimony of J. Ted Weston 

Proposed Sale of Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project 

Proposed Regulatory Treatment and 
Gain on Sale Analysis 



Please state your name, business address and present position with 

PacifiCorp. 

My name is Ted Weston and my business address is One Utah Center, 201 South 

Main Street, Suite 2300, Salt Lake City, Utah 841 11. My present position at 

PacifiCorp is Regulatory Manager. 

Briefly describe your educational and professional background. 

I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting from Utah State 

University in 1983. I joined the Company in June of 1983 and I have held various 

accounting and regulatory positions prior to my current position. In addition to 

formal education, I have attended various educational, professional and electric 

industry related seminars during my career with the Company. 

What are your responsibilities in Regulation? 

My primary responsibilities include management of calculating and reporting the 

Company's regulated earnings or revenue requirement, ensuring that the 

interjurisdictional cost allocation methodology is correctly applied and providing 

an explanation of those calculations to regulators in the jurisdictions in which 

PacifiCorp operates. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to explain the proposed regulatory treatment for 

the sale of PacifiCorp's Upper Beaver Hydroelectric Project (the "Upper Beaver 

Project" or the "Project"), describe how the Company will account for this sale 

and explain why approval of this sale should not require any additional or 

extraordinary regulatory treatment in Oregon. I also present the Company's 
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current estimate of the expected gain on the sale of the Project. 

What is the current net book value of the Upper Beaver Project assets? 

PacifiCorp's current investment at the Upper Beaver Project in electric plant-in- 

service (FERC account 101) is $3,3 14,145. The sale is expected to close in the 

first or second quarter of 2007 and therefore, for purposes of estimating the 

accounting transactions related to this sale, I have assumed a closing date of 

March 3 1,2007. The accumulated depreciation reserve (FERC account 108) on 

that date will be $1,693,257 for a net book value of $1,620,888. 

Please explain how the sale of the Upper Beaver Project will be accounted for 

if approved by the Commission. 

Along with my testimony I have provided PPL Exhibit 301, which is the 

accounting entries, as proposed by the Company, for the sale of the Upper Beaver 

Project. The following testimony is a summary of the accounting entries from 

PPL Exhibit 301. The net book value of $1,620,888 will be transferred to Electric 

Plant Purchased or Sold (FERC account 102) by crediting account 10 1 for 

$3,3 14,145, debiting account 108 for $1,693,257 (which will eliminate the 

balances in those accounts) and then debiting account 102 for the difference, 

which is the net book value of $1,620,888. The balance in Electric Plant 

Purchased or Sold will remain in FERC account 102 until the Company receives 

all regulatory approvals. Also, any expenses related to the sale of these properties 

(currently estimated to be $354,701) will be recorded to account 102, for an 

estimated total balance in Electric Plant Purchased or Sold of $1,975,589. When 

Beaver City pays for the properties, the Company will debit Cash for $2,000,000, 
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credit Electric Plant Purchased or Sold for $1,975,589 and credit the book Gain 

on Disposition of Property for the currently estimated value of $24,411. Based on 

Oregon's current Revised Protocol SG allocation factor (0.146082), Oregon's 

allocated share of this gain is $6,500. The estimates provided above are based on 

an assumed closing date of March 3 1,2007, and the actual accounting entries and 

realized gain on sale may vary depending on the exact date of closing. The 

Oregon SG allocation factor will also be updated to its then-current value. 

How does the Company propose to treat the gain from the sale of the Upper 

Beaver Project? 

The Company believes that no additional adjustments are necessary. The total- 

Company and Oregon-allocated gains are immaterial. In addition, it is not 

standard regulatory practice to adjust rates for individual immaterial issues 

without taking all other revenue requirement components into consideration. This 

sale is no exception and should not be treated any differently. There are always 

fluctuations in the level of revenues, rate base and expense from the amounts 

approved by the Commission in the Company's revenue requirement at the last 

general rate case. It is only when these fluctuations materially impact Company 

earnings that a general rate case is filed and a new revenue requirement is 

determined that includes adjustments for ongoing purchases, sales, capital 

additions and changes in expenses. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 
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Proposed Entry to Record the Sale of Upper Beaver Hydro Facility 
PacifiCorp to City of Beaver 

DRAFT - at 6121106 

Record receipt of proceeds from the sale of facilities 

1 Acca~kt  1 Description I ~ h i t  1 credft I 
1 rseh 2.000.000 cash received 

8 .8 ,  ""S,. 

102 Electric Plant Purchased or Sold 2,000,000 sales price 

Record sales costs 

,... , . . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ; ~ ; ~ ~ ; ~ ~ ; ~ ; ~ ~ ~ ; ; ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ : ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ; ~ , ~ ~ ~ , ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ; ; ; ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ; ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ;  i;IjIj;gigg&Zfii$Ij$;j$: Ijii:,;ii$Ij:;,ci.+@:;ijgJ; 
. .. , , . . . , . . . . . , , . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . 
m a n t  Purchased or Sold 250,000 sales costs 

102 Electric Plant Purchased or Sold 104,701 slide gate (sales cost) 

131 Cash 354,701 cash paid 

Retire Facilities from Electric Plant in Service 

I Account ) Description I OebK 1 Credit 1 
102 Electr~c Plant Purchased or Sold 1,620,888 net book - - 

108 Accumulated Provision for Depreciation of Utility Plant 1,693,257 accurn deprec 

101 Electric Plant in Service 3,314,145 acquis cost 

Record the gain on the sale and reflect the related tax expense 

2,000,000 sales price 
102 Electric Plant Purchased or Sold 1,975,589 net book + sales costs - 

282 Accumulated Deferred Taxes 
409-41 1 Income Tax Expense 

421 .I Gain on Disposition of Property 
236 Taxes Accrued 

250,989 deferred taxes 
125,496 tax expense 

24,411 Book Gain 
376,485 income tax on taxable gain 

( ~ a ~ n  on Sde Cdculatirm 

Total Gross Revenue From Sale 2,000,000 
minus Plant Sale Related Expenses 354,701 

Net Revenue: Gross minus Plant Sale related Expenses 1,645,299 

minus Net Book Value 1,620,888 
Gain on Sale 24,411 

Oregon Share of Gain at UM-179 SG 26.6279*/~ 6,500 

Notes: 
Accumulated depreciation is calculated assuming sale will occur on 3/31/07. 
Tax calculation is preliminary. 


